
Meeting of: COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON

Date/Time: Tuesday, March 14, 2017 @ 7:00 p.m.

Location: Council Chambers (2nd Floor of Public Safety Building)
321 South Fourth Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin

Members: Mayor Donna Olson, Tim Swadley, Matt Bartlett, Sid Boersma, Michael
Engelberger, Regina Hirsch, Greg Jenson, Kathleen Johnson, Dennis Kittleson,
Paul Lawrence, Tom Majewski, Pat O’Connor, and Scott Truehl

ATTENTION COUNCIL MEMBERS: TWO-THIRDS OF MEMBERS NEEDED FOR A QUORUM
(EIGHT). The Council may only conduct business when a quorum is present. If you are unable to attend the
meeting, please notify the City Clerk’s office via telephone (608)873-6677 or via email
lkropf@ci.stoughton.wi.us

CALL TO ORDER

1. Roll Call, Communications, and Presentations:

2. Minutes and Reports:
 Public Safety Committee (1/25/2017), Finance Committee (2/14/2017), Community Affairs

and Council Policy Committee (2/2/2017), Library Board (1/18/2017), Personnel
Committee (2/6/2017), Utilities Committee (1/17/2017), Redevelopment Authority
(10/18/2016 & 11/09/2016), Tree Commission (2/11/2017), and Commission on Aging
(2/7/2017)

 Utilities Financial Reports
 December 2016 Treasurer’s Report

3. Public Comment Period:

4. CONSENT AGENDA
A. February 28, 2017 Council Minutes

OLD BUSINESS

5. O-2-2017- An ordinance amending the zoning classification of certain lands located at 1640 E.
Main Street in the City of Stoughton from RH – Rural Holding to PB – Planned Business
(Casey’s General Store, Convenience Store/ Gas Station) (Planning Commission
recommends approval 5-0) SECOND READING

OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA
Notice is hereby given that Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, will hold a

regular or special meeting as indicated on the date and at the time and location given below.



6. O-3-2017- Amending Portions of the Erosion Control and Stormwater Management Code
Sections within Sec. 10-122, 10-127, 10-129, 10-130 and 10-131 of the Stoughton Municipal
Code (Public Works Committee recommends approval 4-0) SECOND READING

7. Discussion regarding recommended changes by Landmarks Commission relating to
Chapters 78-517 and 78-913 of the City of Stoughton Municipal Code.

NEW BUSINESS

8. R-19-2017- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to issue a Six Month
Class “B” Fermented Malt Beverage License to the Stoughton Merchants Baseball.
(Public Safety recommends approval 4-0)

9. R-20-2017- Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to approve the write-off
of Stoughton Utilities delinquent account balances and invoices deemed uncollectible as
of December 31, 2016. (Utilities Committee recommends approval 7-0)

10. R-21-2017- Approving a Conditional Use Permit request by Casey’s Marketing
Company for Casey’s General Store at 1640 E. Main Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin.
(Casey’s General Store, Convenience Store/ Gas Station) (Planning Commission
recommends approval 5-0)

11. R-22-2017- Authorizing and directing the proper City officials to enter into an agreement
with the Town of Dunkirk to provide EMS services. (Finance Committee recommends
approval 4-0)

12. R-23-2017- Authorizing and directing the proper City officials to enter into an agreement
with the Town of Dunn to provide EMS services. (Finance Committee recommends
approval 4-0)

13. R-24-2017- Authorizing and directing the proper City officials to enter into an agreement
with the Town of Pleasant Springs to provide EMS services. (Finance Committee
recommends approval 4-0)

14. R-25-2017- Authorizing and directing the proper City officials to enter into an agreement
with the Town of Rutland to provide EMS services. (Finance Committee recommends
approval 4-0)

15. R-26-2017- Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to enter into an
agreement with Jim’s Tree Service for the 2017 Emerald Ash Borer Tree Removal and
Restoration Project. (Public Works Committee and Finance Committee meets March 14,
2017)



16. R-27-2017- Resolution by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton
Approving an Agreement to Delay the Payment of Impact Fees associated with Skaalen
Nursing and Rehabilitation Center, Inc. Residential Care Apartment Complex. (Finance
Committee will be meeting on March 14, 2017)

17. Consideration and possible action on agreement approving assignment of Development
and Purchase Agreement from North American Fur Auctions (US) Inc., to NAFA Newco
LLC. [Both entities are wholly owned by the same Canadian parent corporation].

18. Consideration and possible action regarding North American Fur Auction request for
Indemnification Agreement for Ag Conversion Fee.

19. Consideration and possible action regarding North American Fur Auction request to fund
Alta Survey.

20. The Council may convene in closed session pursuant to Wis State Statute 19.85(1)(e) to
consider the acquisition of property located at 300 Sixth St and 425 East South Street
Stoughton, WI; the Council may reconvene into open session to take action on closed
session items.

21. ADJOURNMENT

Upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate aids and services. For
information or to request such assistance, please call the City Hall at (608) 873-6677.By: Mayor Donna Olson, Council President Tim Swadley





Meeting of:  COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON 


Date/Time:  Tuesday, March 14, 2017 @ 7:00 p.m.  


Location:  Council Chambers (2nd Floor of Public Safety Building) 


   321 South Fourth Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin 


Members: Mayor Donna Olson, Tim Swadley, Matt Bartlett, Sid Boersma, Michael 


Engelberger, Regina Hirsch, Greg Jenson, Kathleen Johnson, Dennis Kittleson, 


Paul Lawrence, Tom Majewski, Pat O’Connor, and Scott Truehl  


ATTENTION COUNCIL MEMBERS: TWO-THIRDS OF MEMBERS NEEDED FOR A QUORUM 


(EIGHT). The Council may only conduct business when a quorum is present. If you are unable to attend the 


meeting, please notify the City Clerk’s office via telephone (608)873-6677 or via email 


lkropf@ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 


CALL TO ORDER 


 


1. Roll Call, Communications, and Presentations:  


 


 


2.   Minutes and Reports:  


 Public Safety Committee (1/25/2017), Finance Committee (2/14/2017), Community Affairs 


and Council Policy Committee (2/2/2017), Library Board (1/18/2017), Personnel 


Committee (2/6/2017), Utilities Committee (1/17/2017), Redevelopment Authority 


(10/18/2016 & 11/09/2016), Tree Commission (2/11/2017), and Commission on Aging 


(2/7/2017) 


 Utilities Financial Reports 


 December 2016 Treasurer’s Report 


 


 


3.      Public Comment Period:   


 


 


4. CONSENT AGENDA 


A. February 28, 2017 Council Minutes 


 


 


OLD BUSINESS 


 


5. O-2-2017- An ordinance amending the zoning classification of certain lands located at 1640 E. 


Main Street in the City of Stoughton from RH – Rural Holding to PB – Planned Business 


(Casey’s General Store, Convenience Store/ Gas Station) (Planning Commission 


recommends approval 5-0)      SECOND READING 


 


 


OFFICIAL NOTICE AND AGENDA 
Notice is hereby given that Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, will hold a 


regular or special meeting as indicated on the date and at the time and location given below. 


  


 



mailto:lkropf@ci.stoughton.wi.us





6. O-3-2017- Amending Portions of the Erosion Control and Stormwater Management Code 


Sections within Sec. 10-122, 10-127, 10-129, 10-130 and 10-131 of the Stoughton Municipal 


Code (Public Works Committee recommends approval 4-0)  SECOND READING 


 


7. Discussion regarding recommended changes by Landmarks Commission relating to 


Chapters 78-517 and 78-913 of the City of Stoughton Municipal Code. 


 


 


 


NEW BUSINESS 


 


8. R-19-2017- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to issue a Six Month 


Class “B” Fermented Malt Beverage License to the Stoughton Merchants Baseball. 


(Public Safety recommends approval 4-0) 


 


9. R-20-2017- Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to approve the write-off 


of Stoughton Utilities delinquent account balances and invoices deemed uncollectible as 


of December 31, 2016. (Utilities Committee recommends approval 7-0) 


 


10. R-21-2017- Approving a Conditional Use Permit request by Casey’s Marketing 


Company for Casey’s General Store at 1640 E. Main Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin. 


(Casey’s General Store, Convenience Store/ Gas Station) (Planning Commission 


recommends approval 5-0) 


 


11. R-22-2017- Authorizing and directing the proper City officials to enter into an agreement 


with the Town of Dunkirk to provide EMS services. (Finance Committee recommends 


approval 4-0) 


 


12. R-23-2017- Authorizing and directing the proper City officials to enter into an agreement 


with the Town of Dunn to provide EMS services. (Finance Committee recommends 


approval 4-0) 


 


13. R-24-2017- Authorizing and directing the proper City officials to enter into an agreement 


with the Town of Pleasant Springs to provide EMS services. (Finance Committee 


recommends approval 4-0) 


 


14. R-25-2017- Authorizing and directing the proper City officials to enter into an agreement 


with the Town of Rutland to provide EMS services. (Finance Committee recommends 


approval 4-0) 


 


15. R-26-2017- Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to enter into an 


agreement with Jim’s Tree Service for the 2017 Emerald Ash Borer Tree Removal and 


Restoration Project. (Public Works Committee and Finance Committee meets March 14, 


2017) 







16. R-27-2017- Resolution by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton 


Approving an Agreement to Delay the Payment of Impact Fees associated with Skaalen 


Nursing and Rehabilitation Center, Inc. Residential Care Apartment Complex. (Finance 


Committee will be meeting on March 14, 2017) 


 


17. Consideration and possible action on agreement approving assignment of Development 


and Purchase Agreement from North American Fur Auctions (US) Inc., to NAFA Newco 


LLC.  [Both entities are wholly owned by the same Canadian parent corporation]. 


 


18. Consideration and possible action regarding North American Fur Auction request for 


Indemnification Agreement for Ag Conversion Fee. 
 


19. Consideration and possible action regarding North American Fur Auction request to fund 


Alta Survey. 


 


20. The Council may convene in closed session pursuant to Wis State Statute 19.85(1)(e) to 


consider the acquisition of property located at 300 Sixth St and 425 East South Street 


Stoughton, WI; the Council may reconvene into open session to take action on closed 


session items. 
 


21. ADJOURNMENT 


 


Upon reasonable notice, efforts will be made to accommodate the needs of disabled individuals through appropriate aids and services. For 


information or to request such assistance, please call the City Hall at (608) 873-6677.By: Mayor Donna Olson, Council President Tim Swadley 








1


COMMISSION ON AGING MEETING MINUTES
Tuesday, February 7, 2017


Stoughton Room, Stoughton Area Senior Center


Present: Bob Barnett, Lou Havlik, Don Mix, Mary Onsager, Faith Schuck, Jeanne Schwass-Long,
David Sharpe, Charlotte Snow Guest: Lisa Ford
Staff Present: Cindy McGlynn, Hollee Camacho
Absent & Excused: Nancy Hoffman, Ros Gausman, Dennis Kittleson


Introductions:
Welcomed Faith Schuck, our new Pleasant Springs Representative and guest Lisa Ford


Call to order: J. Schwass-Long called the meeting to order at 11:00 AM.
November 2016 Minutes: Moved by D. Sharpe, seconded by M. Onsager to approve; passed
unanimously.


Director Comments


 Today is Jean Truss’s last day. She’s been a very dedicated, loyal Case Manager for the last
19 years. We are sad she’s leaving, but wish her the best.


 Interviews to fill Jean’s position will take place this Friday. J. Schwass-Long will assist.


 Our three new employees are doing well with getting accustomed to their positions. We will
miss our old friends, but are enjoying getting to know them and the new energy they bring.


 With Kelly now the only long-term Case Manager, we have started a 2-week waiting list for
case management services to give everyone time for training.


 We are waiting for a part for our outdoor digital sign. Big thanks for Rodney Scheel’s help!


Committee Reports: Once committees have put together their action plans, Cindy asks members
to bring them to share and make sure there are no overlaps with other committees.


Fund Development: Lou Havlik Next meeting: Feb. 28, 10:30AM
o Developing action plans and working on a timeline
o Staff are gathering data to make a case for requesting the Volunteer/Programming


Coordinator position become full-time for next year’s Senior Center Budget (by June).
o Will begin updating the planned giving brochure at the next committee meeting
o Looking at examples of Booster Clubs /Friends of “ “ fundraising examples from other


senior centers, libraries and other groups.
o Proposing to do two fundraising events/years; suggestions discussed include a silent


auction, dance, chili kick-off, chorus event with hors d’oeuvres.
o Giving a suggestion for volunteer committee re: businesses that support volunteers
o Researched how a volunteer property tax credit may benefit center; decided it wouldn’t


Public Relations: Bob Barnett Next meeting: March 7, 10AM (before COA)
o Updated the Marketing Plan; will send with next agends for COA’s review in March.







2


o Reviewed website; please take a look and give suggestions to Cindy, including other
recommended sites. The City is in the process of hiring an IT person, so more significant
changes may be possible than Hollee’s account access and allows.


o Committee will have their proposed action plans in time for March’s meeting.


Volunteer: Dave Sharpe Next meeting: Thursday 9:30AM
o Discussed questions to ask and ways to offer surveys without overloading participants
o Discussed values of volunteer recognition
o Beginning to review/update/downsize the Volunteer Handbook.


Evaluation: Hollee Camacho Next meeting: TBD
o Set goal to save staff and participant time/efforts while meeting accreditation standards
o Shared proposed action plans:


1. Review and update the Center’s Evaluation Plan.
2. Devise a bi-annual timeline to ensure enough time is allotted to properly implement,


evaluate, analyze and adjust/improve on the Center’s programs and services (according
to the Evaluation Plan).


o Completed #1; after meeting with Cindy to discuss accreditation evaluation standards we
determined the plan still serves as a good guide.


o Working on a multi-service survey that is fast and simple for respondents to complete. The
County already surveys our Nutrition and Case Management participants, so this survey is
intended to cover remaining questions we have of our programming, volunteers,
marketing, and general operations. –staff, PR & P Committees submitted own questions


o Plan to offer the survey online and by paper. The City Parks & Rec. Dept. has offered for us
to use their upgraded version of Survey Monkey which provides options for questions to be
skipped that don’t pertain based on previous responses.


o Hope to have survey complete in time for the Tower Times’ March 16 deadline.


Program: Mary Onsager Next meeting: April 4, 10:00AM
o Prioritized action plans
o Discussing ways to make relationships with schools, libraries and other organizations.


Considering ways to make day-time school music rehearsals more accessible for older
adults to attend; arrange for student greeters?


o Working on scheduling small, local field trips (e.g. tobacco warehouse, Fire Department,
Stoughton Village Players, Stoughton Center for the Performing Arts, Youth Center)


Committees, as you complete your action plans, please email them to Hollee to input in one list.


Legislative Update: Family Care is still proposed to start in Dane County in 2018. We have not
heard much from the State or County as nobody seems to know how or who will be contracted.
Family Care is only for those who are eligible for their services; about 10% of the population.
Likely one large insurance agency will get the contract, though they may need to provide a choice.
The agency doesn’t necessarily have to be from the State. From our experience with other







3


managed services, this can create more barriers for frail individuals when communication is not
local. We hope to learn more soon and will continue to advocate for beneficiaries of the service.


Proposed Action Plans for COA: Hollee
The following were ideas discussed by the Evaluation Committee that Cindy feels are better to be
assigned to COA:


1. Priortize action plans from the last strategic plan and accreditation process to eliminate
redundancies and to incorporate newly developed action plans into one guiding document.


2. Ensure that all committees submit their strategic actions to COA and that each committee
have a system for documenting how the actions are being addressed.


3. Create a timeline to combine our next NCOA accreditation (2018) and strategic planning
efforts into one process, instead of two 5-year alternating processes.


Accreditation process: Cindy noted that this Fall we should begin the NCOA re-accreditation
process and may take 6-9 months. This will be our fourth National Accreditation re-accreditation
process. We need to create a committee to not only include COA, but also other City Council
members, businesses, schools. We like a good mixture; some that have served before as well as
new eyes to assist with the process.


Remaining Action Plans: Hollee
Cindy and Hollee reviewed the remaining action plans from the last Strategic Plan and
Accreditation processes. Some actions have either been eliminated from the plan because they
have become an ongoing function by staff, or others have been recommended to be incorporated
into the new actions being developed by committees. The goal is to begin the year with one
guiding document. These will be sent again with March’s COA agenda.


Meeting Adjourned: Moved by M. Onsager, seconded by R. Barnett to adjourn the meeting.
Carried unanimously. Meeting adjourned at 11:40.


Next Meeting: Tuesday, March 7 at 11:00 a.m


Attachments with March’s Agenda:
1. Revised Marketing Plan
2. Remaining Action Plans from previous Strategic Plan and Accreditation







PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES
Wednesday, January 25, 2017
Hall of Fame Room, City Hall


Present: Chair, Michael Engelberger, Alderpersons, Greg Jenson, and Dennis Kittleson


Absent: Scott Truehl and Mayor Olson


Guests: Bonnie Mezger


Call to Order: Chairperson Engelberger called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.


Communications:


Police Chief Leck explained that he has been working with Cheryl Price at Sandhill
Elementary School to install “buddy benches”. He said that the idea goes hand in hand with
the City’s no hit policy. The benches would allow children, who may not have anyone to
play with at recess, to sit and other children would identify that student needs a playmate.
Leck explained that the Police Department is currently fundraising money to purchase more
for Fox Prairie and Kegonsa Elementary schools.


Engelberger explained that while attending a presentation by the Wisconsin District
Attorney’s Office, Ismael Ozanne noted that the City of Stoughton is the first City in the
country to adopt a “No Hit Policy.”


Approval of minutes from September 28, 2016 and December 21, 2016 Public Safety
Meetings:


Motion by Jenson, to approve the minutes from the September 28, 2016 and December 21,
2016 Public Safety meetings, second by Kittleson. Motion carried 4-0.


Request for a Special Event License and Temporary Class “B”/ “Class B” Retailer’s
License for Stoughton Chamber-Syttende Mai Committee:


Laura Trotter, from the Stoughton Chamber of Commerce, explained the 2017 proposed
Syttende Mai event. She explained that everything was the same as the previous year,
other than the layout of the entertainment and beer sales area. Chief Leck explained that he
had met with the committee and reviewed the applications. He saw no issues and
recommends approval.


Motion by Jenson, to approve a Special Event License and Temporary Class “B”/ “Class B”
Retailer’s License for Stoughton Chamber-Syttende Mai Committee and recommend to
Council, second by Kittleson. Motion carried 4-0.


Discussion regarding Vehicle Noise Violations:


Bonnie Mezger had requested that the committee discuss the issue of vehicle noise
violations. She explained that she has noticed that there are several vehicles in her
neighborhood that are excessively loud. She explained that most, but not all, seem to be
coming from the school and are present during the high traffic times of when school starts
and ends. Chief Leck explained that the City does currently have ordinances against
excessively loud vehicles, but the officers do not always have the ability to enforce it. He
thanked Ms.Mezger for making the situation known and noted that he can now ask officers
to pinpoint and correct the behavior of the violators.







Request for a premise transfer for a Class “A” Fermented Malt Beverage License
from Wal-Mart Stores East, LP:


Clerk Kropf explained that Wal-Mart stores had requested a transfer of their Class “A”
Fermented Malt Beverage License from the current store location to the new store location.
This transfer would have an effective date of March 15, 2017 to match the store’s grand
opening date. She noted that a provisional license will be issued in the interim, so Wal-Mart
can stock, but sell prior to the official opening.


Motion by Kittleson, to approve the premise transfer for a Class “A” Fermented Malt
Beverage License from Wal-Mart Stores East, LP and recommendation to Council, second
by Jenson. Motion carried 4-0.


Future agenda items:


Downtown Parking Review


Signage of thin ice on the Yahara River


Motion by Jenson, to adjourn the January 25, 2017 meeting of the Public Safety Committee,
second by Kittleson. Motion carried 4-0. The meeting adjourned at 6:38 p.m.







FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES
February 14, 2017 – 5:30 p.m.
Council Chambers, Public Safety Building


Present:
Alderpersons Paul Lawrence, Regina Hirsch, Pat O’Connor, Tim Swadley


Others Present:
Clerk Kropf , Planning Director Scheel, Recreation Director Lynch, Public Works
Director Hebert, and City Attorney Matt Dregne


Absent and Excused:
Mayor Olson


Call to order:
Chairperson Lawrence called the meeting to order at 5:32 p.m.


Communications:
Clerk Kropf explained that the Finance Department is working diligently towards the
annual audit.
Committee discussion included the recruitment and interviewing of the Finance Director
candidates.


Contingency Report:
The reports were reviewed and no action was taken.


Finance Committee Minutes of January 24, 2017:
Motion by O’Connor, to approve the Finance Committee minutes of January 24, 2017,
second by Swadley. Motion carried unanimously 4-0.


Discussion regarding City Attorney Meeting Preparedness Procedures:
The Finance Committee discussed the use of the City Attorney and the Attorney’s
preparedness for meetings. Discussion also included the need for the City Attorney to
review materials with leadership staff prior to Council consideration. The Committee
also discussed possibly having a quarterly review with staff to discuss and possible
issues. This issue will be back to the Finance Committee for further discussion.


Preliminary Resolution declaring intent to exercise Special Assessment Powers
for 2017 Street Projects:
Planning Director Scheel explained that this is the first step in exercising special
assessment powers for the upcoming 2017 street construction projects. He explained
that anyone within the affected area had been mailed a notice and invited to the City’s
open house regarding the issue. Swadley and Hirsch asked if it was necessary for
sidewalk installation as some members of the community did not want sidewalks on
their property. Planning Director Scheel explained that the installation of the sidewalks
follows the Council approved City policy. The Committee asked that the Public Works
Committee review the current policy regarding the installation of sidewalks.


Motion by O’Connor, to approve the preliminary resolution declaring intent to exercise
Special Assessment Powers for 2017 Street Projects, second by Hirsch. Motion carried
4-0.







Authorizing and directing the proper City Official(s) to continue using the
professional services of Angus Young & Associates in 2017 and 2018 for
engineering and architecture design, construction document development, as
well as construction oversight for the proposed Public Works Facility:
Public Works Director Hebert explained that the City started the initial engineering and
development for the Public Works facility in 2013. He is requesting that the City
continue to work with Angus Young & Associates to complete the planning process for
the new facility and procurement of lands.


Motion by Hirsch, to authorize and direct the proper city official(s) to continue using the
professional services of Angus Young & Associates in 2017 and 2018 for engineering
and architecture design, construction document development, as well as construction
oversight for the proposed Public Works Facility, second by O’Connor.
Motion carried 4-0.


Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to approve a contribution up
to $450 from the Park Development Fund for assistance in having a new lighted
flag pole installed in Norse Park by Matthew Krcma as an Eagle Scout project:
Recreation Director Lynch requested that the committee approve a contribution of $450
to be used towards the purchase of a new lighted flag pole at Norse Park. He explained
that this is part of an Eagle Scout project led by Matthew Krcma.


Motion by Lawrence, to authorize and direct the proper City official(s) to approve a
contribution up to $450 from the Park Development Fund for assistance in having a new
lighted flag pole installed in Norse Park by Matthew Krcma as an Eagle Scout project,
second by Swadley. Motion carried 4-0.


Authorizing and directing the proper City Official(s) to approve the Stoughton Bike
Transportation Plan:
Recreation Director Lynch explained that this request would not be to approve the entire
bike transportation plan, but to approve the purchasing of signs for the bike trails. The
cost would be approximately $1,400 and would be paid through the Park Development
Fund.


Motion by Lawrence, to approve the purchase of the signage for the Stoughton Bike
Transportation Plan, second by O’Connor. Motion carried 4-0.


Authorizing and directing the proper City Official(s) to approve using Park
Development Funds to pay for a site feasibility study for a building to be located
in Mandt Park:
Recreation Director Lynch addressed the committee regarding a new building that may
be built in Mandt Park. He stated that he needs $6,000 to initiate a feasibility study
project for the structure. This money would be paid by the Park Development Fund. He
explained that he would need to work with the fair board to reach an agreement for the
new building, but that the feasibility study is the first step.


Motion by O’Connor, to authorize and direct the proper city official(s) to approve using
Park Development Funds to pay for the site feasibility study for a building to be located
in Mandt Park, second by Hirsch. Motion carried 4-0.







Discussion and possible action regarding sharing cost of fireworks display with
the Stoughton Fair Board:
Clerk Kropf explained that this request had come from the Community Affairs and
Council Policy Committee. The fireworks proposal would cost $8,000 per night, but
there was confusion on whether the City would be asked to pay for two nights as the
proposal indicated, and if that would be a shared cost. The Finance Committee asked
that this request be referred back to the Community Affairs and Council Policy
Committee for clarification of the request.


Motion by Hirsch, to refer the request to the Community Affairs and Council Policy
Committee for clarification, second by Lawrence. Motion carried 4-0.


The council may convene in closed session pursuant to Wis Stat sec 19.85(1)(e),
to consider strategy to be adopted in connection with negotiating an agreement
to purchase certain property:
Motion by Lawrence, to convene the Finance Committee into closed session, second by
Hirsch. Motion carried 4-0. The Finance Committee convened into closed session at
6:33 p.m.







COMMUNITY AFFAIRS/COUNCIL POLICY MEETING MINUTES
Thursday, February 2, 2017, 6:00 p.m.
Hall of Fame Room, City of Stoughton, WI


Present: Alderpersons Greg Jenson, Tim Swadley, and Matt Bartlett


Absent: Mayor Olson and Kathleen Johnson


Guests: Dennis Kittleson


Call to Order: The meeting was called to order at 6:00 p.m. by Chairperson Jenson.


Communications:
Dennis Kittleson explained that he had a conversation with some of the Fair Board members
regarding a possible shared cost of a fireworks display for the fourth of July and the last day of the
fair. He noted that each display would cost approximately $8,000. The committee recommended
that this go to the next Finance Committee meeting for consideration.


Clerk Kropf explained that the Parks & Recreation Director, Tom Lynch, was currently working with
the fair board to develop an Events Selection policy. This policy would allow the City to see which
events the fair would be booking before the final selection was made. She explained that this item
would be back before the Committee in March.


Approval of the January 5, 2017 Community Affairs and Council Policy Committee
Minutes:


Motion by Swadley, to approve the January 5, 2017 Community Affairs and Council Policy
Committee Minutes, second by Bartlett. Motion carried 3-0.


Discussion and possible action regarding Community Outreach/Communications:
Dennis Kittleson explained that he had contacted the Public Safety Commission (PSC) about the
possibility of the City including information inserts with the customer’s monthly utility bills. He
explained that the opinion of the PSC is that, including the inserts with the bills is allowable as long
as the customers do not incur any extra charges. This would mean that the City would have to pay
for all printing, inserting and any additional postage costs. The Committee asked the Clerk to verify
the appropriateness to the City Attorney for his opinion and to also contact Brian Hoops at the
Stoughton Utilities for approximate costs.
No formal action was taken.


Discussion and possible action regarding Social Media Policy:
Dennis Kittleson explained that he feels that the citizens of the City are not informed enough about
the City events and happenings. He explained that he would like the City to have a social media
account that citizens can follow. The Committee directed the City Clerk to confer with the City
Attorney regarding the appropriateness of the City social media account and possible creation of a
policy pertaining to such.
No formal action was taken.


Future Agenda Items:


Adjournment


Motion by Bartlett, to adjourn the meeting of the February 2, 2017 Community Affairs and Council
Policy meeting, second by Swadley. Motion carried 3-0. The meeting of the Community Affairs and
Council Policy Committee adjourned at 6:54 p.m.







REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY MEETING MINUTES 
Tuesday, October 18, 2016 – 5:30 p.m.  
Mayor’s Office/City Hall 


Present:  
Peter Sveum, Scott Truehl, John Kramper, Dan Kittleson, Regina Hirsch, Steve 
Sletten, Ron Christianson, Brian Kahl and Finance Director Laurie Sullivan  
 


Absent: 
None 
  
Others Present: 
Gary Becker, Planning Director Rodney Scheel, Sid Boersma, Laura Trotter, Michael 
Engelberger, Bill Livick, Kathleen Johnson and Paul Lawrence  
 
Sveum called meeting to order at 5:30 p.m.   
 
Meeting with individual developers to hear their ideas for the Riverfront Redevelopment 
area and for them to ask questions of the RDA members took place. 
 
Meeting with Developers: 


a.  Mark Geall, Tanesay Development 
Has worked with Gary Becker in the past in Appleton.  Has experience with remediation 
and clean-up projects.  Completed a 20 million dollar improvement project in Appleton.  
Had concerns about what the Phase II study will show.    


b. Nicole Solheim, Gorman Company 
Has experience with affordable housing, mix use and market rate housing.  Has held 
community meetings if that is what we would like to do.  Had concerns about the 
environmental issues and location.  Would like to tour the highway trailer building before 
it is demolished to see if they could reuse.   


c.  Chris Day, Alexander Company 
Did not come. 


d.  Stephen Mar-Pohl, Insite Consulting Architects 
Cancelled prior to meeting. 


e.  Dave Porterfield, Movin’ Out 
Dave Porterfield and Josh Hefferin with General Capital addressed the group.  Movin’ 
Out has history working with RDA and City on projects in the past.  He would be 
interested in partnering with a developer because his plans would not include the whole 
10 acres. Has experience with community discussions and small group forums.  Had 
concerns about size of site, environmental issues and if commercial would work. 
 
Took a short break:  7:30-7:45 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 







Redevelopment Authority Meeting Minutes 
October 18, 2016 
Page 2 
 


Riverfront Redevelopment Area Update and Mill fab update: 
Becker handed out revised Schedule and Work Plan.  Becker reported we received the 
2016 BUILD grant in the amount of $15,000 for the Riverfront Redevelopment Area 
Master Plan process.  This grant will help pay for the charrette planning process. 
 
Moved by Christianson, seconded by Kahl, to close the meeting per State 
Statute 19.85(1)(e) deliberating or negotiating the purchasing of public 
properties; the investing of public funds, or conducting other specified public 
business, whenever competitive or bargaining reasons require a closed session; 
and then reopen for the regular course of business.  Time closed: 8:00 p.m. 
Moved by Truehl, seconded by Kahl, to reopen the meeting for the regular 
course of business at 8:35 p.m. 


 
Approve Vierbicher contract to refresh Phase 1-MillFab property: 
Becker contacted Vierbicher about doing the Phase 1 Environmental Site 
Assessment Update.  Moved by Truehl, seconded by Christianson to approve 
the Vierbicher contract as presented.  Motion carried unanimously.   
 
Approve resolution authorizing the submittal of an award application for 
the Milfab property by the City of Stoughton Redevelopment Authority for 
WAM Contractor Services: 
Sullivan explained there needs to be a resolution approved by the RDA to 
submit the WAM award application.  Moved by Truehl, seconded by Hirsch to 
approve the resolution authorizing the submittal of an award application for the 
Milfab property by the City of Stoughton Redevelopment Authority for WAM 
Contractor Services.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Future Agenda Items: 
Mill fab and Marathon Site updates 
Riverfront Redevelopment Area update 
Meet with interested developers 
Scoring matrix 
 
Adjourn:  
Moved by Truehl, seconded by Christianson, to adjourn at 8:40 p.m. 


Respectfully submitted, 
Lisa Aide 







REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY MEETING MINUTES 
Wednesday, November 09, 2016 – 5:30 p.m.  
Hall of Fame Room/City Hall 


Present:  
Dan Kittleson, Regina Hirsch, Steve Sletten, Ron Christianson, John Kramper and 
Brian Kahl  
 


Absent: 
Peter Sveum, Scott Truehl and Finance Director Laurie Sullivan 
  
Others Present: 
Mayor Donna Olson, Gary Becker, Laura Trotter, Suzanne Vincent and Michael 
Engelberger 
 
Call to order:  
Sletten called meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. 
 
Approval of September 14, 2016 RDA Meeting Minutes: 
Moved by Kahl, seconded by Christianson, to approve the minutes of the September 
14, 2016 RDA meeting as presented.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Riverfront Redevelopment Area Update: 


a. Master plan charrette – Guest Suzanne Vincent, Charrette 
Facilitator:  


Gary Becker introduced Suzanne Vincent from Vierbicher to the group.  
She will be the Charrette Facilitator for the Riverfront Redevelopment 
project.  She went thru and explained the process in detail.  The process 
will consist of a week solid of meetings, forums and discussions that will 
include the chosen developer, Becker and Suzanne, city staff, RDA 
members, and the public and different focus groups.  At the end of the 
week one concept will be chosen and the developer will take that rough 
draft plan and polish and finish it so that it can be presented to the 
community.  Becker and Suzanne will work with staff to find a suitable 
location for the week long meeting and to discuss advertising.  At the next 
RDA meeting discussions will focus on what focus groups and members 
of the community that the group would like to be invited to participate.  
The date of the meetings will not be chosen until a developer has been 
selected and then dates can be discussed.  Additional RDA meetings 
may be scheduled in the next coming months to keep this process 
moving. 
b. Phase I update: 
Becker reported that he had just received the Phase 1 report and has not 
reviewed it yet, but reminded the group the report was just a formality and 
doesn’t expect it to reveal anything that we don’t already know. 


 


 


 







Redevelopment Authority Meeting Minutes 
November 9, 2016 
Page 2 
 


 


c. Historical research update: 
Becker received the draft this afternoon of the historical research findings 
and said there were some minor changes that needed to be fixed such as 
the address of some of the buildings.  Preliminary results show the hwy. 
trailer building and power plant are eligible for the National Registry, the 
1905 building and the carpet warehouse buildings are not.  Becker will 
forward the final report when it is available. 
d. Survey and title update: 
Becker brought the finished Alta Survey maps.  He had some of them 
mounted and framed so that they can be used as working maps with dry 
erase markers when having discussions with developers.  They will be 
stored at City Hall.  
e.  Funding update: 
Becker reported that the WAM and SAG grants are still on track. 
f. Developer selection criteria: 
Discussion took place on the draft scoring matrix that will be used in 
reviewing the developer proposals.  Some suggestions for changes 
included more space for notes, add a rating space for presentation, cheat 
sheet with key words to help in rating so everyone is on the same page 
with the criteria and sketch on back of sheet of the master plan to be used 
as a reference.  Becker will incorporate the changes and bring back next 
meeting. 


 
Mill fab update: 
Becker reported that the railroad easement issues have been cleaned up and 
will be removed from the title.  Becker and Mayor Olson reported that there is a 
tenant and their possessions on the property that will need to be removed before 
the end of the year closing.  A formal eviction process will need to be started. 
 
435 East South Street update: 
Nothing to report at this time.   
 
Marathon Site update: 
Nothing to report at this time. 
 
Revolving Loan Fund update: 
Nothing to report at this time. 
 
Future Agenda Items: 
Mill fab and Marathon Site updates 
Riverfront Redevelopment Area update 
Scoring matrix review 
 
 
 
 
 







Redevelopment Authority Meeting Minutes 
November 9, 2016 
 
Page 3 


 
 
Adjourn:  
Moved by Kittleson, seconded by Kahl, to adjourn at 6:33 p.m. 


 


Respectfully submitted, 
Lisa Aide 







 
STOUGHTON PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD OF TRUSTEES   
MEETING MINUTES 
January 18, 2017 @ 6:30 P.M. 
CARNEGIE ROOM, STOUGHTON PUBLIC LIBRARY 
 
PRESENT: Sandra Black; Sid Boersma, City Council Representative; Heather Danielson; Eric Hohol, Dane County 
Representative; Petra Horst, Library Board Vice-President; Jean Ligocki; Linda Schaefer, Library Board President; 
Mike Vienneau.  
 
ABSENT: Paul Vande Hei, Stoughton Area School District Representative. 
 
ALSO PRESENT: Richard MacDonald, Library Director; Sarah Monette, Library Administrative Assistant; Sarah 
Bukrey, Circulation Supervisor. 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER President Schaefer called the meeting to order at 6:31 P.M. Eight Board members, Black, 
Boersma, Danielson, Hohol, Horst, Ligocki, Schaefer, and Vienneau, were present, constituting a quorum.  
 
II. REVIEW OF AGENDA. N/A. 
 
III. REVIEW/APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF DECEMBER 21, 2016. Moved by Boersma, second by Vienneau to 
approve the minutes as presented. Motion carried 8-0. 
 
IV. RECOGNITION OPPORTUNITIES.  N/A. 
 
V. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD. Boersma discussed Andrew Carnegie. 
 
VI. CORRESPONDENCE. MacDonald presented CPE (Continuing Professional Education) certificates earned by 
staff members and several thank-you notes, including one from Joyce and Bob Morrison, who have been funding the 
aquarium in the Children’s Room since 1988. 
 
VII. EDUCATION UPDATES. Black reminded everyone about Library Legislative Day. Schaefer had emailed the 
board an article about a library using Seasonal Affective Lights. Ligocki has been doing research about libraries as 
healing environments. 
 
VIII. BOARD IN-SERVICE. Bukrey described what Circulation staff do, both on and off desk. 
 
[Bukrey left after her presentation.] 
 
IX. REVIEW/APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR DECEMBER 2016. 


A. Fund 215.  MacDonald presented. Moved by Hohol, second by Vienneau, to approve the December 2016 
financial statement for Fund 215 as presented. Motion carried 8-0. 


B. Fund 217. MacDonald presented. Moved by Horst, second by Black, to approve the December 2016 financial 
statement for Fund 217 as presented. Motion carried 8-0. 


C. Stoughton Area Community Foundation. The Board reviewed the financial statements for the SACF's pass-
through account for the Library. The statements were accepted by consensus. 


 
X. REVIEW/APPROVAL OF BILLS FOR LATE DECEMBER 2016. 
MacDonald presented the bills lists. 


A. Fund 215 (General Fund). Moved by Hohol, second by Vienneau, to approve the late December 2016 bills for 
Fund 215 as presented. Motion carried 8-0.  


B. Fund 217 (Special Gift Fund). Moved by Horst, second by Black, to approve the late December 2016 bills for 
Fund 217 as presented. Motion carried 8-0. 


 
XI. REVIEW/APPROVAL OF BILLS FOR JANUARY 2017. 
MacDonald presented the bills lists. 


A. Fund 215 (General Fund). Moved by Black, second by Vienneau, to approve the January 2017 bills for Fund 
215 as presented. Motion carried 8-0. 


B. Fund 217 (Special Gift Fund). Moved by Black, second by Horst, to approve the January 2017 bills for Fund 
217 as presented. Motion carried 8-0. 


 
XII. DIRECTOR’S REPORT. 


A. Statistics. MacDonald presented the statistics for December 2016, noting two corrections. He also discussed the 
statistics for Sunday hours. 







B. Director’s Report. In addition to his written report, MacDonald shared some of the books he is judging for the 
Ben Franklin Award. This year he is the judge for 3-color interior design. He reported on the new art display, 
on the success of the Urban Fiction collection. The Food for Fines weekend was a success. He has the VSA 
Choir and the Stoughton High School ensembles lined up to do Music on the Mezz concerts. The Library is 
partnering with the Senior Center for events. He told the Board about Art Walk Stoughton, which the Library 
hopes to participate in. 


 
[Vienneau left around 7:15 P.M.] 
 
XIII. COMMITTEE REPORTS.  


A. Finance: did not meet. 
B. Personnel: tabled until XVI. 
C. Planning: tabled until XVI. 
D. Policies: tabled until XVI. 


 
XIV. FRIENDS OF THE LIBRARY REPORT.  Black reported that the Victorian Holiday Weekend book sale was 
successful. The Friends’ annual meeting is February 1, 6:00 P.M., in the Carnegie Room. 
 
XV. OLD/UNFINISHED BUSINESS. Strategic Planning Update. The Planning Committee is thinking about hiring a 
consultant. Also about forming an ad-hoc committee for long-range planning. 
 
[Vienneau returned around 7:35 P.M.] 
 
XVI. NEW BUSINESS. 


A. Springsted Compensation Plan. Because Amy Jo Gillingham, the City of Stoughton’s Director of Human 
Resources and Risk Management, was unable to be present, MacDonald presented the new compensation plan. 
In 2017, all Library staff receive a 2% pay increase, and two staff members’ pay rate will be increased to the 
minimum recommended for their job classification (at a cost of $762.20). In 2018, all Library staff will have 
their pay adjusted to match the appropriate step of the compensation plan. Hohol reviewed the origins and history 
of the plan. Moved by Boersma, second by Danielson, to accept the City compensation plan for Library staff as 
presented. Motion carried 8-0. 


B. Starting Pay for Library Substitutes. MacDonald presented the recommendation to increase substitute librarians’ 
starting pay from its 2012 point of $12.00 an hour to $12.24 an hour. Moved by Boersma, second by Vienneau, 
to accept the new pay rate for substitute librarians of $12.24 an hour. Motion carried 8-0. 


C. Starting Pay for Library Shelvers. MacDonald explained that the Springsted plan’s recommendation was based 
on shelvers at other libraries who do work that our shelvers do not do. MacDonald and Gillingham proposed an 
alternative, that the shelvers should receive the same 2% increase as the rest of the Library staff, so that their 
starting pay in 2017 would be $8.45. Then, in 2018, they—like the rest of the Library staff—would be moved 
to the appropriate step for their job classification. Moved by Hohol, second by Vienneau, to accept the new 
shelvers’ starting pay rate of $8.45 for 2017. Motion carried 8-0. 


D. Library Director Evaluation Update. Hohol described the steps being taken by the Personnel Committee. Library 
Board members’ evaluations will be due at or before the February meeting, and the Director’s evaluation will 
be discussed in closed session at the March meeting. 


E. Approval of Exterior Plaques Policy. Black reported that the Policies Committee recommended that the Exterior 
Plaques Policy be accepted with no changes. Moved by Horst, second by Boersma, to approve the Exterior 
Plaques Policy as presented. Motion carried 8-0. 


F. Approval of Revised Employment of Relatives Policy. Black explained the changes made to the Employment 
of Relatives Policy. Moved by Horst, second by Boersma, to approve the revised policy as presented. Motion 
carried 8-0. 


G. Authorization to Transfer Funds from Library Fund Balance to 2016 Budget to Cover the Cost of Sunday Hours 
for September through December 2016. MacDonald presented the cost of Sunday hours for September through 
December 2016 as $3,744.96. He requested to table this item until the final 2016 budget numbers were available 
from the City. Moved by Boersman, second by Vienneau, to table this item. Hohol pointed out that, because of 
end of the year budget reconciliation, this transfer would be made whether the Library specifically requested it 
or not. Boersma withdrew motion to table. No action taken. 


 
XVII. PENDING AGENDA ITEMS. Library Director evaluation (Personnel Committee); establishing a scholarship 
(Boersma). 
 
XVII. ADJOURNMENT. Schaefer requested a motion. Moved by Vienneau, second by Ligocki, to adjourn the meeting 
at 8:30 P.M. Motion carried 8-0. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Sarah Monette, Library Administrative Assistant 







PERSONNEL COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES  
Thursday, February 6, 2017 @ 6:02pm 
Mayor’s Office 
 
Present: Alders: Pat O’Connor, Tom Majewski, Paul Lawrence, Sid Boersma, Director Gillingham 
 
Others in attendance:  Chief Leck, Director Kardasz, Pat Conlin. David Juve, John Udstuen, Chip Vike, Dale Teigen, 
Nathan Hartwig, Ryan Dalsoren, Dan Jenks, Andrew Johnson 
  


CALL TO ORDER:  O’Connor called the meeting to order at 6:02pm.  


Approval of the Minutes of the January 5, 2017 Personnel Committee meeting minutes. Motion by Boersma, 
second by Majewski, Approved 4-0 


Communications 
Director Gillingham gave a Human Resources update: All three openings at the Senior Center have been 
filled. Jean Truss and Joann Seymour gave their formal resignations. We have an offer extended for the 
IT/Media Services Information Technology Director position. A second interview for the Director of 


Finance and Economic Development on Thursday. Finance background is being done. We are shooting for 
the end of February to bring this before Council. Jamin Friedl was hired for Utilities Department Finance 
Manager and started on 1/23/17. Anthony Garcia was hired for the Mechanics position at Public Works 
and starts on February 23rd. The OSHA 300 report deadline has been met. It has been posted and 
communicated to everybody. 
 
Review and action regarding On Call and Call Back at Public Works 


Director Gillingham referenced a memo dated February 2, 2017 to the committee requesting that the On 


Call & Call Back policy in place for the Utilities department be used for the Public Works department as 


well. The memo stated that in 2016 the Mayor approved changing the on call policy from 12 hours back to 


14 hours because we were having trouble recruiting and maintaining staff. Director Gillingham also read 


the On Call policy from the City work rules. Majewski asked what the fiscal impact would be. Majewski 


moved to table until the fiscal impact and where the funds will come from is brought before the 


committee, O’Connor second. Lawrence and Boersma voted no. Motion not passed. Director Gillingham 


stated that the funds would come from “contingency”. Lawrence stated he wasn’t sure about the equity 


and the process that put us in this situation, he would like to see the Mayor here to answer some 


questions as to why she approved the policy for the Utilities department. Boersma agreed. Boersma 


motion to approve with back pay beginning 1/1/17, Lawrence second. O’Connor and Majewski voted no. 


Motion not passed. Pat O’Connor directed that the matter be brought back to Personnel with the fiscal cost and 


at the next meeting we will discuss with the Mayor about the approval of this for Utilities. 


  


Review and possible action regarding Police Department Sergeant and Lieutenant Compensation  


Director Gillingham read a memo dated February 1, 2017 to the committee stating that Lt. Jenks had 


come forth questioning why his compensation plan, that was Council approved with resolution R-141-14, 


to move him to the same pay as Lt. Conlin by 1/1/2017 had not been put into effect and requesting that 


that it be done. She also referred to a letter from attorney Steven Zach dated 1/31/2017 that stated the 


document signed constitutes a contract and cannot be breached by the subsequent wage study. Majewski 


asked why this wasn’t brought up earlier. Director Gillingham stated this came to light when each 


employee received a letter from Human Resources stating their wage and benefit elections for 2017. 


Director Gillingham recommended moving Lt. Jenks putting the plan in action to the same level as Conlin.  







Included in this same memo was a request to move Sgt. Andy Johnson and Sgt. Nathan Hartwig up to the 


compensation that was agreed upon in their hiring packets when the Sgt’s. were moved out of the Union, 


which was Council approved with resolution R-121-15 In 2015 which approved the positions. According to 


Attorney Zach, because the SSgts relied on Chief Leck’s representation of their wage when they left the 


Union and took the new Sgts positions it becomes a potential implied contract. Leck stated that the 


Springsted study placed them at two steps below in their matrix and that is why there was an issue. Same 


as with Jenks and Conlin, it needs to be corrected so that they are at the same rate of pay as Frisch. 


Lawrence asked if there was action to be taken by the Personnel committee or if Director Gillingham was 


reporting this situation. Director Gillingham stated that because Council had already approved, she is 


reporting the situation as well as the cost to adhere to the pay plans presented at the time of hire for the 


SSgt’s. and Lt. positions. The total fiscal cost would be $7098.44 per year. O’Connor stated there is no 


further action required on the Lt.’s issue, but further action is required in the case of the Sgt.’s.  


Motion by Boersma to approve the compensation change requested for the Sgt.’s positions, second by 


Lawrence, Approved 4-0 


 


Review and possible action regarding Police Department Sergeants back pay request  


Director Gillingham stated that because of the difference in Sgt’s pay, Hartwig, and Johnson are asking for 


back pay for 2015 and 2016. Leck stated that when they were going to hire in the two new Sgt positions 


Frisch was given a $1.00 increase, Hartwig a $4.00+ increase, and Johnson a $2.00+ increase. Leck stated 


that Act 10 had thrown all of the scales and steps into a flux. It threw structure out and left it difficult to 


determine. That’s one of the reasons so many department heads pushed for the Springsted study, to give 


us some structure to follow. When the Sgt.’s took the positions they were put on a path to be at 


maximum in 2017. Lawrence stated that this needs to be made right. Majewski asked how this is coming 


to light now then and not 2 years ago. Sgt. Hartwig stated that it came to light because of the letter they 


received stating their benefits and wage rate for 2017. He also stated that it wasn’t really two years back 


pay but from November 2015 – present. Majewski asked where the money will come from. Director 


Gillingham stated it would come from contingency funds or unexpended Police Department funds. 


Lawrence added that this should go before the Finance Committee before going to Council. Majewski gave 


approval to go before Finance and Council in same night. 


Motion by Boersma to approve and send to Finance then Council, second by Lawrence, Approved 4-0 


 


Review and action regarding proposed update of Utilities Finance Manager position description  


Director Gillingham stated that she is concerned about the timing. The changes were made by Bob’s 


department and the final product was sent to Human Resources after the new hire occurred. She stated 


she wanted to be sure all position descriptions were being written by Human Resources. This position 


description has been stripped of the supervisory duties and we hired for the position with those duties 


included. These changes could affect the pay grade of the position. It is going to have to go back to 


Springsted. Lawrence asked if there is some action that needs to be taken and if there is any reason it 


shouldn’t be approved. Director Gillingham stated that there is nothing to be done now as the position 


was hired for and this position could be put into the highest paygrade with nowhere for growth. Director 


Gillingham stated that her recommendation is to leave the position description as is and let the person do 


their job as he was hired. Director Kardasz stated that he has been writing position descriptions for a long 


time but if the committee wants him to hand that off to Human Resources then he will. Director 


Gillingham stated that she wants the input of the department but the position descriptions should be 







completed by Human Resources. Director Kardasz stated they are looking for someone to keep the books 


solid not supervise. Majewski stated since you’ve hired for the position with the existing description, that 


the position description should be left as is.  


Motion by Majewski to take no action and leave the description as is, second by O’Connor, Approved 4-0 


 


Review and action regarding proposed updated position descriptions for Utilities Wastewater Operator, 


Utilities Basic Certified Wastewater Operator, Utilities Advanced Certified Wastewater Operator, 


Utilities Advanced Certified Wastewater Operator/Laboratory Technician, and Wastewater Systems 


Supervisor  


Director Gillingham stated she had a meeting with Director Kardasz to go through the position 


descriptions and that she is behind the changes 100%. They have been updated to reflect what the 


persons in the positions are doing at this time and what the new Department of Natural Resources has set 


up for qualifications. 


Motion by Lawrence, second by Majewski, Approved 4-0 


 


Review and possible action regarding Hiring Policy - Department Head  


Director Gillingham stated that at the Council meeting there was discussion about how the Personnel 


Committee went about hiring in regards to the Finance Director and the economic portion of that. She 


also stated that this is an existing position not a newly created one. Majewski had explained to Council 


what had happened. Precedence had been set when Director Sullivan, Director Gillingham and Director 


Hebert were hired. The urgency and timing led to Director Gillingham being told to start the hiring 


process, which she did. Director Gillingham used the same process with this position as they did with 


Director Hebert’s. There was no issue with his hiring. Director Gillingham followed Mayor Olson and the 


Personnel Committee’s directive to start the hiring process. My question is: we are going through the 


same procedure in hiring for this position should we be looking to change the wording of the policy for 


hiring department heads or is this more about the Economic Development portion that’s driving this 


discussion at Council?  Majewski stated that Council thought this was their golden opportunity to get an 


economic development person and they were upset that that wasn’t going to happen. Director Gillingham 


stated that while going through the interview candidates they were told that the Economic development 


portion may be taken away from the position in the future. The Finance Director is going to be involved 


with economic development anyway because it is closely entwined with Finance. O’Connor read the hiring 


policy aloud and said the wording made it a bit unclear whether it needs to go to council first or not. 


Lawrence stated he could see why this came up now. It used to be the department head would just be 


hired. He also asked that in the future should the position go to both Personnel and Council before any 


move is made. Majewski stated that then we are getting into micromanaging everything. And if the 


matter has to go to Council every time then what are we even doing here? Director Gillingham stated that 


as an existing position it should go to Personnel, also stating that the IT position is different in that it is a 


newly created position. Lawrence stated that if there is a problem with the process Council should have 


brought this up ahead of time, not after the fact. There was discussion regarding the fact that everyone 


on the Personnel Committee felt like they had followed policy and had done their jobs correctly during 


this process. Director Gillingham stated that she is personally and professionally offended by the way the 


Council spoke as if she and the Personnel Committee had not followed procedure but had tried to go 


behind Councils back in this process. She stated that she had followed the policy the way she interpreted 


it, the precedent for past leadership hires, and the direction that the Personnel Committee gave her 







regarding the hiring of this position. She then read the policy aloud and asked if the wording needs to be 


changed to reflect what. Discussion regarding the wording. Lawrence stated that the wording should be 


“Human Resources Director shall inform the Personnel Committee and the Council. Council shall hold final 


approval on the candidate” so the Human Resources Director can go out and start the process. Leck 


stated that this is a process issue and should be spelled out in the wording that “The Personnel 


Committee will determine the hiring process”. Lawrence stated that the policy should also say “Council 


shall hold final approval on recommendation of the Personnel Committee”. Director Gillingham was 


instructed to work on the wording of the policy then bring it back to Personnel. 


  


Review and possible action regarding Hiring Policy – Other  


Director Gillingham stated that the Mayor asked her to add it to the agenda to be sure the wording is 


acceptable. The committee agreed the wording is good in this case. 


  


Discussion regarding retirement of full time vs part time employees with respect to accrued sick leave  


Director Gillingham stated that Joann Seymour retired and asked Director Gillingham why she hadn’t been 


paid out for her sick time. Director Gillingham stated that she did some research and went to the Work 


Rules and it states there that “All Full Time employees who retire from the City and apply in a timely 


manner will receive annuity from WRS and then talks about the dollar amount” but the emphasis is on 


FULL TIME. Joann was with the City part time for over 10 years. Gini did some research and McFarland 


pays out 50% and the rest goes into a health savings account, the State of Wisconsin also allows part time 


employees to receive that payout. The reason I brought this to the committee is to see if we shouldn’t be 


extending that to part time employees as well.   


Future Agenda Items 
Springsted phase III; pay for performance; contracted employees vs Work Rule changes 
 


 


 
ADJOURNMENT 


Motion to adjourn by Lawrence, second by Majewski, All in Favor (4-0). Meeting adjourned at 6:50pm. 







Tree Commission Meeting Minutes


Wednesday, January 11, 2017 at 4:30 PM


Ed Overland Room, City Hall, 381 E Main St, Stoughton


Members Present: Kevin Short, Dean Tangeman, Keith Kvalheim and Sid Boersma


Absent & Excused: Robert Kardasz and Kendall McBroom


Guest: Ann Cook, Counselor @ Stoughton High School


Staff: Public Works Director Brett Hebert, Street Department Secretary Vickie Erdahl & Forester Randy
Nelson


Call to order: Meeting called to order by Short @ 4:40 PM


1) Communications:


 Hebert 1) reported that 240 ash trees are on the RFP bid for removal and at this time the
attorney for review. There was a change to the RFP that the city would like to harvest logs
from 23 of the trees. These logs will be taken to the Matson’s pit for storage. Cummins has
offered to sawyer the wood to use for foot bridges / board walks that will be built around the
Virgin Lake Park in Stoughton.


The extra wood will be hauled by the contractor’s to Dale Veek’s property on Pleasant Hill
Road


2) Forestry Reports: No discussion.


3) Update on Ordinance 10-2 (d) – Terrace Trees: Hebert reported that he has been working on
language changes with the Public Works committee. The Tree Commission committee felt there needed
to be more clarification. Hebert will work on the clarification and then discuss with the public works
committee at their January meeting.


4) Update - Tree Protection: TABELED. Hebert stated that this needs to be completed before the
construction bids go out in the spring.


5) Discussion on Scholarship Program: Ann Cook Stoughton High School Counselor attended this
meeting to discuss the various fields / categories that the commission could use to receive applicants for
the grant that we would like to give from the donation account. Ms. Cook was also helpful on various
methods in which to get the word out to the students that a grant is available. Information that was
discussed because we have the option of the school doing the grant for us or doing the grant ourselves
(although she would assist if we decided to take that route).


If the grant is done through the school:


1) The student is only allowed one grant
2) The school would do all the work for us
3) The school knows the student better and could match them to the criteria that we put into the grant
4) Business Office will track the monies involved
5) The school also know the GPA of the students
6) Deadline is generally the beginning of March
7) The school would also advertise the grant







If the grant is done through the commission:


1) The student(s) would be allowed to receive a grant from a private entity and also from the school
2) The commission would have to do our own advertising – however the school would also help and


put it in the newsletter / send out a link to an online application
3) The commission would have to screen the applications for qualifications
4) The commission would have to develop an application
5) The commission would have to handle the financial part of providing the funds (which needs to be


checked out with the city Finance Department to see how that would work) and also be responsible
for the tracking of the monies.


Nelson suggested we talk with the FFA to help with screening for qualified individuals. The commission
was concerned has one advantage the high school counselors have is that they know the students and
what their needs are. Ms. Cook also made the comment that there isn’t a large pool of students at the
high school that are going into a forestry area of schooling – suggested using the Environmental
Science guidelines. Ms. Cook is also willing to have the counselors let us know of students who would
qualify in this area.


The commission will be looking into all the options and Ms. Cook is going to provide scholarship forms
to review.


Motion by Boersma, seconded by Short to make an independent grant available in the amount
of $750.00 for the first year and commission will develop the criteria at the February meeting.
Motion carried 4-0.


6) Wood Storage: TABELED.


7) Approval of minutes from December 14, 2016 Meeting: Motion by Boersma, seconded by
Tangeman to approve the minutes. Carried 4-0.


8) Ordinance 64-14 – Street Trees: Committee is going to review the current ordinance to make sure that
there are no other necessary changes other than the updates for number of members on the committee
and the change from Street Superintendent to the Director of Public Works which city staff will do and
bring back to the committee. This item was placed on the February agenda.


9) Future Agenda Items: Scholarship Program, Wood Storage, Tree Protection Zone, Ord. 64-14


Motion by Kvalheim, seconded by Short to adjourn the meeting at 6:15 p.m. Respectfully submitted 1/18/17, Vickie
Erdahl - Staff







STOUGHTON UTILITIES COMMITTEE REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
Tuesday, January 17, 2017 – 5:30 p.m.
Edmund T. Malinowski Board Room
Stoughton Utilities Administration Office
600 S. Fourth St.
Stoughton, Wisconsin


Members Present: Alderperson Matt Bartlett, Alderperson Michael Engelberger,
Citizen Member David Erdman, Alderperson Greg Jenson,
Citizen Member John Kallas, Mayor Donna Olson, and
Citizen Member Alan Staats.


Excused: None.


Absent: None.


Others Present: Alderperson Dennis Kittleson, Stoughton Utilities Assistant
Director Brian Hoops, Stoughton Utilities Director Robert
Kardasz, P.E., and Martin Seffens.


Call To Order: Mayor Donna Olson called the Regular Stoughton Utilities Committee
Meeting to order at 5:30 p.m.


Stoughton Utilities Committee Consent Agenda: Stoughton Utilities Director Robert
Kardasz presented and discussed the Stoughton Utilities Committee Meeting Consent
Agenda items. Discussion Followed. Motion by Alderperson Michael Engelberger, the
motion seconded by Citizen Member John Kallas, to approve the following consent
agenda items as presented: Stoughton Utilities Payments Due List, Draft Minutes of the
November 14, 2016 Regular Stoughton Utilities Committee Meeting, Stoughton Utilities
Communications, Stoughton Utilities Committee Annual Calendar, and the Stoughton
Utilities November and December 2016 Activities Report. The motion carried
unanimously 7 to 0.


Inclusion Of City Informational Flyers In The Utility Billing Statement: Stoughton
Utilities Assistant Director Brian Hoops and Stoughton Utilities Director Robert Kardasz
presented and discussed the inclusion of City informational flyers in the Utility Billing
statements. Discussion followed. Alderperson Dennis Kittleson offered to contact the
Wisconsin Public Service Commission.


Status of The Stoughton Utilities Committee Recommendation(s) To The
Stoughton Common Council: Stoughton Utilities Director Robert Kardasz presented
and discussed the following items from the Stoughton Utilities Committee that were
approved and placed on file by the Stoughton Common Council:







DRAFT STOUGHTON UTILITIES COMMITTEE REGULAR MEETING
MINUTES
Tuesday, January 17, 2017 – 5:30 p.m.
Stoughton, WI
Page No. 2


 Stoughton Utilities Payments Due List.


 Stoughton Utilities Committee October 17, 2016 Regular Meeting Minutes.


 Stoughton Utilities September 2016 Financial Summaries.


 Stoughton Utilities September 2016 Statistical Worksheet.


Stoughton Utilities Proposed Updated Position Description For The Utilities
Finance Manager: Stoughton Utilities Assistant Director Brian Hoops and Stoughton
Utilities Director Robert Kardasz presented and discussed the proposed updated
position description for the Utilities Finance Manager, emphasizing that there is no fiscal
impact. Discussion followed. Motion by Citizen Member David Erdman, the motion
seconded by Alderperson Michael Engelberger, to approve the proposed updated
position description for the Utilities Finance Manager with updates as discussed and
recommend its approval to the Stoughton Personnel Committee and the Stoughton
Common Council. The motion carried unanimously 7 to 0.


Stoughton Utilities Proposed Updated Position Descriptions For The Utilities
Wastewater Operator, The Utilities Basic Certified Wastewater Operator, The
Utilities Advanced Certified Wastewater Operator, The Utilities Advanced Certified
Wastewater Operator / Laboratory Technician, and Wastewater System
Supervisor: Stoughton Utilities Assistant Director Brian Hoops and Stoughton Utilities
Director Robert Kardasz presented and discussed the proposed updated position
descriptions for the Utilities Wastewater Operator, the Utilities Basic Certified
Wastewater Operator, the Utilities Advanced Certified Wastewater Operator, the Utilities
Advanced Certified Wastewater Operator Laboratory Technician, and the Wastewater
System Supervisor, emphasizing that there is no fiscal impact. Discussion followed.
Motion by Alderperson Michael Engelberger, the motion seconded by Citizen Member
David Erdman, to approve the proposed updated position descriptions for the Utilities
Wastewater Operator, the Utilities Basic Certified Wastewater Operator, the Utilities
Advanced Certified Wastewater Operator, the Utilities Advanced Certified Wastewater
Operator / Laboratory Technician, and the Wastewater System Supervisor, and
recommend their approval to the Stoughton Personnel Committee and the Stoughton
Common Council. The motion carried unanimously 7 to 0.


Proposed Alternate Director To The WPPI Energy Board Of Directors: Stoughton
Utilities Director Robert Kardasz presented and discussed his recommendation to
appoint Stoughton Utilities Assistant Director Brian Hoops to the Alternate Director
position on the WPPI Energy Board of Directors. Discussion followed. Motion by
Alderperson Michael Engelberger, the motion seconded by Citizen Member John







STOUGHTON UTILITIES COMMITTEE REGULAR MEETING MINUTES
Tuesday, January 17, 2017 - 5:30 p.m.
Stoughton, WI
Page No. 3


Kallas, to appoint Stoughton Utilities Assistant Director Brian Hoops to the Alternate
Director position on the WPPI Energy Board of Directors, and recommend the approval
of the appointment and the adoption of the corresponding resolution to the Stoughton
Common Council on January 24, 2017. The motion carried unanimously 7 to 0.


Stoughton Utilities Declarations Of Official Intent Nos. 2017-1 And 2017-2:
Stoughton Utilities Assistant Director Brian Hoops and Stoughton Utilities Director
Robert Kardasz presented and Discussed Stoughton Utilities Declarations of Official
Intent Nos. 2017-1 and 2017-2. Discussion followed. Motion by Citizen Member David
Erdman, the motion seconded by Alderperson Michael Engelberger, to approve:


Declaration No. 2017-1 Stoughton Utilities Electric Vegetative Management Program
for $150,000.00.


Declaration No. 2017-2 Stoughton Utilities Wastewater Adaptive Management
Program Assessment for $5,000.00.


The motion carried unanimously 7 to 0.


Stoughton Utilities Round-Up Program: Stoughton Utilities Assistant Director Brian
Hoops and Stoughton Utilities Director Robert Kardasz presented and discussed the
Stoughton Utilities Round-Up Program. Discussion followed. Motion by Alderperson
Michael Engelberger, the motion seconded by Citizen Member David Erdman, to donate
$1,000 from the Stoughton Utilities Round-Up Program to St. Ann Catholic Parish.
Discussion followed. The motion and second were withdrawn. Discussion followed.
Motion by Alderperson Matt Bartlett, the motion seconded by Citizen Member Alan
Staats, to donate $1,000 from the Stoughton Utilities Round-Up Program to
PEPartnership. The motion carried unanimously 7 to 0.


Stoughton Utilities Staffing Updates: Stoughton Utilities Assistant Director Brian
Hoops and Stoughton Utilities Director Robert Kardasz presented and discussed that
Adam Frederick joined Stoughton Utilities as a Utilities Journeyman Lineman on
December 12, 2016 and Jamin Friedl is scheduled to join Stoughton Utilities as our
Utilities Finance Manager on January 23, 2017. Discussion followed.


Stoughton Utilities Committee Future Agenda Items: Inclusion of City informational
flyers in the Utility billing statements if new information is available.


Adjournment: Motion by Citizen Member David Erdman, the motion seconded by
Alderperson Greg Jenson, to adjourn the Regular Stoughton Utilities Committee
Meeting at 6:35 p.m. The motion carried unanimously 7 to 0.


Respectfully submitted,
Brian R. Hoops, Stoughton Utilities Assistant Director





		2-2017 COA Minutes.pdf

		2-January 25, 2017 Public Safety Minutes.pdf

		4-February 14, 2017 Finance Minutes.pdf

		5-February 2, 2017 CA-CP Minutes.pdf

		10-18-16 RDA Meeting Minutes.pdf

		11-09-16 RDA Meeting Minutes.pdf

		2017 01 18 LIBRARY BOARD approved minutes.pdf

		FINAL CORRECTED 2-Personnel Committee Meeting Minutes 02-06-2017.pdf

		TC Min January 2017.pdf

		Utilities-1-17-17 Regular Committee Meeting Minutes.pdf






CITY OF STOUGHTON, 381 E. MAIN STREET, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL


Approving a Conditional Use Permit request by Casey’s Marketing Company for Casey’s General
Store at 1640 E. Main Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin.


Committee Action: Planning Commission recommends approval 5 - 0.


Fiscal Impact:


File Number: R-21-2017 Date Introduced: March 14, 2017


RECITALS


A. Casey’s Marketing Company (the “Applicant”) is requesting a conditional use permit for
property located at 1640 E. Main Street in the City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin (the
“Property”).


B. Applicant has applied to rezone the Property to Planned Business. Applicant has also applied for
a conditional use permit for the Property authorizing In-Vehicle Sales and Service including
Outdoor Display incidental to Indoor Sales and Service uses pursuant to Section 78-206(4)(g)
and 78-206(4)(d), in order to operate a convenience store with fuel sales on the Property.


C. The City Plan Commission, after giving proper notice, held a public hearing on the application
for the Conditional Use Permit on February 13, 2017, found that the proposed conditional use
meets the standards of Section 78-905 of the Stoughton Municipal Code, and recommended that
the application for a conditional use permit be granted.


D. The Common Council agrees with the Plan Commission’s findings and recommendations.







RESOLUTION


BE IT RESOLVED, by the City of Stoughton Common Council that a conditional use permit is granted
authorizing use of the Property for In-Vehicle Sales and Service including Outdoor Display incidental to
Indoor Sales and Service uses pursuant to Section 78-206(4)(g) and 78-206(4)(d), in order to operate a
convenience store with fuel sales on the Property.


Council Action: Adopted Failed Vote


Mayoral Action: Accept Veto


Donna Olson, Mayor Date


Council Action: Override Vote


S:\MPS-Shared\Resolutions\Caseys CUP 1640 E Main Street.doc







T:\PACKETS\PLANNING COMMISSION\2017\2-13-17\Planning Info\Casey CUP - Council Memo.doc


CITY OF STOUGHTON RODNEY J. SCHEEL


DEPARTMENT OF DIRECTOR


PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT
381 East Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589


(608) 873-6619 www.ci.stoughton.wi.us


Date: February 15, 2017


To: Planning Commissioners


From: Rodney J. Scheel
Director of Planning & Development


Michael P. Stacey
Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner


Subject: Agenda Item for the Common Council meeting of March 14, 2017.


Casey’s Marketing Company requests a conditional use permit (CUP) approval for an in-
vehicle sales and service use including outdoor display incidental to indoor sales and
service to accommodate Casey’s General Store at 1640 E. Main Street.
This request is for conditional use permit approval for in-vehicle sales and service including
outdoor display incidental to indoor sales and service uses. Dane County approval is necessary
for the County Highway N access point and WDOT approval is necessary for the US Highway
51 access. A public hearing was held by the Planning Commission of Feb 13, 2017 and
recommendation to approve is provided. The resolution and all other pertinent information are
provided.







PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE


The City of Stoughton Planning Commission will hold a Public Hearing on Monday, February 13,
2017 at 6:00 o’clock p.m., or as soon after as the matter may be heard, in the Council Chambers, Public
Safety Building, 321 South Fourth Street, Second Floor, Stoughton, Wisconsin, 53589, to consider a
proposed Conditional Use Permit Application by Casey’s Marketing Company (Nancy Tjarks), for an
In-Vehicle Sales and Service use including Outdoor Display incidental to Indoor Sales and Service at
1640 E. Main Street, Stoughton, Dane County, WI., more fully described:


Parcel number: 281/0511-043-9871-5
Legal Description: SEC 4-5-11 PRT SE1/4SW1/4 E 298.8 FT OF S 285 FT THF EXC 0.07 A TO


DOT IN R15097/9


For questions regarding this notice please contact Michael Stacey, Zoning Administrator at 608-646-
0421


Michael P. Stacey
Zoning Administrator


Published January 19, 2017 Hub
Published January 26, 2017 Hub


S:\MPS-Shared\Conditional Uses\Condtional Use Notices\Caseys General Store CUP Notice 2017.doc



























Rtqrqugf Wug


Vjg wug rtqrqugf hqt vjku ukvg ku c 5511 uswctg hqqv tgvckn eqpxgpkgpeg uvqtg ugnnkpi


htguj rtgrctgf hqqf )uwej cu ucpfykejgu cpf rk||c* cu ygnn cu eqooqp


eqpxgpkgpeg kvgou/ Vjg wug yknn cnuq eqpvckp c hwgn egpvgt eqornkogpvkpi vjg tgvckn


uvqtg- ykvj c ecpqr{ cpf ukz ownvk.rtqfwev hwgn fkurgpugtu/


Vjg uvqtg yqwnf dg nqecvgf pgct vjg pqtvj gpf qh vjg rtqrgtv{ hcekpi uqwvj vqyctf


G Ockp Uvtggv/ Vjg ecpqr{ ykvj hwgn rworu ku vq dg nqecvgf dgvyggp vjg


eqpxgpkgpeg uvqtg cpf G Ockp Uvtggv/ C rtqrqugf tghwug gpenquwtg ku nqecvgf vq vjg


pqtvj qh vjg eqpxgpkgpeg uvqtg/ Vjg ukvg yknn eqpukuv qh c rcxgf rctmkpi nqv- ykvj


ewtd cpf iwvvgt- ftckpcig kortqxgogpvu- cpf qvjgt tgncvgf crrwtvgpcpegu vq


uwrrqtv vjg uvqtg/











501


507


504


502


501


510


515


506


513


514


ITEM DATE


DATE


PROJECT NAME


OWNER'S NAME


CONSULTANTS


ISSUED FOR


CHECKED


DRAWN


REVISIONS


PM


PROJECT NUMBER


SHEET NUMBER


SHEET TITLE


C05


16123


OSD


RGS


LND


1.


2.


3.


4.


5.


6.


7.


    www.arcdesign.com
Design Firm License No. 184-001334


5291 ZENITH PARKWAY
LOVES PARK, IL  61111
VOICE: (815) 484-4300
FAX:   (815) 484-4303


1.


2.


3.


4.


5.


6.


7.


8.


9.


10.


11.


12.


13.


14.


15.


16.


17.


LEGEND


PROPOSED CONCRETE CURB


PROPERTY LINE


PROPOSED SETBACK LINE


EXISTING CONCRETE CURB AND GUTTER


PROPOSED FENCE


EXISTING RIGHT-OF-WAY


EXISTING FENCE


PROPOSED EASEMENT


SIDEWALK PAVEMENT


STANDARD DUTY


CONCRETE PAVEMENT WITH


INTEGRAL CURB


HMA


7" HEAVY DUTY CONCRETE/DRIVEWAYS (UGST)


0 20' 30' 40'


HTRON


899.58


900.13


ELEVATION (USGS)
DESCRIPTION


BENCHMARK 1


NE Cap Bolt on a Fire Hydrant at the SE


Quadrant of the intersection of W. Main


Street (US 51) & Veterans Road


BENCHMARKS


BENCHMARK 3


RR Spike in the South face of a power


pole located along the West right of


way line of Veterans Road and being


approximately 208 feet North of the


intersection of W. Main Street &


Veterans Road


901.68


BENCHMARK 2


"X" cut in the North side of a signal


mast base located at the NW


Quadrant of W. Main Street (US 51) &


Veterans Road


2
0
'


(
T
Y
P
)


15


3


CASEY'S


STOUGHTON, WI


CASEY'S RETAIL COMPANY


ONE CONVENIENCE BLVD


ANKENY, IA 50021


JAMES VILMAIN


p. (515) 446-6402


f. (515) 965-6161


1640 E. MAIN ST


STOUGHTON, WI


53589


21.4'


2
2
.
6
'


2
2
.
5
'


6
6
'


2
7
'


2
0
'


8
.
4
'


4
1
'


6
'


65'


46.4'


5
5
.
4
'


55'


1
0
'


(
T
Y
P
)


3
3
.
1
'


20'


(TYP)


2
0
'


2
7
.
1
'


18.5'


2
7
'


106.9'


12'


30'


30'


12'


7" HEAVY DUTY CONCRETE PAVEMENT


OVER UNDERGROUND STORAGE TANKS


SINGLE YELLOW


SOLID LINE/4" (TYP)


6" CONCRETE


CURB (TYP)


CASEY'S 3-PRODUCT


PYLON SIGN


S
T
A
N


D
A
R
D


 
D


U
T
Y


C
O


N
C
R
E
T
E
 
P
A
V
E
M


E
N


T


BOLLARD @ 8' SPACING.


SEE CASEY'S PLAN,


SHEET S-501 DETAIL 4 -


FOOTING AT SIDEWALK


& BOLLARD DETAIL


SEE DETAILS FOR ADA SIGN


AND PARKING STRIPING


4" SOLID YELLOW


LINES 2' C-C @ 45


DEGREES (TYP)


BRICK


REFUSE


ENCLOSURE


4" SOLID YELLOW


LINES 2' C-C @ 45


DEGREES (TYP)


5
8
.
7
'


66.9
'


6
3
.
5
'


84'


1
0
'


53.4'


10'


(TYP)


2
0
.
9
'


5
8
.
7
'


1
0
.3


'


6" BARRIER CURB


(TYP x2)


ACCESSIBLE CURB (TYP X2)


PAVEMENT REMOVAL AND REPLACEMENT


SHALL BE A MINIMUM 2' WIDE AND SHALL


CONSIST OF 1-3/4" HMA SURFACE COURSE


WITH 2 1/4" HMA BINDER COURSE OVER 12"


AGGREGATE BASE MEETING WISDOT


STANDARD REQUIREMENTS.


US HWY 51 (MAIN STREET)


C
O


U
N


T
Y
 
R
O


A
D


 
N


 
(
V
E
T
E
R
A
N


S
 
R
O


A
D


)


240.3
'


2
4
7
.
1
'


CASEY'S PYLON


SIGN (NO PRODUCT


PRICES)


35' (F
-F)


R20'


R5'


R15'


R7.5'


6' CEDAR PRIVACY FENCE.


STAIN TO PRESERVE


NATURAL CEDAR COLOR.


BICYCLE


RACK, 2


PARKS


33.4'


24.9
'


20.8'


50.5'


64'


12.2'


1


0


'


1
0
.3


'


OUTDOOR


PROPANE


AND ICE


SALES


CO2 TANK


LOCATION


GROCERY


VEHICLES


UNLOAD


ADJACENT TO


SIDEWALK


(12'X55.4')


LAYOUT NOTES


A. LOT AREA = 58,776.7 SF (1.35 ACRES)


B. FLOOR AREA = 4,475 SF (TO EXTENTS OF OUTER WALL OF BUILDING)


C. FLOOR AREA RATION (B/A)= 0.076


D. IMPERVIOUS SURFACE AREA = 40,062.7


E. IMPERVIOUS SURFACE AREA RATIO (D/A)= 0.68


F. BUILDING HEIGHT = 20'-8"


G. LANDSCAPE SURFACE RATIO = 32% > 25%


H. Current owner:Davod Natter-Trustee


STANDARD DUTY CONCRETE


HEAVY DUTY CONCRETE (DRIVEWAYS)


HEAVY DUTY CONCRETE (UGST)


CONCRETE PAVEMENT DETAILS


6" PORTLAND CEMENT CONCRETE PAVEMENT WISDOT


SECTION 415/ASTM C 150, 6%-7% AIR ENTRAINMENT;


28 DAY COMPRESSIVE STRENGTH  4000 PSI MINIMUM


(SURFACE TO RECEIVE LIGHT BROOM FINISH)


SUBGRADE PER ASTM D-698 100% OF THE


STANDARD PROCTOR MAXIMUM DRY DENSITY


IN UPPER 3 FEET OF SUBGRADE - 95% BELOW


12" CRUSHED AGGREGATE BASE COURSE PER


WISDOT 305, 1 1/4" DENSE GRADED BASE, 100%


STD. PROCTOR


MAX. DRY DENSITY, BASE SHALL EXTEND 12"


BEYOND BACK OF CURB


7" PORTLAND CEMENT CONCRETE.PAVEMENT WISDOT


SECTION 415/ASTM C 150, 6%-7% AIR


ENTRAINMENT;  28 DAY COMPRESSIVE STRENGTH


REINFORCEMENT AS REQUIRED BY CASEY'S (SURFACE


TO RECEIVE LIGHT BROOM FINISH)


SUBGRADE PER ASTM D-698 100% OF THE


STANDARD PROCTOR MAXIMUM DRY DENSITY


IN UPPER 3 FEET OF SUBGRADE - 95% BELOW


12" CRUSHED AGGREGATE BASE COURSE PER


WISDOT 305, 1 1/4" DENSE GRADED BASE, 100%


STD. PROCTOR MAX. DRY DENSITY, BASE SHALL


EXTEND 12" BEYOND BACK OF CURB


7" PORTLAND CEMENT CONCRETE.PAVEMENT WISDOT


SECTION 415/ASTM C 150, 6%-7% AIR


ENTRAINMENT;  28 DAY COMPRESSIVE STRENGTH


REINFORCEMENT AS REQUIRED BY CASEY'S (SURFACE


TO RECEIVE LIGHT BROOM FINISH)


SUBGRADE PER ASTM D-698 100% OF THE


STANDARD PROCTOR MAXIMUM DRY DENSITY


IN UPPER 3 FEET OF SUBGRADE - 95% BELOW


12" CRUSHED AGGREGATE BASE COURSE PER


WISDOT 305, 1 1/4" DENSE GRADED BASE, 100%


STD. PROCTOR MAX. DRY DENSITY, BASE SHALL


EXTEND 12" BEYOND BACK OF CURB


R20'


R20'


3
6
'


5
'


ACCESSIBLE CURB (TYP X2)


9'


9'


8'


8'


10'


5
'


5
'



























[- 1 -]


CITY OF STOUGHTON RODNEY J. SCHEEL
DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR
381 East Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 (608) 873-6619
www.cityofstoughton.com/planning fax: (608) 873-5519


February 6, 2017
ARC Design Resources Inc.
Lauren Downing
5291 Zenith Parkway
Loves Park, IL 61111


Dear Ms. Downing:


I have completed a review of the proposed site plan for Casey’s General Store, 1640 E. Main
Street, Stoughton, WI – site plan provided 1/6/17. This request is planned to be reviewed by the
City Planning Commission on February 13, 2017 of which you will receive notice. As noted,
additional information may need to be provided.


1. The property at 1640 E. Main Street is currently zoned Rural Holding. A request has been
made to rezone the property to Planned Business (PB). A public hearing has been scheduled
for the February 13, 2017 Planning Commission meeting. A recommendation to the
Common Council will be necessary and the Common Council will likely make their decision
on March 14, 2017. (Note: Veterans Road goes south of US Highway 51 and does not go
north from 51 on County Highway N).


2. Indoor Sales and Service uses are permitted within the PB district while In-Vehicle Sales and
Service and Outdoor Display uses incidental to the on-site principal land use are conditional
accessory uses. A conditional use permit has been requested. A public hearing is scheduled
for the February 13, 2017 Planning Commission meeting. A recommendation to the
Common Council will be necessary and the Common Council will likely make their decision
on March 14, 2017. Site plan approval is also necessary by the Planning Commission and
could be approved contingent on rezoning and conditional use approvals.


3. The Comprehensive Plan Planned Land Use Map depicts this property as Planned Business
which is consistent with the proposed zoning and use.


4. This property is not within a wellhead protection area which would prohibit a gas station.


5. Site plan review and approval procedural requirements per zoning section 78-908 as follows:


A. Written description of the intended use per zoning section 78-908(3) (a) 1-12.


Provided


B. Property site drawing per section 78-908(3) (c) 1-17. Provided







[- 2 -]


C. A detailed landscaping plan of the subject property showing location of all required


bufferyard and landscaping areas in complete compliance with the requirements of


Article VI. Provided


D. A grading and erosion control plan showing existing and proposed grades. Provided


E. Elevation drawings of proposed buildings. Provided


F. A detailed photometric plan with an illumination limit of 0.5 foot-candles at the


property line. The plan must meet the requirements of section 78-707(4) (b).


Provided


G. A development impact study is required for all forms of development that require site


plan approval. Historically only required for large developments.


H. A detailed site analysis shall be required for any lot containing a protected natural


resource covered in Article V, as determined by city staff. These protected areas


include: floodplains, shoreland-wetlands, lakeshores, woodlands, and steep slopes.


The analysis must be submitted in accordance with section 78-908((3) (j) 1-4. N/A


I. Review by the plan commission in accordance with section 78-908(4) (a)-(b).


1. The plan commission, in its consideration of the submitted complete application,


shall take into account the basic intent of the zoning ordinance to ensure


attractive, efficient, and appropriate development of land in the community, and


to ensure particularly that every reasonable step has been taken to avoid


depreciating effects on surrounding property and the natural environment. The


plan commission, in reviewing the application may require such additional


measures and/or modifications as it deems necessary to accomplish this objective.


If such additional measures and/or modifications are required, the plan


commission may withhold approval of the site plan until revisions depicting such


additional measures and/or modifications are submitted to the satisfaction of the


plan commission, or may approve the application subject to the provision of a


revised application reflecting the direction of the plan commission to the


satisfaction of the zoning administrator. Such amended plans and conditions


applicable to the proposed use shall be made a part of the official record, and


development activity on the subject property may not proceed until the revised


application has been approved by one of the two above procedures as directed by


the plan commission. To be determined by the Planning Commission.


2. In reviewing said application the plan commission may make findings on each of


the following criteria to determine whether the submitted site plan shall be


approved, approved with modification, or denied:


a. All standards of the zoning ordinance and other applicable city, state and


federal regulations are met.


b. The public health and safety is not endangered.


c. Adequate public facilities and utilities are provided.







[- 3 -]


d. Adequate control of stormwater and erosion are provided and the


disruption of existing topography, drainage patterns, and vegetative cover


is maintained insofar as is practical.


e. Appropriate traffic control and parking are provided.


f. Appropriate landscaping and open space areas are provided.


g. The appearance of structures maintains a consistency of design, materials,


colors, and arrangement with nearby properties of similar use, which


comply with the general architectural guidelines provided in subsections a.


through e. below:


i. Exterior construction materials shall be consistent with section 78-


716.


ii. Exterior building design or appearance shall not be of such


unorthodox or abnormal character in relation to its surroundings as


to be unsightly or offensive to generally accepted taste and


community standards.


iii. Exterior building design or appearance shall not be so identical


with nearby buildings so as to create excessive monotony or


drabness. A minimum of five basic home styles shall be provided


in each residential subdivision.


iv. Exterior building design or appearance shall not be constructed or


faced with an exterior material which is aesthetically incompatible


with other nearby buildings or which presents an unattractive


appearance to the public and from surrounding properties.


v. Exterior building, sign, and lighting design or appearance shall not


be sited on the property in a manner which would unnecessarily


destroy or substantially damage the natural beauty of the area.


To be determined by the Planning Commission. The building


exterior shall employ high quality, decorative construction


materials.


J. Modification of approved site plan is a violation of chapter 78. An approved site plan


shall be revised and approved via the procedures of sections 78-908(2) & (4) prior to


initiation.


K. Sunset clause. All buildings on an approved site plan not fully developed within two


years of final approval shall expire. The plan commission may extend this period, as


requested by the applicant, through site review process.


Requirements pertaining to the PB – Planned Business District.
6. Indoor Sales and Service is defined in part, as follows: Description: Indoor sales and service


land uses include all land uses which conduct or display sales or rental merchandise or
equipment, or non-personal or non-professional services, entirely within an enclosed
building. Depending on the zoning district, such land uses may or may not display products







[- 4 -]


outside of an enclosed building. Such activities are listed as “Outdoor Display incidental to
indoor sales” under accessory uses in the Table of Land Uses. A land use which contains
both indoor sales and outdoor sales exceeding 15 percent of the total sales area of the
building(s) on the property shall be considered an outdoor sales land use. Gas sales are
considered in-vehicle sales and service uses.


7. Indoor Sales and Service parking requirements: One space per 300 square feet of gross floor
area. The site meets this requirement.


8. In-vehicle sales and service is defined as follows: Description: In-vehicle sales and service
land uses include all land uses which perform sales and/or services to persons in vehicles, or
to vehicles which may or may not be occupied at the time of such activity. Such land uses
often have traffic volumes which exhibit their highest levels concurrent with peak traffic
flows on adjacent roads. Examples of such land uses include drive-in, drive-up, and drive-
through facilities, vehicular fuel stations, and all forms of car washes. If performed in
conjunction with a principal land use (for example, a convenience store), in-vehicle sales and
service land uses shall be considered an accessory use (see subsection 78-206(8) (g)). (See
#13 below). The proposal meets this definition.


9. Regulations related to In-Vehicle Sales and Service per 78-206(8)(g) are as follows:


A. Clearly marked pedestrian crosswalks shall be provided for each walk-in


customer access to the facility adjacent to the drive-through lane(s). No drive-


through planned.


B. The drive-through facility shall be designed so as to not impede or impair


vehicular and pedestrian traffic movement, or exacerbate the potential for


pedestrian/vehicular conflicts. N/A


C. In no instance shall a drive-through facility be permitted to operate which


endangers the public safety, even if such land use has been permitted under the


provisions of this section. N/A


D. The setback of any overhead canopy or similar structure shall be a minimum of


ten feet from all street rights-of-way lines, a minimum of 20 feet from all


residentially-zoned property lines, and shall be a minimum of five feet from all


other property lines. The total height of any overhead canopy or similar structure


shall not exceed 20 feet per the measurement of roof height. The plan meets this


requirement.


E. All vehicular areas of the facility shall provide a surface paved with concrete or


bituminous material which is designed to meet the requirements of a minimum


four ton axle load. Expected.


F. Facility shall provide a bufferyard with a minimum opacity of .60 along all


property borders abutting residentially zoned property. A minimum 20-foot


buffer yard width including a 6-foot fence and 221 points of landscaping per


100 feet of lot line are provided along the adjacent residential property line


to the west to meet this requirement.







[- 5 -]


G. Interior curbs shall be used to separate driving areas from exterior fixtures such as
fuel pumps, vacuums, menu boards, canopy supports and landscaped islands. Said
curbs shall be a minimum of six inches high and be of a non-mountable design.
No curb protecting an exterior fixture shall be located closer than 25 feet to all
property lines. Expected.


10. Regulations related to Outdoor Display incidental to Indoor Sales and Service per 78-
206(8)(d) are as follows:


A. The display of items shall not be permitted in permanently protected green space
areas, required landscaped areas, or required bufferyards. The site plan meets this
requirement.


B. The display of items shall not be permitted within five feet of a property line. The
site plan meets this requirement.


C. In no event shall the display of items reduce or inhibit the use or number of parking
stalls provided on the property below the requirement established by the provisions
of section 78-704. If the number of provided parking stalls on the property is
already less than the requirement, such display area shall not further reduce the
number of parking stalls already present. The site plan meets this requirement.


D. Display areas shall be separated from any circulation area by a minimum of five
feet. This separation shall be clearly delimited by a physical separation such as a
greenway, curb, fence, or line of planters, or by a clearly marked paved area.
Expected.


E. Signs, screening, enclosures, landscaping, or materials being displayed shall not
interfere in any manner with either on-site or off-site traffic visibility, including
potential traffic/traffic and traffic/pedestrian conflicts. The site plan meets this
requirement.


F. Outdoor display shall be permitted during the entire calendar year, however, if
goods are removed from the display area all support fixtures used to display the
goods shall be removed within ten calendar days of the goods' removal. Expected.


G. Inoperative vehicles or equipment, or other items typically stored or displayed in a
junkyard or salvage yard, shall not be displayed for this land use. Expected.


H. Facility shall provide a bufferyard with a minimum opacity of .60 along all borders
of the display area abutting residentially zoned property, except per subsection e.,
above (See section 78-610.). The site plan meets this requirement.


I. Parking regulations: One space per 300 square feet of gross floor area. The site
plan meets this requirement.


J. Display area shall not exceed 25 percent of gross floor area of principal building.
The site plan meets this requirement.


11. The required minimum lot area is 20,000 square feet and the required minimum lot width is
100 feet. The site meets these requirements.


12. The minimum building setback and maximum height requirements are as follows: Front: 20
feet; Side: 10 feet; Rear: 20 feet; Maximum building height: 45 feet. The plan meets these
requirements.







[- 6 -]


13. Public sidewalk is required along all public frontages and shall be delineated on the site plan.
Sidewalk shall be 5 feet wide, a minimum of 6” thick through driveways and a minimum of
4” thick otherwise. The plan shows the existing public sidewalk along E. Main Street.
This section of walk is believed to be 4 feet wide and in poor condition and if replaced
will need to be 5 feet in width. A plan has been provided for curb/gutter and sidewalk
along County Highway N.


14. All off-street parking and traffic circulation areas shall be paved with a hard, all-weather
surface and completed prior to building occupancy. All parking spaces shall be clearly
marked to indicate required spaces. Expected.


15. Handicap parking spaces shall be installed at a size, number, location, and with signage as
specified by state and federal regulations. Expected.


16. Except for handicap parking stalls, the minimum parking stall length shall be 18 feet with a
minimum width of 9 feet. The plan meets this requirement.


17. The parking aisle width for 90 degree parking shall be a minimum of 24 feet. The plan
meets this requirement.


18. The minimum landscape surface ratio (LSR) is 25%. The site plan meets this
requirement.


19. The maximum floor area ratio is 1. This is calculated by dividing the total floor area of all
buildings by the gross site area. The plan meets this requirement.


20. All access drives shall have a minimum width of 18 feet. The plan meets this requirement.


21. All curb openings for access drives shall have a maximum width of 30 feet for non-
residential uses, as measured at the right-of-way line. Access drives may be flared between
the right-of-way line and the roadway up to a maximum of five additional feet and may be
exceeded with explicit Plan Commission approval. The Planning Commission will need
to approve the proposed 35-foot access drives. Staff recommends approval of the wider
access drive openings. Approvals will be necessary from Dane County for the access at
County Highway N and WDOT for the US Highway 51 access.


22. Truck loading and unloading areas shall be depicted on the site plan including showing how
large trucks will maneuver onsite. Trucks cannot back into or from a street. Provided.


23. The minimum paved surface setback from a side and rear lot line is 5 feet while the
minimum is 10 feet from a right-of-way line. The site plan meets this requirement.


24. Access near street intersections of arterial and collector streets shall not be closer than 100
feet from the intersection of any two street rights-of-way unless the street is the only
available frontage on the subject property. Both access points are greater than 100 feet







[- 7 -]


from the W. Main Street and County Highway N intersection. We will need an
approval letters from WDOT and Dane County for the respective access points.


25. Per section 78-704 (13) (a), bicycle parking is required equal to 10% of the automobile
parking space requirement. The site plan meets this requirement.


26. Except for exposed foundations not to exceed three feet in height from adjacent grade, non-
single family development shall employ only high-quality, decorative exterior construction
materials on the visible exterior of the following portions of all structures:


Any portion of the structure within 50 feet of an adjacent residentially zoned
property;
Any portion of the structure located within 50 feet of a public right-of-way;
Any other portion of the structure visible from a public street… The following
exterior construction materials shall not be considered “high quality, decorative”:
non-decorative concrete or cinder block, non-decorative concrete foundation walls or
panels, non-decorative plywood, asphaltic siding, or other materials using exposed
fastener systems or non-decorative surfaces as determined by the Planning
Commission. However, such materials may be allowed by the Planning Commission
as decorative elements.


Details have been provided which appear to meet these requirements.


27. Architectural and design elements shall be compatible with the surrounding area and
community standards and shall minimize user specific elements as determined by the plan
commission. Metal panels with exposed exterior fasteners of the same color may be used on
a maximum of 50 percent of the front side of the building. This material is not allowed
within 50 feet of any customer or visitor entrance. As determined by the Planning
Commission.


28. A landscaping plan which meets the requirements of Article VI must be provided. There are
requirements for Building Foundations (40 landscaping points per 100 feet of building
foundation); Street Frontages (40 landscaping points per 100 linear feet of street frontage);
Paved Areas (60 landscaping points per 20 parking stalls or 10,000 square feet of parking
area) Developed Lots (10 landscaping points per 1,000 square feet of building footprint).
There are also visibility standards at the street intersection (20-foot vision triangle) and at the
access points (10-foot vision triangle). The landscaping plan meets this requirement.


29. Section 78-707, Exterior lighting standards, requires a maximum average on-site lighting of
2.4 footcandles. The maximum lighting as measured at the property line is 0.5 footcandles.
The maximum fixture height shall be 25 feet from grade. The minimum lighting standard for
parking areas used after sunset shall be 0.2 foot-candles. The lighting element shall not be
visible from a residentially zoned property. All off-street parking and traffic circulation areas
serving 6 or more vehicles shall be lit so as to ensure safe and efficient use during hours of
use. An illumination level of between 1.4 and 1.0 footcandles is recommended. A
compliant plan has been provided.







[- 8 -]


30. A gated trash enclosure with 6-foot fencing shall be delineated on the plan for the handling of
waste. The site plan meets this requirement.


31. A stormwater management and erosion control plan, application and fees are required. Dane
County Land Conservation, the City’s consultant, will review the plan and perform
inspections. The plan, application and fees shall be submitted to the Department of
Planning & Development office at City Hall. This can be a condition of approval.


32. Proposed utilities-including electrical transformers and HVAC locations shall be shown on
the utility plan. Provided. Contact Robert Kardasz (608-873-3379) at Stoughton
Utilities for electric, water and wastewater services.


33. Required off-street parking shall not be used for snow storage. This is expected.


34. Street trees will need to be approved by the Public Works Department. There is an
application that will need to be filed and approved prior to building and zoning permit
approvals. Expected.


35. Any proposed signage will require a detailed plan and zoning permit prior to installation. A
compliant signage packet has been provided. The fee for signage is $40 at the time of
application.


36. The building setback will need to be staked prior to pouring footings and an as-built
foundation plan will need to be provided prior to occupancy. Expected


37. State of Wisconsin approved building plans will be necessary prior to issuance of a building
permit but are not necessary to begin the City review process. The foundation will need to
be staked by a surveyor prior to pouring footings. An as-built survey will need to be
provided upon building completion and prior to occupancy to verify setbacks.


If you have any questions, please contact me at 608-646-0421


Sincerely,
City of Stoughton


Michael P. Stacey
Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner


s:\planning\mps\property log folder\1640 e main street\casey store\caseys general store final review 2-6-17.doc







Planning Commission Meeting Minutes
2/13/17
Page 2 of 7


T:\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\Planning Commission\2017\Planning Minutes 2-13-17.docx


Scheel stated the front building is existing.


Motion by Hanna to recommend the Common Council approve the condominium plat as
presented, 2nd by Jenson. Motion carried 5 - 0.


6. John Bieno, TJK Design Build requests site plan approval for a building addition at 170
Business Park Circle.
Scheel gave an overview of the site plan.


Engelberger questioned if there were any issues. Scheel stated that staff recommends approval.


Motion by Engelberger to approve the resolution related to the site plan contingent on the staff
review letter, 2nd by Jenson. Motion carried 5 - 0.


7. Casey’s Marketing Company request to rezone the property at 1640 E. Main Street from
RH - Rural Holding to PB – Planned Business.
Scheel explained the request.


Truehl opened the public hearing.


David Natter spoke in favor of the request.


Scheel explained this request is to rezone the property from Rural Holding to Planned Business
which is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan Planned Land Use Map.


Ryan Swanson stated he is available for questions.


Engelberger questioned who will retain ownership. It was confirmed Casey’s will own the site.


Motion by Jenson to recommend the Common Council approve the rezoning request as
presented, 2nd by Hanna. Motion carried 5 - 0.


8. Casey’s Marketing Company requests a conditional use permit for an in-vehicle sales and
service use including outdoor display incidental to indoor sales and service to
accommodate Casey’s General Store at 1640 E. Main Street.
Scheel explained the request.


Truehl opened the public hearing.


David Natter registered in favor.


Ryan Swanson gave an overview of the site plan.


Hanna questioned the type of plants planned for the retention pond.


Ryan Swanson stated the plants would be turf plantings.



mstacey

Highlight

Casey’s Marketing Company requests a conditional use permit for an in-vehicle sales and
service use including outdoor display incidental to indoor sales and service to
accommodate Casey’s General Store at 1640 E. Main Street.
Scheel explained the request.
Truehl opened the public hearing.
David Natter registered in favor.
Ryan Swanson gave an overview of the site plan.
Hanna questioned the type of plants planned for the retention pond.
Ryan Swanson stated the plants would be turf plantings.








Planning Commission Meeting Minutes
2/13/17
Page 3 of 7


T:\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\Planning Commission\2017\Planning Minutes 2-13-17.docx


Hanna questioned the existing 4-foot walk along US Highway 51.


Ryan Swanson stated they would work with City staff to repair/replace as necessary.


Engelberger questioned truck maneuverability.


Ryan Swanson stated the truck turning details are provided.


Maloney questioned the hours of operation. Ryan Swanson stated some Casey’s operate 24
hours, 7 days a week.


Tom Matson spoke in favor of the request but has concerns about the appearance of the right or
east elevation.


Terry Johnson spoke with concern about traffic safety and the lack of greenspace.


Engelberger is concerned about the public sidewalk location. Scheel explained the WDOT
added a turn lane on Hwy 51 years ago that narrowed the terrace at the intersection.


Truehl closed the public hearing.


Motion by Engelberger to recommend the Common Council approve the conditional use
permit request as presented, 2nd by Hanna. Motion carried 5 - 0.


Scheel gave an overview of the site plan resolution.


Ryan Swanson explained the reasoning for the wider drive entrance widths. Scheel noted this
is a common request for this type of use.


Hanna stated he would like to see what can be done about the east façade since the property is a
gateway to the City.


Ryan Swanson stated they could add a faux window on the side of the building.


Jenson suggested better screening of the roof mechanicals.


Ryan Swanson stated they could look at adjusting the parapet height some.


There was further discussion regarding the public sidewalk location and how to increase the
terrace widths.


The Commissioners agreed a minimum 5-foot sidewalk with a minimum 5-foot terrace would
be acceptable. Additionally, raising of the parapet to further screen the roof mechanicals and
adding a window to the east side of the building.



mstacey

Highlight

Planning Commission Meeting Minutes
2/13/17
Page 3 of 7
T:\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\Planning Commission\2017\Planning Minutes 2-13-17.docx
Hanna questioned the existing 4-foot walk along US Highway 51.
Ryan Swanson stated they would work with City staff to repair/replace as necessary.
Engelberger questioned truck maneuverability.
Ryan Swanson stated the truck turning details are provided.
Maloney questioned the hours of operation. Ryan Swanson stated some Casey’s operate 24
hours, 7 days a week.
Tom Matson spoke in favor of the request but has concerns about the appearance of the right or
east elevation.
Terry Johnson spoke with concern about traffic safety and the lack of greenspace.
Engelberger is concerned about the public sidewalk location. Scheel explained the WDOT
added a turn lane on Hwy 51 years ago that narrowed the terrace at the intersection.
Truehl closed the public hearing.
Motion by Engelberger to recommend the Common Council approve the conditional use
permit request as presented, 2nd by Hanna. Motion carried 5 - 0.






		10a-R-21-2017-Caseys CUP 1640 E Main Street.pdf

		10b-1640 E Main Street Casey CUP Request.pdf






City of Stoughton, 381 E Main Street, Stoughton WI 53589


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL


Authorizing and directing the proper City officials to enter into an agreement with the Town of
Dunkirk to provide EMS services.


Committee Action: Finance Committee Recommended Approval 4-0.


Fiscal Impact: Fee for Service – See Fee Scale (Contact Attachment)


File Number: R-22-2017 Date Introduced: March 14, 2017


WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton Emergency Medical Services (EMS) Department currently offers
service to the surrounding townships, and


WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton EMS services new contract would require the townships to pay for
such services on a per capita basis, and


WHEREAS, the Stoughton Finance Committee met on February 28, 2017 to discuss the terms of the
contract and offer approval, therefore


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city official(s) be
hereby directed and authorized to enter into an agreement with the Town of Dunkirk to provide EMS
services as stipulated by the “Contract for Emergency Medical Services, City of Stoughton – Town of
Dunkirk.


Council Action: Adopted Failed Vote


Mayoral Action: Accept Veto


Donna Olson, Mayor Date


Council Action: Override Vote













































		11a-R-22-2017-Resolution - Town of Dunkirk.pdf

		11b-Dunkirk.pdf






City of Stoughton, 381 E Main Street, Stoughton WI 53589


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL


Authorizing and directing the proper City officials to enter into an agreement with the Town of Dunn
to provide EMS services.


Committee Action: Finance Committee Recommended Approval 4-0.


Fiscal Impact: Fee for Service – See Fee Scale (Contact Attachment)


File Number: R-23-2017 Date Introduced: March 14, 2017


WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton Emergency Medical Services (EMS) Department currently offers
service to the surrounding townships, and


WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton EMS services new contract would require the townships to pay for
such services on a per capita basis, and


WHEREAS, the Stoughton Finance Committee met on February 28, 2017 to discuss the terms of the
contract and offer approval, therefore


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city official(s) be
hereby directed and authorized to enter into an agreement with the Town of Dunn to provide EMS
services as stipulated by the “Contract for Emergency Medical Services, City of Stoughton – Town of
Dunn.


Council Action: Adopted Failed Vote


Mayoral Action: Accept Veto


Donna Olson, Mayor Date


Council Action: Override Vote













































		12a-R-23-2017-Resolution - Town of Dunn.pdf

		12b-Dunn.pdf






City of Stoughton, 381 E Main Street, Stoughton WI 53589


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL


Authorizing and directing the proper City officials to enter into an agreement with the Town of
Pleasant Springs to provide EMS services.


Committee Action: Finance Committee Recommended Approval 4-0.


Fiscal Impact: Fee for Service – See Fee Scale (Contact Attachment)


File Number: R-24-2017 Date Introduced: March 14, 2017


WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton Emergency Medical Services (EMS) Department currently offers
service to the surrounding townships, and


WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton EMS services new contract would require the townships to pay for
such services on a per capita basis, and


WHEREAS, the Stoughton Finance Committee met on February 28, 2017 to discuss the terms of the
contract and offer approval, therefore


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city official(s) be
hereby directed and authorized to enter into an agreement with the Town of Pleasant Springs to provide
EMS services as stipulated by the “Contract for Emergency Medical Services, City of Stoughton – Town
of Pleasant Springs.


Council Action: Adopted Failed Vote


Mayoral Action: Accept Veto


Donna Olson, Mayor Date


Council Action: Override Vote













































		13a-R-24-2017-Resolution - Town of Pleasant Springs.pdf

		13b-Pleasant Springs-1.pdf






City of Stoughton, 381 E Main Street, Stoughton WI 53589


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL


Authorizing and directing the proper City officials to enter into an agreement with the Town of
Rutland to provide EMS services.


Committee Action: Finance Committee Recommended Approval 4-0.


Fiscal Impact: Fee for Service – See Fee Scale (Contact Attachment)


File Number: R-25-2017 Date Introduced: March 14, 2017


WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton Emergency Medical Services (EMS) Department currently offers
service to the surrounding townships, and


WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton EMS services new contract would require the townships to pay for
such services on a per capita basis, and


WHEREAS, the Stoughton Finance Committee met on February 28, 2017 to discuss the terms of the
contract and offer approval, therefore


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city official(s) be
hereby directed and authorized to enter into an agreement with the Town of Rutland to provide EMS
services as stipulated by the “Contract for Emergency Medical Services, City of Stoughton – Town of
Rutland.


Council Action: Adopted Failed Vote


Mayoral Action: Accept Veto


Donna Olson, Mayor Date


Council Action: Override Vote













































		14a-R-25-2017-Resolution - Town of Rutland.pdf

		14b-Rutland.pdf






City of Stoughton, 381 E Main Street, Stoughton WI 53589


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL


Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to enter into an agreement with Jim’s Tree Service
for the 2017 Emerald Ash Borer Tree Removal and Restoration Project.


Committee Action: Public Works Committee and Finance Committee meets March 14, 2017


Fiscal Impact: $85,796.01


File Number: R-26-2017 Date Introduced: March 14, 2017


WHEREAS, The City of Stoughton’s 2017 Budget includes $143,100 for the removal of Emerald Ash
Borer infected trees; and


WHEREAS, The City received 5 competitive bids for the 2017 Emerald Ash Borer Tree Removal and
Restoration project; and


WHEREAS, The bid amount is within the City of Stoughton’s 2017 budget; and


WHEREAS, The city staff has reviewed the bids and recommends awarding the contract to the lowest
responsible bidder, Jim’s Tree Service, in the amount of $85,796.01; and


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city official(s) be
hereby directed and authorized to enter into an agreement with Jim’s Tree Service for $85,796.01.


Council Action: Adopted Failed Vote


Mayoral Action: Accept Veto


Donna Olson, Mayor Date


Council Action: Override Vote







20L7 EAB Tree Removal Agreement


THIS AGREEMENT is by and between the City of Stoughton, 'Wisconsin,


a Wisconsin municipal corporation ("OWNER") and Jim's Tree Service, Inc., a
\üisconsin corporation ("CONTRACTOR").


OWNER and CONTRACTOR, in consideration of the mutual covenants
set forth herein, agree as follows:


l. Services. CONTRACTOR shall complete all serviçes as specified or
indicated in the Contract Documents. The services are generally described as ooAsh


Tree Removal, Stump Grinding, and Restoration Seryices."


2. Contract Times. CONTRACTOR shall complete the services
required by the Contract Documents prior to August 18, 20L7 unless extended
otherwise in accordance with section 5.5 of the Request for Proposal Packet,
attached as Exhibit A.


3. Contract Price. OWNER shall pay CONTRACTOR for completion
of the services in accordance with the Contract Documents in the amount of
Eighty Five Thousand Seven Hundred Ninety Six Dollars and 01/100 ($35,796.01)
as shown in the Executed Proposal Form, attached as Exhibit B.


4. Contract Documents. The Contract Documents consist of the
following


This Agreement;


The Request for Proposal Packet, Exhibit A;


Executed Proposal Form, Exhibit B; and


d. The following may be delivered or issued on or after the
Effective Date of this Agreement:


Written Notice to Proceed


Certificate of Insurance


5. Binding Effect / Assignment. The Contract Documents shall be
binding upon all parties and their respective heirs, executors, administrators,
successors, and assigns. No party may assign its obligations under the Contract
Documents to any third party without prior written consent of the other pafty.


a.


b,


c.


i.


ii


1







6. Severabilify. Any illegal or unenforceable provision of the Contract
Documents will be severed and will not render invalid any remaining portions of
the Contract Documents.


7. Written Notice. Any written notihcation required under the
Contract Documents shall be deemed to be served if it is personally delivered or
sent by first class mail to the following:


To Owner:
City of Stoughton
Attn: Brett Hebert, Director of Public V/orks
381 E. Main St.
Stoughton, WI 53589
Telephone: 608-877-86 84
Email : bhebert@ci. stoughton.wi.us


To Contractor
Jim's Tree Service, Inc.
Attn: Jim Lapp
2757 Door Creek Road
Stoughton, WI 53589
Telephone : 608-222-9 504
Email:


8. Amendment. The Contract Documents may only be amended by a
written amendment approved and executed by the owNER and CONTRACTOR.


9. No Waiver. No provision of the Contract Documents will be
deemed waived by reason of one party failing to enforce the provision on one or
more occasions. Any such waiver must be in writing.


10. Authority. Each party represents that it has the authority to enter
into the Contract Documents and that all necessary procedures have been followed
to secure authorization to enter into the Contract Documents from the party's
respective governing body. Each person signing the Contract Documents
represents and warrants that he or she has been duly authorized to do so.


11. Entire Agreement. The parties' entire agreement is contained in
the Contract Documents, and the provisions of the Contract Documents supersede
all prior discussions or writings between the parties.


2







12. Counterparts. This Agreement may be signed in counterparts
which, when taken together, shall be effective as if all signatures appeared on the
same original document.


IN V/ITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement
to be executed by their proper officers as of the date when all parties hereto have
affixed their respective signatures (Effective Date).


OWNER: CITY OF STOUGHTON, \ryISCONSIN


By: (Seal)
Donna Olson, Mayor


Date:


ATTEST


By:
Lana Kropf, City Clerk


Date:


Sufficient funds are in the treasury to meet the expense of this contract, or
provision has been made to pay the liability that will accrue thereunder.


Tammy LaBorde, Comptroller


Approved as to form:


STAFFORD ROSENBAUM LLP


J


By: Matthew P. Dregneo City Attorney







CONTRACTOR: JIM'S TREE SERVICE, INC.


State of Incorporation Wisconsin


Date of qualification to do business in \MI:


By:


By:


(Seal)
(Signature) (Attach evidence of authority to sign)


(Print name and title)


Date


(Signature)


(Print name and title)


Date:


4







crTY oF STOUGHTON, \ryr


2017


REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL PACKET


ASH TREE RBMOVAL, STUMP GRINDING AI\D
ST]RFACE RESTORATIOI{


OFFICIAL ADVERTISEMENT
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS


I


Exhibit A







CITY OF STOUGIITON
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS


FOR ASH TREE REMOVALS, STUMP GRINDII\ÍG AND RESTORATION
SERVICES


Issued by
City of Stoughton


Department of Public Works
February 912017


RESPONSES DUE
NO LATER THAN 11:00 AM, CEI{TRAL STANDARD TIME


March 2,2017


OUTLINE OF RFP CONTENTS


Section
1.0 GENERALINFORMATION


1.1 Invitation
1,.2 Introduction
1.3 Definitions


2.0 CONTRACT(S) PERIOD: March 602017 - August 18,2017
3.0 PROPOSAL SUBMITTAL


3.1 Schedule
3.2 Costs Incurred
3.3 Submittals


3.3.1 Statement of Qualifications
3.3.2 Proposal Form and Proposal Nanative
3.3.3 Certificate of Insurance


3.4 Right to Reject
3.5 Proposal Evaluation/Acceptance


3.5.1 City Request for Information
3.5.2 Notification
3.5.3 Agreement for Services


4.0 SCOPE OF SERVICES
4,1 Ash Tree Removal, Stump Grinding and Restoration Services


4.1.1 Tree Removal
4.1.2 Tree Stump Removal
4.1.3 Restoration (after stump grinding)
4.1.4 Clean Up
4.1.5 Disposal
4.1.6 Protection of Property
4.1.7 Protection of Utilities


2







5;0


4.2 Other Conditions of Service and Facilities
4.2.1 Evaluating Quality of Work and Unsatisfactory Service
4.2.2 Supervision and Labor
4.2.3 Nondiscrimination
4.2.4 Affirmative Action
4.2.5 Safety
4.2.6 Traffic Safety
4.2.7 Work Hours


GENERAL CONTRACT(S) PROVTSTONS
5.1 Invoicing and Payment Terms
5.2 LiabilityProtection


5.2.1 Indemnification
5.2.2 Safety Rules and Regulations
5.2.3 Insurance


A. Commercial General Public Liability Insurance
B. Worker's Compensation and Employer's Liability Policy
C. Commercial Automobile Liability Coverage
D. Certificate of Insurance


5.3 Evaluation of Contract(s) Performance
5.4 Breach by the Contractor
5.5 Contract(s) Reopening


ATTACHMENTS


A. PROPOSAL FORM
NI, ISTT TREE REMoVAL LIsT
C. SIGNATURE PAGE
D" TRUNK }VOOD MARSHALLING YARI)
E: LOG DISPOSAL SITE


3







INVITATIOI\


The City of Stoughton will receive Sealed Proposals until 11:00 AM, CST, on
March 2,2017 to provide for any of the following services:


- Ash Tree Removal
- Stump Grinding and Surface Restoration Services


V/ork will be performed for the Department of Public Works, Stoughton, Wisconsin, in
accordance with the specifications in the proposal packet. The term of the Contract(s)
will be from March 6,2017 until August 18, 2017. The project deadline may be
extended at the discretion of the city. There is an option to extend the contract an
additional year upon mutual agreement of both parties.


All proposals must be submitted on the rèquired proposal form in sealed envelopes
plainly marked "ASH TRBE REMOVAL" STUMP GRINDING. AND
RESTORATION SERVICES" prior to the time and date for receipts of proposals
indicated in this invitation, or prior to an extension thereof issued to the prospective
proposers. Address all proposals as follows: Brett Hebert, Director of Public Works,
381 E. Main St, Stoughton WI, 53589.


Proposal documents are on file, and may be examined at or obtained from, the
Department of Public Works Facility, 515 S Fourth St, Stoughton WI, 53589, (608)
873-6303. After proposals are opened, no proposals can be withdrawn for a period of
(30) thirty days after the scheduled time of closing proposals, without the consent of
the City of Stoughton. All proposal prices shall be firm for the life of the Contract
subject to acceptance of proposals within ninety days from the date of the proposal
opening.


The City of Stoughton reserves the right to reject any or all proposals and to waive any
informalities, and to accept the proposal deemed most advantageous to the City. No
proposals, alterations, or modifications to proposals shall be allowed after the proposal
opening. The City shall bear no responsibility for costs incurred by respondents in
preparation of proposals.


4







PROPOSAL FOR CITY OF STOUGHTON
ASH TREE REMOVALO STUMP GRINDING, AND


RESTORATION SERVICES


1.0 GENERALINFORMATION


1.2 Introduction. The City of Stoughton (hereinafter referred to as the City),
located in Dane County, has a forestry program which is in compliance with state law
to remove dead or dying Ash Trees from City property, at various locations listed in
the proposal form.


This Request for Proposals (RFP) is issued to solicit services for ash tree
removal, stump grinding and restoration services in the City of Stoughton.


1.3 Definitions. Words, phrases, or other expressions used in the RFP and in the
Contract(s) document shall have meanings as follows:


City : the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin.


Contract(s) Period: shall be from March 6,2017 thru August 18, 2017 and any
extension thereafter.


Contractor : the entity named and designated as the Contractor in the Contract(s).


Department: the City of Stoughton Department of Public \Morks.


Proposal: response to this Request for Proposals, including the Statement of
Qualifications and other submittals.


Selected Proposer(s): proposer(s) who is/are selected by this procurement process to
provide the requested services and facilities.


Statement of Qualffications: information submitted by proposer(s) according to the
requirements of section 3.3.1 in this RFP.


5







2.0 CONTRACT(S) PERIOD. The Contract period will be from March 6,2077
until August 18, 2017. The project deadline may be extended at the discretion of the
city. There is an option to extend the contract an additional year upon mutual
agreement of both parties.


3.0 PROPOSAL SUBMITTAL.


3.1 Schedule. The proposer may provide comment on any of the requirements of
this RFP and offer any additions, deletions, or modifications to the proposed services
described herein that they believe will enhance the cost effectiveness of the service.
All such comments and alternatives offered by the proposer(s) shall be clearly
described and justified to the satisfaction of the City. The City will consider and accept
or reject all such comments and alternatives on an item-by-item basis. To be \


aI must be in and shall
ln


Any additions, deletions or modifications to the RFP shall be incorporated only
through written addenda mailed or delivered by the department to all parties who have
received RFP doiuments. Oral and other interpretations, clarifications, or changes shall
be without legal effect.


The proposal schedule is shown below.


Date Activit)¡


February 9,2077 Issue RFP


February 22,2017 Written comments deadline


March 2,2017 Proposals submitted to be collected and opened


March 2,2017 Review Proposals


March 4,2077 Notice of Award


March 4,2017 V/ritten Notice to Proceed


March 6,2017 Start work by Selected Froposer(s)


3.2 Costs Incurred. The City and all of their officers, agents and employees are not
liable for any costs incurred by the proposer in replying to this RFP. The proposer(s)


6







shall solely bear the entire costs for preparing and submitting proposal(s) in response
to this RFP. All costs incurred during the selection process and negotiations will
likewise be solely at the proposer's expense.


3.3 Submittals. Proposals submitted in response to this RFP shall be clearly
marked toPR


RESTORA ON SERVICES'' and shall be delivered to the following address:


Brett Hebert
City of Stoughton


Director of Public Works
381 E. Main St.


Stoughton, Wisconsin 53589


All proposals are due no later than 11:00 AM Central Standard Time on March 2,
2017. Proposals shall be legibly printed or typed. One full copy, in addition to one
original, must be submitted with the proposal. Proposals shall be reviewed by the
department immediately after the deadline for submittal. No proposal shall be
withdrawn for a period of thirty (30) days after the scheduled opening of the proposals
without the consent of the City of Stoughton. The Proposal must contain all executed
proposal forms specified in this section, including:


. Statement of Qualification
o Proposal Form, Attachment A
o Signature Page, Attachment B
o Proposal Narrative


The instructions contained herein must be closely followed for the proposal to be
responsive to this RFP. If any of the submittal requirements are omitted or any
exceptions to the Contractual terms and conditions are taken, then the proposal shall be
deemed nonresponsive. The department reserves the right to reject the proposal if it is
not in compliance with the required format.


3.3.1 Statement of Qualifications. A proposal will be rejected unless the
proposer shows satisfactory evidence of responsibility; that the proposer has been
regularly engaged in the t¡1pe(s) of service for which the proposal is submitted, or is
reasonably familiar therewith or has engaged the services of subcontractor(s) that are
regularly in such business; and that the proposer is fi.rlly prepared with the necessary
capital, equipment, and facilities to conduct the work. In order to demonstrate this, a
Statement of Oualifications must be developed and submitted as one of the
components of the oroposal.


7







As a minimum, the crew supervisor(s) must be a current International Society of
Arboriculture (ISA) Certified Arborist. Their names and certification number(s) must
be included in the bid document to be considered for this project. Any change in the
status of the "certified" individual(s) during the life of this contract must be reported to
the City at the time of occuffence. All certification numbers will be verified through
the ISA's offrce. Failure to have a certified arborist on site at all times shall result in
termination of the contract.


Employees working around energized electrical facilities must be line clearance
certified arborists.


The Statement of Qualifications need not be elaborate, but must be clear, concise and
contain sufficient details for proper evaluation. It should be distinguished from the
other components of the proposal, and should contain the following separately
identified items of information:


. Identification


. Experience


' Equipment
r References (3)


' Financial Qualifications


3.3.2 Proposal Form and Proposal Narrative. A proposer must use the
Proposal Form, provided as Attachment A, and the Proposal Narrative format below,
ior submitting proposais. Both must compiy with the terms and conditions set forth in
this RFP. The Proposal Form must be signed in accordance with Attachment B, and if
submitted by a corporation, must bear the corporate seal. The Proposal Narrative must
include the:


o Project Organization Plan
o Operating Plan


The ProjectOrganization Plan provided by the proposer(s) shall contain an overall
initial plan for providing the service(s). Further aspects of the Project Organization
Plan could include: the organization's structure for the service(s) to be provided and
time line for the project.


The Operating Plan should include the methods used to provide the service(s),
equipment utilization, operating hours, staffing supervision, and troubleshooting
arrangements.


8







3.3.3 Certificate of Insurance. The Certificate of Insurance shall be provided
to the City only by the Selected Proposer(s) after notification by the City, for the types
and amounts listed in Section 5.2 of the RFP. The City must be notified iq writing at
least ten (10) days prior to any cancellation of material change in the policies specified
therein, and reserves the right to approve any such changes.


3.4 Right to Reject. The City reserves the right to reject any andall proposals for
any reason deemed appropriate, or to accept all or part of a proposal determined to be
in the best interests of the City. The City's decision shall be final.


3.5 Proposal Evaluation/Acceptance. The department will evaluate proposals
submitted in response to the RFP on March 2,2017.If necessary, clarifrcafion of
proposals may be requested from the proposer(s).


3.5.1 City Request for Information. Additional information may be requested
between March 2,2017 and March 4,2017 to allow proposer(s) to clari$r
proposals.


3.5.2 Notification. Written Notice to Proceed will be issued to the selected
proposer who will be awarded the work on or about March 4,2017 .


3.5.3 Contract(s) for Services. The Contractor and the City must execute the
Contract(s) within 90 days of the Notice of Award. The Contract(s) shall be
comprised of the contents of this RFP and revisions, the proposal of the
successful proposer(s) and additional terms agreed to in writing by the City and
the selected proposer. The City may choose an alternate Contractor(s) should the
Selected Proposer fail to execute the Contract(s) within 90 days of the Notice of
Award.


4.0 SCOPE OF SERVICES


4.1 Ash Tree Removal, Stump Grinding and Restoration Services


4.1.1 Tree Removal. Contractor(s) shall be experienced in the removal of trees
in accordance with standards set forth by the arboriculture industry as specified
in ANSI Z l33.l especially sections 6.7 Log Loaders, Cranes an Related Hoists,
9.4 Lowering Limbs and 9.5 Tree Removal.


A. Trees shall be removed in their entirety.
B. Ropes or other mechanical devices shall be used to lower all limbs of


sufficient size that may cause damage to other trees or durrounding
public or private property.


I







C. Work shall include removal of all basal sprouts brush, and weeds
within three feet of the trunk.


D. Limbs and trunks temporarily placed in the terrace areas shall
be placed in such a manner as to eliminate any obstruction to
motor vehicles and pedestrians. Brush and limbs overhanging a
curb or pavement shall not be acceptable and under no
circumstances shall these materials be allowed to lay on City
property overnight.


E. contractor(s) shall remove all trees in locations specified in the
Ash Tree Removal List provided as Attachment C.


4.1.2 Tree Stump Removal.
A. The Contractor(s) shall have all stump locations surveyed for


underground utilities prior to stump grinding. (Diggers Hotline
811)


B. The sfumps and buttress roots are to be removed in all
instances, and the stumps shall be cut deep enough to sever
them from the root system. All surface roots shall be removed.


C. No damage is allowed to the lawn further than six (6) inches irom
any removed surface root without the approval of the homeowner
and the Director of Public Works or their designee.


D. To avoid creating a potentialhazardto the public, the stump
holes are to be filled as soon as physically possible with top soil,
mounded enough to compensate for settling and compaction, and
in no event shail be ieft without a warning device aierting the
public to the potential dangers of the hole.


E. If left unattended prior to backfilling, barricades or road cones
shall be placed around the hole, in a manner that provides
adequate warning to the general public.


F. Ground wood chips and stump grindings from the stump removal
shall be removed from the hole and disposed of at the Contractor's
expense.


4.1.3 Restoration (after stump grinding).
A. The Contractor(s) shall ensure that all wood chips and debris


generated by the grinding process are removed from the stump
location.


B. Loamy or sifted topsoil (free of woodchips and debris) shatl
be used to backfill the hole. A two (2) to three (3) inch mound
of topsoil shall be used to allow for settling. All areas around
the removed stump shall be graded to match the existing grade
of the aÍea.


10







C. Vehicles and equipment used to perform tree care services
(e.g., aerial lift, wood chipper, support vehicles) will, to the
extent feasible, be positioned on paved or gravel surfaces.
When it is necessary to operate vehicles or equipment on turf
or on tree root zones the Contractor(s) shall use ground
protection equipment to protect soil from compaction and turf
damage.


D. Contractor(s) shall protect the adjacent lawn areas. Contractor(s)
will be responsible for the repair of any ruts or other damage
caused by their actions during the execution of this Contract(s).


E. Contractor(s) shall prepare a seed bed with no soil particles
larger than one inch and seed the site includitrg *y disturbed
ground.


F. The grass seed shall be a lawn mixture of 60% Kentucky blue
grass, 25Yoperennial rye grass and15% creeping fescue. Seed
must have a minimum purity rate of 9770, minimum germination
rate of 80% to meet approval of the City and applied at a rate of
one pound per 100 square feet.


4.1..4 Clean [Jp.
A. The work site shall be left as clean as or cleaner than its pre-work


condition.
B. Tree limbs and other parts dropped or lowered from the tree shall


be kept off private property unless the Contractor(s) receives
approval to enter private property from the property owner.


C. All debris from tree removal operations shall be removed from the
site the same day. No debris is to remain in the street or on the
sidewalk overnight.


D. The Contractor(s) shall remove all equipment, materials and debris
from the street as the work progresses so that the public may have
the use of the streets a maximum amount of time.


E. The Contractor(s) shall leave the work site raked and swept clean
and in an orderly condition before moving to the next work area.


F. Each work site shall be cleaned completely of all logs, branches,
twigs, wood chips and sawdust by raking thoroughly on lawn
areas and by sweeping of streets and sidewalks.


G. More specifically, all wood chips, wood dust or any other
materials generated during the job shall be removed from the
work site before completion. The work site includes the street
and curb, parkway, sidewalk, private lawns, driveways and any
area affected by the work. If site cleanup is to be delayed for
any particular reason, barricades, cones andlor caution tape


ll







must be used until the site is clean as determined by the City's
representative.


4.1.5 Disposal of Wood Products
A. Contractor(s) shall legally dispose of all tree material generated on


City Property compliant with Local, State and Federal regulations
regarding the movement of Emerald Ash Borer wood as Dane
County is within a quarantined area. For an updated map, visit
http ://emeraldashborer.wi. eov or call | -87 7 -3 03 -9 6 63 .


B. Tree trunks, indicated on the Ash Tree Removal List
(Attachment C) and identified in the field with2 white dots, shall be
cut into long segments, no less than 8 feet in length and transported
to the site located east of Autumn Crest Rd. (SEE
ATTACHMENT D) These logs will be used by the City for reuse in
the community.


C. All other logs and trunks may be transported to 1611 Pleasant Hill
Rd or 1768 Kaase Rd for disposal free of charge. (SEE
ATTACHMENT E) There is to be no tree branches, wood chips or
stump grindings taken to this site.


D. Wood chips and stump grindings must be hauled off the work site and
disposed of at the Contractor's expense.


4.1.6 Protection of Property
A. The Contractor(s) shall noti$r the City when they will start and


complete any work un<ier this RFP and the Contract(s) five (5)
working days prior to beginning the work.


B. The Contractor(s) shall take all necessary precautions to eliminate
damage to adjacent trees and shrubs, lawns, curbs, walks, or other
real or personal property. Holes made in the lawn, regardless of size,
shall be frlled with topsoil soil and seed as specified in 4.1.3.
Vegetation suffounding a tree marked for removal/pruning shall be
disturbed as little as possible.


4.1.7 Protection of lltilities.
A. Removal operations may be conducted in areas where overhead


electric, telephone, ffid cable television facilities exist. The
Contractor(s) shall protect all utilities from damage, shall immediately
contact the appropriate utility if damage should occur, and shall be
responsible for ali claims for damage dn. to the operation.


B. Utility agencies shall be contacted by the Contractor(s) any time
assistance is needed to work safely around overhead or underground
utility facilities.


t2







4.2 Other Conditions of Service and Facilities


4.2.1 Evaluating Quality of Work and [Insatisfactory Service. The
performance of the Contractor(s) under the Contract(s) shall be evaluated by the
department. If at any time during the Contract(s) period performance
satisfactory to the City is not attained, the City will notiff the Contractor(s) in
writing. The City will outline the unsatisfactory performance and state the level
of performance which the Contractor(s) will need to achieve in order to be
considered satisfactory. The Contractor(s) shall immediately take all necessary
steps including but not limited to, increasing the work force, equipment andlor
vehicles as needed to properly perform the work for the Contract(s). Failure of
the City to give such notification shall not relieve the Contractor(sj of obligation
to perform the work at the time and in the manner specified by the Contract(s).


4.2,2 Supervision and Labor. The Contractor(s) shall provide competent
supervision for the work, to ensure work is performed according to Contract(s)
specifications. Competent and skilled workers must be used to conduct the
work.


4,2.3 Nondiscrimination. The Contractor(s) will not discriminate against any
qualified employee or qualified applicant for employment because of race, color,
national origin, ancestry, religion, age,marital status, disability, sex, or sexual
orientation.


4.2.4 Affirmative Action. Contractor(s) agrees to adopt an affirmative action
plan to increase in its partners, associates, ffid employees members of under-
represented groups in all of its departments, job classifications, and salary
categories.


4,2.5 Safefy. The Contractor(s) shall provide and maintain all safety
accommodations for the use and protection of its employees, City employees, or
visitors, as may be necessary to provide for their health and welfare and comply
with federal, state, and local codes and regulations.


4.2.6 Traffic Safefy.
A. Traffic control shall be the total responsibility of the Contractor(s), and


shall be coordinated with the department.
B. The Contractor(s) shall be solely responsible for pedestrian and


vehicular safety and control within the work site, and shall provide all
necessary warning devices, barricades, ffidground personnel needed
to give safety, protection, and waming to all persons and vehicles in
the work site.


13







C. Blocking of public streets shall not be permitted without consent
of the department.


D. Traffic control shall be accomplished in conformance with the
manual on uniform Traffic Control Devices (MUTCD).


E. Contractor(s) shall provide proper precautions to ensure public safety
until all work is completed at each tree location.


4.2.7 Work llours. The Contractor(s) shall work in accordance with the
City of Stoughton Offenses against public peace, Order and other public
interests (City Code 50.5 (cX3)(f) Construction or repair of buildings).
Construction equipment may only be operated between the hours of seven
(7) a.m. to eight (8) p.m.


s.0 GENERALCONTRACT(S)PROVTSTOI\S


5.1 Invoicing and Payment Terms. The Contractor(s) shall furnish invoices to the
City within thirty (30) days after the conclusion of each month. The City agrees


to pay the Contractor(s) at the rates specified by the Contract(s) within thirty
(30) days from the date of City receipt of the Contractor(s)'s invoice for aii work
completed.


5.2 LiabilityProtection.


5.2.1, IndemnifÏcation: The Contractor(s) shall indemnifr and hold the City,
its officers, agents and employees, harmless from any and all claims for income
or revenue, costs and expenses, including reasonable attorneys' fees, arising out
of any acts or omissions of the Contractor(s), its employees, agents and sub-
contractors(s) during the performance of the Contract(s).


5.2.2 Safety Rules and Regulations: The Contractor(s) shall initiate, maintain
and supervise all safety programs connected with the performance of this
Contract(s). The Contractor(s) shall also take reasonable safety precautions to
prevent damage to property and injury to persons on or adjacent to the work site.
The Contractor(s) shall comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, rules,
regulations and orders of any public authority having jurisdiction over the work
site and the persons at the site. The Contractor(s) shall pay all claims for
property damage or personal injury caused by the Contractor(s), its employees,
agents or sub-contractors(s).


5.2.3 Insurance: The Contractor(s) shall, at its expense, procure the following
insurance policies from insurance companies licensed to do business in the State


of Wisconsin, with Best's ratings of no less than "4" in amounts and coverage's


t4







not less than set forth. All insurance companies and required endorsements shall
be approved by the City prior to execution of the Contract(s). The Contractor(s)
shall also require all sub-contractors(s) to procure identical insurance coverage's
to those required of the Contractor(s) herein.


A. Commercial General Public Liabilitv Insurance: The Contractor(s) shall
procure a Commercial General Liability policy with the following standard
limits:


General Aggregate Limit (other than
Products/Completed Operation


$2,000,000


Products/Completed Operations
Aggregate Limit


$2,000,000


Personal & Advertising Injury Limit $1,000,000


Each Occurrence Limit $1,000,000


Fire Damage Limit/Any One Fire (NA)


Professional Liability per Claim and
Aggregate


$5,000,000


The Commercial General Liability policy will include protection for:


1. Bodily Injury and Property Damage Liability arising from premises,
operations, products and completed operations.


2. Contract(s) Liability coverage to the Contract(s) and related
Contract(s), including sub-contract(s).


3. Coverage for bodily injury or personal injury inflicted by one
Contractor(s) employee upon another.


B. Workerts Comnensation Emnlovers' Liabilitv Policv: The
Contractor(s) shall provide a Worker's Compensation policy with
Employers' Liability coverage from a carrter licensed in Wisconsin
providing standard limits.


C. Commercial Automobile Liabilitv Insurance: The Contractor(s) shall
, provide Commercial Automobile Liability insurance covering all vehicles


and equipment used by the Contractor(s) in the performance of the
15







Contract(s) and all operators thereof in the amount of $1,000,000. The policy
should cover:


1. All owned, non-owned or hired vehicles


2. Uninsured,/Underinsured Motorist Liability coverage at full policy
limits.


3. Cross-suits.


4. Bodily injury and property damage for the transportation of mobile
equipment by a vehicle used by the Contractor(s) in the performance
of the Contract(s).


5. Coverage for injuries caused by fellow employees.


6. Contractual liability coverage for the Contract(s) and related
Contract(s), including sub-contract(s).


D. Certificate of Insurance: The Contractor(s) shall provide the City with a
certificate of insurance coverage required by the Contract(s). The certificate
shall name the city as an additional insured and shall provide that the policies
of insurance shall not be canceled or altered without thirty (30) days prior
written notice to the City. Said duty to notiSr the City of cancellation or
aiteration must be provided without any quaiification or iimitation. Such
certificates shall be kept current for the duration of the Contract(s) or during
any further period of time wherein the Contractor(s) is under any duty of
performance hereunder. The City shall be named as an additional insured on
the general liability and automobile policies specified above and shall have
the right to receive copies of all of the policies and endorsements thereto
provided for herein upon reasonable demand therefore during the Contract(s)
Period and for one year after its expiration.


5.3 Evaluation of Contract(s) Performance. The performance of the
Contractor(s) under the Contract(s) shall be evaluated by the department as
indicated under section 4.2.1 above. If at any time during the Contract(s) Period
performance is not satisfactory to the City and the Contractor(s) did not make
the necessary changes in procedures, and/or equipment as directed by the City to
achieve satisfactory performance, the City shall notifu the Contractor(s) in
writing that the City shall take all necessary steps to follow through on disputes,
breaches, appeals and other considerations arising from such evaluations as
covered under the Contract(s) Provisions 5.0 through 5.5.


t6







The contractor shall provide weekly progress updates to the Director of Public
Works or their designee.


5.4 Breach by the Contractor(s). The term "Material Breach" shall mean the
failure on the part of the Contractor(s) in the performance of the covenants and
conditions set forth herein and the Contract(s), or any conditions which would
substantially interfere with the continuity or manner of performance of the
Contract(s) services or work.


The City may institute judicial proceedings for specific performance of the
Contract(s) or other appropriate legal remedy.


The City shall give not less than24 hours' written notice to the Contractor(s) of
intent to declare such breach by the Contractor(s), who shall have not longer
than 48 hours to rectif,i such claimed breach; in the event such breach is not
rectified within such time, the City shall have the right to elect its remedy as


aforesaid.


5.5 Contract(s) Reopening. The Contract(s) or any portion thereof may only be
reopened for renegotiation without damages at the City's option. The City of
Stoughton reserves the right to extend the Contract an additional year upon
mutual agreement of both parties.


a


T7







ÄTTACHMENT A PRÕP(]SAL FÕRM


CITY OF STOUGHTON


OFFICIAL PROPOSAL FORM


24fi ASH TREE REMOVAL RFP


Total Bid A


Total Bid B


Grand Total


Business Name


BldÂ
Tree Removal


D.B.i¡ Ranse # ofTrees Total llltH Price ner DBH Ikrtâls


2"-12 ll0 It73
13"-18" 6û 8eB


19',-24" 43 912


25"-30', 18 456


3l "-38" I 271


39+ 3 12s


Totals 242 3735


Bid B


Stumn Grindinp and Surface Restoration
D.B.H Ranqe # ofTrees TOTAI DBI{ Price Per DBH Totals


2"-12" ll0 1073


13"-18" 60 898


19,-24" 43 9t2
25"-30" r8 456


3 l "-38" I 271


39+ 3 12s


Totals 242 3735


18







Attachment B SIGNATTJRB PAGE


BIDDER:


(Company Name)


(Address)


(city) (state) (z¡p)


(Contact Person and Phone/Fax Numbers)


AÏTEST


Submitted by: (Signature) (Print Name)


(T¡tle) (Date)


ATTEST: By:
(Signature) (Print Name)


(T¡tle) (Date)


THIS BID, WHEN ACCEPTED AND SIGNED BY AN AUTHORIZED SIGNATORY OF THE CITY OF
STOUGHTON SHALL BECOME A CONTRACT BINDING UPO¡TI BOTH THE PERSON, PARTNERSHIP OR
CORPORATION, TO SUPPLY OR PERFORM AS SPECIFIED AND UPON THE STATE TO ACCEPT THE
PRODUCT OR SERVICE.


T9







ATTACHMEI{T C ASH TREE REMOVAL LIST


Contractor Removal List


t
2


3


4


5


6


7


8


9


10


\t
L2


L3


14


L5


16


t7
18


19


20


27


22


23


24


25


26


27


28


29


30


31


32


33


34


35


36


37


38


*City Keeps


ADDRESS STREET


TREE


ID DBH HEIGHT Trunk Wood
324 N Madison Street 7923 43 60'+


732 S Prairie Street 2377 43 60'+


924 Hamilton Street 1644 39 60'+


325 Oak Street L29T 37 60'+


300 N Morris Street 75 36 60'+


215 N Page Street 2057 36 60'+


727 N Monroe Street L444 33 60'+


Mandt Park 2680 33 30-60'
r.005 Stoughton Avenue 893 32 60'+ X


Mandt Park 4015 32 60'+


Mandt Park 4016 32 60'+


425 N Monroe Street 7470 30 60',+


1005 Stoughton Avenue 892 29 60'+


425 Oak Street 1309 29 60'+


707 Truman Road 4415 29


101 W Chicago Street 801 28 60'+ X


909 S Fourth Street 766 27 30-60'
225 Kenilworth Court 3237 27 30-60'


L000 South Street 4698 27 60'+ X


709 Giles Street 246 26 30-60'
616 Oak Street L273 26 60'+ X


Veterans Memorial Park 7817 26 60'+


Division Street Park 2775 26 30-60'
Riverside Cemetery 5510 26 30-60'


425 W South Street L126 25 30-60'
425 N Monroe Street 1472 25 60'+


427 Nottingham Road 3416 25 30-60'
1004 Kriedeman Drive 3951 25 30-60'


425 N Monroe Street 1.471 24 60'+
7218 Roby Road 3463 24 30-60'
201 N Gjertson 4749 24 30-60'


to24 W South Street 46tO 24 15-30',


Mandt Park 5024 24 30-60'


Bjoin Park 5168 24 60'+
605 Hill Street 5447 24 60'+ X


7203 Vernon Street 24 30-60'
1100 Giles Street L34 23 30-60'


Riverside Park 7875 23 30-60


2A







Division Street Park 2716 23 30-60'


1004 Chapin Lane 4745 23 30-60'


420 S Madison Street t2tL 22 30-60'


577 N Monroe Street 1469 22 30-60'


Bjoin Park 2780 22 60'+


7708 Jackson Street 3276 22 30-60'


1013 N Monroe Street 4302 22 30-60'


Lowell Street Park 5597 22 60'+


308 S Franklin Street 45 27 30-60'


1"100 Giles Street 135 2L 30-60' X


1013 N Monroe Street 4301 2T 30-60'


1072 N Monroe Street 4303 2t 30-60' X


Dunkirk Ave Park 5036 2L 30-60'


Riverside Cemetery 5564 2L 30-60'


Riverside Park 1877 20 30-60'


Bjoin Park 2737 20 60'+ X


1218 Roby Road 3462 20 30-60'


407 King Street 3807 20 30-60'


Mandt Park 4029 20 30-60'


924 Roby Road 4351 20 15-30'


324 S Academy Street 4715 20 30-60'


425 N Monroe Street 5340 20 30-60' X


Riverside Cemetery 5551 20 30-60'


300 W Milwaukee Street 957 19 30-60'


300 W Milwaukee Street 960 19 30-60'


124 S Monroe Street L4L1. L9 30-60


135 N Harrison Street 1755 19 30-60'


Norse Park 2604 19 15-30'


924 Roby Road 4350 19 30-60' X


90L Truman Road 4425 L9 30-60


916 Shirley Street 4457 19 30-60' X


r024 Hyland Drive 4805 L9 30-60'


Bjoin Park 5057 19 30-60'


308 S'Franklin Street 44 18 30-60 X


r23 E Chicaso Street 803 18 30-60'


301 W Milwaukee Street 923 18 30-60'


518 W Milwaukee Street 951 18 30-60'


400 W Milwaukee Street 954 18 30-60'


427 Grant Street 2L51 18 30-60' X


Norse Park 2455 18 30-60'


Bjoin Park 2731 18 60'+ X


534 W Milwaukee Street 949 17 30-60


Dunkirk Ave Park 2684 17 30-60'


Division Street Park 2709 17 30-60' X


2t







83


84


85


86


87


88


89


90


91


92


93


94


95


96


97


98


99


100


101


102


103


704


B in Park 2738 L7 60'+


1.05


106


LO7


108


109


110


1.LL


112


1L3


11.4


115


1.1.6


777


118


179


720


L2L


122


123


t24
725


L26


Norse Park 4671 L7 30-60'
Mandt Park 5472 17 30-60'
Riverside Cemetery 5477 L7 30-60' X


224 Amundson Parkway 4992 !7 30-60'
224 N Prairie Street 2339 t6 30-60'


Bjoin Park 2732 16 60'+
519 Nottingham Road 34L0 16 30-60


1.177 N Monroe Street 4292 16 30-60'
Schelfelker Park 4392 L6 15-30' X


Norse Park 4655 16 30-60'
Norse Park 4958 16 30-60'


400 W Milwaukee Street 955 15 30-60'
Bjoin Park 2733 15 60'+ X


1708 Jackson Street 3275 15 30-60'
Schelfelker Park 4390 15 30-60'
Norse Park 4953 15 30-60 X


118 North Street 505 1.4 30-60'
301 W Milwaukee Street 924 1.4 30-60'
531 W Milwaukee Street 948 L4 30-60'
324 N Madison Street 7925 t4 30-60'
333 W McKinley Street 1999 t4 30-60' X


Dunkirk Ave Park 2688 1.4 30-60'
2I08 Blue Heron Court 2982 T4 15-30',


916 Kings Lynn Road 3078 74 30-60'
1301 Kings Lynn Road 3t27 14 30-60'


Dunkirk Ave Park 5037 1.4 30-60'
Dunkirk Ave Park 5038 t4 30-60'
Dunkirk Ave Park 5039 L4 30-60'


205 N Lynn Street 3L0 13 1,5-30'


624 Roy Avenue L931 L3 30-60' X


Dunkirk Ave Park 2685 13 30-60'
Dunkirk Ave Park 2690 13 30-60'
Dunkirk Ave Park 2696 13 30-60'
Dunkirk Ave Park 2700 13 30-60'


2108 Blue Heron Court 2981 L3 15-30'
1309 Kings Lynn Road 3129 13 30-60' X


1947 Jackson Street 32t1 13 15-30'
601 Nottingham Road 3406 13 30-60'


10t7 Park View Drive 3513 L3 30-60'
Norse Park 4956 13 30-60'
Riverside Cemetery 5485 13 L5-30'
Dunkirk Ave Park 2699 t2 30-60
Dunkirk Ave Park 2701 t2 30-60'


22







727


L28


729


130


131


t32
133


t34
L35


136


t37
138


139


1.40


14L


742


1.43


744


L45


t46
1.47


t48
749


1.50


L51


752


1_53


154


155


156


157


1.58


159


L60


76L


162


163


1.64


165


166


L67


168


169


L70


11L5 Kin n RoadL 31L8 72 30-60'


L377 Kings Lynn Road 3130 12 30-60'


634 Nottingham Road 3477 t2 30-60'


926 Park View Drive 3523 L2 15-30'


910 Park View Drive 3527 L2 L5-30'


1915 Lincoln Avenue 4049 L2 15-30'


209 West Street 4562 12 30-60'


528 Nottingham Road 4754 72 30-60'


300 S Seventh Street 656 t7 30-60'


404 S Fifth Street 72t L1" 15-30'


Dunkirk Ave Park 2689 LT 30-60'


800 Kings Lynn Road 3104 LL 30-60


915 Kings Lynn Road 3110 1T 15-30',


1301 Kings Lynn Road 3728 71 30-60'


677 Nottingham Road 3402 fi. 30-60'


Dunkirk Ave Park 2686 9 30-60'


L220 Kings Lynn Road 3061 L0 15-30'


7217 Kings Lynn Road 3724 L0 30-60'


L71.6 Chapin Lane 3180 10 L5-30'


610 Nottingham Roâd 3423 10 L5-30'


to24 Park View Drive 3516 10 15-30'


900 Park View Drive 3531 L2 15-30'


823 Berry Street 947 L5 30-60'


324 S Madison Street t2L5 1.4 30-60'


2384 Jackson Street 3309 17 L5-30'


2384 Jackson Street 331L 12 15-30'


s08 Homme Lane 3329 tt 30-60'


1815 Buckingham Road 3341 t3 30-60'


1901 Buckingham Road 3349 r.0 30-60'


2008 Lincoln Avenue 4075 7t 15-30'


Virgin Lake Park 4637 13 15-30'


1501 Buckingham Road 4750 13 30-60'


Criddle Park 5041 13 30-60'


Racetrack Park 5742 t2 30-60'


Riverside Cemetery 5494 LL 30-60'


831 S Monroe Street 5601 12 30-60'


225 N Monroe Street 7435 10 15-30'


624 Roy Avenue 1935 9 15-30'


Racetrack Park 28L3 t2 30-60'


660 Nygaard Street 2885 LL L5-30'


2209 Lake Woods Way 2941 t7 15-30'


1009 Virgin Lake Drive 3025 10 15-30'


2384 Jackson Street 3310 10 15-30'


L5L7 Buckingham Road 3323 11 30-60'


23







t77
t72
173


174


175


L76


777


178


779


180


L81


182


L83


184


185


186


187


188


189


190


19L


t92
193


194


195


196


797


198


199


200


20L


202


203


204


205


2108 Lincoln Avenue 4068 72 15-30'


206


207


208


209


2L0


21.1.


2L2


213


2L4


2016 Melaas Circle 4155 L0 L5-30'


Racetrack Park 5136 10 15-30',


Racetrack Park 5t47 10 15-30'


Dunkirk Ave Park 2698 9 30-60'


1.116 Kings Lynn Road 3066 9 1.5-30'


120r Kings Lynn Road 3119 9 30-60'


1207 Kings Lynn Road 3120 9 30-60'


401 Hanson Road 5161 9 1.5-30'


Dunkirk Ave Park 2693 9 30-60'
1217 Kings Lynn Road 3t23 8 30-60'


77t6 Roby Road 4755 8 15-30'


1717 Chapin Lane 3183 7t 15-30'


Dunkirk Ave Park 5034 I 30-60'


300 W Chicago Street 797 10 15-30'


Racetrack Park 2874 tI 15-30'


2107 Roby Road 2827 8 15-30'


660 Nygaard Street 2889 9 L5-30'


660 Nygaard Street 2897 10 L5-30'


2225 Lake Woods Way 2938 10 L5-30',


L009 Virgin Lake Drive 3026 10 15-30'


1577 Buckingham Road 3324 11 30-60'
L623 Roby Road 3492 tt L5-30'


7209 W Milwaukee Street 3776 13 15-30'
1915 Lincoln Avenue 4047 1.7 15-30'


2708 Lincoln Avenue 4067 10 15-30'


2000 N Van Buren Street 4!27 8 L5-30'


941 Eisenhower Road 4255 L1_ L5-30'


947 Eisenhower Road 4256 10 15-30'


708 Roosevelt 446t 6


Virgin Lake Park 4643 L0 15-30',


Virgin Lake Park 4644 10 15-30'


Racetrack Park 5134 7t 15-30'


Racetrack Park 5143 10 30-60'


Racetrack Park 5L44 10 15-30'


Racetrack Park 5145 10 15-30'


Racetrack Park 5!46 10 L5-30'


Racetrack Park 5747 L0 15-30'


Racetrack Park 5148 7L 15-30'


Racetrack Park 5L39 10


Racetrack Park 5149 L0


Racetrack Park 2812 8


Racetrack Park 28r7 8


Racetrack Park 2870 9


24







275


276


2t7
218


279


220


22r
222


223


224


22s


226


227


228


229


230


237


232


233


234


235


236


237


238


239


240


241


242


Racetrack Park 2809 8


X = The city will retain the trunk wood for the trees that are identified on this list. The trunk
wood shall be hauled to the city marshalling yard located east of Autumn Crest Rd in Stoughton.
The trunk wood should be left as long a possible and no less than 8 ft in length.


The trunk wood to be saved is also indicated in the field with 2 white dots. (See Attachment D)


All other logs can be taken to L6LL Pleasant H¡ll Rd, or 1768 Kaase Rd free of charge
(See Attachment E)


Wood chips and stump grindings must be hauled off site at the contractors expense.


Racetrack Park 2808 8


Racetrack Park 2807 8


Racetrack Park 2806 8


Racetrack Park 4t48 9


Racetrack Park 4072 9


Racetrack Park 4734 8


Racetrack Park 2942 9


Racetrack Park 2950 7


Racetrack Park 2977 7


Racetrack Park 2828 9


Schelfelker Park s203 10 L5-30'


Dunkirk Ave Park 269t 8 1"5-30'


Dunkirk Ave Park 2697 7 30-60'


Dunkirk Ave Park 2702 8 30-60'


Dunkirk Ave Park 5035 3


Dunkirk Ave Park 2695 6


Dunkirk Ave Paik 2694 6


Dunkirk Ave Park 2692 6


Dunkirk Ave Park 2687 6


Dunkirk Ave Park 4t28 7


Dunkirk Ave Park 4125 8


Dunkirk Ave Park 4t42 9


Dunkirk Ave Park 3021. 7


Dunkirk Ave Park 3020 9


Dunkirk Ave Park 3002 9


Dunkirk Ave Park 2887 9


Dunkirk Ave Park 2892 8


TOTAI DBH 3735


25







ATTACHMENT D TRUNK WOOD MARSHALLING YARD


Trunk drop offlocation


26







ATTACHMENT E LOG DISPOSAL AREA


1611 Pleasant Hill Rd, Stoughton, WI


Drop off area on site


27







1768 Kaase Rd, Stoughton WI


Drop off Site


28







ÄTTACHMENT A PROPOSAL FORM


CITY OF STOUGHTON


OF'F'ICIAL PROPOSAL F'ORM


2OI7 ASH TREE REMOVAL RFP


Business Name


il¡Ì
I


-¡-
J-erVrc< JnC(


I


ì


Tree Removal
TotnlsD.B.H Rense # ofTrees Total DBH Prlce oer DBH


110 1073 tó,2c lo.qqq,- 212',-12"


898 t 4;1s l?, nt a g.,çôl3u-1 8" 60


9t2 lqJz g 19. or).ô¿)19,-24u 43


Q ¿ro6. oCI25u-30" l8 456 tq.1 5
ç?ç1. 1. s31i'_38rt I 271 tq¡5


39+ J t25 tq ilç )qbf.7l
laT .51)". ï STotals 242 3735


Tot¡l Btd A


,2'lo


Vq CIGrand Total


18


B<hijcit B





		15a-R-26-2017-Resolution for 2017 EAB Tree Removal and Restoration.pdf

		3CI0335-2017 EAB Tree Removal Agreement with exhibits.PDF






Error! Unknown document property name.


CITY OF STOUGHTON, 381 E. MAIN STREET, STOUGHTON, WISCONSIN


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL


Resolution by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton
Approving an Agreement to Delay the Payment of Impact Fees associated with Skaalen Nursing and


Rehabilitation Center, Inc. Residential Care Apartment Complex


Committee Action:


Fiscal Impact: N/A


File Number: R-27-2017 Date Introduced: March 14, 2017


The City of Stoughton, Wisconsin, Common Council does proclaim as follows:


RECITALS


WHEREAS, Skaalen Nursing & Rehabilitation Center, Inc. (“Skaalen”) wishes to proceed with
the construction of their approved 33 unit residential care apartment complex, and


WHEREAS, the City of Stoughton and Skaalen are negotiating terms on which Skaalen would
dedicate land for the purpose of extending the Yahara River Trail; and


WHEREAS, this construction project is subject to impact fees prior to issuance of a building
permit and Skaalen wishes to delay payment until a date certain to allow negotiations to continue
that may reduce or eliminate the impacts fee; now therefore


BE IT RESOLVED that the Common Council of the City of Stoughton hereby approves the
Agreement attached as Exhibit A.


Council Action: Adopted Failed Vote


Mayoral Action: Accept Veto


Donna Olson, Mayor Date


Council Action: Override Vote


S:\MPS-Shared\Resolutions\Resolution Approving Agreement with Skaalen.docx







Error! Unknown document property name. 2


EXHIBIT A


AGREEMENT


THIS AGREEMENT is made this _____ day of March, 2017, by and between the CITY
OF STOUGHTON, a Wisconsin municipal corporation (the "City") and SKAALEN NURSING
AND REHABILITATION CENTER, INC., a Wisconsin corporation ("Skaalen").


In consideration of the mutual covenants and undertakings contained herein, the parties
agree as follows:


1. Impact Fees Due. The City approved a specific implementation plan for 33
residential care apartment complex units off North Morris Street in Stoughton, Wisconsin, based
on plans submitted by Hoffman Planning, Design & Construction, Inc. on September 22, 2016
(the "RCAC Development"). City Code Section 67-5 requires Skaalen to pay $102,028.19 in
parks, playgrounds and land impact fees (the "Impact Fees") in connection with the RCAC
Development. City Code Section 67-4 calls for such Impact Fees to be paid prior to issuance of
building permits, but City Code Section 67-6 provides that Impact Fees may be reduced or
completely offset by land dedication.


2. Possible Land Dedication. The City and Skaalen are negotiating terms on which
Skaalen would dedicate up to 1.90 acres of land and improvements lying between Skaalen's
developed campus and the Yahara River as generally depicted on the attached Attachment A (the
"Land") to reduce or offset the Impact Fees.


3. Plan to Proceed. To facilitate the immediate commencement of construction of
the RCAC Development and the continued negotiation of the potential dedication of the Land to
reduce or offset the Impact Fees, the parties agree that:


 Impact Fees of $102,028.19 are due in connection with the RCAC
Development;


 The parties shall continue to negotiate terms for a potential dedication of the
Land to reduce or offset the Impact Fees;


 This Agreement enables the City to issue building permits to accommodate
construction of the RCAC Development prior to the City's actual receipt or
offset of the Impact Fees; and


 Upon the earlier of (i) the parties' mutual agreement that the Land dedication
will not occur, or (ii) June 30, 2017, Skaalen shall pay the Impact Fees for
the RCAC Development.







Error! Unknown document property name. 3


CITY OF STOUGHTON


BY
Donna Olson, Mayor


BY
Lana Kropf, City Clerk


SKAALEN NURSING AND
REHABILITATION CENTER, INC.


BY
Its







T:\PACKETS\COUNCIL\2017 PACKETS\3-14-2017\16-R-27-2017-Resolution Approving Agreement with Skaalen.docx
0314171137








From: Laura S. Peck [mailto:LPeck@axley.com]
Sent: Friday, March 10, 2017 11:07 AM
To: Matthew Dregne <MDREGNE@staffordlaw.com>; Eileen Kelley <EKelley@staffordlaw.com>
Subject: City of Stoughton Sale of Lot 1, CSM 14436 - New LLC purchaser


Matt and Eileen,


North American Fur Auctions (US) Inc. (NAFA US) is the current Buyer under the Development/Purchase
Agreement with the City. It looks like NAFA will request the Seller’s consent to the formation of a new
Wisconsin LLC to own the Stoughton property and the assignment of the Buyer’s interests under the
Development/Purchase Agreement to this new NAFA Newco LLC. NAFA US and NAFA Newco LLC will be
owned 100% by the same Canadian parent corporation.


NAFA is consulting with their tax accountants right now regarding this and I will confirm the decision
once I hear back from them. But I thought you needed to hear form me for the agenda today, so I am
giving you a heads up.


Laura S. Peck
Attorney


Phone: 608.283.6729 | Mobile: 608.658.9521


Email: LPeck@axley.com | http://www.axley.com


Axley Brynelson, LLP | 2 E. Mifflin St. Ste 200 | Madison, WI 53703








 


DRAFT STOUGHTON UTILITIES COMMITTEE REGULAR MEETING 
MINUTES 
Monday, February 20, 2017 – 5:30 p.m. 
Edmund T. Malinowski Board Room 
Stoughton Utilities Administration Office 
600 S. Fourth St. 
Stoughton, Wisconsin 
 
Members Present: Alderperson Matt Bartlett, Alderperson Michael Engelberger, 


Citizen Member David Erdman, Alderperson Greg Jenson, 
Citizen Member John Kallas, Mayor Donna Olson, and 
Citizen Member Alan Staats. 


 
Excused: None. 
  
Absent: None. 
 
Others Present: Stoughton Utilities Finance Manager Jamin Friedl, CPA, 


Stoughton Utilities Assistant Director Brian Hoops, 
Stoughton Utilities Director Robert Kardasz, P.E., and 
Alderperson Dennis Kittleson. 


  
Stoughton Utilities Committee Consent Agenda:  Stoughton Utilities Director Robert 
Kardasz introduced Stoughton Utilities Finance Manager Jamin Friedl and they 
presented and discussed the Stoughton Utilities Committee Meeting Consent Agenda 
items.  Discussion Followed.  Motion by Alderperson Michael Engelberger, the motion 
seconded by Citizen Member David Erdman, to approve the following consent agenda 
items as presented: Stoughton Utilities Payments Due List, Draft Minutes of the January 
17, 2017 Regular Stoughton Utilities Committee Meeting, Stoughton Utilities October 
2016 and November 2016 Financial Summaries, Stoughton Utilities 2016 Statistical 
Information, January 2017 Statistical Information, Stoughton Utilities Communications, 
Stoughton Utilities Committee Annual Calendar, and the Stoughton Utilities January 
2017 Activities Report. The motion carried unanimously 7 to 0. 
 







AmountCheck


Nbr Type Date Vendor ID / NamePaid


Date:


Time:


User:


09:17AM


SGUNSOLUS


Page:


Report:


Company:


1 of 8


03699W.rpt


7430


Stoughton Utilities


Check Register Summary - Standard


Period: - As of: 2/2/2017


Thursday, February 02, 2017


Description


7430Company:


WPPI-Renewable energy/WPPI-Renewable 


energy/WPPI-Buy Back Solar Credit/WPPI-Buy 


Back Solar Credit/WPPI-Shared 


Savings/WPPI-Shared Savings/WPPI-Large 


Power/WPPI-Large Power/WPPI-Support 


Services/WPPI-Support Services/WPPI-Support 


Services/More...


HC001354 009 WPPI1/11/2017  1,034,526.70


VO for check batch: 307363/VO for check batch: 


307363


EP001355 516 WELLS FARGO BANK1/12/2017  28,175.69


Charter-Jan Ach/Charter-Jan Ach/Charter-Jan 


Ach/Charter-Jan Ach/Charter-Jan Ach/Charter-Jan 


Ach/Charter-Jan Ach/Charter-Jan Ach


HC001356 547 Charter Communications-Ach1/30/2017  415.61


EBC-Jan Ach/EBC-Jan Ach/EBC-Jan Ach/EBC-Jan 


Ach/EBC-Jan Ach/EBC-Jan Ach/EBC-Jan 


Ach/EBC-Jan Ach


HC001357 002 Employee Benefits Corp - Ach1/30/2017  406.66


TDS Metrocom - Jan Ach/TDS Metrocom - Jan 


Ach/TDS Metrocom - Jan Ach/TDS Metrocom - Jan 


Ach/TDS Metrocom - Jan Ach/TDS Metrocom - Jan 


Ach/TDS Metrocom - Jan Ach/TDS Metrocom - Jan 


Ach


HC001358 007 TDS Metrocom - Ach1/30/2017  459.82


First Data-Jan Ach/First Data-Jan Ach/First 


Data-Jan Ach/First Data-Jan Ach/First Data-Jan 


Ach/First Data-Jan Ach/First Data-Jan Ach/First 


Data-Jan Ach


HC001359 421 FIRST DATA CHARGES1/30/2017  30.52


Gordon Flesch-Jan Ach/Gordon Flesch-Jan 


Ach/Gordon Flesch-Jan Ach/Gordon Flesch-Jan 


Ach/Gordon Flesch-Jan Ach/Gordon Flesch-Jan 


Ach/Gordon Flesch-Jan Ach/Gordon Flesch-Jan 


Ach


HC001360 856 GORDON FLESCH COMPANY, INC.1/30/2017  110.36


Fed Taxes-Jan Ach/Fed Taxes-Jan Ach/Fed 


Taxes-Jan Ach/Fed Taxes-Jan Ach


HC001361 025 Payroll Federal Taxes- Ach1/30/2017  224.74


AT&T-Jan Ach/AT&T-Jan Ach/AT&T-Jan 


Ach/AT&T-Jan Ach/AT&T-Jan Ach/AT&T-Jan Ach


HC001362 952 AT&T1/30/2017  168.39


Us Cellular - Jan Ach/Us Cellular - Jan Ach/Us 


Cellular - Jan Ach/Us Cellular - Jan Ach/Us Cellular 


- Jan Ach/Us Cellular - Jan Ach


HC001363 004 Us Cellular - Ach1/30/2017  844.35







AmountCheck


Nbr Type Date Vendor ID / NamePaid


Date:


Time:


User:


09:17AM


SGUNSOLUS


Page:


Report:


Company:


2 of 8


03699W.rpt


7430


Stoughton Utilities


Check Register Summary - Standard


Period: - As of: 2/2/2017


Thursday, February 02, 2017


Description


Delta Dental - Jan Ach/Delta Dental - Jan Ach/Delta 


Dental - Jan Ach/Delta Dental - Jan Ach/Delta 


Dental - Jan Ach/Delta Dental - Jan Ach


HC001364 001 Delta Dental - Ach1/30/2017  1,170.30


Alliant Energy - Jan Ach/Alliant Energy - Jan 


Ach/Alliant Energy - Jan Ach/Alliant Energy - Jan 


Ach/Alliant Energy - Jan Ach/Alliant Energy - Jan 


Ach/Alliant Energy - Jan Ach/Alliant Energy - Jan 


Ach/Alliant Energy - Jan Ach/Alliant Energy - Jan 


Ach


HC001365 003 Alliant Energy - Ach1/30/2017  2,699.36


Client Analysis-Jan Ach/Client Analysis-Jan 


Ach/Client Analysis-Jan Ach/Client Analysis-Jan 


Ach/Client Analysis-Jan Ach/Client Analysis-Jan 


Ach/Client Analysis-Jan Ach/Client Analysis-Jan 


Ach


HC001366 020 Wells Fargo Bank-Ach1/30/2017  8,169.45


State Taxes-Jan Ach/State Taxes-Jan Ach/State 


Taxes-Jan Ach/State Taxes-Jan Ach


HC001367 008 Payroll  State Taxes - Ach1/30/2017  7,032.51


Federal Taxes-Jan Ach/Federal Taxes-Jan 


Ach/Federal Taxes-Jan Ach/Federal Taxes-Jan 


Ach/Federal Taxes-Jan Ach/Federal Taxes-Jan 


Ach/Federal Taxes-Jan Ach/Federal Taxes-Jan Ach


HC001368 025 Payroll Federal Taxes- Ach1/30/2017  38,301.62


A T C Co - Jan Ach/A T C Co - Jan AchHC001369 014 A T C Company - Ach1/30/2017  8,608.00


Dept of Rev-Jan Ach/Dept of Rev-Jan Ach/Dept of 


Rev-Jan Ach/Dept of Rev-Jan Ach


HC001370 010 WI Dept. of Revenue Taxpayment-Ach1/30/2017  16,157.77


City Stoton-Dec Retirement/City Stoton-Dec 


Retirement


CK024692 131 CITY OF STOUGHTON1/5/2017  38.60


Solenis-Polymer/Solenis-PolymerCK024693 090 SOLENIS LLC1/5/2017  3,320.50


Alere-Drug Tests/Alere-Drug Tests/Alere-Drug 


Tests/Alere-Drug Tests/Alere-Drug 


Tests/Alere-Drug Tests


CK024694 102 ALERE TOXICOLOGY SERVICES, INC.1/5/2017  72.00


WI SCTF- 55200/WI SCTF- 55200CK024695 133 WISCONSIN SCTF1/5/2017  176.77


United Liquid-Sludge haul/United Liquid-Sludge haulCK024696 593 UNITED LIQUID WASTE RECYCLING, INC1/5/2017  5,325.00







AmountCheck


Nbr Type Date Vendor ID / NamePaid


Date:


Time:


User:


09:17AM


SGUNSOLUS


Page:


Report:


Company:


3 of 8


03699W.rpt


7430


Stoughton Utilities


Check Register Summary - Standard


Period: - As of: 2/2/2017


Thursday, February 02, 2017


Description


Capital Newspaper-Ads/Capital 


Newspaper-Ads/Capital Newspaper-Ads/Capital 


Newspaper-Ads/Capital Newspaper-Ads/Capital 


Newspaper-Ads


CK024697 695 CAPITAL NEWSPAPERS1/5/2017  1,095.00


N & N Concrete-curb-gutter/N & N 


Concrete-curb-gutter


CK024698 049 N & N CONCETE1/5/2017  200.00


Schmidts-auto repair/Schmidts-auto repairCK024699 271 SCHMIDT'S AUTO, INC1/5/2017  125.00


Elec Testing-Glove Tests/Elec Testing-Glove TestsCK024700 324 ELECTRICAL TESTING LAB., LLC.1/5/2017  19.19


Id Access-id card/Id Access-id cardCK024701 756 ID-ACCESS1/5/2017  10.00


Dunkirk-Dec Dunkirk/Dunkirk-Dec DunkirkCK024702 781 DUNKIRK WATER POWER CO LLC1/5/2017  5,506.92


Resco-Supplies/Resco-Supplies/Resco-Kva 


transformer/Resco-Kva transformer


CK024703 400 RESCO1/5/2017  9,226.74


Strand-Ind discharge reveiw/Strand-Ind discharge 


reveiw/Strand-WPDES appl/Strand-WPDES 


appl/Strand-Uniroyal review/Strand-Uniroyal review


CK024704 448 STRAND ASSOCIATES INC.1/5/2017  1,391.65


Hydro Cross Connection/Hydro Cross ConnectionCK024705 967 HYDRO CORP1/5/2017  1,000.00


Border States-Inventory/Border 


States-Inventory/Border States-Supplies/Border 


States-Supplies


CK024706 327 BORDER STATES ELECTRIC SUPPLY1/11/2017  737.62


Insight-Fuel/Insight-Fuel/Insight-Fuel/Insight-Fuel/In


sight-Fuel/Insight-Fuel


CK024707 451 INSIGHT FS1/11/2017  1,767.65


Woodward-ads/Woodward-adsCK024708 474 WOODWARD COMMUNITY MEDIA1/11/2017  255.96


Lab of Hygiene-Fluoride tests/Lab of 


Hygiene-Fluoride tests


CK024709 675 WI STATE LABORATORY OF HYGIENE1/11/2017  25.00


Xylem-Mixers & Pumps/Xylem-Mixers & PumpsCK024710 927 XYLEM WATER SOLUTIONS USA INC1/11/2017  1,743.00


WI SCTF-Jan A Support/WI SCTF-Jan A SupportCK024711 133 WISCONSIN SCTF1/11/2017  176.77


Diggers Hotline-Dec Locates/Diggers Hotline-Dec 


Locates


CK024712 143 DIGGERS HOTLINE, INC.1/11/2017  210.90







AmountCheck


Nbr Type Date Vendor ID / NamePaid


Date:


Time:


User:


09:17AM


SGUNSOLUS


Page:


Report:


Company:


4 of 8


03699W.rpt


7430


Stoughton Utilities


Check Register Summary - Standard


Period: - As of: 2/2/2017


Thursday, February 02, 2017


Description


Wi State Jrnl-Newspaper/Wi State 


Jrnl-Newspaper/Wi State Jrnl-Newspaper/Wi State 


Jrnl-Newspaper/Wi State Jrnl-Newspaper/Wi State 


Jrnl-Newspaper


CK024713 270 WISCONSIN STATE JOURNAL1/11/2017  225.52


GLS Utility-Dec Locates/GLS Utility-Dec 


Locates/GLS Utility-Dec Locates/GLS Utility-Dec 


Locates/GLS Utility-Dec Locates/GLS Utility-Dec 


Locates


CK024714 727 GLS UTILITY LLC1/11/2017  3,457.50


City Stoton-Dec Stormwater/City Stoton-Dec 


Stormwater


CK024715 131 CITY OF STOUGHTON1/13/2017  42,197.04


R Nickles KPW/R Nickles KPW/R Nickles KPW/R 


Nickles KPW


CK024716 334 ROBERT J NICKLES, INC1/13/2017  10,220.67


Stantec-consulting/Stantec-consultingCK024717 366 STANTEC CONSULTING SERVICES, INC1/13/2017  3,400.00


MJ Electric-retainer/MJ Electric-retainer/MJ 


Electric-retainer/MJ Electric-retainer


CK024718 990 MJ ELECTRIC, LLC1/13/2017  12,778.83


R Olson-Customer Refund/R Olson-Customer 


Refund/R Olson-Customer Refund/R 


Olson-Customer Refund/R Olson-Customer 


Refund/R Olson-Customer Refund


CK024719 076 RICK & CHERYL OLSON1/26/2017  136.15


City Stoton-Jan Retirement/City Stoton-Jan 


Retirement/City Stoton-Jan Retirement/City 


Stoton-Jan Retirement/City Stoton-Jan 


Retirement/City Stoton-Jan Retirement


CK024720 131 CITY OF STOUGHTON1/26/2017  18,503.70


WI SCTF-55200/WI SCTF-55200CK024721 133 WISCONSIN SCTF1/26/2017  176.77


T Skau-Customer Refund/T Skau-Customer RefundCK024722 269 THOMAS SKAU1/26/2017  149.56


Dunn Rite-Customer Refund/Dunn Rite-Customer 


Refund


CK024723 348 DUNN RITE WELDING & REPAIR1/26/2017  113.70


Vining Sparks-Safekeeping/Vining 


Sparks-Safekeeping


CK024724 584 VINING SPARKS IBG, L.P.1/26/2017  57.00


M Gutzmer-Customer Refund/M Gutzmer-Customer 


Refund


CK024725 399 MICHELLE GUTZMER1/26/2017  65.47


Svaum-Customer Refund/Svaum-Customer RefundCK024726 699 SVEUM ENTERPRISES1/26/2017  365.20







AmountCheck


Nbr Type Date Vendor ID / NamePaid


Date:


Time:


User:


09:17AM


SGUNSOLUS


Page:


Report:


Company:


5 of 8


03699W.rpt


7430


Stoughton Utilities


Check Register Summary - Standard


Period: - As of: 2/2/2017


Thursday, February 02, 2017


Description


B Schielzeth-Customer Refund/B 


Schielzeth-Customer Refund


CK024727 726 BONNIE SCHIELZETH1/26/2017  676.44


D Stronach-Customer Refund/D Stronach-Customer 


Refund


CK024728 829 DAVID STRONACH1/26/2017  136.18


R Enterprises-Customer Refund/R 


Enterprises-Customer Refund


CK024729 853 R ENTERPRISES1/26/2017  45.57


Midwest testing-Meter tests/Midwest testing-Meter 


tests


CK024730 232 MIDWEST TESTING LLC1/26/2017  970.00


Stoton Schools-Customer refund/Stoton 


Schools-Customer refund


CK024731 286 STOUGHTON SCHOOLS1/26/2017  232.00


Elec Test-blanket tests/Elec Test-blanket testsCK024732 324 ELECTRICAL TESTING LAB., LLC.1/26/2017  156.50


Utility-Qtr tower/Utility-Qtr towerCK024733 362 UTILITY SERVICE CO., INC1/26/2017  6,578.08


Resco-Supplies/Resco-SuppliesCK024734 400 RESCO1/26/2017  117.42


MPIC-Property Ins/MPIC-Property 


Ins/MPIC-Property Ins/MPIC-Property 


Ins/MPIC-Property Ins/MPIC-Property Ins


CK024735 881 MUNICIPAL PROPERTY INSURANCE CO.1/26/2017  51,066.00


J Gardiner-Customer Refund/J Gardiner-Customer 


Refund


CK024736 438 JOSH GARDINER1/31/2017  149.99


J Linzmeyer-Customer Refund/J 


Linzmeyer-Customer Refund


CK024737 447 JANE LINZMEYER1/31/2017  35.24


R Woodstock-Customer Refund/R 


Woodstock-Customer Refund


CK024738 643 ROBERT WOODSTOCK1/31/2017  40.93


A Peterson-Customer Refund/A Peterson-Customer 


Refund


CK024739 739 ALICE PETERSON1/31/2017  127.61


D Notstad-Customer Refund/D Notstad-Customer 


Refund


CK024740 791 DEBBIE NOTSTAD1/31/2017  48.63


J Haseker-Customer Refund/J Haseker-Customer 


Refund


CK024741 158 JACKIE HASEKER1/31/2017  149.58


Power Curve-Customer Refund/Power 


Curve-Customer Refund


CK024742 167 POWER CURVE TECHNOLOGIES1/31/2017  55.92


B Dulmes-Customer Refund/B Dulmes-Customer 


Refund


CK024743 465 BRIAN DULMES1/31/2017  180.19







AmountCheck


Nbr Type Date Vendor ID / NamePaid


Date:


Time:


User:


09:17AM


SGUNSOLUS


Page:


Report:


Company:


6 of 8


03699W.rpt


7430


Stoughton Utilities


Check Register Summary - Standard


Period: - As of: 2/2/2017


Thursday, February 02, 2017


Description


Buckys-Customer Refund/Buckys-Customer RefundCK024744 639 BUCKY'S PORTABLE RESTROOMS1/31/2017  21.20


Hydro corp-Cross Connection/Hydro corp-Cross 


Connection


CK024745 967 HYDRO CORP1/31/2017  1,000.00


R Schultz-Customer Refund/R Schultz-Customer 


Refund


CK024746 311 ROBER & KATHLEEN SCHULTZ1/31/2017  126.39


Strand-Lateral observations/Strand-Lateral 


observations/Strand-West Sub Design/Strand-West 


Sub Design/Strand-Van Buren 


sewer-water/Strand-Van Buren 


sewer-water/Strand-Utility Const/Strand-Utility 


Const/Strand-Ind discharges/Strand-Ind 


discharges+


CK024747 448 STRAND ASSOCIATES INC.1/31/2017  18,356.59


PSC-Rate Case/PSC-Rate CaseCK024748 491 PUBLIC SVC. COMM. OF WI.1/31/2017  776.77


Citites-Liability premium/Cities-Auto damage 


premium/Citites-Liability premium/Cities-Machinery 


premiums/Cities-Machinery premiums/Cities-Auto 


damage premium/Cities-Auto damage 


premium/Cities-Machinery 


premiums/Cities-Machinery premiums/More...


CK024749 596 CITIES & VILLAGES MUTUAL INS.1/31/2017  15,460.00


Alere-Drug tests/Alere-Drug testsCK024750 102 ALERE TOXICOLOGY SERVICES, INC.1/31/2017  144.00


diggers Hotline-Locates/diggers Hotline-LocatesCK024751 143 DIGGERS HOTLINE, INC.1/31/2017  2,201.30


Resco-Joint compound/Resco-Joint 


compound/Resco-Gaff Guards/Resco-Gaff 


Guards/Resco-Transformers/Resco-Transformers/R


esco-Tools/Resco-Tools


CK024752 400 RESCO1/31/2017  13,996.86


WW Training-Phosphorus class/WW 


Training-Phosphorus class


CK024753 940 WASTEWATER TRAINING SOLUTIONS1/31/2017  160.00


S Hartman-class reimb/S Hartman-class reimbCK101376 430 STEVEN HARTMAN1/5/2017  190.00


Dean-hearing tests/Dean-hearing 


tests/Dean-hearing tests/Dean-hearing 


tests/Dean-hearing tests/Dean-hearing tests


CK101377 600 DEAN HEALTH SYSTEMS1/5/2017  91.00







AmountCheck


Nbr Type Date Vendor ID / NamePaid


Date:


Time:


User:


09:17AM


SGUNSOLUS


Page:


Report:


Company:


7 of 8


03699W.rpt


7430


Stoughton Utilities


Check Register Summary - Standard


Period: - As of: 2/2/2017


Thursday, February 02, 2017


Description


Cintas-clothes cleaning/Cintas-clothes 


cleaning/Cintas-Bldg cleaning/Cintas-Bldg 


cleaning/Cintas-Bldg cleaning/Cintas-Bldg 


cleaning/Cintas-clothes cleaning/Cintas-clothes 


cleaning/Cintas-clothes cleaning/Cintas-clothes 


cleaning/Cintas-Bldg cleaning+


CK101378 809 CINTAS CORPORATION #4461/5/2017  358.61


A Ruder-class reimb/A Ruder-class reimbCK101379 859 ANDREW RUDER1/5/2017  190.00


MEUW-Job training & safety/MEUW-Job training & 


safety


CK101380 995 MEUW1/5/2017  3,956.00


B Hoops-Conference/B Hoops-ConferenceCK101381 181 BRIAN HOOPS1/11/2017  114.00


Great West-Jan A Def Comp/Great West-Jan A Def 


Comp


CK101382 463 GREAT-WEST1/11/2017  2,600.00


R Kardasz-Conference/R Kardasz-ConferenceCK101383 499 ROBERT KARDASZ1/11/2017  114.00


Baker Tilly-Audit/Baker Tilly-Audit/Baker 


Tilly-Audit/Baker Tilly-Audit/Baker Tilly-Audit/Baker 


Tilly-Audit


CK101384 648 BAKER TILLY VIRCHOW KRAUSE, LLP1/11/2017  2,391.00


N Shore Bk-Jan A Def Comp/N Shore Bk-Jan A Def 


Comp


CK101385 731 NORTH SHORE BANK FSB1/11/2017  375.00


Cintas-Clothes cleaning/Cintas-Clothes 


cleaning/Cintas-Clothes cleaning/Cintas-Clothes 


cleaning/Cintas-Clothes cleaning/Cintas-Clothes 


cleaning


CK101386 809 CINTAS CORPORATION #4461/11/2017  175.56


Infosend-Billing & Mailing/Infosend-Billing & 


Mailing/Infosend-Billing & Mailing/Infosend-Billing & 


Mailing/Infosend-Billing & Mailing/Infosend-Billing & 


Mailing/Infosend-Billing & Mailing/Infosend-Billing & 


Mailing


CK101387 852 INFOSEND, INC1/11/2017  3,727.05


K Thompson-Reimbursement/K 


Thompson-Reimbursement


CK101388 912 KENT THOMPSON1/11/2017  328.70


Forster-West Substation/Forster-KPW 


Dev/Forster-Skaalen home addit/Forster-Skaalen 


home addit/Forster-West 


Substation/Forster-KPW/Forster-KPW/Forster-KPW 


Dev


CK101389 157 FORSTER ELEC. ENG.,INC.1/17/2017  11,808.75


Seera-CTC Funds Dec/Seera-CTC Funds DecCK101390 603 SEERA1/17/2017  5,294.45







AmountCheck


Nbr Type Date Vendor ID / NamePaid


Date:


Time:


User:


09:17AM


SGUNSOLUS


Page:


Report:


Company:


8 of 8


03699W.rpt


7430


Stoughton Utilities


Check Register Summary - Standard


Period: - As of: 2/2/2017


Thursday, February 02, 2017


Description


Hanson Pest-Maint/Hanson Pest-MaintCK101391 310 HANSON PEST MANAGEMENT1/26/2017  44.00


Great West-Jan B Def Comp/Great West-Jan B Def 


Comp


CK101392 463 GREAT-WEST1/26/2017  2,600.00


N Shore Bank-Jan B Def Comp/N Shore Bank-Jan 


B Def Comp


CK101393 731 NORTH SHORE BANK FSB1/26/2017  375.00


Cintas-Clothes Cleaning/Cintas-Clothes 


Cleaning/Cintas-Clothes Cleaning/Cintas-Clothes 


Cleaning/Cintas-Clothes Cleaning/Cintas-Clothes 


Cleaning/Cintas-Clothes Cleaning/Cintas-Clothes 


Cleaning/Cintas-Clothes Cleaning/Cintas-Clothes 


Cleaning/More...


CK101394 809 CINTAS CORPORATION #4461/26/2017  351.12


M Seffens-School exp/M Seffens-School expCK101395 175 MARTY SEFFENS2/1/2017  190.00


C Hestekin-School Exp/C Hestekin-School ExpCK101396 602 CORY HESTEKIN2/1/2017  190.00


Infosend-Billing & Mailing/Infosend-Billing & 


Mailing/Infosend-Billing & Mailing/Infosend-Billing & 


Mailing/Infosend-Billing & Mailing/Infosend-Billing & 


Mailing/Infosend-Billing & Mailing/Infosend-Billing & 


Mailing


CK101397 852 INFOSEND, INC2/1/2017  7,426.19


MEUW-Qtr 1 program/MEUW-Qtr 1 


program/MEUW-Qtr 1 program/MEUW-Qtr 1 


program/MEUW-Qtr 1 program/MEUW-Qtr 1 


program


CK101398 995 MEUW2/1/2017  5,731.95


Company Total  1,433,405.00







Date:


Time:


User:


Thursday, January 12, 2017


09:43AM


SGUNSOLUS


Stoughton Utilities


Posting Preview Report


{PSSPurchCard.RefNbr} =  '0000000068'Select By:


Account Sub Amount ProjecMerchantVendor ID Post Date Emp IDCompany Description


Import ID: 009010 Import # : 0000000068


-150.75833 000000  - STOUGHTON LUMBER CO436 12/21/2016STOUGHTON LUMBER CO 87207460


-104.94143 000000  - FRAUD-LOWES #00907994 12/21/2016FRAUD-LOWES #00907 41007430


 33.80852 000000  - BADGER WATER390 12/01/2016BADGER WATER 83007460


 234.04852 000000  - NCL OF WISCONSIN INC830 12/16/2016NCL OF WISCONSIN INC 83007460


 13.67852 000000  - SPEE-DEE DELIVERY937 12/26/2016SPEE-DEE DELIVERY 83007460


 67.60852 000000  - BADGER WATER390 12/30/2016BADGER WATER 83007460


 32.39921 000000  - WAL-MART #1176507 12/07/2016Holiday supplies 35507430


 11.78921 000000  - WAL-MART #1176507 12/07/2016Holiday supplies 35507450


 14.73851 000000  - WAL-MART #1176507 12/07/2016Holiday supplies 35507460


 156.57921 000000  - DEAKS PUB & GRILL994 12/19/2016SU Holiday party 35507430


 56.93921 000000  - DEAKS PUB & GRILL994 12/19/2016SU Holiday party 35507450


 71.19851 000000  - DEAKS PUB & GRILL994 12/19/2016SU Holiday party 35507460


 28.20851 000000  - CDW GOVERNMENT604 12/02/2016WAP ceiling mounting kit 52507460


 46.57903 000000  - PAYFLOW/PAYPAL419 12/05/2016Credit card processing - online Epay 52507430


 16.76903 000000  - PAYFLOW/PAYPAL419 12/05/2016Credit card processing - online Epay 52507450


 22.35840 000000  - PAYFLOW/PAYPAL419 12/05/2016Credit card processing - online Epay 52507460


 7.47233 001099  - PAYFLOW/PAYPAL419 12/05/2016Credit card processing - online Epay 52507430


 29.97903 000000  - PAYFLOW/PAYPAL419 12/05/2016Credit card processing - desktop and recurring 52507430


 10.79903 000000  - PAYFLOW/PAYPAL419 12/05/2016Credit card processing - desktop and recurring 52507450


 14.38840 000000  - PAYFLOW/PAYPAL419 12/05/2016Credit card processing - desktop and recurring 52507460


 4.81233 001099  - PAYFLOW/PAYPAL419 12/05/2016Credit card processing - desktop and recurring 52507430


 246.75921 000000  - RADIOSHACK DEA00019513690 12/12/2016GIS iPad - AFrderick 52507430


 44.37921 000000  - CDW GOVERNMENT604 12/12/2016iPad case - AFrederick 52507430


 29.70921 000000  - MSFT   E0400310G2836 12/12/2016HOSTED MICROSOFT LYNC SERVICE 52507430


 10.80921 000000  - MSFT   E0400310G2836 12/12/2016HOSTED MICROSOFT LYNC SERVICE 52507450


 13.50851 000000  - MSFT   E0400310G2836 12/12/2016HOSTED MICROSOFT LYNC SERVICE 52507460


 82.00920 000000  - GLACIER CANYON LLC994 12/23/2016Training expense - Lodging - MEUW Joint Superintendents Conference - RKardasz 52507430


 82.00920 000000  - GLACIER CANYON LLC994 12/23/2016Training expense - Lodging - MEUW Joint Superintendents Conference - BHoops 52507430


 10.61932 000000  - RITTER TECHNOLOGY333 12/23/2016HYDRAULIC POLE SAW FITTINGS 64007430


 29.95933 000000  - ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW108 12/19/2016Storage Velcro for bucket trucks 52007430


 8.64597 000000  - EXXONMOBIL    96333224754 12/05/2016METER SCHOOL 52757430


 356.00597 000000  - HOTEL MARSHFIELD894 12/05/2016Meter School 52757430


 17.19921 000000  - WAL-MART #1176507 12/13/2016Office/bathroom supplies 52757430


 822.70663 000000  - MIDWEST METER - JACKSON165 12/13/20162 inch meter rebuild 52757450


 7.99675 000000  - ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW108 12/16/2016500 E. Jefferson St. service repair 52757450


 72.75675 000000  - HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS 233492 12/21/2016metering 52757450


 142.20626 000000  - THE SHOE BOX578 12/28/2016Safety Shoes 52757450


 21.63673 000000  - FASTENAL COMPANY01148 12/02/2016Bolts 84007450


 57.63642 000000  - USA BLUE BOOK571 12/08/2016Reagent solution for fluoride tests 84007450


 75.62652 000000  - PERKINS OIL COMPANY994 12/08/201655 poly drums clear 87007450


 57.54652 000000  - ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW108 12/09/2016chemical transfer parts 87007450


 20.97633 000000  - STOUGHTON LUMBER CO436 12/15/2016Well No. 7 maint repair supplies 87007450







Date:


Time:


User:


Thursday, January 12, 2017


09:43AM


SGUNSOLUS


Stoughton Utilities


Posting Preview Report


{PSSPurchCard.RefNbr} =  '0000000068'Select By:


Account Sub Amount ProjecMerchantVendor ID Post Date Emp IDCompany Description


 12.06633 000000  - ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW108 12/16/2016Bulk water meter repair parts 87007450


 15.48831 000000  - ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW108 12/21/2016Bungee cord for Jet-Vac. 87007460


 47.75932 000000  - ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW108 12/22/2016Pressure washer parts for small truck room 87007450


 348.45932 000000  - SMART TOYOTA789 12/23/2016Prius repairs-electrical issues 87007430


 1.82672 000000  - FASTENAL COMPANY01148 12/30/2016Cable tie for snow fence, tower III 87007450


 5.49932 000000  - ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW108 12/30/2016faucet repair parts, small truck room 87007430


 787.42652 000000  - CREAM CTY STATELINE SCALE994 12/13/2016WELL NO. 7 CHEMICAL FEED PUMP SCALES REPAIR AND CALIBRATION 74007450


 12.99652 000000  - STOUGHTON LUMBER CO436 12/14/2016Portable pump for chemicals 74007450


 10.99631 000000  - ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW108 12/15/2016Well No. 7 exhaust fan belt, gen room 74007450


 25.00593 000000  - FOSDAL BAKERY LLC601 12/01/2016MEUW Safety School 69307430


 191.40584 000000  - C&L TILING, INC.994 12/16/2016PERFORATED TILE FOR URD SERVICES 69307430


 328.00593 000000  - RADISSON HOTEL AND CONF894 12/23/2016School 69307430


 35.00833 000000  - ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW108 12/02/2016ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW 87107460


 4.28833 000000  - ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW108 12/06/2016ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW 87107460


 3.39828 000000  - 663 STOUGHTON BUMPER TO B626 12/09/2016663 STOUGHTON BUMPER TO B 87107460


 11.49828 000000  - 663 STOUGHTON BUMPER TO B626 12/12/2016663 STOUGHTON BUMPER TO B 87107460


 23.99833 000000  - STOUGHTON LUMBER CO436 12/16/2016STOUGHTON LUMBER CO 87107460


 230.76833 000000  - STOUGHTON LUMBER CO436 12/16/2016STOUGHTON LUMBER CO 87107460


 8.76833 000000  - FASTENAL COMPANY01148 12/06/2016FASTENAL COMPANY01 87207460


 6.08833 000000  - ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW108 12/07/2016ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW 87207460


 13.53833 000000  - ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW108 12/09/2016ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW 87207460


 150.75833 000000  - STOUGHTON LUMBER CO436 12/19/2016STOUGHTON LUMBER CO 87207460


 9.48833 000000  - STOUGHTON LUMBER CO436 12/21/2016STOUGHTON LUMBER CO 87207460


 14.25833 000000  - FASTENAL COMPANY01148 12/21/2016FASTENAL COMPANY01 87207460


 44.99833 000000  - ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW108 12/29/2016ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW 87207460


 840.02833 000000  - FIRST SUPPLY LLC #2010550 12/30/2016FIRST SUPPLY LLC #2010 87207460


 508.00827 000000  - GOLDEN RAILINGS INC994 12/02/2016GOLDEN RAILINGS INC 82007460


 108.41833 000000  - USA BLUE BOOK571 12/05/2016USA BLUE BOOK 82007460


 3,210.00832 000000  - CRANE ENGINEERING SALES F855 12/06/2016CRANE ENGINEERING SALES F 82007460


 243.60852 000000  - LW ALLEN, LLC207 12/09/2016LW ALLEN, LLC 82007460


 31.99833 000000  - ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW108 12/09/2016ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW 82007460


 41.75832 000000  - AMAZON.COM422 12/12/2016AMAZON.COM 82007460


 45.90833 000000  - FIRST SUPPLY LLC #2010550 12/14/2016FIRST SUPPLY LLC #2010 82007460


 170.52832 000000  - MENARDS MONONA WI652 12/19/2016MENARDS MONONA WI 82007460


 183.60921 000000  - STAPLS7166830106000001352 12/01/2016PRINTER TONER - FRONT OFFICE AND ACCOUNTING 36807430


 66.09921 000000  - STAPLS7166830106000001352 12/01/2016PRINTER TONER - FRONT OFFICE AND ACCOUNTING 36807450


 88.12851 000000  - STAPLS7166830106000001352 12/01/2016PRINTER TONER - FRONT OFFICE AND ACCOUNTING 36807460


 29.39233 001099  - STAPLS7166830106000001352 12/01/2016PRINTER TONER - FRONT OFFICE AND ACCOUNTING 36807430


 92.45921 000000  - STAPLS7167307729000001352 12/09/2016GENERAL OFFICE SUPPLIES AND LAMINATOR 36807430


 33.28921 000000  - STAPLS7167307729000001352 12/09/2016GENERAL OFFICE SUPPLIES AND LAMINATOR 36807450


 44.37851 000000  - STAPLS7167307729000001352 12/09/2016GENERAL OFFICE SUPPLIES AND LAMINATOR 36807460


 14.81233 001099  - STAPLS7167307729000001352 12/09/2016GENERAL OFFICE SUPPLIES AND LAMINATOR 36807430


 9.40642 000000  - UPS 1ZG194WT0313238446824 12/12/2016SHIPPING OF WATER SAMPLES 36807450


 9.40642 000000  - UPS 1ZG194WT0304926059824 12/19/2016SHIPPING OF WATER SAMPLES 36807450







Date:


Time:


User:


Thursday, January 12, 2017


09:43AM


SGUNSOLUS


Stoughton Utilities


Posting Preview Report


{PSSPurchCard.RefNbr} =  '0000000068'Select By:


Account Sub Amount ProjecMerchantVendor ID Post Date Emp IDCompany Description


 9.40642 000000  - UPS 1ZG194WT0311692860824 12/26/2016SHIPPING OF WATER SAMPLES 36807450


 193.23921 000000  - STAPLS7168411309000001352 12/30/2016BATTERIES 36807430


 70.26921 000000  - STAPLS7168411309000001352 12/30/2016BATTERIES 36807450


 87.85851 000000  - STAPLS7168411309000001352 12/30/2016BATTERIES 36807460


 187.00921 000000  - STAPLS7168417696000001352 12/30/2016KITCHEN AND JANITORIAL SUPPLIES 36807430


 68.00921 000000  - STAPLS7168417696000001352 12/30/2016KITCHEN AND JANITORIAL SUPPLIES 36807450


 85.01851 000000  - STAPLS7168417696000001352 12/30/2016KITCHEN AND JANITORIAL SUPPLIES 36807460


 7.68107.10 000000 161224CA - 1KWIK TRIP  73900007393994 12/14/2016CAR VS POLE  LAKE KEGONSA RD. 69507430


 82.11593 000000  - ASLESON'S TRUE VALUE HDW108 12/15/2016pole saw bars 69507430


 3.00934 000000  - STOUGHTON LUMBER CO436 12/19/2016Filters for trk 2 69107430


 328.00594 000000  - RADISSON HOTEL AND CONF894 12/23/2016School 69107430


 28.02933 000000  - EXXONMOBIL    97671200754 12/26/2016FUEL 69107430


 6.49933 000000  - ADVANCE AUTO PARTS 6292194 12/01/2016Taillight bulb for TRK 21 41007430


 543.00232 001099  - CREE LIGHTING484 12/01/2016LED street light fixtures 41007430


 77.94593 000000  - AMAZON.COM422 12/05/2016Hardhat lamps 41007430


 76.50232 001099  - HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS 233492 12/09/20163/4 corp stops 41007450


 906.50232 001099  - HD SUPPLY WATERWORKS 233492 12/13/2016Curb stops 41007450


 449.21932 000000  - 1000BULBS.COM595 12/07/2016School Dist lighting samples per Cory 40007430


 434.71594 000000  - AMARIL UNIFORM COMPANY #1281 12/08/2016PPE Cory H. 40007430


 161.59593 000000  - AMARIL UNIFORM COMPANY #1281 12/09/2016PPE Don Hanson 40007430


 1,620.19642 000000  - HAWKINS INC309 12/12/2016Chemicals 40007450


 250.00932 000000  - IN  SUNDANCE BIOCLEAN, IN322 12/16/2016Janitor service 40007430


 3,281.87934 000000  - LAKESIDE INTERNATIONAL184 12/16/2016Trk 12 engine regen repair 40007430


 444.87933 000000  - VERMEER-WISCONSIN 4975 12/20/2016Wood chipper repairs 40007430


 795.66934 000000  - M & J TRUCK & AUTO REP994 12/21/2016TRK 2 REPLACED ALTERNATOR AND FIXED THE HEATER ON TRK 16 40007430


 2,912.00631 000000  - LA FORCE INC576 12/22/2016replaced hinges at 6 and 7 with continuous hinges 40007450


 670.78594 000000  - AMARIL UNIFORM COMPANY #1281 12/28/2016PPE Adam 40007430


 9.63593 000000  - FASTENAL COMPANY01148 12/01/2016Bolts for paddles used on R/R crossing on Williams Dr. 69407430


 9.47933 000000  - 663 STOUGHTON BUMPER TO B626 12/16/2016Oil filter trk 13 69407430


 150.00932 000000  - MONONA PLUMBING331 12/14/2016Fire system inspection 41007430


 2,674.08232 001099  - CRESCENT ELECTRIC 130134 12/21/2016Inventory 41007430


 608.09597 000000  - UPS 617338643824 12/29/2016SHIPPING COSTS FOR TEST BOARD 41007430


 28,175.69Total:







Highlights-Comparison to prior month


I have no concerns with the utility's financial status.  The following items are


meant to illustrate significant changes in the financial summary from prior periods.


Financial results are as expected through October 2016.


Electric Summary:


 - Sales volume decreased by 8% compared to September while sales in dollars decreased


    by 11% 


 - Purchased power volume decreased by 9% compared to September while total purchased


    power costs decreased by 12% 


 - Net income for the month of October was $5,029 compared to net income for the month 


   of September of $46,915


Water Summary:


 - Sales volume increased by 1% compared to September 


 - Net income for the month of October was $31,152 compared to net income for the month 


   of September of $17,231


Wastewater Summary:


 - Sales volume increased by 4% compared to September 


 - Net income for the month of October was $11,577 compared to net income for the month 


   of September of $26,215


Submitted by: 


Jamin Friedl, CPA


Stoughton Utilities
Financial Summary


October 2016-YTD







Electric Water Wastewater Combined


Assets


Cash & Investments 10,104,310$            1,534,344$              2,854,405$              14,493,059$            


Customer A/R 1,370,684                200,698                   197,089                   1,768,471                


Other A/R 177,058                   37,662                      8,389                        223,109                   


Other Assets 1,111,957                604,728                   417,571                   2,134,255                


Plant in Service 25,180,650              13,292,333              27,689,334              66,162,317              


Accumulated Depreciation (12,959,333)             (4,956,925)               (10,166,663)             (28,082,921)             


Plant in Service - CIAC 2,944,749                7,118,233                -                            10,062,982              


Accumulated Depreciation-CIAC (1,505,215)               (1,887,154)               -                            (3,392,369)               


Construction Work in Progress 651,967                   896,884                   428,949                   1,977,801                


GASB 68 Deferred Outflow 158,933                   57,424                      62,601                      278,958                   


Total Assets 27,235,761$            16,898,227$            21,491,674$            65,625,661$            


Liabilities + Net Assets


Accounts Payable 112,906$                 64,060$                   45,129$                   222,095$                 


Payable to City of Stoughton 363,070                   327,234                   5,843                        696,147                   


Interest Accrued 34,731                      24,839                      21,613                      81,184                      


Other Liabilities 846,119                   94,320                      109,263                   1,049,702                


Long-Term Debt 6,392,529                3,456,014                5,474,363                15,322,906              


Net Assets 19,485,341              12,931,370              15,835,046              48,251,757              


GASB 68 Deferred Inflow 1,063                        390                           418                           1,871                        


Total Liabilities + Net Assets 27,235,761$            16,898,227$            21,491,674$            65,625,661$            


STOUGHTON UTILITIES


Balance Sheets


 As of October 31, 2016







 Electric  Water  Wastewater  Total 


Operating Revenue:


Sales 12,480,132$            1,627,863$              1,672,304$              15,780,300$            


Other 126,235                    56,977                      29,770                      212,982                    


   Total Operating Revenue: 12,606,367$            1,684,840$              1,702,074$              15,993,281$            


Operating Expense:


Purchased Power 9,652,390                -                             -                             9,652,390                


Expenses (Including Taxes) 1,258,002                668,451                    772,198                    2,698,651                


PILOT 376,194                    318,558                    -                             694,752                    


Depreciation 791,170                    357,670                    683,330                    1,832,170                


   Total Operating Expense: 12,077,756$            1,344,679$              1,455,528$              14,877,963$            


     Operating Income 528,612$                 340,161$                 246,546$                 1,115,318$              


Non-Operating Income 490,222                    16,053                      16,170                      522,446                    


Non-Operating Expense (246,970)                  (133,556)                  (141,670)                  (522,197)                  


      Net Income 771,863$                 222,658$                 121,046$                 1,115,567$              


STOUGHTON UTILITIES


Year-to-Date Combined Income Statement


October 2016







 October  September 


 Change from Prior 


Month 


Operating Revenue:


Sales 1,147,232$              1,285,233$              (138,001)$                


Other 5,236                        5,357                        (121)                          


   Total Operating Revenue: 1,152,468$              1,290,590$              (138,122)$                


Operating Expense:


Purchased Power 891,506                   1,011,038                (119,532)                  


Expenses (Including Taxes) 126,018                   110,645                   15,373                      


PILOT 32,083                      46,915                      (14,832)                    


Depreciation 79,117                      79,117                      -                            


   Total Operating Expense: 1,128,724$              1,247,715$              (118,991)$                


     Operating Income 23,744$                   42,875$                   (19,131)$                  


Non-Operating Income 13,749                      125,435                   (111,686)                  


Non-Operating Expense (32,464)                    (121,394)                  88,931                      


      Net Income 5,029$                      46,915$                   (41,887)$                  


 October  September 


 Change from Prior 


Month 


Operating Revenue:


Sales 170,889$                 174,121$                 (3,232)$                    


Other 5,636                        491                            5,145                        


   Total Operating Revenue: 176,525$                 174,612$                 1,913$                      


Operating Expense:


Expenses (Including Taxes) 68,304                      81,146                      (12,841)                    


PILOT 31,667                      33,555                      (1,888)                       


Depreciation 35,767                      35,767                      -                            


   Total Operating Expense: 135,738$                 150,468$                 (14,729)$                  


     Operating Income 40,787$                   24,144$                   16,643$                   


Non-Operating Income 1,110                        1,420                        (310)                          


Non-Operating Expense (10,745)                    (8,333)                       (2,412)                       


      Net Income 31,152$                   17,231$                   13,920$                   


 October  September 


 Change from Prior 


Month 


Operating Revenue:


Sales 166,658$                 165,151$                 1,506$                      


Other 2,099                        1,343                        756                            


   Total Operating Revenue: 168,756$                 166,494$                 2,263$                      


Operating Expense:


Expenses (Including Taxes) 75,679                      59,662                      16,017                      


Depreciation 68,333                      68,333                      -                            


   Total Operating Expense: 144,012$                 127,995$                 16,017$                   


     Operating Income 24,744$                   38,499$                   (13,754)$                  


Non-Operating Income 1,000                        1,883                        (883)                          


Non-Operating Expense (14,167)                    (14,167)                    -                            


      Net Income 11,577$                   26,215$                   (14,637)$                  


ELECTRIC


WATER


WASTEWATER


STOUGHTON UTILITIES


Detailed Monthly Income Statements


October 2016







Electric Water


Operating Income (Regulatory) 528,612$                 340,161$                 


Average Utility Plant in Service 24,456,603              13,369,060              


Average Accumulated Depreciation (12,387,469)            (4,700,161)               


Average Materials and Supplies 140,239                   31,032                      


Average Regulatory Liability (166,204)                  (256,714)                  


Average Customer Advances (329,743)                  -                            


Average Net Rate Base 11,713,427$            8,443,216$              


Actual Rate of Return 4.51% 4.03%


Authorized Rate of Return 5.10% 6.50%


STOUGHTON UTILITIES


Rate of Return


Year-to-Date October 2016







Electric October 2016


Unrestricted (5.67 months O&M) 6,843,566       


Bond Reserve 649,338          


Redemption Fund (P&I) 370,388          


Designated 2,241,018      


Total 10,104,310    


Water October 2016


Unrestricted (0.92 months O&M) 123,976          


Bond Reserve 244,677          


Redemption Fund (P&I) 210,921          
Designated 954,770         


Total 1,534,344      


Wastewater October 2016


Unrestricted (8.24 months O&M) 1,161,950       
DNR Replacement 1,290,019      


Redemption Fund (P&I) 263,209          
Designated 139,228         


Total 2,854,406      


STOUGHTON UTILITIES


Balance Sheets


 As of October 31, 2016


6,843,566 , 68%


649,338 , 6%


370,388 , 4%
2,241,018 , 22%


Electric Cash - October 2016


Unrestricted (5.67 months O&M) Bond Reserve Redemption Fund (P&I) Designated


123,976 , 8%


244,677 , 16%


210,921 , 14%954,770 , 62%


Water Cash - October 2016


Unrestricted (0.92 months O&M) Bond Reserve Redemption Fund (P&I) Designated


1,161,950 , 41%


1,290,019 , 45%


263,209 , 9%
139,228 , 5%


Wastewater Cash - October 2016


Unrestricted (8.24 months O&M) DNR Replacement Redemption Fund (P&I) Designated







Highlights-Comparison to prior month


I have no concerns with the utility's financial status.  The following items are


meant to illustrate significant changes in the financial summary from prior periods.


Financial results are as expected through November 2016.


Electric Summary:


 - Sales volume and sales in dollars remained relatively stable compared to October 


 - Purchased power volume and costs remained relatively stable compared to October 


 - Net income for the month of November was $17,453 compared to net income for the month 


   of October of $5,029


 - The increase in net income compared to October is mainly the result of an increase 


   in tax expense offset by by an increase in contributed income


Water Summary:


 - Sales volume decreased by 3% compared to October 


 - Net income for the month of November was ($27,581) compared to net income for the month 


   of October of $31,152


 - The decrease in net income compared to October is mainly the result of adjustments 


   made related to the allocation of previous work order costs offset by a decrease in the 


   estimated interest expense amount related to long-term debt


Wastewater Summary:


 - Sales volume decreased by 6% compared to October 


 - Net income for the month of November was $33,337 compared to net income for the month 


   of October of $11,577


 - The increase in net income compared to October is mainly the result of decreases made


   to the  estimated interest expense amount related to long-term debt


Submitted by: 


Jamin Friedl, CPA


Stoughton Utilities
Financial Summary


November 2016-YTD







Electric Water Wastewater Combined


Assets


Cash & Investments 9,962,261$              1,623,905$              2,924,830$              14,510,995$            


Customer A/R 1,379,883                202,699                   197,806                   1,780,388                


Other A/R 194,238                   39,462                      8,389                        242,088                   


Other Assets 1,108,825                603,359                   413,638                   2,125,822                


Plant in Service 25,191,997              13,294,233              27,704,694              66,190,924              


Accumulated Depreciation (13,041,998)             (4,993,592)               (10,234,996)             (28,270,586)             


Plant in Service - CIAC 3,028,286                7,118,233                -                            10,146,519              


Accumulated Depreciation-CIAC (1,505,215)               (1,887,154)               -                            (3,392,369)               


Construction Work in Progress 768,490                   821,225                   436,646                   2,026,361                


GASB 68 Deferred Outflow 158,933                   57,424                      62,601                      278,958                   


Total Assets 27,245,700$            16,879,794$            21,513,606$            65,639,101$            


Liabilities + Net Assets


Accounts Payable 103,029$                 64,060$                   45,129$                   212,218$                 


Payable to City of Stoughton 395,940                   358,901                   5,843                        760,683                   


Interest Accrued 59,398                      2,320                        10,209                      71,928                      


Other Liabilities 790,946                   94,320                      109,263                   994,529                   


Long-Term Debt 6,392,529                3,456,014                5,474,363                15,322,906              


Net Assets 19,502,794              12,903,789              15,868,383              48,274,966              


GASB 68 Deferred Inflow 1,063                        390                           418                           1,871                        


Total Liabilities + Net Assets 27,245,700$            16,879,794$            21,513,606$            65,639,101$            


STOUGHTON UTILITIES


Balance Sheets


 As of November, 30 2016







 Electric  Water  Wastewater  Total 


Operating Revenue:


Sales 13,644,150$            1,795,057$              1,831,964$              17,271,171$            


Other 131,698                    62,494                      32,608                      226,799                    


   Total Operating Revenue: 13,775,848$            1,857,551$              1,864,572$              17,497,970$            


Operating Expense:


Purchased Power 10,552,271              -                             -                             10,552,271              


Expenses (Including Taxes) 1,414,293                825,335                    845,493                    3,085,122                


PILOT 408,277                    350,225                    -                             758,502                    


Depreciation 870,287                    393,437                    751,663                    2,015,387                


   Total Operating Expense: 13,245,128$            1,568,997$              1,597,156$              16,411,282$            


     Operating Income 530,720$                 288,553$                 267,416$                 1,086,689$              


Non-Operating Income 530,239                    17,561                      17,233                      565,033                    


Non-Operating Expense (271,643)                  (111,037)                  (130,266)                  (512,946)                  


      Net Income 789,316$                 195,077$                 154,383$                 1,138,776$              


STOUGHTON UTILITIES


Year-to-Date Combined Income Statement


November 2016







 November  October 


 Change from Prior 


Month 


Operating Revenue:


Sales 1,164,018$              1,147,232$              16,786$                   


Other 5,463                        5,236                        226                            


   Total Operating Revenue: 1,169,481$              1,152,468$              17,013$                   


Operating Expense:


Purchased Power 899,881                   891,506                   8,375                        


Expenses (Including Taxes) 156,291                   126,018                   30,273                      


PILOT 32,083                      32,083                      -                            


Depreciation 79,117                      79,117                      -                            


   Total Operating Expense: 1,167,372$              1,128,724$              38,648$                   


     Operating Income 2,109$                      23,744$                   (21,635)$                  


Non-Operating Income 40,017                      13,749                      26,269                      


Non-Operating Expense (24,673)                    (32,464)                    7,791                        


      Net Income 17,453$                   5,029$                      12,425$                   


 November  October 


 Change from Prior 


Month 


Operating Revenue:


Sales 167,194$                 170,889$                 (3,696)$                    


Other 5,517                        5,636                        (119)                          


   Total Operating Revenue: 172,711$                 176,525$                 (3,815)$                    


Operating Expense:


Expenses (Including Taxes) 156,884                   68,304                      88,580                      


PILOT 31,667                      31,667                      -                            


Depreciation 35,767                      35,767                      -                            


   Total Operating Expense: 224,318$                 135,738$                 88,580$                   


     Operating Income (51,608)$                  40,787$                   (92,395)$                  


Non-Operating Income 1,507                        1,110                        398                            


Non-Operating Expense 22,519                      (10,745)                    33,264                      


      Net Income (27,581)$                  31,152$                   (58,733)$                  


 November  October 


 Change from Prior 


Month 


Operating Revenue:


Sales 159,659$                 166,658$                 (6,998)$                    


Other 2,838                        2,099                        739                            


   Total Operating Revenue: 162,498$                 168,756$                 (6,259)$                    


Operating Expense:


Expenses (Including Taxes) 73,295                      75,679                      (2,384)                       


Depreciation 68,333                      68,333                      -                            


   Total Operating Expense: 141,628$                 144,012$                 (2,384)$                    


     Operating Income 20,870$                   24,744$                   (3,874)$                    


Non-Operating Income 1,063                        1,000                        63                              


Non-Operating Expense 11,404                      (14,167)                    25,571                      


      Net Income 33,337$                   11,577$                   21,759$                   


ELECTRIC


WATER


WASTEWATER


STOUGHTON UTILITIES


Detailed Monthly Income Statements


November 2016







Electric Water


Operating Income (Regulatory) 530,720$                 288,553$                 


Average Utility Plant in Service 24,462,277              13,370,010              


Average Accumulated Depreciation (12,428,802)            (4,718,495)               


Average Materials and Supplies 144,993                   31,963                      


Average Regulatory Liability (166,204)                  (256,714)                  


Average Customer Advances (313,134)                  -                            


Average Net Rate Base 11,699,130$            8,426,764$              


Actual Rate of Return 4.54% 3.42%


Authorized Rate of Return 5.10% 6.50%


STOUGHTON UTILITIES


Rate of Return


Year-to-Date November 2016







Electric November 2016


Unrestricted (5.52 months O&M) 6,646,517            


Bond Reserve 649,338                


Redemption Fund (P&I) 425,388                


Designated 2,241,018           


Total 9,962,261           


Water November 2016


Unrestricted (1.28 months O&M) 182,537                


Bond Reserve 244,677                


Redemption Fund (P&I) 241,921                
Designated 954,770              


Total 1,623,905           


Wastewater November 2016


Unrestricted (8.15 months O&M) 1,183,309            
DNR Replacement 1,288,084           


Redemption Fund (P&I) 314,209                
Designated 139,228              


Total 2,924,830           


STOUGHTON UTILITIES


Balance Sheets


 As of November 30, 2016


6,646,517 , 67%


649,338 , 7%


425,388 , 4%


2,241,018 , 22%


Electric Cash - November 2016


Unrestricted (5.52 months O&M) Bond Reserve Redemption Fund (P&I) Designated


182,537 , 11%


244,677 , 15%


241,921 , 15%954,770 , 59%


Water Cash - November 2016


Unrestricted (1.28 months O&M) Bond Reserve Redemption Fund (P&I) Designated


1,183,309 , 40%


1,288,084 , 44%


314,209 , 11%
139,228 , 5%


Wastewater Cash - November 2016


Unrestricted (8.15 months O&M) DNR Replacement Redemption Fund (P&I) Designated







Total Sales Total KwH Total Sales Total KwH Demand Demand
2015 KwH Purchased 2015 2016 KwH Purchased 2016 Peak 2015 Peak 2016


January 12,594,914 13,197,588 12,434,016 12,616,291 25,272 23,731


February 11,912,881 12,163,003 11,135,691 11,327,318 24,035 21,504


March 11,384,590 11,661,431 10,581,639 10,809,478 22,103 20,668


April 9,887,620 10,154,400 9,868,197 10,133,681 18,465 18,242


May 10,297,762 10,568,931 10,526,624 10,568,931 20,689 20,689


June 11,558,844 11,808,858 12,461,104 12,841,397 26,106 29,731


July 13,140,994 13,526,962 13,984,983 14,358,016 29,891 32,378


August 12,706,650 13,009,294 14,391,132 14,795,716 29,672 32,246


September 11,834,817 12,251,986 11,540,407 11,943,908 30,132 29,604


October 10,375,840 10,702,183 10,639,943 10,889,183 19,008 20,386


November 10,456,556 10,621,804 10,599,512 10,805,303 20,163 20,685


December 11,426,513 11,690,102 12,721,333 12,711,905 21,352 24,559


TOTAL 137,577,981 141,356,542 140,884,581 143,801,127


Total Sales Total Gallons Total Sales Total Gallons Max Daily High Max Daily Highs
2015 Gallons Pumped 2015 2016 Gallons Pumped 2016 2015 2016


January 38,998,000 43,515,000 38,657,000 42,976,000 1,699,000 1,642,000


February 36,093,000 38,638,000 37,426,000 40,703,000 1,650,000 1,877,000


March 39,487,000 42,609,000 38,688,000 42,714,000 1,573,000 1,745,000


April 37,589,000 40,597,000 36,824,000 40,784,000 1,614,000 1,618,000


May 40,954,000 44,010,000 40,240,000 43,744,000 1,664,000 1,754,000


June 40,546,000 45,437,000 41,868,000 49,688,000 1,907,000 2,310,000


July 39,884,000 48,536,000 41,277,000 49,430,000 2,521,000 2,150,000


August 42,414,000 44,437,000 41,673,000 46,456,000 1,807,000 1,900,000


September 40,659,000 44,312,000 39,450,000 43,768,000 1,715,000 1,769,000


October 41,918,000 45,340,000 39,856,000 44,027,000 1,763,000 1,658,000


November 37,292,000 40,194,000 38,473,000 43,472,000 1,706,000 1,762,000


December 34,466,000 38,124,000 36,550,000 42,207,000 1,595,000 1,720,000


TOTAL 470,300,000 515,749,000 470,982,000 529,969,000


Total Sales Total Treated Total Sales Total Treated Precipitation Precipitation
2015 Gallons Gallons 2015 2016 Gallons Gallons 2016 2015 2016


January 25,781,000 33,133,000 26,559,000 29,125,000 0.72 0.55


February 24,242,000 28,758,000 23,957,000 26,577,000 0.70 0.64


March 26,064,000 34,089,000 25,438,000 30,379,000 0.47 4.07


April 24,758,000 34,145,000 25,232,000 30,654,000 3.00 1.96


May 27,077,000 36,688,000 27,412,000 30,376,000 4.61 3.04


June 27,122,000 36,798,000 26,768,000 29,147,000 4.09 5.64


July 27,276,000 30,094,000 27,893,000 31,955,000 3.61 4.77


August 28,406,000 26,947,000 26,931,000 32,189,000 3.04 5.80


September 26,326,000 28,737,000 25,044,000 31,080,000 5.39 4.34


October 26,570,000 27,898,000 25,965,000 31,129,000 1.74 3.72


November 24,922,000 28,581,000 24,467,000 29,212,000 5.64 2.80


December 24,549,000 31,749,000 26,060,000 29,725,000 3.51 1.99


TOTAL 313,093,000 377,617,000 311,726,000 361,548,000 36.52 39.32


2016 Statistical Worksheet


STOUGHTON  UTILITIES


Electic


Water


Wastewater







Total Sales Total KwH Total Sales Total KwH Demand Demand
2016 KwH Purchased 2016 2017 KwH Purchased 2017 Peak 2016 Peak 2017


January 12,434,016 12,616,291 12,364,247 12,812,545 23,731 23,662


February


March


April


May


June


July


August


September


October


November


December


TOTAL 12,434,016 12,616,291 12,364,247 12,812,545


Total Sales Total Gallons Total Sales Total Gallons Max Daily High Max Daily Highs
2016 Gallons Pumped 2016 2017 Gallons Pumped 2017 2016 2017


January 38,657,000 42,976,000 37,066,000 43,748,000 1,642,000 1,629,000


February


March


April


May


June


July


August


September


October


November


December


TOTAL 38,657,000 42,976,000 37,066,000 43,748,000


Total Sales Total Treated Total Sales Total Treated Precipitation Precipitation
2016 Gallons Gallons 2016 2017 Gallons Gallons 2017 2016 2017


January 26,559,000 29,125,000 25,177,000 34,377,000 0.55 2.43


February


March


April


May


June


July


August


September


October


November


December


TOTAL 26,559,000 29,125,000 25,177,000 34,377,000 0.55 2.43


2017 Statistical Worksheet


STOUGHTON  UTILITIES


Electic


Water


Wastewater








BANK RECONCILIATION FOR STOUGHTON CITY 1/4Pag
e:


03/08/2017 02:26 PM
User: LANA
DB: Stoughton


Bank 3 (PRIMARY CHECKING)
FROM 12/01/2016 TO 12/31/2016


(5,296,526.68)Less: Journal Entries/Other
(1,117,393.42)Less: Payroll Disbursements
(1,017,142.03)Less: Cash Disbursements
12,329,250.89 Add: Cash Receipts
2,102,045.43 Beginning GL Balance:


276.00 01/03/2017 Deposit ID: 1112
106.00 01/04/2017 Deposit ID: 1114
199.00 01/04/2017 Deposit ID: 1121


581.00 


7,000,234.19 Ending GL Balance:


0.00 Ending Bank Balance:


Add: Deposits in Transit


Less:  Outstanding Checks


Amount NameCheck Number   Check Date


AP Checks


150.00 FLORENCE REIF54063   03/03/2016
846.48 BRYAN MOLL54647   04/28/2016
40.00 MEGAN LEICK54975   06/09/2016
9.98 THEN AGAIN CONSIGNMENT54996   06/09/2016


145.00 DANA STADLER55365   07/21/2016
1.22 KATHERINE CLAWSON55770   09/01/2016
0.00 STEEL WHEELS55889   09/15/2016 VOIDED 10/03/2016
0.00 JAMES KWESKIN55916   09/22/2016 VOIDED 10/03/2016
0.00 GEOFF MULDAUR55920   09/22/2016 VOIDED 10/03/2016


175.00 WLECHA55938   09/22/2016
200.00 ELIZABETH BORSODI56006   10/06/2016


0.00 NICK LOWE56040   10/06/2016 VOIDED 11/04/2016
0.00 NICK LOWE56041   10/06/2016 VOIDED 11/04/2016
0.00 NICK LOWE56042   10/06/2016 VOIDED 11/04/2016


200.00 SARAH LOUISE NORVOLD56048   10/06/2016
838.00 FLYGT56085   10/13/2016
75.00 BADGER HISTORY GROUP56119   10/21/2016
0.00 DANE COUNTY TREASURER56124   10/21/2016 VOIDED 11/04/2016
0.00 HEATHER MASSE56144   10/21/2016 VOIDED 11/04/2016
0.00 JIM RICE56150   10/21/2016 VOIDED 11/04/2016


57.00 DAVID LECK56196   10/27/2016
0.00 CHUCK WAGON GOURMET MUSIC LLC56234   11/03/2016 VOIDED 12/05/2016


6,805.17 3 RIVERS BILLING INC56318   11/17/2016
56.00 DORIS BURDICK56337   11/17/2016


6,770.00 CLOUD CULT BAND, LLC56344   11/17/2016
60.00 MELISSA HUSTON56383   11/17/2016
0.00 THE FLATLANDERS UNLIMITED, LTD56452   11/17/2016 VOIDED 12/05/2016


480.00 WISC DEPT OF REVENUE - MADISON56469   11/17/2016







BANK RECONCILIATION FOR STOUGHTON CITY 2/4Pag
e:


03/08/2017 02:26 PM
User: LANA
DB: Stoughton


Bank 3 (PRIMARY CHECKING)
FROM 12/01/2016 TO 12/31/2016


Amount NameCheck Number   Check Date


AP Checks


0.00 THE PEOPLE BROTHERS BAND56530   12/01/2016 VOIDED 12/14/2016
150.00 LARRY ANDERSON56546   12/08/2016
85.00 KATHY LYONS56590   12/08/2016


903.74 ROYAL OAK & ASSOCIATES, INC56600   12/08/2016
0.00 DIANNE ANDERSON56696   12/15/2016 VOIDED 12/22/2016


179.00 EUGSTER FARM MARKET INC56708   12/15/2016
892.50 GAIL KLEIN56722   12/15/2016
57.00 RIDGEWOOD ORCHARD56738   12/15/2016
72.00 ROSENBAUM CRUSHING & EXCAVATIN56739   12/15/2016
50.00 ELIZA TYKSINSKI56751   12/15/2016
17.00 ANDY WATSON56757   12/15/2016


2,958.16 3 RIVERS BILLING INC56758   12/22/2016
47.95 CINTAS CORPORATION #44656765   12/22/2016


3,036.00 DANE COUNTY HIGHWAY & TRANSPOR56767   12/22/2016
1,619.12 DANE COUNTY TREASURER - LAND C56768   12/22/2016


124.00 DEPT OF REVENUE56772   12/22/2016
654.00 GREENSPIRE APARTMENTS56779   12/22/2016
21.28 PAM GRIGGS56781   12/22/2016


200.31 JOSHUA HOLT56784   12/22/2016
80.99 O'REILLY AUTO PARTS56792   12/22/2016
74.11 TRAVIS PHILLIPS56793   12/22/2016
20.30 PROFESSIONAL PLACEMENT SERVICES LLC56795   12/22/2016


979.00 QUALITY INN & SUITES56796   12/22/2016
16.01 MICHAEL OR JENNIFER ROOSE56801   12/22/2016
96.75 SHRED-IT56802   12/22/2016
39.77 SARA VAGEDES56815   12/22/2016


154.06 BRIAN OR DIANE WAGNER56818   12/22/2016
416.56 ALLIANT ENERGY/WP&L56820   12/29/2016
75.00 LARRY ANDERSON56821   12/29/2016
13.83 MICHAEL ANDERSON56822   12/29/2016


3,275.71 BAKER & TAYLOR BOOKS56823   12/29/2016
2,309.37 BAKER & TAYLOR BOOKS56824   12/29/2016


84.88 BAKER & TAYLOR BOOKS56825   12/29/2016
530.31 JOSEPH BAWLUSKI56826   12/29/2016
100.00 COLE BRUSEGAR56827   12/29/2016
130.23 COMPLETE OFFICE OF WISCONSIN56828   12/29/2016
148.00 DEAN CLINIC56829   12/29/2016
392.56 DEMCO INC56830   12/29/2016
52.75 CINDY ENGLUND56831   12/29/2016


200.00 KYLE FELDMANN56832   12/29/2016
114.63 BRIAN FIEBER56833   12/29/2016


9.73 ANTHONY FRISCH56834   12/29/2016
29.99 DERYLE GIILIGAN56835   12/29/2016
12.05 RAUL OR ELENA GOMEZ56836   12/29/2016







BANK RECONCILIATION FOR STOUGHTON CITY 3/4Pag
e:


03/08/2017 02:26 PM
User: LANA
DB: Stoughton


Bank 3 (PRIMARY CHECKING)
FROM 12/01/2016 TO 12/31/2016


Amount NameCheck Number   Check Date


AP Checks


51.69 GORDON FLESCH COMPANY INC56837   12/29/2016
79.00 GREATLAND56838   12/29/2016


537.40 HARTLAND LUBRICANTS & CHEMICALS56839   12/29/2016
150.00 AARON HILL56840   12/29/2016


7,908.77 INTERIOR INVESTMENTS OF MADISON  LL56841   12/29/2016
32.53 KRISTINE JACOBSON56842   12/29/2016
72.30 JDP LIVING TR56843   12/29/2016


594.69 KEVIN OR SARA KLUENDER56844   12/29/2016
3,625.86 KROGER56845   12/29/2016


50.00 ISABELLA LIPPI56846   12/29/2016
105.13 MATTHEW PAUL MALICKI56847   12/29/2016
234.94 MIDWEST TAPE56848   12/29/2016
151.00 MOUNT HOREB RECREATION DEPT56849   12/29/2016
897.10 NO SHORTS ELECTRIC LLC56850   12/29/2016


2,171.59 NORTH SHORE BANK FSB56851   12/29/2016
128.00 O'BRION AGENCY LLC56852   12/29/2016
52.95 OFFICE DEPOT56853   12/29/2016


218.50 LARRY E OLSON56854   12/29/2016
20.00 ED PASCHALL56855   12/29/2016
63.75 PENGUIN RANDOM HOUSE INC56856   12/29/2016
12.06 LARRY OR SANDRA RAMSDEN56857   12/29/2016


150.00 TIMOTHY W SCHMIDT56858   12/29/2016
6.64 KRISTINE SCHULTZ56859   12/29/2016


741.29 SCHUMACHER ELEVATOR CO INC56860   12/29/2016
15,403.08 STAFFORD ROSENBAUM LLP56861   12/29/2016


28.00 STOUGHTON HOSPITAL56862   12/29/2016
55.05 STOUGHTON LUMBER COMPANY56863   12/29/2016


10,363.80 SUMMIT CREDIT UNION56864   12/29/2016
13.00 SUN PRAIRIE PUBLIC LIBRARY56865   12/29/2016


3,339.18 JAMES OR DEBORAH TOFTE56866   12/29/2016
150.00 ELIZA TYKSINSKI56867   12/29/2016
53.70 UNIQUE MANAGEMENT SERVICES INC56868   12/29/2016


200.00 UPS STORE56869   12/29/2016
106.53 SUZANNE WALLS56870   12/29/2016
69.55 BENJAMIN WANGERIN56871   12/29/2016


200.00 WISC DEPT OF ADMIN-MIL56872   12/29/2016
9,601.60 US BANK CORPORATE PAYMENT SYSTEMS263   12/30/2016


11,215.43 US BANK CORPORATE PAYMENT SYSTEMS264   12/30/2016


AmountNameCheck Number   Check Date


Payroll Checks


56630   12/16/2016 VOIDED 12/16/2016
56631   12/16/2016 VOIDED 12/16/2016
56632   12/16/2016 VOIDED 12/16/2016
56633   12/16/2016 VOIDED 12/16/2016







BANK RECONCILIATION FOR STOUGHTON CITY 4/4Pag
e:


03/08/2017 02:26 PM
User: LANA
DB: Stoughton


Bank 3 (PRIMARY CHECKING)
FROM 12/01/2016 TO 12/31/2016


AmountNameCheck Number   Check Date


Payroll Checks


56634   12/16/2016 VOIDED 12/16/2016
56635   12/16/2016 VOIDED 12/16/2016
56636   12/16/2016 VOIDED 12/16/2016
56637   12/16/2016 VOIDED 12/16/2016
56638   12/16/2016 VOIDED 12/16/2016
56639   12/16/2016 VOIDED 12/16/2016
56640   12/16/2016 VOIDED 12/16/2016
56641   12/16/2016 VOIDED 12/16/2016
56642   12/16/2016 VOIDED 12/16/2016
56643   12/16/2016 VOIDED 12/16/2016
56644   12/16/2016 VOIDED 12/16/2016
56645   12/16/2016 VOIDED 12/16/2016
56646   12/16/2016 VOIDED 12/16/2016
56647   12/16/2016 VOIDED 12/16/2016
56648   12/16/2016 VOIDED 12/16/2016
56649   12/16/2016 VOIDED 12/16/2016
56650   12/16/2016 VOIDED 12/16/2016
56651   12/16/2016 VOIDED 12/16/2016
56652   12/16/2016 VOIDED 12/16/2016
56653   12/16/2016 VOIDED 12/16/2016
56654   12/16/2016 VOIDED 12/16/2016
56655   12/16/2016 VOIDED 12/16/2016
56656   12/16/2016 VOIDED 12/16/2016


1,588.50 FORTON, BEVERLY          56671   12/16/2016
280.00 KITTLESON, PEARL56675   12/16/2016
854.72 WISC PROFESSIONAL POLICE ASSOC          56689   12/16/2016


1,308.25 WISC SUPPORT COLLECTIONS          56873   12/30/2016
4,150.00 WELLS FARGO BANK N.A.          56874   12/30/2016


735.00 NORTH SHORE BANK FSB          56875   12/30/2016


115,103.08 Total - 143 Outstanding Checks:
(114,522.08)Adjusted Bank Balance


(7,114,756.27)Unreconciled Difference:


DATE:REVIEWED BY:







Approved by State Board of Accounts for the Stoughton City, 2014


FUND: ALL FUNDS
CASH AND INVESTMENT ACCOUNTS


CASH SUMMARY BY FUND FOR STOUGHTON CITY 1/2Page: 03/08/2017 02:27 PM
User: LANA
DB: Stoughton


FROM 12/01/2016 TO 12/31/2016


Ending
Balance


12/31/2016
Total 


Credits 
Total 


Debits 


Beginning
Balance


12/01/2016DescriptionFund


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 ALLOCATIONS FUND001


9,367,399.20 0.00 6,711,959.14 2,655,440.06 GENERAL FUND100


163,321.30 0.00 82.20 163,239.10 TID #3 FUND203


1,137,414.96 0.00 572.50 1,136,842.46 TID #4 FUND204


144,074.95 710,530.84 850,021.41 4,584.38 TID #5 FUND205


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 TID #6 FUND206


2,242,510.30 100,000.00 1,175.68 2,341,334.62 TID #7 FUND207


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 SAFETY BUILDING FUND212


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 LIBRARY FUND215


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 LANDFILL FUND216


186,716.63 0.00 93.98 186,622.65 LIBRARY SPECIAL GIFT FUND217


7,913.21 0.00 3.99 7,909.22 FIRE EQUIPMENT FUND221


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 RIVER TRAIL FUND222


251,107.65 0.00 126.41 250,981.24 PARK DEVELOPMENT FUND223


586,580.04 0.00 290.25 586,289.79 STORM SEWER FUND224


32,511.03 500.00 16.58 32,994.45 CEMETERY FUND225


172,697.17 0.00 86.90 172,610.27 EMS TRUCK FUND227


25,449.91 0.00 12.78 25,437.13 EMS EQUIPMENT FUND228


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 SENIOR CENTER WOOD SHOP229


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 TOWNSHIP OUTREACH FUND230


21,298.14 0.00 10.72 21,287.42 SENIORS IN NEED231


415,271.13 0.00 0.00 415,271.13 SENIOR CENTER SPECIAL FUND232


10,384.96 0.00 5.21 10,379.75 HOLIDAY FUND233


45,496.36 0.00 22.89 45,473.47 FOOD PANTRY234


1,401.90 0.00 0.64 1,401.26 LANDMARKS235


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 TREE COMMISSION236


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 STOUGHTON ARTS COUNCIL239


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 EMS TRUST FUND241


19,686.49 0.00 9.87 19,676.62 FIRE DEPT SPECIAL FUND242


692,364.05 0.00 18.03 692,346.02 FIRE PENSION FUND243


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 CDBG FUND244


153,829.46 1,023.52 50,983.78 103,869.20 OPERA HOUSE FUND245


5,636.81 4,000.00 4.71 9,632.10 OPERA HOUSE REPAIR FUND246


0.60 0.00 0.00 0.60 TOURISM FUND247


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 SICK LEAVE FUND250


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 HEALTH INSURANCE FUND251


20,255.17 0.00 10.19 20,244.98 ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT FUND260


33,946.42 0.00 17.10 33,929.32 REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY261


52,566.71 0.00 26.41 52,540.30 SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS270


3.68 0.00 0.00 3.68 DEBT SERVICE FUND300


1,485,043.14 1,000,000.00 1,203.42 2,483,839.72 CONSTRUCTION FUND400


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 2015 CAPITAL PROJECTS401







Approved by State Board of Accounts for the Stoughton City, 2014


FUND: ALL FUNDS
CASH AND INVESTMENT ACCOUNTS


CASH SUMMARY BY FUND FOR STOUGHTON CITY 2/2Page: 03/08/2017 02:27 PM
User: LANA
DB: Stoughton


FROM 12/01/2016 TO 12/31/2016


Ending
Balance


12/31/2016
Total 


Credits 
Total 


Debits 


Beginning
Balance


12/01/2016DescriptionFund


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 CAPITAL OUTLAY FUND410


58,591.55 0.00 29.49 58,562.06 BUILDING MAINTENANCE FUND411


125,021.59 125,000.00 121.67 249,899.92 EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT FUND412


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 EMS603


17,458,494.51 1,941,054.36 7,616,905.95 11,782,642.92 TOTAL - ALL FUNDS







RECEIPT REGISTER FOR CITY OF STOUGHTON 1/53Pag
e:


03/08/2017 02:28 PM
User: LANA
DB: Stoughton


Post Date from 12/01/2016 - 12/31/2016   Open And Completed Receipts


 AmountReceived OfWkstnCashierDateReceipt #   
  Distribution   Description


GASSEN, JEREMY JKARLA12/01/2016100019854   C
 84.00  DMV FEES 386UEN303


DEBORAH JO KREBSBACHLISA S12/01/2016100019855   C
 60.00  9901


PREFERRED TITLE LLCKIMDEBBIE12/01/2016100019856   C
 35.00  SPECIAL ASSESSMENT REQUEST907


RUHLAND, JAMIE MATHEWKARLA12/01/2016100019859   C
 116.50  DMV FEES TITLE & TRFR 705UBX303


VALE, JEREMY DMARY12/01/2016100019861   C
 237.50  DMV FEES 932YJW303


STOUGHTON WASTEWATERKIMDEBBIE12/01/2016100019862   C
 1,854.25  0000002774MR


STOUGHTON WATERKIMDEBBIE12/01/2016100019863   C
 1,843.40  0000002773MR


STOUGHTON ELECTRICKIMDEBBIE12/01/2016100019864   C
 4,577.90  0000002772MR


FORWARD DEVELOPMENT LLCKIMDEBBIE12/01/2016100019865   C
 16,229.77  0000002668MR
 1,522.14  0000002688MR
 840.73  0000002729MR


18,592.64 


STOUGHTON HARISTYLINGKIMDEBBIE12/01/2016100019866   C
 600.00  SENIOR CENTER ANNEX RENT9902


HARVEY DOERING, AMANDAMARY12/01/2016100019867   C
 100.00  BAILS/FINES PAYMENT PLAN301


HOWARD, BILLI JOMARY12/01/2016100019868   C
 94.00  DMV FEES 790SLU303


SEAMONSON, AARONMARY12/01/2016100019869   C
 94.00  DMV FEES 768XYL303


ALEXANDER, JASMINEMARY12/01/2016100019870   C
 20.00  BAILS/FINES PAYMENT PLAN301


TRAUTMAN, IANBARB12/01/2016100019871   C
 50.00  BAILS/FINES301


HOWELL, STACI CKARLA12/02/2016100019872   C
 94.00  DMV FEES 767XYL303


INKWORKS, INC.DWESTBY12/02/2016100019873   C
 375.00  MISC REVENUES1302


PARTNERS OF STOUGHTON HOSPITALDWESTBY12/02/2016100019874   C
 150.00  MISC REVENUES1302


IRVING, REBECCAPLANDESIRE12/02/2016100019875   C
 40.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT-ZONING405


BOUZEK, DAVEPLANDESIRE12/02/2016100019876   C
 40.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT-ZONING405


H.J. PERTZBORN PLUMBING & FIREPLANDESIRE12/02/2016100019877   C
 40.00  PLUMBING PERMIT403







RECEIPT REGISTER FOR CITY OF STOUGHTON 2/53Pag
e:


03/08/2017 02:28 PM
User: LANA
DB: Stoughton


Post Date from 12/01/2016 - 12/31/2016   Open And Completed Receipts


 AmountReceived OfWkstnCashierDateReceipt #   
  Distribution   Description


H.J. PERTZBORN PLUMBING & FIREPLANDESIRE12/02/2016100019878   C
 40.00  PLUMBING PERMIT403


TRUE CONSTRUCTION INC.PLANDESIRE12/02/2016100019879   C
 40.00  BUILDING PERMITS401


NEEDHAM, TRAVISPLANDESIRE12/02/2016100019880   C
 120.00  BUILDING PERMITS401
 40.00  ELECTRICAL PERMIT402
 40.00  PLUMBING PERMIT403


200.00 


THOMPSON, JOHNPLANDESIRE12/02/2016100019881   C
 40.00  PLUMBING PERMIT403
 40.00  BUILDING PERMITS401


80.00 


VOYSEY, JAMES OR BARBARAKARLA12/02/2016100019882   C
 439.00  DMV FEES   TITLE & 514ZJH303


TIM O'BRIEN HOMES OF MADISON LLCPLANDESIRE12/02/2016100019883   C
 188.90  ELECTRICAL PERMIT402
 151.12  HEATING PERMIT (HVAC)404
 188.90  PLUMBING PERMIT403
 130.00  BUILDING PERMITS-EROSION401
 40.00  BUILDING PERMITS-OCCUPANCY401
 415.58  BUILDING PERMITS-PLN RVW401
 40.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT-DILHR SL405
 40.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT-ZONING405
 1,082.87  IMPACT FEES - IMPROVEMENTS409


2,277.37 


ANON - FOOD PANTRYKELLI12/02/2016100019884   C
 190.00  FOOD PANTRY501


ALLIANT ENERGYKELLI12/02/2016100019885   C
 350.00  FOOD PANTRY501


SUMMERS, KATIEKARLA12/02/2016100019886   C
 20.00  BAILS/FINES PMT PLAN301


ANONYMOUS - FOOD PANTRYKELLI12/02/2016100019887   C
 20.00  FOOD PANTRY501


ALDIKELLI12/02/2016100019888   C
 1.89  FOOD PANTRY501


HALVERSON, JACKKELLI12/02/2016100019890   C
 300.00  FOOD PANTRY501


CORDRAY, JAMES & JOAN KELLI12/02/2016100019891   C
 50.00  FOOD PANTRY501


WALMARTKELLI12/02/2016100019892   C
 1,000.00  FOOD PANTRY501


LANGETIEG, DOROTHY KELLI12/02/2016100019893   C
 25.00  FOOD PANTRY501


JANNY, LOISKELLI12/02/2016100019894   C
 50.00  FOOD PANTRY501


AHN, LOUISEKELLI12/02/2016100019895   C







RECEIPT REGISTER FOR CITY OF STOUGHTON 3/53Pag
e:


03/08/2017 02:28 PM
User: LANA
DB: Stoughton


Post Date from 12/01/2016 - 12/31/2016   Open And Completed Receipts


 AmountReceived OfWkstnCashierDateReceipt #   
  Distribution   Description


 1,000.00  FOOD PANTRY501


LIGGETT, JOSEPHKELLI12/02/2016100019896   C
 25.00  FOOD PANTRY501


GALVAN, JEFTEPLANDESIRE12/02/2016100019897   C
 85.00  ELECTRICAL PERMIT402


WISCONSIN POWER & LIGHTFTDSKMARY D12/02/2016100019898   C
 350.00  HOLIDAY FUND503


THOMAS FENDRICKFTDSKMARY D12/02/2016100019899   C
 300.00  HOLIDAY FUND503


GAIL WOLLENZIENFTDSKMARY D12/02/2016100019900   C
 25.00  HOLIDAY FUND503


JOHN & CAROL PRITCHARDFTDSKMARY D12/02/2016100019901   C
 20.00  HOLIDAY FUND503


SUSAN NELSONFTDSKMARY D12/02/2016100019902   C
 25.00  HOLIDAY FUND503


NATIONAL MUTUAL BENEFIT BRANCH 400FTDSKMARY D12/02/2016100019903   C
 500.00  HOLIDAY FUND503


VEJVODA, ROBERTMARY12/02/2016100019904   C
 255.50  DMV FEES LV3491303


SOKOLIK, BRANDONMARY12/02/2016100019905   C
 94.00  DMV FEES 150TEY303


PHILLIPS, MARCYMARY12/02/2016100019906   C
 15.00  FINGER PRINTING307


BOLEY, JESSE TMARY12/02/2016100019907   C
 98.80  BAILS/FINES301


VEUM, JOHNMARY12/03/2016100019908   C
 54.00  DMV FEES 278973F303


ZWEEP PHILLIPMARY12/03/2016100019909   C
 103.00  DMV FEES 148979303


ZIMMERMAN, PHILLIPMARY12/03/2016100019910   C
 84.00  DMV FEES 626JHE303


BUCKHAM, SKYLAIRMARY12/03/2016100019911   C
 89.00  DMV FEES 481LYH303


GEISHIRT, CONNIEMARY12/04/2016100019912   C
 5.00  K-9 DONATIONS 2 COZIES308


COMMUNITY LIVING CONNECTIONS INC KIMDEBBIE12/05/2016100019913   C
 1,033.00  RENT1502


JOHNSON, DANIELBARBI12/05/2016100019914   C
 84.00  DMV FEES 641XCR RENEWAL303


CHISLOM, COREYBARBI12/05/2016100019915   C
 20.00  PARKING FINES 31936 302


LIBRARY DEPOSIT KIMDEBBIE12/05/2016100019916   C
 325.69  FINES702
 62.60  COPIES701
 101.05  217-DESIGNATED DONATION704







RECEIPT REGISTER FOR CITY OF STOUGHTON 4/53Pag
e:


03/08/2017 02:28 PM
User: LANA
DB: Stoughton


Post Date from 12/01/2016 - 12/31/2016   Open And Completed Receipts


 AmountReceived OfWkstnCashierDateReceipt #   
  Distribution   Description


489.34 


ANDERSON, ROBERTBARBI12/05/2016100019918   C
 25.00  BAILS/FINES PAYMENT301


ELLIS, LORIBARBI12/05/2016100019919   C
 94.00  DMV FEES 934RWG RENEWAL303


NOWIN, PATRICKLISALISA12/05/2016100019920   C
 7,837.00  FOOD PANTRY - MATCHING FUNDS501


400 SOUTH VAN BUREN LCLISALISA12/05/2016100019921   C
 25.00  ENC PER - DUMPSTER #181201
 51.50  0000002722MR


76.50 


ARONOFF, JOSHBARBI12/06/2016100019922   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 31652302


COUNTY OF DANE KIMDEBBIE12/06/2016100019923   C
 8,593.00  ELDERLY SERVICES 9901
 1,284.00  ELDERLY SERVICES 9901
 6,030.00  ELDERLY SERVICES 9901


15,907.00 


RESCH, LISA KIMDEBBIE12/06/2016100019924   C
 375.00  SENIOR CENTER ANNEX RENT9902


SMITH, ROLAND & JEANFTDSKJUDI12/06/2016100019925   C
 20.00  HOLIDAY FUND503


ALLEN KITCHEN & BATHPLANDESIRE12/06/2016100019926   C
 40.00  ELECTRICAL PERMIT402
 40.00  PLUMBING PERMIT403
 92.12  BUILDING PERMITS401


172.12 


HAUGEN EXCAVATING LLCPLANDESIRE12/06/2016100019927   C
 40.00  PLUMBING PERMIT403


LA CROSSE SIGN CO., INCPLANDESIRE12/06/2016100019928   C
 40.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT-ZONING405


R.A. HEATING & AIR CONDITIONING INC.PLANDESIRE12/06/2016100019929   C
 40.00  HEATING PERMIT (HVAC)404


BARBER, DANNBARBI12/06/2016100019930   C
 263.00  DMV FEES 515ZJH303


FOWLER, AARONBARBI12/06/2016100019931   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 31653302


VIETS, ROBERTBARBI12/06/2016100019932   C
 40.00  PARKING FINES302


PREFERRED TITLE LLC KIMDEBBIE12/06/2016100019933   C
 105.00  SPECIAL ASSESSMENT REQUEST907


PREFERRED TITLE LLC KIMDEBBIE12/06/2016100019934   C
 35.00  SPECIAL ASSESSMENT REQUEST907


ACTIVE NETWORKKIMDEBBIE12/06/2016100019935   C
 (2.01) INSTRUCTION FEES1003
 55.60  INSTRUCTION FEES1003







RECEIPT REGISTER FOR CITY OF STOUGHTON 5/53Pag
e:


03/08/2017 02:28 PM
User: LANA
DB: Stoughton


Post Date from 12/01/2016 - 12/31/2016   Open And Completed Receipts


 AmountReceived OfWkstnCashierDateReceipt #   
  Distribution   Description


 (97.00) INSTRUCTION FEES1003
 406.90  INSTRUCTION FEES1003
 15.50  PROGRAM FEES1001
 35.03  INSTRUCTION FEES1003
 (2.28) INSTRUCTION FEES1003
 147.60  PROGRAM FEES1001
 166.80  INSTRUCTION FEES1003
 (0.94) PARK RESERVATION1101


725.20 


HELSTAD, RICK KIMDEBBIE12/06/2016100019936   C
 1,430.36  0000002777MR


DELPIZZO, JOHN DLORI12/06/2016100019937   C
 10.00  FINGER PRINTING307


BOTHUM, PAULLORI12/06/2016100019938   C
 94.00  DMV FEES303


OCAIN, MARCIABARBI12/07/2016100019939   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 31668302


FRANE, RICKYBARBI12/07/2016100019940   C
 10.00  BAILS/FINES301


STAUFFACHER, TERRYBARBI12/07/2016100019941   C
 20.00  PARKING FINES 30579302


RONALD & INGA FLOWERFTDSKMARY D12/07/2016100019942   C
 25.00  HOLIDAY FUND503


GANDER, BROOKEBARBI12/07/2016100019943   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 31664 302


CHRIST LUTHERAN CHURCHFTDSKMARY D12/07/2016100019944   C
 595.00  HOLIDAY FUND503


MATZ, KEVINBARBI12/07/2016100019945   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 31673302


LAYTON, PAMELATRACIE12/07/2016100019946   C
 124.00  BAILS/FINES C946882-6301


FLOOD, PRISCILLALISALISA12/08/2016100019947   C
 30.00  2017 CALENDAR SALE9911


RADECKE PROPERTY SERVICESLISALISA12/08/2016100019948   C
 169.12  SIGN DAMAGE ON KINGS LYNN9901


STRANDLIE, ROGERLISALISA12/08/2016100019949   C
 936.89  REPAYMENT OF LONGEVITY9901


COUNTY OF DANELISALISA12/08/2016100019950   C
 233.53  DELINQUENT SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS9905
 79.39  ASSESSMENT INTEREST910


312.92 


STATE OF WILISALISA12/08/2016100019951   C
 1,052.64  BOTS ENFORCEMENT/SAFETY GRANT9901


MCPHEE, JEFFERY JKARLA12/08/2016100019952   C
 187.00  BAILS/FINES C7806J8VNG301


GREEN, KENDALL MKARLA12/08/2016100019953   C
 50.00  BAILS/FINES PMT PLAN301







RECEIPT REGISTER FOR CITY OF STOUGHTON 6/53Pag
e:


03/08/2017 02:28 PM
User: LANA
DB: Stoughton


Post Date from 12/01/2016 - 12/31/2016   Open And Completed Receipts


 AmountReceived OfWkstnCashierDateReceipt #   
  Distribution   Description


STOUGHTON CONSERVATION CLUB KIMDEBBIE12/08/2016100019954   C
 200.00  DONATION 9901


MACHIAN, GEORGE & JUDITHKIMDEBBIE12/08/2016100019955   C
 10.00  DONATION9901


KANE, RYANKIMDEBBIE12/08/2016100019956   C
 10.00  DONATION 9901


COTTAGE GROVE CHAMBER OF COMMERCE KIMDEBBIE12/08/2016100019957   C
 50.00  DONATION 9901


PORTER, ANDREWKIMDEBBIE12/08/2016100019958   C
 25.00  DONATION9901


KLITZKE, MR/MRS MARVINFTDSKJUDI12/08/2016100019959   C
 100.00  HOLIDAY FUND503


MILES, RICKIA NKARLA12/08/2016100019960   C
 186.00  DMV FEES TITLE & 516ZJH303


CHRIST LUTHERAN CHURCHFTDSKJUDI12/08/2016100019961   C
 125.00  HOLIDAY FUND503


PRINCE, BENJAMIN AKARLA12/08/2016100019962   C
 15.00  FINGER PRINTING307


CLERKLANA12/08/2016100019963   C
 10.00  MISC TAXABLE SALES9911


METROPOLITAN REPORTING BUREAUKARLA12/08/2016100019964   C
 1.00  MISC REVENUES 16-406966304


METROPOLITAN REPORTING BUREAUKARLA12/08/2016100019965   C
 1.00  MISC REVENUES LJSJBG2304


KLAWITTER, MICHEALKARLA12/08/2016100019966   C
 25.00  BAILS/FINES PMT PLAN301


HARVEST FARMS, LLCPLANDESIRE12/08/2016100019967   C
 1,082.87  IMPACT FEES - IMPROVEMENTS- 9409
 1,082.87  IMPACT FEES - IMPROVEMENTS-11409
 1,082.87  IMPACT FEES - IMPROVEMENTS-12409
 1,082.87  IMPACT FEES - IMPROVEMENTS103409


4,331.48 


BOYES, NANCY EKARLA12/08/2016100019968   C
 84.00  DMV FEES 623USP303
 94.00  DMV FEES 714YFT303


178.00 


GERBER, JAMESPLANDESIRE12/08/2016100019969   C
 40.00  BUILDING PERMITS401


ARNOLD, KARONNAPLANDESIRE12/08/2016100019970   C
 40.00  BUILDING PERMITS401
 40.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT-ZONING405


80.00 


ABLE SERVICE, LLCPLANDESIRE12/08/2016100019971   C
 40.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT-ZONING405


MIKE DANIELS INSURANCE AGENCY LLCPLANDESIRE12/08/2016100019972   C







RECEIPT REGISTER FOR CITY OF STOUGHTON 7/53Pag
e:


03/08/2017 02:28 PM
User: LANA
DB: Stoughton


Post Date from 12/01/2016 - 12/31/2016   Open And Completed Receipts


 AmountReceived OfWkstnCashierDateReceipt #   
  Distribution   Description


 40.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT-ZONING405


WALLER, ALANPLANDESIRE12/08/2016100019973   C
 80.00  BUILDING PERMITS401


GUILD RODEFELD, RHEAMARY12/08/2016100019974   C
 94.00  DMV FEES 255MCS303


CHRISTOPHER, CAROLMARY12/08/2016100019975   C
 99.00  DMV FEES QTNTIME303


UNIVERSAL FOUNDATION INC MARY12/08/2016100019976   C
 200.00  SHOP WITH COP309


SMITHSON, AMANDAMARY12/08/2016100019977   C
 191.50  DMV FEES 517ZJH303


SMITHSON, AMANDAMARY12/08/2016100019978   C
 94.00  DMV FEES 389GFF303


NORLAND, DANIELMARY12/08/2016100019979   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 31669302


ELLINGWORTH, CHASTINYMARY12/08/2016100019980   C
 98.80  BAILS/FINES301


ALEXANDER, JOSEPHMARY12/08/2016100019981   C
 5.00  FINGER PRINTING307


ALEXANDER, JULIEMARY12/08/2016100019982   C
 5.00  FINGER PRINTING307


MILZ, JOSEPHMARY12/08/2016100019983   C
 173.00  DMV FEES LV3492303


BAUMGARTNER, BRIAN LKARLA12/09/2016100019984   C
 103.00  DMV FEES LV8581303
 3.00  K-9 DONATIONS CAN KOOZE308


106.00 


VIKE, TONYA JOKARLA12/09/2016100019985   C
 20.00  PARKING FINES 31852302


THERESA SCHILD-WEHRMANLISA S12/09/2016100019986   C
 55.00  9901


ZIMMERMANLISA H12/09/2016100019987   C
 68.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


HOWARD, GLENNLISA H12/09/2016100019988   C
 15.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


ANDERSON, CLARENCELISA H12/09/2016100019989   C
 25.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


GJERMOLISA H12/09/2016100019990   C
 10.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


RICHMONDLISA H12/09/2016100019991   C
 54.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


JOHNSON, HELENLISA H12/09/2016100019992   C
 38.75  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


GJERMOLISA H12/09/2016100019993   C
 15.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801







RECEIPT REGISTER FOR CITY OF STOUGHTON 8/53Pag
e:


03/08/2017 02:28 PM
User: LANA
DB: Stoughton


Post Date from 12/01/2016 - 12/31/2016   Open And Completed Receipts


 AmountReceived OfWkstnCashierDateReceipt #   
  Distribution   Description


MYKLEJORDLISA H12/09/2016100019994   C
 50.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


NELSON, PAULLISA H12/09/2016100019995   C
 22.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


AABERG, ELEANORELISA H12/09/2016100019996   C
 142.50  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


AABERG, KAYLISA H12/09/2016100019997   C
 45.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


HOWARD, GLENNLISA H12/09/2016100019998   C
 25.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


MASON, CHARLESLISA H12/09/2016100019999   C
 35.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


MASON, CHARLESLISA H12/09/2016100020000   C
 35.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


ZEIMETLISA H12/09/2016100020001   C
 80.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


BLUELLISA H12/09/2016100020002   C
 32.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


WILLIAMSLISA H12/09/2016100020003   C
 100.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


ANDERSON, CLARENCELISA H12/09/2016100020004   C
 25.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


JOHNSON, DELORESLISA H12/09/2016100020005   C
 12.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


LARSEN, NEALLISA H12/09/2016100020006   C
 15.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


LARSEN, NEALLISA H12/09/2016100020007   C
 28.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


JOHNSON, DELORESLISA H12/09/2016100020008   C
 18.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


JOHNSON, WENDYLISA H12/09/2016100020009   C
 72.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


COUNTY OF DANELISA H12/09/2016100020010   C
 369.84  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


CASH DONATIONSLISA H12/09/2016100020011   C
 394.50  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


CAROL BENTZLERLISA S12/09/2016100020012   C
 150.00  9901


HOOVER, KYLEKARLA12/09/2016100020013   C
 103.00  DMV FEES  HX8144303


MASON, CHARLES, LKARLA12/09/2016100020014   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 30581302


DAY CARE - 214 N FORRESTKELLI12/09/2016100020015   C
 254.10  FOOD PANTRY501


SHENKENBERG, LEITHAKELLI12/09/2016100020016   C
 50.00  FOOD PANTRY501







RECEIPT REGISTER FOR CITY OF STOUGHTON 9/53Pag
e:


03/08/2017 02:28 PM
User: LANA
DB: Stoughton


Post Date from 12/01/2016 - 12/31/2016   Open And Completed Receipts


 AmountReceived OfWkstnCashierDateReceipt #   
  Distribution   Description


ARMSTRONG, HERB & RUTHKELLI12/09/2016100020017   C
 25.00  FOOD PANTRY501


HAGEN, RICHARDKELLI12/09/2016100020018   C
 50.00  FOOD PANTRY501


HANSON ELECTRONICSKELLI12/09/2016100020019   C
 250.00  FOOD PANTRY501


HEINRICHS, EILEENKELLI12/09/2016100020020   C
 10.00  FOOD PANTRY501


THOMPSON, GLADYSKELLI12/09/2016100020021   C
 50.00  FOOD PANTRY501


OLSON, DONNA LKELLI12/09/2016100020022   C
 500.00  FOOD PANTRY501


LAPIDAKIS, JERRY & KARENKELLI12/09/2016100020023   C
 30.00  FOOD PANTRY501


KIWANIS CLUBKELLI12/09/2016100020024   C
 53.00  FOOD PANTRY501


ZELM CHIROPRACTICKELLI12/09/2016100020025   C
 865.00  FOOD PANTRY501


ORDER OF EASTERN STAR - OREGON CHAPTKELLI12/09/2016100020026   C
 200.00  FOOD PANTRY501


WACKER, LISBETHKELLI12/09/2016100020027   C
 216.00  FOOD PANTRY501


HAUGEN, JOHN & GWENKELLI12/09/2016100020028   C
 100.00  FOOD PANTRY501


ELVEGROG, NANCYKELLI12/09/2016100020029   C
 100.00  FOOD PANTRY501


CHRIST LUTHERAN CHURCHKELLI12/09/2016100020030   C
 200.00  FOOD PANTRY501


KILEN, THOMAS & NANCYKELLI12/09/2016100020031   C
 300.00  FOOD PANTRY501


ONCKEN, KARENKELLI12/09/2016100020032   C
 100.00  FOOD PANTRY501


MULLEN, THOMASKELLI12/09/2016100020033   C
 50.00  FOOD PANTRY501


ROYAL NEIGHBORS OF AMERICAKELLI12/09/2016100020034   C
 100.00  FOOD PANTRY501


TOWN OF DUNKIRKKIMDEBBIE12/09/2016100020035   C
 9,000.00  DONATIONS 9901
 2,000.00  GRANTS9901


11,000.00 


JACKSON, STEPHENKELLI12/09/2016100020036   C
 100.00  FOOD PANTRY501


FRIDLEY, KATHLEEN S KELLI12/09/2016100020037   C
 200.00  FOOD PANTRY501


STRUZYNSKI, KURT AKARLA12/09/2016100020038   C







RECEIPT REGISTER FOR CITY OF STOUGHTON 10/53Pag
e:


03/08/2017 02:28 PM
User: LANA
DB: Stoughton


Post Date from 12/01/2016 - 12/31/2016   Open And Completed Receipts


 AmountReceived OfWkstnCashierDateReceipt #   
  Distribution   Description


 94.00  DMV FEES 698XZJ303


ROGGENDORF, MIKAYLA JKARLA12/09/2016100020039   C
 174.40  BAILS/FINES C946892-2301


DESULME, KINGSTONKARLA12/09/2016100020040   C
 20.00  PARKING FINES 31960\302


MUELLER, DEREK EKARLA12/09/2016100020041   C
 98.80  BAILS/FINES D593247-4301


CINDY12/09/2016100020042   C
 115.00  KITCHEN FUND809


BAUMBACHCINDY12/09/2016100020043   C
 16.00  KITCHEN FUND809


WINECKECINDY12/09/2016100020044   C
 16.00  KITCHEN FUND809


TONECINDY12/09/2016100020045   C
 10.00  KITCHEN FUND809


JOYCECINDY12/09/2016100020046   C
 50.00  SPECIAL GIFT FUND807


CINDY12/09/2016100020047   C
 10.00  LOAN CLOSET806


CINDY12/09/2016100020048   C
 14.00  DONATIONS803


CINDY12/09/2016100020049   C
 20.00  DONATIONS803


CINDY12/09/2016100020050   C
 117.00  DONATIONS803


BOGARTCINDY12/09/2016100020051   C
 20.00  DONATIONS803


BEALLCINDY12/09/2016100020052   C
 200.00  DONATIONS803


SWENSONCINDY12/09/2016100020053   C
 20.00  DONATIONS803


HALSEYCINDY12/09/2016100020054   C
 50.00  DONATIONS803


SELSORCINDY12/09/2016100020055   C
 250.00  DONATIONS803


RAYMONDCINDY12/09/2016100020056   C
 10.00  NEWSLETTER804


CINDY12/09/2016100020057   C
 20.00  CRAFT SALES805


ONDERCINDY12/09/2016100020058   C
 16.00  CRAFT SALES805


GULLIXSONCINDY12/09/2016100020059   C
 20.00  CRAFT SALES805


VANDRELLCINDY12/09/2016100020060   C
 25.00  SENIORS IN NEED502







RECEIPT REGISTER FOR CITY OF STOUGHTON 11/53Pag
e:


03/08/2017 02:28 PM
User: LANA
DB: Stoughton


Post Date from 12/01/2016 - 12/31/2016   Open And Completed Receipts


 AmountReceived OfWkstnCashierDateReceipt #   
  Distribution   Description


SIERCINDY12/09/2016100020061   C
 50.00  SENIORS IN NEED502


HAUGECINDY12/09/2016100020062   C
 100.00  SENIORS IN NEED502


CINDY12/09/2016100020063   C
 395.00  KITCHEN FUND809


LONG, ALLANCLERKLANA12/09/2016100020064   C
 50.00  HOLIDAY FUND503


ACKERMAN, CHERYLMARY12/09/2016100020065   C
 124.00  BAILS/FINES C950253-3301


PLUMLEY, ZACHARYMARY12/09/2016100020066   C
 150.00  BAILS/FINES PAYMENT PLAN301


WALKER, NAOMI VKARLA12/10/2016100020067   C
 140.00  BAILS/FINES301


SHOP WITH A COP ANONYMOUSKARLA12/10/2016100020068   C
 70.30  SHOP WITH COP309


NEBEL, EMMARUTHKARLA12/11/2016100020069   C
 30.00  31546302


LAURETIC, BRIANTRACIE12/11/2016100020070   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES302


BENNETT, MIRANDATRACIE12/11/2016100020071   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 32078302
 30.00  PARKING FINES 32077302


60.00 


THOMAS, SUSANKARLA12/12/2016100020072   C
 40.00  PARKING FINES 31890302


KVALHEIM, MARK HKARLA12/12/2016100020073   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 29641302


FOSDAL BAKERYKARLA12/12/2016100020074   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 32084302


FORSYTHE, DDERRICK LKARLA12/12/2016100020075   C
 20.00  PARKING FINES 31962302
 30.00  PARKING FINES 31148302


50.00 


HOLZMANN, NICOLE MKARLA12/12/2016100020076   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 30868302


RUSCHLOW, SARAH MKARLA12/12/2016100020077   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES  32107302


BALSAMO, DAVID JKARLA12/12/2016100020078   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 31177302


WESTPHALAND COMPANY INCKARLA12/12/2016100020079   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 32117302


HERNANDEZ, ANTONIAKARLA12/12/2016100020080   C
 40.00  PARKING FINES 31955302


VAUGHN, KEVINKARLA12/12/2016100020081   C







RECEIPT REGISTER FOR CITY OF STOUGHTON 12/53Pag
e:


03/08/2017 02:28 PM
User: LANA
DB: Stoughton


Post Date from 12/01/2016 - 12/31/2016   Open And Completed Receipts


 AmountReceived OfWkstnCashierDateReceipt #   
  Distribution   Description


 30.00  PARKING FINES 31659302


STOUGHTON HOSPITALDWESTBY12/12/2016100020082   C
 300.00  MISC REVENUES1302


MADISON METROPOLITAN SCHOOL DISTRICTDWESTBY12/12/2016100020083   C
 1,000.00  MISC RECIEPTS1399


MCCARTHY JON PMARY12/12/2016100020084   C
 94.00  DMV FEES 340RAK303


KARWOWSKI KENNETHMARY12/12/2016100020085   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 30867302


BRS FINANCIAL SERVICES KIMDEBBIE12/12/2016100020086   C
 525.00  SENIOR CENTER ANNEX RENT9902


PREFERRED TITLE LLCKIMDEBBIE12/12/2016100020087   C
 70.00  SPECIAL ASSESSMENT REQUEST907


POHLON, KEVINMARY12/12/2016100020088   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 32085302


BLANCHARD ELIZABETHMARY12/12/2016100020089   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 32101302


TACHICK, MICHAELMARY12/12/2016100020090   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 30847302


GAHNG, TAEMARY12/12/2016100020091   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 30862302


ANDERSON, JAMIMARY12/12/2016100020092   C
 100.00  DMV FEES LV3483303


HASSOUN JASONMARY12/12/2016100020093   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 32053302


STEPHENS, LARRYMARY12/12/2016100020094   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 31671302


ZIMMICK, CONNORBARBI12/13/2016100020095   C
 98.00  BAILS/FINES C947185-1301


FROSCH, ZACHARYBARBI12/13/2016100020096   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 30856302


ROSE, CATHERINEBARBI12/13/2016100020097   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 31666302


HERMANSON, NORMANBARBI12/13/2016100020098   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 32105302


HOVER, KYLEBARBI12/13/2016100020099   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 32123302


SULLIVAN, LAURIEFTDSKJUDI12/13/2016100020100   C
 12.00  27951DOG


OTTESON, JEFFFTDSKJUDI12/13/2016100020101   C
 12.00  27952DOG


HAMACHER, MATTHEWBARBI12/13/2016100020102   C
 310.50  DMV FEES LV3493 REGISTRATION303


DANE COUNTY EMS ASSOCIATIONLISALISA12/13/2016100020103   C
 44.00  REIMBURSE FOR PROTOCOLS PRINT9901







RECEIPT REGISTER FOR CITY OF STOUGHTON 13/53Pag
e:


03/08/2017 02:28 PM
User: LANA
DB: Stoughton


Post Date from 12/01/2016 - 12/31/2016   Open And Completed Receipts


 AmountReceived OfWkstnCashierDateReceipt #   
  Distribution   Description


SUMMIT COMPANIESLISALISA12/13/2016100020104   C
 100.00  DUPLICATE PAYMENT #11125179901


WILSON, TIM & KATHYFTDSKMARY D12/13/2016100020105   C
 12.00  27953DOG
 12.00  27954DOG


24.00 


JANDREY, CYRIL & AUDREYFTDSKMARY D12/13/2016100020106   C
 12.00  27955DOG


JACKSON, DENNISBARBI12/13/2016100020107   C
 25.00  BAILS/FINES PAYMENT301


BRADY, JOANNFTDSKMARY D12/13/2016100020108   C
 12.00  27956DOG


KINGSLEY, RONALDFTDSKMARY D12/13/2016100020109   C
 12.00  27957DOG


HOLZMANN, JEANINEFTDSKMARY D12/13/2016100020110   C
 12.00  27958DOG


CITIES & VILLAGES MUTAL INSURANCE COLISALISA12/13/2016100020111   C
 39,120.00  WORKERS COMP DIVIDEND9901


HOLZMANN, JEANINEFTDSKMARY D12/13/2016100020112   C
 32.00  COUNTY DOG PARK LICENSE9914


DURAN, JOANIELORI12/13/2016100020113   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES302


GARSKE, COLLEEN LORI12/13/2016100020114   C
 466.50  DMV FEES303


KREITLING, BENLORI12/13/2016100020115   C
 40.00  PARKING FINES302


SIMPSON, FRANKLORI12/13/2016100020116   C
 94.00  DMV FEES303


SIMPSON, FRANKLORI12/13/2016100020117   C
 84.00  DMV FEES303


B & G FOODS INCTRACIE12/13/2016100020118   C
 400.00  SHOP WITH COP309


PHIFER, BENJAMINBARBI12/14/2016100020119   C
 20.00  PARKING FINES 31564 302


MANTHE, KARL KIMDEBBIE12/14/2016100020120   C
 1,430.36  0000002776MR


GENERATION TITLE COKIMDEBBIE12/14/2016100020121   C
 35.00  SPECIAL ASSESSMENT REQUEST907


PREFERRED TITLEKIMDEBBIE12/14/2016100020122   C
 35.00  SPECIAL ASSESSMENT REQUEST907


SWENSON, GERALDBARBI12/14/2016100020123   C
 30.00  PARKINGFINES 32089302


PREFERRED TITLEKIMDEBBIE12/14/2016100020124   C
 105.00  SPECIAL ASSESSMENT REQUEST907


BRILL, GARYBARBI12/14/2016100020125   C







RECEIPT REGISTER FOR CITY OF STOUGHTON 14/53Pag
e:


03/08/2017 02:28 PM
User: LANA
DB: Stoughton


Post Date from 12/01/2016 - 12/31/2016   Open And Completed Receipts


 AmountReceived OfWkstnCashierDateReceipt #   
  Distribution   Description


 30.00  PARKING FINES 31662 302


HEILMANN, LAURENBARBI12/14/2016100020126   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 31663302


SWANSON, LEE & KATHLEENFTDSKMARY D12/14/2016100020127   C
 100.00  HOLIDAY FUND503


CHECK, KEVINBARBI12/14/2016100020128   C
 98.80  BAILS/FINES PAYMENT301


VANDENHEUVEL, RYANBARBI12/14/2016100020129   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 32057302


ANDERSON, DANABARBI12/14/2016100020130   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 31547302


SKARE, WILLIAMBARBI12/14/2016100020131   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 31176302


WEBSTER, TANIKABARBI12/14/2016100020132   C
 20.00  PARKING FINES 31959302


OLSON, LISAVICKIE12/14/2016100020133   C
 25.00  DUMPSTER @ 134 S PAGE ST1201


GUNDERSON FUNERAL HOMEVICKIE12/14/2016100020134   C
 875.00  HVAM, BARB BURIAL1203


ELECTRONIC RECYCLINGVICKIE12/14/2016100020135   C
 320.00  TV'S & MONITOR1205


OPERA HOUSE DEPOSIT KIMDEBBIE12/14/2016100020136   C
 120.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 660.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 20.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 132.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 280.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 176.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 495.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 175.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 1,425.00  GIFT CARDS PURCHASED 9901
 330.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 50.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 50.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 440.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 400.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 96.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 180.00  TICKET SALES601
 490.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 675.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 75.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 525.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 192.50  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 384.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 350.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 150.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 75.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 150.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 200.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 195.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 119.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 922.00  TICKET SALES601
 70.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607







RECEIPT REGISTER FOR CITY OF STOUGHTON 15/53Pag
e:


03/08/2017 02:28 PM
User: LANA
DB: Stoughton


Post Date from 12/01/2016 - 12/31/2016   Open And Completed Receipts


 AmountReceived OfWkstnCashierDateReceipt #   
  Distribution   Description


 480.00  TICKET SALES601
 88.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 264.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 396.00  TICKET SALES601
 503.86  SALES TAX 9901
 850.00  CONV FEES 9901
 30.00  DONATIONS 9901
 (163.06) GIFT CARDS/CERTIFICATES 9901
 95.08  CUSTOMER CREDIT 9901


12,145.38 


WILLIAMS, EMILYFTDSKMARY D12/14/2016100020137   C
 32.00  COUNTY DOG PARK LICENSE9914
 12.00  27959DOG


44.00 


REIERSON, SAMUELCANDY12/14/2016100020138   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES302


HACK, LELANDFTDSKMARY D12/14/2016100020139   C
 12.00  27960DOG


GAUS, MARK ACANDY12/14/2016100020140   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES302


CLASSIC CUSTOM HOMESCANDY12/14/2016100020141   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES302


METROPOWER INCCANDY12/14/2016100020142   C
 30.00  DMV FEES303


KLEIN, MARKCANDY12/14/2016100020143   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES302


GIBBS, REIDCANDY12/14/2016100020144   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES302


HARDING, DEAN TCANDY12/14/2016100020145   C
 98.80  BAILS/FINES301


MEDINA-HERNANDEZ, JULIACANDY12/14/2016100020146   C
 100.00  BAILS/FINES301


MEDINA-HERNANDEZ, JULIACANDY12/14/2016100020147   C
 24.00  BAILS/FINES301


BIRD, KATHRYNTRACIE12/15/2016100020148   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 31014302


MCGUIRE, GREGVICKIE12/15/2016100020149   C
 25.00  # 16 DUMPSTER1201


REMICK, ELZABETH MARIEKARLA12/15/2016100020150   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 31144302


COON BRIAN EKARLA12/15/2016100020151   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 31145302
 30.00  PARKING FINES 31146302


60.00 


RHODE, DONALDFTDSKJUDI12/15/2016100020152   C
 12.00  27961DOG







RECEIPT REGISTER FOR CITY OF STOUGHTON 16/53Pag
e:


03/08/2017 02:28 PM
User: LANA
DB: Stoughton


Post Date from 12/01/2016 - 12/31/2016   Open And Completed Receipts


 AmountReceived OfWkstnCashierDateReceipt #   
  Distribution   Description


LARSEN, NEALLISA H12/15/2016100020153   C
 15.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


TYLERLISA H12/15/2016100020154   C
 5.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


KNIPFERLISA H12/15/2016100020155   C
 25.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


MCNABBLISA H12/15/2016100020156   C
 128.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


JOHNSON, DELORESLISA H12/15/2016100020157   C
 18.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


MAYBERRYLISA H12/15/2016100020158   C
 48.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


EDDINGSAASLISA H12/15/2016100020159   C
 20.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


PALUCHLISA H12/15/2016100020160   C
 60.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


GULLICKSONLISA H12/15/2016100020161   C
 20.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


BLUELLISA H12/15/2016100020162   C
 32.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


JOHNSON, HELENLISA H12/15/2016100020163   C
 38.75  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


NESBITTLISA H12/15/2016100020164   C
 50.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


NELSON, PAULLISA H12/15/2016100020165   C
 21.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


SKAARLISA H12/15/2016100020166   C
 40.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


MYKLEJORDLISA H12/15/2016100020167   C
 50.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


MASONLISA H12/15/2016100020168   C
 35.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


HOWARD, GLENNLISA H12/15/2016100020169   C
 25.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


ANDERSON, CLARENCELISA H12/15/2016100020170   C
 25.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


CARTERLISA H12/15/2016100020171   C
 150.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


VIKELISA H12/15/2016100020172   C
 65.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


CASH DONATIONSLISA H12/15/2016100020173   C
 215.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


CINDY12/15/2016100020174   C
 54.00  KITCHEN FUND809


CINDY12/15/2016100020175   C
 10.00  LOAN CLOSET806







RECEIPT REGISTER FOR CITY OF STOUGHTON 17/53Pag
e:


03/08/2017 02:28 PM
User: LANA
DB: Stoughton


Post Date from 12/01/2016 - 12/31/2016   Open And Completed Receipts


 AmountReceived OfWkstnCashierDateReceipt #   
  Distribution   Description


JOHNSONCINDY12/15/2016100020176   C
 100.00  DONATIONS803


BENNETTCINDY12/15/2016100020177   C
 200.00  DONATIONS803


WILBERGCINDY12/15/2016100020178   C
 50.00  DONATIONS803


SNORKCINDY12/15/2016100020179   C
 100.00  DONATIONS803


CLCCINDY12/15/2016100020180   C
 25.00  DONATIONS803


SCHEELCINDY12/15/2016100020181   C
 9.00  NEWSLETTER804


CINDY12/15/2016100020182   C
 20.00  CRAFT SALES805


CINDY12/15/2016100020183   C
 75.00  SENIORS IN NEED502


GILBERTSONCINDY12/15/2016100020184   C
 25.00  SENIORS IN NEED502


KVALHEIM, KEITHFTDSKJUDI12/15/2016100020185   C
 12.00  27962DOG


GILLE, HELEN FTDSKJUDI12/15/2016100020186   C
 12.00  27963DOG


USENIN, SAMETKARLA12/15/2016100020187   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 31130302


SHOWERS, MICHAELFTDSKJUDI12/15/2016100020188   C
 12.00  27964DOG
 12.00  27965DOG


24.00 


CHEVALIER, ARNOLDKARLA12/15/2016100020189   C
 20.00  PARKING FINES 32010302


BROWN, BRIAN SKARLA12/15/2016100020190   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES31015302


THOMPSON, JOHNFTDSKMARY D12/15/2016100020191   C
 12.00  27967DOG
 12.00  27966DOG


24.00 


PERTZBORN, DANIELKARLA12/15/2016100020192   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 29642302


YOUNG, MARGARET EKARLA12/15/2016100020193   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES31544302


LEWIS, LEAHKARLA12/15/2016100020194   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 30842302


MECKLEY, CASSANDRAKARLA12/15/2016100020195   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 32062302


SCHOEPP, AMANDA MAYKARLA12/15/2016100020196   C







RECEIPT REGISTER FOR CITY OF STOUGHTON 18/53Pag
e:


03/08/2017 02:28 PM
User: LANA
DB: Stoughton


Post Date from 12/01/2016 - 12/31/2016   Open And Completed Receipts


 AmountReceived OfWkstnCashierDateReceipt #   
  Distribution   Description


 30.00  PARKING FINES 32059302


WARREN HEATING & COOLINGKARLA12/15/2016100020197   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 32102302


DK DESIGN BUILD, LLC KIMDEBBIE12/15/2016100020199   C
 1,400.00  TREE PLANTINGS - DEVELOPER1206


JOHNSON, LESLEYFTDSKMARY D12/15/2016100020200   C
 12.00  27968DOG


ZIMPEL, SAMANTHACLERKLANA12/15/2016100020201   C
 50.00  OPERATORS- 1 YEAR902


DELAO, MARKBARBI12/15/2016100020202   C
 124.00  BAILS/FINES301


GENTER, KENTBARBI12/15/2016100020203   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 29643302


PERRY, SUSANFTDSKMARY D12/15/2016100020204   C
 12.00  27969DOG


MALQUIST, CHANDRAFTDSKMARY D12/15/2016100020205   C
 12.00  27970DOG


PALMER, STEVENBARBI12/15/2016100020206   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 31545302


MADOYAN, JULIANNABARBI12/15/2016100020207   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 30860302


DUNNIHOO, ROBINBARBI12/15/2016100020208   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 30586302
 20.00  PARKING FINES 32006302


50.00 


HARNACK, MCKENZIEBARBI12/15/2016100020209   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 32103302


JOHNSTON, JENNIFERBARBI12/15/2016100020210   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 31132302


BASSETT TRANSIT LLCBARBI12/15/2016100020211   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 30853302


KOHN, JUSTIN BARBI12/15/2016100020212   C
 20.00  PARKING FINES 32012302


MADISON METROPOLITAN SEWERAGE DISTLISALISA12/16/2016100020213   C
 7,500.00  GRANT-DIVISION ST RESTORATION9901


MELL, JOHN AKARLA12/16/2016100020214   C
 10.00  BAILS/FINES C949957301


MALONEY, KEVIN PKARLA12/16/2016100020215   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 31136302
 30.00  PARKING FINES 31135302


60.00 


SPENCER, DIXIEFTDSKJUDI12/16/2016100020216   C
 16.00  27971DOG


K A S CUSTOMER CLEANINGKARLA12/16/2016100020217   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 29645302







RECEIPT REGISTER FOR CITY OF STOUGHTON 19/53Pag
e:


03/08/2017 02:28 PM
User: LANA
DB: Stoughton


Post Date from 12/01/2016 - 12/31/2016   Open And Completed Receipts


 AmountReceived OfWkstnCashierDateReceipt #   
  Distribution   Description


PAPE, JOHN & KARENFTDSKJUDI12/16/2016100020218   C
 12.00  27972DOG


BENDT, NICHOLEFTDSKJUDI12/16/2016100020219   C
 12.00  27973DOG


NASH, AARONCLERKLANA12/16/2016100020220   C
 50.00  OPERATORS- 1 YEAR902


KNUDTSON, JAMES DKARLA12/16/2016100020221   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 30848302


PADFIELD, RYAN TKARLA12/16/2016100020222   C
 94.00  DMV FEES 698XSH303


JSD PROFESSIONAL SERVICES, INC.PLANDESIRE12/16/2016100020223   C
 400.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT-ZONING405


DK DESIGN BUILD, LLC.PLANDESIRE12/16/2016100020224   C
 226.40  ELECTRICAL PERMIT402
 181.12  HEATING PERMIT (HVAC)404
 226.40  PLUMBING PERMIT403
 130.00  BUILDING PERMITS-EROSION401
 40.00  BUILDING PERMITS-OCCUPANCY401
 498.08  BUILDING PERMITS-PLN RVW401
 40.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT-DILHR SL405
 40.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT-ZONING405


1,382.00 


BARBER, DONN & SHEILA KIMDEBBIE12/16/2016100020225   C
 100.00  DONATION 9901


INSTALLS INCORPORATION DBA INSTALL.PLANDESIRE12/16/2016100020226   C
 40.00  PLUMBING PERMIT403


SMITH, JEFFPLANDESIRE12/16/2016100020227   C
 40.00  ELECTRICAL PERMIT402
 40.00  PLUMBING PERMIT403
 40.00  BUILDING PERMITS401


120.00 


MONONA PLUMBING AND FIRE PROTECTIONPLANDESIRE12/16/2016100020228   C
 40.00  PLUMBING PERMIT403


TRUE CONSTRUCTION INC.PLANDESIRE12/16/2016100020229   C
 40.00  HEATING PERMIT (HVAC)404
 40.00  BUILDING PERMITS401


80.00 


AABERG. CINDYFTDSKJUDI12/16/2016100020230   C
 12.00  27974DOG
 32.00  COUNTY DOG PARK LICENSE 63039914


44.00 


NO SHORTS ELECTRIC LLCPLANDESIRE12/16/2016100020231   C
 40.00  ELECTRICAL PERMIT402


MUELLER ELECTRIC AND REPAIR LLCPLANDESIRE12/16/2016100020232   C
 85.00  ELECTRICAL PERMIT402


R.A. HEATING & AIR CONDITIONING INC.PLANDESIRE12/16/2016100020233   C
 40.00  HEATING PERMIT (HVAC)404







RECEIPT REGISTER FOR CITY OF STOUGHTON 20/53Pag
e:


03/08/2017 02:28 PM
User: LANA
DB: Stoughton


Post Date from 12/01/2016 - 12/31/2016   Open And Completed Receipts


 AmountReceived OfWkstnCashierDateReceipt #   
  Distribution   Description


SCHUMACHER, STACEY/CHARLESFTDSKJUDI12/16/2016100020234   C
 12.00  27975DOG
 12.00  27976DOG


24.00 


CLERKLANA12/16/2016100020235   C
 30.00  MISC TAXABLE SALES- 3 CALENDA9911


PETERSON CAROL AND TOMFTDSKJUDI12/16/2016100020236   C
 12.00  27977DOG


KLINEFELTER, MADALYN JKARLA12/16/2016100020237   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 30374302


SMYTH, BRENDACLERKLANA12/16/2016100020238   C
 15.00  CHICKEN LICENSE906


HVAM, ARDENPLANDESIRE12/16/2016100020239   C
 40.00  ELECTRICAL PERMIT402
 40.00  PLUMBING PERMIT403
 40.00  HEATING PERMIT (HVAC)404
 40.00  BUILDING PERMITS401


160.00 


COLLINS, JENNYCLERKLANA12/16/2016100020240   C
 15.00  CHICKEN LICENSE906


TOTAL WATER TREATMENT SYSTEMS, INC.PLANDESIRE12/16/2016100020241   C
 40.00  PLUMBING PERMIT403


BAUMEISTER, BECKYCLERKLANA12/16/2016100020242   C
 15.00  CHICKEN LICENSE906


ROBB, JAMESCLERKLANA12/16/2016100020243   C
 15.00  CHICKEN LICENSE906


LAWRENCE, STEPHENCLERKLANA12/16/2016100020244   C
 15.00  CHICKEN LICENSE906


HUSIER, KATIECLERKLANA12/16/2016100020245   C
 15.00  CHICKEN LICENSE906


MAYER, STEPHANIECLERKLANA12/16/2016100020246   C
 15.00  CHICKEN LICENSE906


PORTER, KRYSTALKARLA12/16/2016100020247   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 30870302


FLAMOUROPOULOS, THOMASKARLA12/16/2016100020248   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 31670302


NEUENFELD, SCOTTKARLA12/16/2016100020249   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 32054302


RITTER, CHUCKFTDSKLANA12/16/2016100020250   C
 12.00  27978DOG


VOGEL BROTHERS BUILDING CO.PLANDESIRE12/16/2016100020251   C
 160.00  BUILDING PERMITS401


HARK, BRIAN AKARLA12/16/2016100020252   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 32090302


REYES GONZALEZ, JOHNATHANBARBI12/16/2016100020253   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 32060302







RECEIPT REGISTER FOR CITY OF STOUGHTON 21/53Pag
e:


03/08/2017 02:28 PM
User: LANA
DB: Stoughton


Post Date from 12/01/2016 - 12/31/2016   Open And Completed Receipts


 AmountReceived OfWkstnCashierDateReceipt #   
  Distribution   Description


RIGDON, CATHY KIMDEBBIE12/16/2016100020254   C
 550.14  0000002775MR


ABSOLUTE HYPNOSIS LLC KIMDEBBIE12/16/2016100020255   C
 600.00  SENIOR CENTER ANNEX RENT9902


GRINNELL, SHANATAEBARBI12/16/2016100020256   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 32056302


GROVE CONSTRUCTION LLC KIMDEBBIE12/16/2016100020257   C
 13.20  0000002767MR
 90.79  0000002788MR


103.99 


HOMESTEAD TITLE COKIMDEBBIE12/16/2016100020258   C
 35.00  SPECIAL ASSESSMENT REQUEST907


TAX BATCH 281001LISALISA12/16/2016100020259   C
 567,817.39  PROPERTY TAXES1701
 1,693.57  TAX OVERPAYMENTS1702


569,510.96 


LONG, JESSICABARBI12/16/2016100020260   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 32120302


MUNOZ, ANTHONYBARBI12/16/2016100020262   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 32112302


COVERT, ROBERTBARBI12/16/2016100020263   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 30846302


BOLEY, JESSE TBARBI12/16/2016100020264   C
 98.80  BAILS/FINES 301


DAY, FREDDIEBARBI12/16/2016100020265   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 32086302


BRAINARD, LUKEBARBI12/16/2016100020266   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 30850302


JENKS, DAN & DIANE KIMDEBBIE12/16/2016100020301   C
 43.74  UNIFORM REIMB. 9901


SHELDON, JOHNBARBI12/17/2016100020267   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 32182302


KRANTZ LIVING TRUSTBARBI12/17/2016100020268   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 31143302


NATIONAL MENTOR HOLDINGSBARBI12/17/2016100020269   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 30593302


FRIEDLANDER, MELISSABARBI12/17/2016100020270   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 30588302


YASKICK, LACEYBARBI12/17/2016100020271   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 32058302


LEE, JENNIFERBARBI12/17/2016100020272   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 30866302


THAN, BAWIBARBI12/17/2016100020273   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 30859302


PARKS, JASONBARBI12/17/2016100020274   C







RECEIPT REGISTER FOR CITY OF STOUGHTON 22/53Pag
e:


03/08/2017 02:28 PM
User: LANA
DB: Stoughton


Post Date from 12/01/2016 - 12/31/2016   Open And Completed Receipts


 AmountReceived OfWkstnCashierDateReceipt #   
  Distribution   Description


 30.00  PARKING FINES 32064302


STENJEM, BONNIEMARY12/17/2016100020275   C
 89.06  DMV FEES 376YBU303


SAUER JASMYNEMARY12/17/2016100020276   C
 20.00  PARKING FINES 31549302


HUGGETT, SCOTT LMARY12/18/2016100020277   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 32204302


DANIELS, ELEANORMARY12/18/2016100020278   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 32174302
 30.00  PARKING FINES 32175302


60.00 


JOHNSON, MITCHELLCANDY12/19/2016100020279   C
 130.00  PARKING FINES302


ARVOLD, REBECCA SCANDY12/19/2016100020280   C
 60.00  PARKING FINES302


OLSON, DEBORACANDY12/19/2016100020282   C
 191.50  DMV FEES303


OLSON, DEBORACANDY12/19/2016100020283   C
 3.00  K-9 DONATIONS308


JENSEN, QUINTCANDY12/19/2016100020284   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES302


ELSING, VICKY & PHILLIPFTDSKJUDI12/19/2016100020285   C
 12.00  27979DOG


NORMINGTON, VIRGILCANDY12/19/2016100020286   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES302


REE, DWAYNECANDY12/19/2016100020287   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES302


LEE, TESSACANDY12/19/2016100020289   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES302


HANSON, NICHOLASCLERKLANA12/19/2016100020290   C
 50.00  OPERATORS- 1 YEAR902


MCNABB, WESLEYCANDY12/19/2016100020291   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES302


FENDRY, ERIN CANDY12/19/2016100020292   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES302


DAVID, FESTGEFTDSKMARY D12/19/2016100020293   C
 16.00  27980DOG
 16.00  27981DOG


32.00 


P. LEWISCLERKLANA12/19/2016100020294   C
 15.00  CHICKEN LICENSE906


BORMAN, DENNIS OR LINDAFTDSKMARY D12/19/2016100020295   C
 12.00  27982DOG


PHILLIPS, SIMON & MELISSACLERKLANA12/19/2016100020296   C
 15.00  CHICKEN LICENSE906







RECEIPT REGISTER FOR CITY OF STOUGHTON 23/53Pag
e:


03/08/2017 02:28 PM
User: LANA
DB: Stoughton


Post Date from 12/01/2016 - 12/31/2016   Open And Completed Receipts


 AmountReceived OfWkstnCashierDateReceipt #   
  Distribution   Description


ROLOFF, HOWARD OR SUZANNEFTDSKMARY D12/19/2016100020297   C
 12.00  27983DOG


MOLNAR, NICHOLASMARY12/19/2016100020298   C
 40.00  PARKING FINES 31917302


MICHAEL & RANDI RICHARDSONFTDSKMARY D12/19/2016100020299   C
 12.00  27984DOG
 12.00  27985DOG


24.00 


HUNTINGTON, LEWIS & DOLORESFTDSKMARY D12/19/2016100020300   C
 12.00  27986DOG
 12.00  27987DOG


24.00 


SIER, PAMFTDSKMARY D12/19/2016100020302   C
 12.00  27988DOG


LIEBMANN, DAVIDFTDSKMARY D12/19/2016100020303   C
 12.00  27989DOG


MOYER, JAMES & LAURAFTDSKMARY D12/19/2016100020304   C
 12.00  27990DOG
 12.00  27991DOG


24.00 


TURF CARE MADISON LLCCLERKLANA12/19/2016100020305   C
 50.00  GLESSING- SOLICITOR LIC906
 50.00  DEGNER- SOLICITOR LIC906
 50.00  SCHRAMM- SOLICITOR LIC906


150.00 


KOCH, JOHN & MARLENEFTDSKMARY D12/19/2016100020306   C
 12.00  27992DOG


KRAUSE, CONNIE & RICHARDFTDSKMARY D12/19/2016100020307   C
 12.00  27993DOG


TAX BATCH 281002LISALISA12/19/2016100020308   C
 274,218.89  PROPERTY TAXES1701
 456.44  TAX OVERPAYMENTS1702


274,675.33 


FILLNER, MARKFTDSKMARY D12/19/2016100020309   C
 12.00  27994DOG


HERFEL, TRACIMARY12/19/2016100020310   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 30855302


HERFEL, TRACIMARY12/19/2016100020311   C
 20.00  PARKING FINES 31967302


WALDORF, MARTYMARY12/19/2016100020312   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 32214302
 30.00  PARKING FINES 32080302
 20.00  PARKING FINES 31911302
 20.00  PARKING FINES 31915302
 20.00  PARKING FINES 30578302


120.00 







RECEIPT REGISTER FOR CITY OF STOUGHTON 24/53Pag
e:


03/08/2017 02:28 PM
User: LANA
DB: Stoughton


Post Date from 12/01/2016 - 12/31/2016   Open And Completed Receipts


 AmountReceived OfWkstnCashierDateReceipt #   
  Distribution   Description


DOTSON DAVISMARY12/19/2016100020313   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 32079302


CARTER, ROBERT CMARY12/19/2016100020314   C
 94.00  DMV FEES 293TXG303


HUSET, VICKIMARY12/19/2016100020315   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 32255302


YATES, SANDRAMARY12/19/2016100020316   C
 186.00  DMV FEES LV3495303


KOEHLER, KRISTENMARY12/19/2016100020317   C
 124.00  BAILS/FINES301


MARY12/19/2016100020318   C
 3.00  K-9 DONATIONS CUP COZY308


SOBOJINSKI DAVIDMARY12/19/2016100020319   C
 226.50  DMV FEES 265XLR303


KOHN, JUSTINMARY12/19/2016100020320   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 32240302


PALOJA, BAJRAMMARY12/19/2016100020321   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 32066302


BEYLER, RITABARB12/19/2016100020322   C
 40.00  PARKING FINES302


JOBE, TRACYBARBI12/20/2016100020323   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 32162302


OPERA HOUSE DEPOST KIMDEBBIE12/20/2016100020324   C
 1,320.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 160.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 88.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 720.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 374.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 450.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 175.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 2,575.00  GIFT CARDS/CERTIFICATES 9901
 300.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 125.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 279.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 400.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 560.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 150.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 175.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 862.50  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 325.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 455.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 210.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 176.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 308.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 550.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 420.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 234.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 25.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 100.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 150.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 192.50  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 210.00  TICKET SALES601
 374.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607







RECEIPT REGISTER FOR CITY OF STOUGHTON 25/53Pag
e:


03/08/2017 02:28 PM
User: LANA
DB: Stoughton


Post Date from 12/01/2016 - 12/31/2016   Open And Completed Receipts


 AmountReceived OfWkstnCashierDateReceipt #   
  Distribution   Description


 308.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 750.00  TICKET SALES601
 584.02  SALES TAX 9901
 1,072.00  CONV FEE9901
 249.00  MEMBERSHIP 9901
 15.00  DONATIONS 9901
 (178.28) GIFT CARD/CERTIFICATES 9901
 27.12  CUSTOMER CREDIT 9901


15,269.86 


LIBRARY DEPOSITLISALISA12/20/2016100020325   C
 153.55  COPIES701
 519.45  FINES702
 64.25  217-DESIGNATED DONATION704


737.25 


STOUGHTON AREA EMSLISALISA12/20/2016100020326   C
 102.50  TO REIMBURSE ACCOUNT PER LS9901


BALDAUF, JIMLISALISA12/20/2016100020327   C
 134.01  REIMBURSEMENT NOLA EMS9901


SCHIMELPFENIG, LISA ANNLISALISA12/20/2016100020328   C
 126.93  REIMBURSEMENT FOR MEALS9901


DEFOREST, VILLAGE OFLISALISA12/20/2016100020329   C
 885.18  OWI GRANT - AUGUST9901


MCFARLAND, VILLAGE OFLISALISA12/20/2016100020330   C
 72.00  0000002797MR


RECREATION DEPARTMENTLISALISA12/20/2016100020331   C
 265.00  PROGRAM FEES1001
 665.00  PROGRAM FEES1001
 7,144.00  PROGRAM FEES1001
 90.00  PROGRAM FEES1001
 306.00  INSTRUCTION FEES1003
 696.00  INSTRUCTION FEES1003
 270.00  INSTRUCTION FEES1003
 150.00  INSTRUCTION FEES1003
 80.00  INSTRUCTION FEES1003
 65.00  PARK RESERVATION1101


9,731.00 


CHICAGO TITLE INS KIMDEBBIE12/20/2016100020332   C
 210.00  SPECIAL ASSESSMENT REQUEST907


DANE COUNTY TITLE CO KIMDEBBIE12/20/2016100020333   C
 35.00  SPECIAL ASSESSMENT REQUEST907


ARNE, KARENFTDSKJUDI12/20/2016100020334   C
 12.00  27995DOG


PREFERRED TITLE LLC KIMDEBBIE12/20/2016100020335   C
 35.00  SPECIAL ASSESSMENT REQUEST907


BAKKEN, CONNIEFTDSKJUDI12/20/2016100020336   C
 12.00  27996DOG


JANSEN, LUANNEFTDSKJUDI12/20/2016100020337   C
 12.00  27997DOG







RECEIPT REGISTER FOR CITY OF STOUGHTON 26/53Pag
e:


03/08/2017 02:28 PM
User: LANA
DB: Stoughton


Post Date from 12/01/2016 - 12/31/2016   Open And Completed Receipts


 AmountReceived OfWkstnCashierDateReceipt #   
  Distribution   Description


DANE COUNTY TITLEKIMDEBBIE12/20/2016100020338   C
 35.00  SPECIAL ASSESSMENT REQUEST907


FIDELITY INVESTMENTKIMDEBBIE12/20/2016100020339   C
 598.05  FIREMENS PENSION DIVIDEND9901


FIDELITY INVESTMENTKIMDEBBIE12/20/2016100020340   C
 0.29  FIREMENS PENSION DIVIDEND 9901


MOLL, BRYANBARBI12/20/2016100020341   C
 40.00  PARKING FINES 31882302


GOLDTHORPE, ALLISON G.FTDSKJUDI12/20/2016100020342   C
 12.00  27998DOG


PHA, SAIBARBI12/20/2016100020343   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 30861302


PERNIC,KRISTINFTDSKJUDI12/20/2016100020344   C
 16.00  27999DOG


DAVID ANDERSONLAW OFFICEBARB12/20/2016100020345   C
 6.08  MISC REVENUES304


BLEILER, KRIS & KIMFTDSKJUDI12/20/2016100020346   C
 12.00  28000DOG
 12.00  28001DOG


24.00 


RICHARDSON, RANDICLERKLANA12/20/2016100020347   C
 15.00  CHICKEN LICENSE906


EVERSOLL, BILLFTDSKMARY D12/20/2016100020348   C
 12.00  28002DOG


HAYNES, ASHLEYCLERKLANA12/20/2016100020349   C
 15.00  CHICKEN LICENSE906


KALLAS, JOHNFTDSKMARY D12/20/2016100020350   C
 12.00  28003DOG


DEVOE-BREKKEN, CHARITYCLERKLANA12/20/2016100020351   C
 15.00  CHICKEN LICENSE906


ACTIVE NETWORKKIMDEBBIE12/20/2016100020352   C
 710.00  INSTRUCTION FEES1003
 48.00  INSTRUCTION FEES1003
 (40.00) INSTRUCTION FEES1003
 225.00  PROGRAM FEES1001
 30.00  INSTRUCTION FEES1003
 540.00  INSTRUCTION FEES1003
 35.00  INSTRUCTION FEES1003
 (160.00) PROGRAM FEES1001
 40.00  INSTRUCTION FEES1003
 60.00  INSTRUCTION FEES1003
 (133.28) CREDIT CARD & TRANSACTION FEES1004


1,354.72 


TAX BATCH 281003LISALISA12/20/2016100020353   C
 404,670.87  PROPERTY TAXES1701
 31.56  TAX OVERPAYMENTS1702


404,702.43 







RECEIPT REGISTER FOR CITY OF STOUGHTON 27/53Pag
e:


03/08/2017 02:28 PM
User: LANA
DB: Stoughton


Post Date from 12/01/2016 - 12/31/2016   Open And Completed Receipts


 AmountReceived OfWkstnCashierDateReceipt #   
  Distribution   Description


BRAULT, WILLIAM GFTDSKMARY D12/20/2016100020354   C
 12.00  28004DOG


MOEDE, JILLFTDSKMARY D12/20/2016100020355   C
 12.00  28005DOG


SKINNER, SUSANFTDSKMARY D12/20/2016100020356   C
 12.00  28006DOG


TAX BATCH 281004LISALISA12/20/2016100020357   C
 496,242.18  PROPERTY TAXES1701
 19,067.59  TAX OVERPAYMENTS1702


515,309.77 


ANONYMOUS KIMDEBBIE12/20/2016100020358   C
 30.00  MISC TAXABLE SALES9911


EUGSTER, DAVIDALEX12/20/2016100020359   C
 30.00  32223302
 30.00  32076302


60.00 


VIKE, KATHY JOCLERKLANA12/20/2016100020360   C
 50.00  OPERATORS- JOHNSON, CHARLES902


CONNOR, GLENCLERKLANA12/20/2016100020361   C
 50.00  OPERATORS- 1 YEAR902


QUARLES & BRADYCLERKLANA12/20/2016100020362   C
 10.00  LICENSE TRANSFER FOR WALMART906


WILLIAMSON, BROOKEALEX12/20/2016100020363   C
 98.80  C946891-1301


UNITAN, JENNIFERFTDSKMARY D12/20/2016100020364   C
 12.00  28007DOG


LINDQUIST, MICHAELALEX12/20/2016100020365   C
 40.00  31982302


OSGOODFTDSKMARY D12/20/2016100020366   C
 12.00  28008DOG
 12.00  28009DOG


24.00 


SKINNER, SUSANALEX12/20/2016100020367   C
 30.00  32180302


SWENSON, BRIANALEX12/20/2016100020368   C
 30.00  32329302


ERICKSON, CHERYLALEX12/20/2016100020369   C
 30.00  32202302


MICKELSON, MARKALEX12/20/2016100020370   C
 103.00  FN9974303


SCHWULST, DANIELALEX12/20/2016100020371   C
 89.00  671ZJB303


COPLIEN, GENEALEX12/20/2016100020372   C
 164.00  519ZJH303


ANONYMOUSKIMDEBBIE12/21/2016100020373   C







RECEIPT REGISTER FOR CITY OF STOUGHTON 28/53Pag
e:


03/08/2017 02:28 PM
User: LANA
DB: Stoughton


Post Date from 12/01/2016 - 12/31/2016   Open And Completed Receipts


 AmountReceived OfWkstnCashierDateReceipt #   
  Distribution   Description


 20.00  MISC TAXABLE SALES9911


GIBSON, ROBERTBARBI12/21/2016100020374   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 32326302


CHRISTOPHERSEN, SAMANTHAKELLI12/21/2016100020375   C
 50.00  OPERATORS/PROVISIONAL902


SCHIMELPFENIG, SCOTTBARBI12/21/2016100020376   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 32273302


BARTON, MARSHALL & ELIZABETHFTDSKJUDI12/21/2016100020377   C
 12.00  28010DOG
 12.00  28011DOG


24.00 


TAX BATCH 281005LISALISA12/21/2016100020378   C
 368,145.96  PROPERTY TAXES1701
 246.84  TAX OVERPAYMENTS1702


368,392.80 


AMYOTTE, MICHAEL BARBI12/21/2016100020379   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 32133302
 30.00  PARKING FINES 32179302
 30.00  PARKING FINES 30849302


90.00 


SPAHN, SUSANBARBI12/21/2016100020380   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 32207302


ERICKSON, CHRIS & RALPHFTDSKJUDI12/21/2016100020381   C
 12.00  28012DOG
 12.00  28013DOG


24.00 


HANNEMAN, JASONBARBI12/21/2016100020382   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 32177302


GERBER, NORMFTDSKJUDI12/21/2016100020383   C
 12.00  28014DOG


BESKE, MADISON+BARBI12/21/2016100020384   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES302


K-9 DONATIONBARBI12/21/2016100020385   C
 20.00  K-9 DONATIONS308


VARRELMANN, CLAIREBARBI12/21/2016100020386   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES302


SORENSON, JAMIEBARBI12/21/2016100020387   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES302


JOHNSON, TRUDIBARBI12/21/2016100020388   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES302


ROSARIO, RAMONBARBI12/21/2016100020389   C
 15.00  FINGER PRINTING307


DRUNASKY, DANIELBARBI12/21/2016100020390   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES302


MANTON, CHRISTINEFTDSKMARY D12/21/2016100020391   C







RECEIPT REGISTER FOR CITY OF STOUGHTON 29/53Pag
e:


03/08/2017 02:28 PM
User: LANA
DB: Stoughton


Post Date from 12/01/2016 - 12/31/2016   Open And Completed Receipts


 AmountReceived OfWkstnCashierDateReceipt #   
  Distribution   Description


 12.00  28015DOG


FRYE, KARENBARBI12/21/2016100020392   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES302


TAX BATCH 281006LISALISA12/21/2016100020393   C
 483,715.57  PROPERTY TAXES1701
 32.97  TAX OVERPAYMENTS1702


483,748.54 


JACOBSON, KRISTINEFTDSKMARY D12/21/2016100020394   C
 12.00  28016DOG
 12.00  28017DOG


24.00 


FJELSTAD, EARLENEFTDSKMARY D12/21/2016100020395   C
 32.00  COUNTY DOG PARK LICENSE9914
 12.00  28018DOG


44.00 


WEST KOSHKONONG WOMEN OF THE CHURCHKELLI12/21/2016100020396   C
 25.00  FOOD PANTRY501


CHRISTIANSEN, MAJAKELLI12/21/2016100020397   C
 500.00  FOOD PANTRY501


LEIKNESS, RYANFTDSKMARY D12/21/2016100020398   C
 12.00  28019DOG
 12.00  28020DOG


24.00 


GERBER, JOHN & MARGITKELLI12/21/2016100020399   C
 25.00  FOOD PANTRY501


HARVEST FARMSLISALISA12/21/2016100020400   C
 4,274.56  0000002761MR
 1,968.73  0000002796MR


6,243.29 


ANONYMOUSKELLI12/21/2016100020401   C
 189.00  FOOD PANTRY501


MYREN, DAVID & DEBORAHKELLI12/21/2016100020402   C
 500.00  FOOD PANTRY501


HULL, JENNIFERKELLI12/21/2016100020403   C
 50.00  FOOD PANTRY501


BENSON, ELISABETHFTDSKMARY D12/21/2016100020404   C
 12.00  28021DOG


MOLL, LORIKELLI12/21/2016100020405   C
 50.00  FOOD PANTRY501


ON TRACK COMMUNICAITONSKELLI12/21/2016100020406   C
 250.00  FOOD PANTRY501


USW INTERNATIONAL UNION LOCAL 1207KELLI12/21/2016100020407   C
 300.00  FOOD PANTRY501


NOWLIN, PATRICKKELLI12/21/2016100020408   C
 550.00  FOOD PANTRY501







RECEIPT REGISTER FOR CITY OF STOUGHTON 30/53Pag
e:


03/08/2017 02:28 PM
User: LANA
DB: Stoughton


Post Date from 12/01/2016 - 12/31/2016   Open And Completed Receipts


 AmountReceived OfWkstnCashierDateReceipt #   
  Distribution   Description


GARDNER, MARILYNKELLI12/21/2016100020409   C
 100.00  FOOD PANTRY501


CULVERSKELLI12/21/2016100020410   C
 400.00  FOOD PANTRY501


KETTLE, MARYFTDSKMARY D12/21/2016100020411   C
 12.00  28022DOG


HOLLOWAY, NANCYKELLI12/21/2016100020412   C
 50.00  FOOD PANTRY501


CHRIST LUTHERAN CHURCHKELLI12/21/2016100020413   C
 687.03  HOLIDAY FUND503


DERNOVSEK, DARLA & MICHAEL KELLI12/21/2016100020414   C
 100.00  FOOD PANTRY501


WELTER, HEIDIALEX12/21/2016100020415   C
 30.00  32254302
 98.80  C950018-6301


128.80 


PINNOW, ALAN & DIANEKELLI12/21/2016100020416   C
 100.00  FOOD PANTRY501


COMSTOCK, ALLENKELLI12/21/2016100020417   C
 90.00  FOOD PANTRY501


COMSTOCK, COLLEENKELLI12/21/2016100020418   C
 90.00  FOOD PANTRY501


LEEMON, SALLYKELLI12/21/2016100020419   C
 100.00  FOOD PANTRY501


SANDHILL ELEMENTARYKELLI12/21/2016100020420   C
 1,337.19  FOOD PANTRY501


ANONYMOUSKELLI12/21/2016100020421   C
 35.57  FOOD PANTRY501


GOHLKE, ROGER & LOISKELLI12/21/2016100020422   C
 125.00  FOOD PANTRY501


CASTILLO, AMIRAALEX12/21/2016100020423   C
 30.00  32233302


LYNCH, LAWRENCE & LYNNKELLI12/21/2016100020424   C
 40.00  FOOD PANTRY501


GECKELLI12/21/2016100020425   C
 20.00  FOOD PANTRY501


FISHER, LEEKELLI12/21/2016100020426   C
 500.00  FOOD PANTRY501


DR HERMUNDSTAD, ORINKELLI12/21/2016100020427   C
 100.00  FOOD PANTRY501


HANSSEN, MARJIEKELLI12/21/2016100020428   C
 25.00  FOOD PANTRY501


DIEBEL, ROBERT & LYNNEKELLI12/21/2016100020429   C
 100.00  FOOD PANTRY501


LOGAN, LAURA & MICHAELKELLI12/21/2016100020430   C







RECEIPT REGISTER FOR CITY OF STOUGHTON 31/53Pag
e:


03/08/2017 02:28 PM
User: LANA
DB: Stoughton


Post Date from 12/01/2016 - 12/31/2016   Open And Completed Receipts


 AmountReceived OfWkstnCashierDateReceipt #   
  Distribution   Description


 50.00  FOOD PANTRY501


ANONYMOUSKELLI12/21/2016100020431   C
 90.00  FOOD PANTRY501


SWANSON, KATHLEEN & LESKELLI12/21/2016100020432   C
 50.00  FOOD PANTRY501


HAGMANN, KENNETHKELLI12/21/2016100020433   C
 75.00  FOOD PANTRY501


BRUNING, SCOTTALEX12/21/2016100020434   C
 30.00  32159302


HYE, DAVIDALEX12/21/2016100020435   C
 30.00  32256302


BUCKYS RENTALS INCALEX12/21/2016100020436   C
 30.00  32203302


SCHOENMANN, JULIEALEX12/21/2016100020437   C
 200.00  C947746-2301


SCHMIDT, NICHOLASALEX12/21/2016100020438   C
 20.00  30991302


LAYTON, CHRISTOPHERALEX12/21/2016100020439   C
 30.00  32274302


GILL, EMILIEALEX12/21/2016100020440   C
 30.00  30723302


KUFEL, FRANKALEX12/21/2016100020441   C
 30.00  30724302


JAMMEH, ANSUBARBI12/22/2016100020442   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 32160302


KUHN, BENJAMINBARBI12/22/2016100020443   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 32221302
 30.00  PARKING FINES 32220302
 30.00  PARKING FINES 32224302


90.00 


JAGLIN, KATHYFTDSKJUDI12/22/2016100020444   C
 12.00  28023DOG
 12.00  28024DOG


24.00 


RABE, SARAH & ELVEKROG, AMYCLERKLANA12/22/2016100020445   C
 15.00  CHICKEN LICENSE906


GROLEAU, ALEXANDRABARBI12/22/2016100020446   C
 84.00  DMV FEES303


MCCABE, DOUGBARBI12/22/2016100020447   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES302


LECLEAR, DAVIDBARBI12/22/2016100020448   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES302


OPERA HOUSE DEPOSIT KIMDEBBIE12/22/2016100020449   C
 200.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 20.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 80.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607







RECEIPT REGISTER FOR CITY OF STOUGHTON 32/53Pag
e:


03/08/2017 02:28 PM
User: LANA
DB: Stoughton


Post Date from 12/01/2016 - 12/31/2016   Open And Completed Receipts


 AmountReceived OfWkstnCashierDateReceipt #   
  Distribution   Description


 121.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 315.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 300.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 2,175.00  GIFT CARDS/CERTIFICATS 9901
 135.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 100.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 225.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 700.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 260.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 490.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 225.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 237.50  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 175.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 280.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 140.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 225.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 180.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 50.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 175.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 510.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 70.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 132.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 330.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 125.00  TICKET SALES601
 313.77  SALES TAX 9901
 584.00  CONV FEE9901
 2,120.00  MEMBERSHIP9901
 32.34  DONATIONS 9901
 29.38  CUSTOMER CREDIT 9901


11,054.99 


TAX BATCH 281007LISALISA12/22/2016100020450   C
 178,061.01  PROPERTY TAXES1701
 106.53  TAX OVERPAYMENTS1702


178,167.54 


PERFORMANCE EXTERIORS & CONTRACTINGPLANDESIRE12/22/2016100020451   C
 216.95  ELECTRICAL PERMIT402
 173.56  HEATING PERMIT (HVAC)404
 216.95  PLUMBING PERMIT403
 130.00  BUILDING PERMITS-EROSION401
 40.00  BUILDING PERMITS-OCCUPANCY401
 477.29  BUILDING PERMITS-PLN RVW401
 40.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT-DILHR SL405
 40.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT-ZONING405
 700.00  TREE PLANTINGS - DEVELOPER1206


2,034.75 


WHEELOCK, ANNFTDSKMARY D12/22/2016100020452   C
 16.00  28025DOG


BADGER COUNTRY PROPERTIES LLCPLANDESIRE12/22/2016100020453   C
 40.00  BUILDING PERMITS401


STUDNICKA, MICHAEL J.PLANDESIRE12/22/2016100020454   C
 40.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT-ZONING405


HEIL, JUDYFTDSKMARY D12/22/2016100020455   C
 12.00  28026DOG







RECEIPT REGISTER FOR CITY OF STOUGHTON 33/53Pag
e:


03/08/2017 02:28 PM
User: LANA
DB: Stoughton


Post Date from 12/01/2016 - 12/31/2016   Open And Completed Receipts


 AmountReceived OfWkstnCashierDateReceipt #   
  Distribution   Description


RITE-WAY CONSTRUCTION LLCPLANDESIRE12/22/2016100020456   C
 40.00  BUILDING PERMITS401


COLORTECH OF WISCONSIN, INC.PLANDESIRE12/22/2016100020457   C
 40.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT-ZONING405


NOBLE, JOHNPLANDESIRE12/22/2016100020458   C
 85.00  BUILDING PERMITS401


DOWNIE, DAVIDFTDSKMARY D12/22/2016100020459   C
 12.00  28027DOG


ONSRUD, DONNAFTDSKMARY D12/22/2016100020460   C
 50.00  HOLIDAY FUND503


MACKENZIE, DOUGLASFTDSKMARY D12/22/2016100020461   C
 25.00  HOLIDAY FUND503


ANDERSON, SUSANFTDSKMARY D12/22/2016100020462   C
 12.00  28028DOG
 12.00  28029DOG


24.00 


DROESSLER, ALBINALEX12/22/2016100020463   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES302


TAX BATCH 281008LISALISA12/22/2016100020464   C
 408,877.96  PROPERTY TAXES1701
 14.50  TAX OVERPAYMENTS1702


408,892.46 


COUNTY OF DANE KIMDEBBIE12/22/2016100020465   C
 725.92  0000002790MR


SCHNEIDER, DONALD & DONNAKELLI12/22/2016100020466   C
 100.00  FOOD PANTRY501


UNIVERSAL FOUNDATION INC KELLI12/22/2016100020467   C
 2,190.00  FOOD PANTRY501


WHEELER, KENLYNNKELLI12/22/2016100020468   C
 300.00  FOOD PANTRY501


PAULSON, WAYNE & NANCYKELLI12/22/2016100020469   C
 25.00  FOOD PANTRY501


WEAVER, GENNIFERALEX12/22/2016100020470   C
 30.00  32153302


HOMESTEAD TITLE COKIMDEBBIE12/22/2016100020471   C
 70.00  SPECIAL ASSESSMENT REQUEST907


DEMCAK, MARYFTDSKMARY D12/22/2016100020472   C
 12.00  28030DOG
 12.00  28031DOG


24.00 


TRIBBY, REBECCA OR MICHAELALEX12/22/2016100020473   C
 30.00  30722302


ANDERSON, RACHELFTDSKMARY D12/22/2016100020474   C
 12.00  28032DOG
 32.00  COUNTY DOG PARK LICENSE9914







RECEIPT REGISTER FOR CITY OF STOUGHTON 34/53Pag
e:


03/08/2017 02:28 PM
User: LANA
DB: Stoughton


Post Date from 12/01/2016 - 12/31/2016   Open And Completed Receipts


 AmountReceived OfWkstnCashierDateReceipt #   
  Distribution   Description


44.00 


POSCH, JAMESALEX12/22/2016100020475   C
 30.00  32237302


GENTER, KENTALEX12/22/2016100020476   C
 30.00  31198302


STANTON, ANDREAALEX12/22/2016100020477   C
 20.00  31937302


DIETER, ASHLEY MKARLA12/23/2016100020478   C
 219.00  DMV FEES TITLE & 520ZJH303


MORTENSEN, PERRY WKARLA12/23/2016100020479   C
 20.00  PARKING FINES302


JOE DANIELS CONSTRUCTION COKARLA12/23/2016100020480   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 32257302


JATTA, SAM KARLA12/23/2016100020481   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 32130302


BELOHLAVEK, RACHELKARLA12/23/2016100020482   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 31188302
 30.00  PARKING FINES 32170302


60.00 


HELKER, LORI MKARLA12/23/2016100020483   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 31193302


HOLVERSON, STEVEN JKARLA12/23/2016100020484   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 30725302


WUNSCH, TANESSA LKARLA12/23/2016100020485   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 32250302


HORTON-WARREN, LORIBARBI12/23/2016100020486   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 30599302


WISCONSIN AUTO CENTERBARBI12/23/2016100020487   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 30598302


QUAM, AMANDABARBI12/23/2016100020488   C
 20.00  PARKING FINES 31969302


KOPF, SAVANNAHBARBI12/23/2016100020489   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 32136302


HILL, CORIEBARBI12/23/2016100020490   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 32234302


SHAFFER, JUSTINBARBI12/23/2016100020491   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 32173302


SNYDER, KIMBERLYBARBI12/23/2016100020492   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 32231302


DALE BEHNCKEKARLA12/24/2016100020493   C
 94.00  DMV FEES 229XDZ303


GILBERTSON, GARY AKARLA12/24/2016100020494   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 32128302


GREIF, BENAJAMINMARY12/24/2016100020495   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 32268302







RECEIPT REGISTER FOR CITY OF STOUGHTON 35/53Pag
e:


03/08/2017 02:28 PM
User: LANA
DB: Stoughton


Post Date from 12/01/2016 - 12/31/2016   Open And Completed Receipts


 AmountReceived OfWkstnCashierDateReceipt #   
  Distribution   Description


ROGERS, KIMBERLYCANDY12/26/2016100020496   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES302


SOKOLIK, BRANDONMARY12/26/2016100020497   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 32238302


SKAR, NATASHA MMARY12/26/2016100020498   C
 20.00  SHOP WITH COP309


LEWIS, TOMFTDSKJUDI12/27/2016100020499   C
 12.00  28033DOG


FRIEDLANDER, GABRIEL & MELISSAFTDSKJUDI12/27/2016100020500   C
 12.00  28034DOG


HOLZWARTH, LACHLANLORI12/27/2016100020501   C
 40.00  PARKING FINES302


WENKER, SUEFTDSKJUDI12/27/2016100020502   C
 12.00  28035DOG
 12.00  28036DOG


24.00 


YOUNG, SUEANN FTDSKJUDI12/27/2016100020503   C
 12.00  28037DOG


STATE OF WI -DEPT OF ADMINLORI12/27/2016100020504   C
 10.00  MISC REVENUES304


RUSH, ROBERTAFTDSKJUDI12/27/2016100020505   C
 12.00  28038DOG


MCGEEVER, CORINNEFTDSKJUDI12/27/2016100020506   C
 12.00  28039DOG
 12.00  28040DOG
 12.00  28041DOG


36.00 


JAEGER, KARENFTDSKJUDI12/27/2016100020507   C
 12.00  28042DOG


EWING, GARTHLORI12/27/2016100020508   C
 5.00  FINGER PRINTING307


CHART, SHIRLENEFTDSKJUDI12/27/2016100020509   C
 12.00  28043DOG


EVENSON, GARY &  DIANEFTDSKJUDI12/27/2016100020510   C
 12.00  28044DOG


HAUGEN, STEPHANIEFTDSKMARY D12/27/2016100020511   C
 12.00  28045DOG
 12.00  28046DOG
 48.00  COUNTY DOG PARK LICENSE9914


72.00 


NIETO, MELCHORLORI12/27/2016100020512   C
 98.80  BAILS/FINES301


LYNON, SAMANTHALORI12/27/2016100020513   C
 50.00  BAILS/FINES301


TAX BATCH 281009LISALISA12/27/2016100020514   C
 484,616.72  PROPERTY TAXES1701







RECEIPT REGISTER FOR CITY OF STOUGHTON 36/53Pag
e:


03/08/2017 02:28 PM
User: LANA
DB: Stoughton


Post Date from 12/01/2016 - 12/31/2016   Open And Completed Receipts


 AmountReceived OfWkstnCashierDateReceipt #   
  Distribution   Description


 1,206.60  TAX OVERPAYMENTS1702


485,823.32 


MANN, ANGELAFTDSKMARY D12/27/2016100020515   C
 12.00  28047DOG
 32.00  COUNTY DOG PARK LICENSE9914


44.00 


GUTCHE, BRIANFTDSKMARY D12/27/2016100020516   C
 12.00  28048DOG


HALVERSON, LISALORI12/27/2016100020517   C
 219.00  DMV FEES303


MAURER, DOUGLASLORI12/27/2016100020518   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES302


GANSHERT, LORIFTDSKMARY D12/27/2016100020519   C
 12.00  28049DOG


HUMBERG, DENNISFTDSKMARY D12/27/2016100020520   C
 12.00  28050DOG


DOYLEFTDSKMARY D12/27/2016100020521   C
 12.00  28051DOG


HUGHES-DUMAS, MAURIANALORI12/27/2016100020522   C
 20.00  PARKING FINES302


KORTE, KIMBERLYLORI12/27/2016100020523   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES302


ANDERSON, JEANNEFTDSKMARY D12/27/2016100020524   C
 12.00  28052DOG
 12.00  28053DOG


24.00 


COLLINSFTDSKMARY D12/27/2016100020526   C
 12.00  28054DOG


GIBSON, DONFTDSKMARY D12/27/2016100020527   C
 12.00  28055DOG


DUTER, WILLIAMFTDSKMARY D12/27/2016100020528   C
 12.00  28056DOG


ADAMS, ANDY & ALLYFTDSKMARY D12/27/2016100020529   C
 12.00  28057DOG


BOZACKI, NICHOLASFTDSKMARY D12/27/2016100020530   C
 12.00  28058DOG
 12.00  28059DOG


24.00 


TAX BATCH 281011LISALISA12/27/2016100020531   C
 599,094.26  PROPERTY TAXES1701


ROBINSON, CHERYL/TOMFTDSKMARY D12/27/2016100020532   C
 12.00  28062DOG


TAX BATCH 281012LISALISA12/27/2016100020533   C
 319,037.93  PROPERTY TAXES1701







RECEIPT REGISTER FOR CITY OF STOUGHTON 37/53Pag
e:


03/08/2017 02:28 PM
User: LANA
DB: Stoughton


Post Date from 12/01/2016 - 12/31/2016   Open And Completed Receipts


 AmountReceived OfWkstnCashierDateReceipt #   
  Distribution   Description


RUTH RICHARDSONLISA H12/27/2016100020534   C
 50.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


BLUELLISA H12/27/2016100020535   C
 32.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


MUEHLEMANNLISA H12/27/2016100020536   C
 31.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


GJERMOLISA H12/27/2016100020537   C
 10.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


STRANDLISA H12/27/2016100020538   C
 50.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


HOWARD, GLENNLISA H12/27/2016100020539   C
 25.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


NELSON, PAULLISA H12/27/2016100020540   C
 21.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


RICHMONDLISA H12/27/2016100020541   C
 30.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


ANDERSON, CLARENCELISA H12/27/2016100020542   C
 25.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


JOHNSON, HELENLISA H12/27/2016100020543   C
 38.75  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


KJERNESLISA H12/27/2016100020544   C
 15.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


EDDINGSAASLISA H12/27/2016100020545   C
 20.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


MASONLISA H12/27/2016100020546   C
 35.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


MASONLISA H12/27/2016100020547   C
 35.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


SCHUMANNLISA H12/27/2016100020548   C
 176.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


BLUELLISA H12/27/2016100020549   C
 32.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


KJERNESLISA H12/27/2016100020550   C
 12.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


JOHNSON, DELORESLISA H12/27/2016100020551   C
 18.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


LARSEN, NEALLISA H12/27/2016100020552   C
 20.00  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


CASH DONATIONLISA H12/27/2016100020553   C
 393.20  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


WERTH, MARTHAFTDSKMARY D12/27/2016100020554   C
 12.00  28063DOG
 12.00  28064DOG


24.00 


JOHNSON, STANLEYFTDSKMARY D12/27/2016100020555   C
 12.00  28065DOG







RECEIPT REGISTER FOR CITY OF STOUGHTON 38/53Pag
e:


03/08/2017 02:28 PM
User: LANA
DB: Stoughton


Post Date from 12/01/2016 - 12/31/2016   Open And Completed Receipts


 AmountReceived OfWkstnCashierDateReceipt #   
  Distribution   Description


TAX BATCH 281010LISALISA12/27/2016100020556   C
 730,713.29  PROPERTY TAXES1701


REEVES, LISAFTDSKMARY D12/27/2016100020557   C
 12.00  28066DOG
 12.00  28067DOG


24.00 


TAX BATCH 281013LISALISA12/27/2016100020558   C
 464,575.33  PROPERTY TAXES1701
 398.77  TAX OVERPAYMENTS1702


464,974.10 


RENOLT, JOYCEFTDSKMARY D12/27/2016100020559   C
 12.00  28068DOG
 12.00  28069DOG


24.00 


BALSAMO COLTONMARY12/27/2016100020560   C
 94.00  PARKING FINES 628VND302


SANKBEIL TYLERMARY12/27/2016100020561   C
 20.00  BAILS/FINES301


SANKBEIL TYLERMARY12/27/2016100020562   C
 167.00  BAILS/FINES301


TAX BATCH 281016LISALISA12/27/2016100020564   C
 501,667.62  PROPERTY TAXES1701


CHURCH, ANTHONYFTDSKJUDI12/28/2016100020563   C
 16.00  28070DOG


SIEGLER, ELROYFTDSKJUDI12/28/2016100020565   C
 12.00  28071DOG


WOOD, WILLIAMBARBI12/28/2016100020566   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 32206302


MALICKI, MATTHEW JFTDSKJUDI12/28/2016100020567   C
 12.00  28072DOG


PLEASANT SPRINGS, TOWN OFLISALISA12/28/2016100020568   C
 42.91  0000002801MR


MADISON, TOWN OF LISALISA12/28/2016100020569   C
 5,694.91  JUNE-AUG SEATBELT GRANTS9901


DUNKIRK, TOWN OFLISALISA12/28/2016100020570   C
 42.91  0000002799MR


CRESS FUNERAL HOMELISALISA12/28/2016100020571   C
 625.00  0000002781MR


REUSCHLEIN, MARY J & CLIFF (RANDY)FTDSKJUDI12/28/2016100020572   C
 16.00  28060DOG
 12.00  28061DOG


28.00 


WHEELOCK, ANNECLERKLANA12/28/2016100020573   C
 15.00  CHICKEN LICENSE906







RECEIPT REGISTER FOR CITY OF STOUGHTON 39/53Pag
e:


03/08/2017 02:28 PM
User: LANA
DB: Stoughton


Post Date from 12/01/2016 - 12/31/2016   Open And Completed Receipts


 AmountReceived OfWkstnCashierDateReceipt #   
  Distribution   Description


MCMASTERS, INGRIDFTDSKJUDI12/28/2016100020574   C
 12.00  28073DOG
 12.00  28074DOG
 12.00  28075DOG
 32.00  COUNTY DOG PARK LICENSE 63099914
 16.00  COUNTY DOG PARK LICENSE 63109914
 16.00  COUNTY DOG PARK LICENSE 63119914


100.00 


TOWNSEND, LINDACLERKLANA12/28/2016100020575   C
 15.00  CHICKEN LICENSE906


GATES, JASON FTDSKJUDI12/28/2016100020576   C
 12.00  28076DOG
 32.00  COUNTY DOG PARK LICENSE 63129914


44.00 


MCGUIRE, JERRY & JANEFTDSKJUDI12/28/2016100020577   C
 12.00  28077DOG


WAY, KATHERINEFTDSKJUDI12/28/2016100020578   C
 12.00  28078DOG
 12.00  28079DOG
 32.00  COUNTY DOG PARK LICENSE 63139914
 16.00  COUNTY DOG PARK LICENSE 63149914


72.00 


WATKINS, TIM AND TERRIFTDSKJUDI12/28/2016100020579   C
 12.00  28080DOG
 12.00  28081DOG
 32.00  COUNTY DOG PARK LICENSE 63159914
 16.00  COUNTY DOG PARK LICENSE 63169914


72.00 


CRANDALL, MARY FTDSKJUDI12/28/2016100020580   C
 12.00  28082DOG


ZIENTEK, VICTORIABARBI12/28/2016100020581   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 32132302


BACHMANN, ASHLEYFTDSKJUDI12/28/2016100020582   C
 12.00  28083DOG


PETERSON, DIANEFTDSKJUDI12/28/2016100020583   C
 12.00  28084DOG
 12.00  28085DOG
 32.00  COUNTY DOG PARK LICENSE 63179914
 16.00  COUNTY DOG PARK LICENSE 63189914


72.00 


SLINDE, MONICA/STEVEFTDSKJUDI12/28/2016100020584   C
 12.00  28086DOG


HILL, JOELLA/DARRENFTDSKJUDI12/28/2016100020585   C
 12.00  28087DOG


BLEYER, YORKFTDSKJUDI12/28/2016100020586   C
 12.00  28088DOG
 32.00  COUNTY DOG PARK LICENSE 63199914







RECEIPT REGISTER FOR CITY OF STOUGHTON 40/53Pag
e:


03/08/2017 02:28 PM
User: LANA
DB: Stoughton


Post Date from 12/01/2016 - 12/31/2016   Open And Completed Receipts


 AmountReceived OfWkstnCashierDateReceipt #   
  Distribution   Description


44.00 


STERBA, BILL C/O ARLENE BONNERFTDSKJUDI12/28/2016100020587   C
 12.00  28089DOG


BURDICK, THOMAS/DORISFTDSKJUDI12/28/2016100020588   C
 12.00  28090DOG


HOPPE, KATHLEEN & RICHARD KIMDEBBIE12/28/2016100020589   C
 55.00  FIRE DEPT TRAINING ROOM RESER9901


BARBER, DONN & SHEILA KIMDEBBIE12/28/2016100020590   C
 50.00  DONATION 9901


COMSTOCK,COLLEENFTDSKJUDI12/28/2016100020591   C
 12.00  28091DOG
 12.00  28092DOG


24.00 


BRITAIN, JENNIFER KIMDEBBIE12/28/2016100020592   C
 375.00  SENIOR CENTER ANNEX RENT9902


FITZPATRICK SELECT SERVICES KIMDEBBIE12/28/2016100020593   C
 35.00  SPECIAL ASSESSMENT REQUEST907


TOFTE, DEBORAHFTDSKJUDI12/28/2016100020594   C
 12.00  28093DOG


THE TITLE TEAM KIMDEBBIE12/28/2016100020595   C
 35.00  SPECIAL ASSESSMENT REQUEST907


KIND, SUE/ROBERTFTDSKJUDI12/28/2016100020596   C
 12.00  28094DOG
 12.00  28095DOG


24.00 


TAX BATCH 281014LISALISA12/28/2016100020597   C
 656,902.25  PROPERTY TAXES1701
 52.75  TAX OVERPAYMENTS1702
 10,363.80  0709-332-0312-0 MADISON PYMT1702


667,318.80 


BECKHAM, ALAN & ABIGAILFTDSKJUDI12/28/2016100020598   C
 12.00  28096DOG
 32.00  COUNTY DOG PARK LICENSE 63209914


44.00 


MCSWEENY, CHRIS & JANEFTDSKJUDI12/28/2016100020599   C
 12.00  28097DOG
 16.00  28098DOG


28.00 


HYNEK, AMYFTDSKJUDI12/28/2016100020600   C
 12.00  28099DOG


AULIKFTDSKMARY D12/28/2016100020601   C
 12.00  28100DOG


SEAMONSON, EDNAFTDSKMARY D12/28/2016100020602   C
 12.00  28101DOG
 12.00  28102DOG







RECEIPT REGISTER FOR CITY OF STOUGHTON 41/53Pag
e:


03/08/2017 02:28 PM
User: LANA
DB: Stoughton


Post Date from 12/01/2016 - 12/31/2016   Open And Completed Receipts


 AmountReceived OfWkstnCashierDateReceipt #   
  Distribution   Description


24.00 


KIND, ROBERTFTDSKMARY D12/28/2016100020603   C
 12.00  28103DOG


TAX BATCH 281015LISALISA12/28/2016100020604   C
 419,145.34  PROPERTY TAXES1701


TAX BATCH 281017LISALISA12/28/2016100020605   C
 318,832.36  PROPERTY TAXES1701
 136.42  TAX OVERPAYMENTS1702


318,968.78 


DYER, GIANNAALEX12/28/2016100020606   C
 62.00  C78072BC3W301


SCHENKENBERG, BOBFTDSKMARY D12/28/2016100020607   C
 12.00  28104DOG


MOODY, JONATHONALEX12/28/2016100020608   C
 30.00  32213302


BATCH 281018LISALISA12/28/2016100020611   C
 443,634.41  PROPERTY TAXES1701
 3,343.18  TAX OVERPAYMENTS1702


446,977.59 


TAX BATCH 281019LISALISA12/28/2016100020612   C
 258,295.52  PROPERTY TAXES1701


KEIFER LAW OFFICESBARBI12/29/2016100020609   C
 6.08  MISC REVENUES304


OWEN, CRAIGBARBI12/29/2016100020610   C
 40.00  PARKING FINES 31910302


KIEFER, TRINAFTDSKJUDI12/29/2016100020613   C
 12.00  28105DOG


ASLESON, JOHNFTDSKJUDI12/29/2016100020614   C
 12.00  28106DOG
 12.00  28107DOG


24.00 


LEISKAU, PETERFTDSKJUDI12/29/2016100020615   C
 12.00  28108DOG


KRUEGER, CHERYL/ROBERTFTDSKJUDI12/29/2016100020616   C
 12.00  28109DOG


SUNNE, KAIAFTDSKJUDI12/29/2016100020617   C
 12.00  28110DOG


IVERSON, ANNEFTDSKJUDI12/29/2016100020618   C
 12.00  28111DOG


JANISCH, CHERREKACLERKLANA12/29/2016100020619   C
 12.00  28112DOG


STURM, GEORGE & CINDICLERKLANA12/29/2016100020620   C
 12.00  28113DOG


CULL, JUSTINBARBI12/29/2016100020621   C
 94.00  DMV FEES 160YJR RENEWAL303







RECEIPT REGISTER FOR CITY OF STOUGHTON 42/53Pag
e:


03/08/2017 02:28 PM
User: LANA
DB: Stoughton


Post Date from 12/01/2016 - 12/31/2016   Open And Completed Receipts


 AmountReceived OfWkstnCashierDateReceipt #   
  Distribution   Description


THOMAS, DAVIDBARBI12/29/2016100020622   C
 180.50  DMV FEES 522ZJH REGISTRATION303


SKOLASKI, BRIANFTDSKMARY D12/29/2016100020623   C
 12.00  28114DOG


KEYS, CHRISTOPHERFTDSKMARY D12/29/2016100020624   C
 16.00  28115DOG
 32.00  COUNTY DOG PARK LICENSE9914


48.00 


DOUDNA, HANNAHBARBI12/29/2016100020625   C
 114.00  DMV FEES 465VEP RENEWAL303


TAX BATCH 281020LISALISA12/29/2016100020626   C
 406,124.15  PROPERTY TAXES1701
 0.03  TAX OVERPAYMENTS1702


406,124.18 


LAPPLEYFTDSKMARY D12/29/2016100020627   C
 12.00  28116DOG


ICARECINDY12/29/2016100020628   C
 160.80  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


CARE WICINDY12/29/2016100020629   C
 160.80  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


CARE WICINDY12/29/2016100020630   C
 1,752.72  MEAL SITE REVENUES801


MARKUSONCINDY12/29/2016100020631   C
 3.00  KITCHEN FUND809


CINDY12/29/2016100020632   C
 211.00  KITCHEN FUND809


CINDY12/29/2016100020633   C
 20.00  LOAN CLOSET806


STOUGHTON SENIOR HOUSING L.P.CINDY12/29/2016100020634   C
 1,000.00  DONATIONS803


CINDY12/29/2016100020635   C
 23.00  DONATIONS803


NELSONCINDY12/29/2016100020636   C
 100.00  SPECIAL GIFT FUND807


KLEMPCINDY12/29/2016100020637   C
 325.00  SPECIAL GIFT FUND807


SCHNEIDERCINDY12/29/2016100020638   C
 100.00  SPECIAL GIFT FUND807


HOFFMANCINDY12/29/2016100020639   C
 100.00  SPECIAL GIFT FUND807


PAULSONCINDY12/29/2016100020640   C
 30.00  SPECIAL GIFT FUND807


PELLETTCINDY12/29/2016100020641   C
 50.00  SPECIAL GIFT FUND807


VENSKECINDY12/29/2016100020642   C







RECEIPT REGISTER FOR CITY OF STOUGHTON 43/53Pag
e:


03/08/2017 02:28 PM
User: LANA
DB: Stoughton


Post Date from 12/01/2016 - 12/31/2016   Open And Completed Receipts


 AmountReceived OfWkstnCashierDateReceipt #   
  Distribution   Description


 100.00  SPECIAL GIFT FUND807


HEGGESTADCINDY12/29/2016100020643   C
 25.00  SPECIAL GIFT FUND807


HARRIEDCINDY12/29/2016100020644   C
 100.00  SPECIAL GIFT FUND807


VENNEVOLLCINDY12/29/2016100020645   C
 100.00  SPECIAL GIFT FUND807


HVAMCINDY12/29/2016100020646   C
 595.00  SPECIAL GIFT FUND807


CINDY12/29/2016100020647   C
 20.00  SPECIAL GIFT FUND807


MEYERCINDY12/29/2016100020648   C
 9.00  NEWSLETTER804


CINDY12/29/2016100020649   C
 22.00  CRAFT SALES805


VENNEVOLLCINDY12/29/2016100020650   C
 100.00  SENIORS IN NEED502


GOHLKECINDY12/29/2016100020651   C
 125.00  SENIORS IN NEED502


KETTLECINDY12/29/2016100020652   C
 1,000.00  SENIORS IN NEED502


TAX BATCH 281022LISALISA12/29/2016100020653   C
 418,690.66  PROPERTY TAXES1701


STEPHENSON, PAIGEFTDSKMARY D12/29/2016100020654   C
 12.00  28117DOG


LANDERS, PAULA & JOHNFTDSKMARY D12/29/2016100020655   C
 12.00  28118DOG


TAX BATCH 281021LISALISA12/29/2016100020656   C
 365,039.38  PROPERTY TAXES1701


ARNOTT, STEPHENCLERKLANA12/29/2016100020657   C
 15.00  CHICKEN LICENSE906


MC NURLAN, RAYMONDALEX12/29/2016100020658   C
 84.00  794GPR303


MCSWEENY, JANECLERKLANA12/29/2016100020659   C
 15.00  CHICKEN LICENSE906


GARTZKE, TIMOTHYALEX12/29/2016100020660   C
 5.00  FINGER PRINTING STO RES307


BUCKLI, MATTFTDSKMARY D12/29/2016100020661   C
 12.00  28119DOG


KENYON, JANFTDSKMARY D12/29/2016100020662   C
 12.00  28120DOG
 32.00  COUNTY DOG PARK LICENSE9914


44.00 


KROHN, FRESH START HOUSEKEEPINGFTDSKMARY D12/29/2016100020663   C
 12.00  28121DOG







RECEIPT REGISTER FOR CITY OF STOUGHTON 44/53Pag
e:


03/08/2017 02:28 PM
User: LANA
DB: Stoughton


Post Date from 12/01/2016 - 12/31/2016   Open And Completed Receipts


 AmountReceived OfWkstnCashierDateReceipt #   
  Distribution   Description


 32.00  COUNTY DOG PARK LICENSE9914


44.00 


LAURETIC, DANIEL & LINDAFTDSKMARY D12/29/2016100020664   C
 12.00  28122DOG
 12.00  28123DOG


24.00 


KELLER, BRENT & BRITTANYFTDSKMARY D12/29/2016100020665   C
 12.00  28124DOG


NOVAK, JOHNFTDSKMARY D12/29/2016100020666   C
 12.00  28125DOG


IRVINGFTDSKMARY D12/29/2016100020667   C
 12.00  28126DOG


BELLON, JAMIEFTDSKMARY D12/29/2016100020668   C
 12.00  28127DOG
 32.00  COUNTY DOG PARK LICENSE9914


44.00 


BRENNUM, TERRI FTDSKMARY D12/29/2016100020669   C
 12.00  28128DOG
 12.00  28129DOG


24.00 


PUNDT, DEBRAFTDSKMARY D12/29/2016100020670   C
 50.00  HOLIDAY FUND503


ANONYMOUSKIMDEBBIE12/29/2016100020671   C
 20.00  CALENDARS9911


EISENBERG LAW OFFICES SCALEX12/29/2016100020672   C
 5.00  DVD OF PHOTOS 16-363389304
 1.08  POSTAGE304


6.08 


KREIDER, JEFFREYALEX12/29/2016100020673   C
 30.00  32248302


LOGAN, HARVEYALEX12/29/2016100020674   C
 20.00  31965302


LANTZ, TODDALEX12/29/2016100020675   C
 30.00  32158302


METROPOLITAN REPORTING BUREAUKARLA12/30/2016100020676   C
 1.00  MISC REVENUES 16-423205304


TRRESS, WILLIAM CKARLA12/30/2016100020677   C
 20.00  PARKING FINES 29437302
 30.00  PARKING FINES 32269302
 30.00  PARKING FINES 31186302


80.00 


MILLER, ANDREAFTDSKLANA12/30/2016100020678   C
 12.00  28130DOG
 32.00  COUNTY DOG PARK LICENSE9914


44.00 







RECEIPT REGISTER FOR CITY OF STOUGHTON 45/53Pag
e:


03/08/2017 02:28 PM
User: LANA
DB: Stoughton


Post Date from 12/01/2016 - 12/31/2016   Open And Completed Receipts


 AmountReceived OfWkstnCashierDateReceipt #   
  Distribution   Description


EDWARDS, JANEFTDSKLANA12/30/2016100020679   C
 12.00  28131DOG


TAX BATCH 281023LISALISA12/30/2016100020680   C
 405,380.77  PROPERTY TAXES1701
 256.32  TAX OVERPAYMENTS1702


405,637.09 


GREVING, MATTHEW LKARLA12/30/2016100020681   C
 197.00  DMV FEES TITLE & 523ZJH303


VENNEVOLL, INCKELLI12/30/2016100020682   C
 100.00  HOLIDAY FUND503


KROPF, LANALISALISA12/30/2016100020683   C
 99.82  REIMBURSE CREDIT CARD CHARGE9901


HOLSINGER, ROBERT & LINDAKELLI12/30/2016100020684   C
 300.00  FOOD PANTRY501


DEAKS PUB & GRILL LLCLISALISA12/30/2016100020685   C
 16.09  0000002787MR


THANE B ANDERSON OFFICE KELLI12/30/2016100020686   C
 120.00  FOOD PANTRY501


YLVISAKER, NORAKELLI12/30/2016100020687   C
 250.00  FOOD PANTRY501


HUNT, PAUL & KATHARINEKELLI12/30/2016100020688   C
 500.00  FOOD PANTRY501


STOUGHTON UTILITIESLISALISA12/30/2016100020690   C
 41,165.46  OCTOBER STORMWATER SERVICE9901
 29,159.30  DECEMBER RETIREMENT9901


70,324.76 


ANONYMOUSKELLI12/30/2016100020691   C
 20.00  FOOD PANTRY501


KUEHN, MARK & JULIEKELLI12/30/2016100020692   C
 75.00  FOOD PANTRY501


HANSEN, JOSEPH & MARYLISKELLI12/30/2016100020693   C
 2,000.00  FOOD PANTRY501


VENNEVOLL, INCKELLI12/30/2016100020694   C
 100.00  FOOD PANTRY501


GORDON, RICKFTDSKLANA12/30/2016100020695   C
 12.00  28132DOG


LIGGETT, JOSEPHKELLI12/30/2016100020696   C
 25.00  FOOD PANTRY501


MCFARLAND STATE BANKKELLI12/30/2016100020697   C
 100.00  FOOD PANTRY501


COOK, LE ANN & GERALDKELLI12/30/2016100020698   C
 100.00  FOOD PANTRY501


HORN, VIRGINIAKELLI12/30/2016100020699   C
 100.00  FOOD PANTRY501


GJERTSON, MARION J KELLI12/30/2016100020700   C







RECEIPT REGISTER FOR CITY OF STOUGHTON 46/53Pag
e:


03/08/2017 02:28 PM
User: LANA
DB: Stoughton


Post Date from 12/01/2016 - 12/31/2016   Open And Completed Receipts


 AmountReceived OfWkstnCashierDateReceipt #   
  Distribution   Description


 10.00  FOOD PANTRY501


MANSON, BEVERLYKELLI12/30/2016100020701   C
 20.00  FOOD PANTRY501


LANGETIEG, DOROTHY KELLI12/30/2016100020702   C
 25.00  FOOD PANTRY501


JANNY, LOIS KELLI12/30/2016100020703   C
 50.00  FOOD PANTRY501


ARNESON, JOHN & DARLENEKELLI12/30/2016100020704   C
 25.00  FOOD PANTRY501


OLSON, LUKEFTDSKLANA12/30/2016100020705   C
 12.00  28133DOG


MOREL, TRACYFTDSKLANA12/30/2016100020706   C
 12.00  28134DOG


CARROLL, TODDFTDSKLANA12/30/2016100020707   C
 12.00  28135DOG
 32.00  COUNTY DOG PARK LICENSE9914


44.00 


FANSHAW, ROBINFTDSKLANA12/30/2016100020708   C
 12.00  28136DOG


STOUGHTON WATERLISALISA12/30/2016100020709   C
 119,710.82  0000002794MR


STOUGHTON ELECTRICLISALISA12/30/2016100020710   C
 17,962.94  0000002793MR


STOUGHTON WASTEWATERLISALISA12/30/2016100020711   C
 33,694.84  0000002795MR


ALEXANDER, JULIEFTDSKLANA12/30/2016100020712   C
 12.00  28137DOG


JACOBSON, DAN & AMYFTDSKLANA12/30/2016100020713   C
 12.00  28138DOG
 32.00  COUNTY DOG PARK LICENSE9914


44.00 


KURT, MARYFTDSKLANA12/30/2016100020714   C
 12.00  28139DOG


JOHNSON, DENISEFTDSKLANA12/30/2016100020715   C
 12.00  28140DOG
 12.00  28141DOG


24.00 


BUTLER, MEGANFTDSKLANA12/30/2016100020716   C
 12.00  28142DOG


WODA, VINCENT AKARLA12/30/2016100020717   C
 84.00  DMV FEES HE1012303


SOKOLIK, AARONKARLA12/30/2016100020718   C
 5.00  K-9 DONATIONS KOOZIE308


SCHECHEL, BEN FTDSKLANA12/30/2016100020719   C
 12.00  28143DOG







RECEIPT REGISTER FOR CITY OF STOUGHTON 47/53Pag
e:


03/08/2017 02:28 PM
User: LANA
DB: Stoughton


Post Date from 12/01/2016 - 12/31/2016   Open And Completed Receipts


 AmountReceived OfWkstnCashierDateReceipt #   
  Distribution   Description


 32.00  COUNTY DOG PARK LICENSE9914


44.00 


KITTLESON, DENNIS & AMYKARLA12/30/2016100020720   C
 108.00  DMV FEES INKWRKS303


MATSON CUSTOM HOMES INC.PLANDESIRE12/30/2016100020721   C
 252.20  ELECTRICAL PERMIT402
 201.76  HEATING PERMIT (HVAC)404
 252.20  PLUMBING PERMIT403
 130.00  BUILDING PERMITS-EROSION401
 40.00  BUILDING PERMITS-OCCUPANCY401
 554.84  BUILDING PERMITS-PLN RVW401
 40.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT-DILHR SL405
 40.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT-ZONING405
 700.00  TREE PLANTINGS - DEVELOPER1206


2,211.00 


MATZ, JAMES & KAYKELLI12/30/2016100020722   C
 150.00  FOOD PANTRY501


SKYLINE CONSTRUCTIONKELLI12/30/2016100020723   C
 500.00  FOOD PANTRY501


DALSOREN, DAVIDFTDSKMARY D12/30/2016100020724   C
 12.00  28144DOG


VANDER SLUIS, CAROLPLANDESIRE12/30/2016100020725   C
 85.00  BUILDING PERMITS401


COVENANT LUTHERAN CHURCH KELLI12/30/2016100020726   C
 70.00  FOOD PANTRY501


RING, ERVIN & MABELKELLI12/30/2016100020728   C
 25.00  FOOD PANTRY501


RING, MARYKELLI12/30/2016100020729   C
 25.00  FOOD PANTRY501


NELSON BUILDING SERVICES LLCPLANDESIRE12/30/2016100020730   C
 170.00  BUILDING PERMITS401
 85.00  ELECTRICAL PERMIT402


255.00 


CARMICHAEL, RICHARDFTDSKMARY D12/30/2016100020731   C
 12.00  28145DOG


CARPENTRY BY DAVE EVERETTPLANDESIRE12/30/2016100020732   C
 40.00  BUILDING PERMITS401


A-TEAM ELECTRIC, LLCPLANDESIRE12/30/2016100020733   C
 40.00  ELECTRICAL PERMIT402


ALL COMFORT SERVICES, INCPLANDESIRE12/30/2016100020734   C
 40.00  HEATING PERMIT (HVAC)404


DAVE JONES, INCPLANDESIRE12/30/2016100020735   C
 40.00  HEATING PERMIT (HVAC)404


EWALD, STEVENFTDSKMARY D12/30/2016100020736   C
 12.00  28146DOG


AHERN FIRE PROTECTION OF MADISONPLANDESIRE12/30/2016100020737   C







RECEIPT REGISTER FOR CITY OF STOUGHTON 48/53Pag
e:


03/08/2017 02:28 PM
User: LANA
DB: Stoughton


Post Date from 12/01/2016 - 12/31/2016   Open And Completed Receipts


 AmountReceived OfWkstnCashierDateReceipt #   
  Distribution   Description


 611.01  FIRE PROTECTION FEES408


SIMONSON, JEFFREYFTDSKMARY D12/30/2016100020738   C
 12.00  28147DOG


R.A. HEATING & AIR CONDITIONING INC.PLANDESIRE12/30/2016100020739   C
 40.00  HEATING PERMIT (HVAC)404


CAS HOLDINGS LLCPLANDESIRE12/30/2016100020740   C
 85.00  MISC BUILDING PERMIT-ZONING405


LIBRARY DEPOSIT KIMDEBBIE12/30/2016100020741   C
 218.25  FINES702
 344.70  FINES702
 99.20  FINES702
 78.88  COPIES701
 78.88  COPIES701
 39.44  COPIES701
 864.99  217-DESIGNATED DONATION704


1,724.34 


HOUTHUIZEN, STEPHANIEFTDSKMARY D12/30/2016100020742   C
 12.00  28148DOG


DANE BUILDING CONCEPTSPLANDESIRE12/30/2016100020743   C
 130.00  BUILDING PERMITS401


EHLE, ROGER & MICHELLEKARLA12/30/2016100020744   C
 84.00  DMV FEES 70323D303


MATHIAS, JULIEFTDSKMARY D12/30/2016100020745   C
 12.00  28149DOG


FELDMAN, SARAHFTDSKMARY D12/30/2016100020746   C
 12.00  28150DOG


TRAUTMAN, IANKARLA12/30/2016100020747   C
 50.00  BAILS/FINES PMT PLAN301


TAX BATCH 281024LISALISA12/30/2016100020748   C
 504,632.29  PROPERTY TAXES1701
 83.33  TAX OVERPAYMENTS1702


504,715.62 


LEA, DEBORAH ANNEKARLA12/30/2016100020749   C
 98.80  BAILS/FINES301


KAHL, THERAN DKARLA12/30/2016100020750   C
 98.80  BAILS/FINES 301


TAX BATCH 281025LISALISA12/30/2016100020751   C
 380,922.60  PROPERTY TAXES1701
 81.66  TAX OVERPAYMENTS1702


381,004.26 


SCHAFFER, REBECCA FTDSKMARY D12/30/2016100020752   C
 12.00  28151DOG


ADLER, LUCASCLERKLANA12/30/2016100020753   C
 15.00  CHICKEN LICENSE906


TAX BATCH 281026LISALISA12/30/2016100020754   C
 419,710.03  PROPERTY TAXES1701







RECEIPT REGISTER FOR CITY OF STOUGHTON 49/53Pag
e:


03/08/2017 02:28 PM
User: LANA
DB: Stoughton


Post Date from 12/01/2016 - 12/31/2016   Open And Completed Receipts


 AmountReceived OfWkstnCashierDateReceipt #   
  Distribution   Description


 72.62  TAX OVERPAYMENTS1702


419,782.65 


RUETH, ERICKELLI12/30/2016100020755   C
 27.00  FOOD PANTRY501


LIGGETT, JOSEPH & SARAHKELLI12/30/2016100020756   C
 70.00  FOOD PANTRY501


MADISON, CITY OFLISALISA12/30/2016100020757   C
 1,867.84  REFUND FOR 2016 RMS ANNL9901


KETTERER, AMYFTDSKMARY D12/30/2016100020758   C
 12.00  28152DOG


METROPOLITAN REPORTING BUREAUBARBI12/30/2016100020759   C
 1.00  MISC REVENUES 16-374523304


LEEMON, SALLYBARBI12/30/2016100020760   C
 100.00  K-9 DONATIONS308


REC DEPOSIT KIMDEBBIE12/30/2016100020761   C
 250.00  PROGRAM FEES1001
 245.00  PROGRAM FEES1001
 1,450.00  PROGRAM FEES1001
 3,360.00  PROGRAM FEES1001
 278.00  INSTRUCTION FEES1003
 60.00  INSTRUCTION FEES1003
 30.00  INSTRUCTION FEES1003
 460.00  INSTRUCTION FEES1003


6,133.00 


STATE OF WI -DEPT OF HEALTHLISALISA12/30/2016100020762   C
 4,622.84  BOTS ENFORCEMENT/SAFETY GRANT9901


JAJE, GINAFTDSKMARY D12/30/2016100020763   C
 12.00  28153DOG
 32.00  COUNTY DOG PARK LICENSE9914


44.00 


LEWIS, AMANDABARBI12/30/2016100020764   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 32095302


HARVEY DOERING, AMANDABARBI12/30/2016100020765   C
 100.00  BAILS/FINES PYAMENT 301


BRASHI, AMYBARBI12/30/2016100020766   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 32243302


MONTGOMERY, KIMBARBI12/30/2016100020767   C
 20.00  PARKING FINES 31938302


BATCH 281027LISALISA12/30/2016100020769   C
 479,739.98  PROPERTY TAXES1701
 8.50  TAX OVERPAYMENTS1702


479,748.48 


PATRINOS, DANIO SKARLA12/31/2016100020768   C
 84.00  DMV FEES 222WRR303


ONEIL, DANIELKARLA12/31/2016100020770   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 30845302







RECEIPT REGISTER FOR CITY OF STOUGHTON 50/53Pag
e:


03/08/2017 02:28 PM
User: LANA
DB: Stoughton


Post Date from 12/01/2016 - 12/31/2016   Open And Completed Receipts


 AmountReceived OfWkstnCashierDateReceipt #   
  Distribution   Description


GLK TRUCKING LLCKARLA12/31/2016100020771   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 32019302


HALE, HESTERKARLA12/31/2016100020772   C
 11.40  BAILS/FINESPMT PLAN301


MILLER, KELLY JOMARY12/31/2016100020773   C
 175.00  DMV FEES 524ZJH303


FENDRICK, THOMASMARY12/31/2016100020774   C
 84.00  DMV FEES 464RLJ303
 93.00  DMV FEES LF4973303


177.00 


DUNN DARREN RMARY12/31/2016100020775   C
 84.00  DMV FEES 284FFY303


ARC FIRE PROTECTIONMARY12/31/2016100020776   C
 30.00  PARKING FINES 32081302


OPERA HOUSE DEPOIST KIMDEBBIE12/31/2016100020787   C
 108.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 720.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 38.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 220.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 478.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 484.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 493.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 1,675.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 828.00  CONV FEE/SHIPPING 9901
 12.50  DONATIONS 9901
 (265.18) GIFT CARDS/CERTIFICATES 9901
 148.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 175.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 398.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 240.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 438.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 542.50  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 600.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 500.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 278.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 523.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 138.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 500.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 270.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 100.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 50.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 150.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 232.50  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 150.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 70.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 132.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 286.00  TICKET SALES - ADVANCE607
 466.27  SALES TAX 9901


11,178.59 


233.53 100-00000-12320 DELINQUENT SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS
*** TOTAL BY GL DISTRIBUTION ***


12,329,250.89 Total of 912 Receipts 







RECEIPT REGISTER FOR CITY OF STOUGHTON 51/53Pag
e:


03/08/2017 02:28 PM
User: LANA
DB: Stoughton


Post Date from 12/01/2016 - 12/31/2016   Open And Completed Receipts


 AmountReceived OfWkstnCashierDateReceipt #   
  Distribution   Description


226.80 100-00000-46752-32457000 REC INSTRUCTION FEES
1,495.60 100-00000-46752-32456800 REC INSTRUCTION FEES


65.03 100-00000-46752-32456500 REC INSTRUCTION FEES
(2.01)100-00000-46752-32456300 REC INSTRUCTION FEES
65.00 100-00000-46752-32456100 REC INSTRUCTION FEES
40.00 100-00000-46752-32455800 REC INSTRUCTION FEES


1,293.72 100-00000-46752-32455300 REC INSTRUCTION FEES
535.00 100-00000-46752-32455100 REC INSTRUCTION FEES
90.00 100-00000-46750-32452200 RECREATION


3,360.00 100-00000-46750-32451800 RECREATION
8,594.00 100-00000-46750-32450900 RECREATION
1,150.50 100-00000-46750-32450800 RECREATION


250.00 100-00000-46750-32450300 RECREATION
252.60 100-00000-46750-32450000 RECREATION
64.06 100-00000-46720-51300000 PARK RESERVATIONS
28.00 100-00000-46610-30300000 NEWSLETTER
140.00 100-00000-46595-10100000 MISC TAXABLE SALES
98.00 100-00000-46590-50400000 TAXABLE CRAFT SALES
875.00 100-00000-46540-42100000 CEMETERY FEES
75.00 100-00000-46430-31200000 STREET OPENING
320.00 100-00000-46309-40600000 ELECTRONIC RECYCLING FEES


8,186.56 100-00000-46290-31000000 MVD FEES
6,580.09 100-00000-46210-31100000 POLICE DEPT FEES


75.00 100-00000-46210-31100000 POLICE DEPT FEES
32.24 100-00000-46210-30800000 POLICE DEPT FEES
910.00 100-00000-46150-41500000 SPECIAL ASSESSMENT ADMIN FEES


6,274.00 100-00000-45130-31100000 PARKING FINES
1,125.00 100-00000-44900-32200000 MISC


611.01 100-00000-44340-32000000 FIRE PROTECTION FEES
987.56 100-00000-44330-32200000 HEATING


1,324.45 100-00000-44320-32200000 PLUMBING
1,379.45 100-00000-44310-32200000 ELECTRICAL
3,947.91 100-00000-44300-32200000 BUILDING


430.00 100-00000-44150-31600000 MISC. LICENSE
300.00 100-00000-44111-31600000 OPERATORS


8,593.00 100-00000-43790-30400000 COUNTY FUNDING - OUTREACH
5,675.48 100-00000-43521-30600000 STATE GRANTS-POLICE
2,800.00 100-00000-42321-16100000 TREE PLANTINGS - DEVELOPER
3,451.60 100-00000-22210 COURT FINES


832.00 100-00000-22111 DANE COUNTY DOG PARK LICENSE
2,472.00 100-00000-22110 DOG LICENSE


29,159.30 100-00000-21515 RETIREMENT PAYABLE
936.89 100-00000-21500 PAYROLL PAYABLE


5,955.61 100-00000-21113 MEAL SITE REVENUES
37,653.98 100-00000-21102 TAX OVERPAYMENTS


11,758,504.72 100-00000-13070 TAXES RECEIVABLE
625.00 100-00000-13025 CEM-O/
123.96 100-00000-13010 VISION
975.00 100-00000-13010 ST OPE


3,410.86 100-00000-13010 RET HE
72.00 100-00000-13010 REC
498.56 100-00000-13010 PW CHA


1.70 100-00000-13010 PENALT
6,243.29 100-00000-13010 NORDIC
1,618.77 100-00000-13010 LIFE I


28.90 100-00000-13010 LGSHLD
85.82 100-00000-13010 ELECTI


24,998.87 100-00000-13010 DEAN
725.92 100-00000-13010 CO YOU
157.82 100-00000-13010 AFLAC







RECEIPT REGISTER FOR CITY OF STOUGHTON 52/53Pag
e:


03/08/2017 02:28 PM
User: LANA
DB: Stoughton


Post Date from 12/01/2016 - 12/31/2016   Open And Completed Receipts


 AmountReceived OfWkstnCashierDateReceipt #   
  Distribution   Description


1,137.50 245-00000-26500-50217015 PREPAID TICKET REVENUE
913.00 245-00000-26500-50217014 PREPAID TICKET REVENUE
20.00 245-00000-26500-50217013 PREPAID TICKET REVENUE


3,238.00 245-00000-26500-50217012 PREPAID TICKET REVENUE
1,205.50 245-00000-26500-50217011 PREPAID TICKET REVENUE


440.00 245-00000-26500-50217010 PREPAID TICKET REVENUE
1,697.50 245-00000-26500-50217009 PREPAID TICKET REVENUE


402.50 245-00000-26500-50217008 PREPAID TICKET REVENUE
1,558.00 245-00000-26500-50217007 PREPAID TICKET REVENUE
1,087.50 245-00000-26500-50217006 PREPAID TICKET REVENUE


108.00 245-00000-26500-50217005 PREPAID TICKET REVENUE
246.00 245-00000-26500-50217004 PREPAID TICKET REVENUE
952.00 245-00000-26500-50217003 PREPAID TICKET REVENUE
970.00 245-00000-26500-50217002 PREPAID TICKET REVENUE


1,433.00 245-00000-26500-50217001 PREPAID TICKET REVENUE
7,395.06 245-00000-21108 GIFT CERTIFICATES - OPERA HOUSE
1,867.92 245-00000-21104 SALES TAX PAYABLE - O.H.


598.34 243-00000-48114 DIVIDENDS
345.00 242-00000-46110 MISC. REVENUE
102.50 241-52400-50252-70200000 CPR
205.00 241-00000-48500-70200000 DONATIONS-CPR


27,970.75 234-00000-48550 DONATIONS
3,147.03 233-00000-48560 HOLIDAY FUND DONATIONS


40.00 232-00000-48513 DONATIONS - LOAN CLOSET
1,695.00 232-00000-48502 SPECIAL GIFT FUND: SENIOR CENT
1,500.00 231-00000-48561 DONATIONS - SENIORS IN NEED
3,284.00 230-00000-43791 OTHER COUNTY GRANTS


119.88 224-00000-13010 SW FEE
41,165.46 224-00000-13010 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE
5,414.35 223-00000-42190 IMPACT FEE - IMPROVEMENTS


720.00 223-00000-13010 911
966.04 217-00000-48500 DONATIONS
64.25 217-00000-48500 DONATIONS
165.34 215-00000-46712-51000000 COPY MACHINE
165.34 215-00000-46712-50900000 COPY MACHINE
82.67 215-00000-46712-20400000 COPY MACHINE
784.17 215-00000-46710-51000000 FINES
497.15 215-00000-46710-50900000 FINES
225.97 215-00000-46710-20400000 FINES


18,592.64 207-00000-13010 KPW2
(133.28)100-55300-50344-32400000 OPERATING EXPENSES-ACTIVE NET


43.74 100-52100-50390-30700000 UNIFORM ALLOWANCE
1,867.84 100-52100-50215-30800000 OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS


99.82 100-51420-50340-40800000 OPERATING EXPENSES
690.30 100-00000-48542-30900000 SHOP WITH A COP
100.00 100-00000-48522-32500000 DONATIONS - YOUTH CENTER


2,189.00 100-00000-48505-50400000 DONATIONS - CENTER
3,000.00 100-00000-48504-50400000 DONATIONS - TOWNSHIPS
3,000.00 100-00000-48504-30500000 DONATIONS - TOWNSHIPS
3,000.00 100-00000-48504-30300000 DONATIONS - TOWNSHIPS


820.00 100-00000-48503-30500000 DONATIONS- KITCHEN FUND
6,030.00 100-00000-48501-30500000 DC NUTRITION CONTRACT


169.12 100-00000-48400-10100000 INSURANCE RECOVERIES-PROPERTY
1,033.00 100-00000-48220-41900000 RENTAL INCOME


79.39 100-00000-48130-10100000 INTEREST - ASSESSMENTS
39,120.00 100-00000-48114-10100000 DIVIDENDS
1,150.00 100-00000-46759-50100000 VIDEO PRODUCTION SERVICES


675.00 100-00000-46756-50100000 UNDERWRITING
446.90 100-00000-46752-32457400 REC INSTRUCTION FEES
150.00 100-00000-46752-32457100 REC INSTRUCTION FEES







RECEIPT REGISTER FOR CITY OF STOUGHTON 53/53Pag
e:


03/08/2017 02:28 PM
User: LANA
DB: Stoughton


Post Date from 12/01/2016 - 12/31/2016   Open And Completed Receipts


 AmountReceived OfWkstnCashierDateReceipt #   
  Distribution   Description


12,329,250.89 TOTAL - ALL FUNDS:                 


404.94 603 EMS
17,423.98 411 BUILDING MAINTENANCE FUND


143,238.29 400 CONSTRUCTION FUND
139.00 252 K9 FUND


49,648.82 245 OPERA HOUSE FUND
598.34 243 FIRE PENSION FUND
345.00 242 FIRE DEPT SPECIAL FUND
307.50 241 EMS TRUST FUND


27,970.75 234 FOOD PANTRY
3,147.03 233 HOLIDAY FUND
1,735.00 232 SENIOR CENTER SPECIAL FUND
1,500.00 231 SENIORS IN NEED
3,284.00 230 TOWNSHIP OUTREACH FUND


41,285.34 224 STORM SEWER FUND
6,134.35 223 PARK DEVELOPMENT FUND
1,030.29 217 LIBRARY SPECIAL GIFT FUND
1,920.64 215 LIBRARY FUND


18,592.64 207 TID #7 FUND
12,010,544.98 100 GENERAL FUND


*** TOTAL BY FUND ***


12,329,250.89 TOTAL - ALL GL NUMBERS:            


44.00 603-52300-50340-30100000 OPERATING EXPENSES
100.00 603-52300-50220-30100000 UTILITIES
260.94 603-52300-50212-30100000 TRAVEL/CONFERENCE
115.00 411-00000-48221 RENTAL INCOME - ROOM USE


2,475.00 411-00000-48220 RENTAL INCOME-SR CENTER ANNEX
14,833.98 411-00000-13010 RENT
7,500.00 400-00000-43524-14028000 GRANTS


135,738.29 400-00000-13010 VAN 16
139.00 252-00000-48541 DONATIONS- POLICE DEPT.
89.84 245-00000-48500-50210207 DONATIONS


2,369.00 245-00000-46920-50210207 MEMBERSHIPS
3,334.00 245-00000-46745-50210207 REVENUE-FEES


922.00 245-00000-46742-50216527 TICKET SALES
690.00 245-00000-46742-50216520 TICKET SALES
180.00 245-00000-46742-50216507 TICKET SALES


1,271.00 245-00000-46742-50216503 TICKET SALES
2,362.50 245-00000-26500-50217030 PREPAID TICKET REVENUE


176.00 245-00000-26500-50217029 PREPAID TICKET REVENUE
1,188.00 245-00000-26500-50217028 PREPAID TICKET REVENUE


269.00 245-00000-26500-50217027 PREPAID TICKET REVENUE
1,020.00 245-00000-26500-50217025 PREPAID TICKET REVENUE
1,753.00 245-00000-26500-50217024 PREPAID TICKET REVENUE


650.00 245-00000-26500-50217023 PREPAID TICKET REVENUE
3,438.00 245-00000-26500-50217022 PREPAID TICKET REVENUE


684.00 245-00000-26500-50217021 PREPAID TICKET REVENUE
726.00 245-00000-26500-50217020 PREPAID TICKET REVENUE


1,625.00 245-00000-26500-50217019 PREPAID TICKET REVENUE
450.00 245-00000-26500-50217018 PREPAID TICKET REVENUE


1,155.00 245-00000-26500-50217017 PREPAID TICKET REVENUE
625.00 245-00000-26500-50217016 PREPAID TICKET REVENUE







Approved by State Board of Accounts for the Stoughton City, 2014


JOURNALS REPORT


FOR POST DATES FROM 12/01/2016 TO 12/31/2016


03/08/2017 02:30 PM
User: LANA
DB: Stoughton


Page: 1/4


CR Amount DR Amount GL DescriptionGL NumberDescriptionJournalPost Date


Ref Num1: '2782'   CRJE12/02/2016
GL Trx #: 48272


124.00PRIMARY CHECKING100-00000-11100WEB PAYMENT - BOYES - C946684-4
124.00COURT FINES100-00000-22210WEB PAYMENT - BOYES - C946684-4


124.00124.00


Ref Num1: '2785'   CRJE12/05/2016
GL Trx #: 48347


20.00PRIMARY CHECKING100-00000-11100WEB PAYMENT - PERCIVAL - I5005910
20.00COURT FINES100-00000-22210WEB PAYMENT - PERCIVAL - I5005910


20.0020.00


Ref Num1: '2786'   CRJE12/06/2016
GL Trx #: 48364


50.00PRIMARY CHECKING100-00000-11100WEB PAYMENT - SCHUSTER - J652354-3
50.00COURT FINES100-00000-22210WEB PAYMENT - SCHUSTER - J652354-3


50.0050.00


Ref Num1: '2787'   CRJE12/07/2016
GL Trx #: 48365


111.40PRIMARY CHECKING100-00000-11100WEB PAYMENT - RICHARDSON - C950250-0
111.40COURT FINES100-00000-22210WEB PAYMENT - RICHARDSON - C950250-0


111.40111.40


Ref Num1: '2797'   CRJE12/14/2016
GL Trx #: 48787


10.00PRIMARY CHECKING100-00000-11100WEB PAYMENT -DOPKINS-C949902-2
10.00COURT FINES100-00000-22210WEB PAYMENT -DOPKINS-C949902-2


10.0010.00


Ref Num1: '2798'   CRJE12/14/2016
GL Trx #: 48788


98.80PRIMARY CHECKING100-00000-11100WEB PAYMENT-KLINGAMAN - C949991-0
98.80COURT FINES100-00000-22210WEB PAYMENT-KLINGAMAN - C949991-0


98.8098.80


Ref Num1: '2804'   CRJE12/15/2016
GL Trx #: 48844


100.00PRIMARY CHECKING100-00000-11100WEB PAYMENT-VALDEZ - PAY PLAN
100.00COURT FINES100-00000-22210WEB PAYMENT-VALDEZ - PAY PLAN


100.00100.00







Approved by State Board of Accounts for the Stoughton City, 2014


JOURNALS REPORT


FOR POST DATES FROM 12/01/2016 TO 12/31/2016


03/08/2017 02:30 PM
User: LANA
DB: Stoughton


Page: 2/4


CR Amount DR Amount GL DescriptionGL NumberDescriptionJournalPost Date


Ref Num1: '2805'   CRJE12/16/2016
GL Trx #: 48845


30.00PRIMARY CHECKING100-00000-11100WEB PAYMENT-TURNER-31131
30.00COURT FINES100-00000-22210WEB PAYMENT-TURNER-31131


30.0030.00


Ref Num1: '2807'   CRJE12/19/2016
GL Trx #: 49153


98.80PRIMARY CHECKING100-00000-11100WEB PAYMENT - HEFFRON-CLARK D593213-5
98.80COURT FINES100-00000-22210WEB PAYMENT - HEFFRON-CLARK D593213-5


98.8098.80


Ref Num1: '2808'   CRJE12/21/2016
GL Trx #: 49429


30.00PRIMARY CHECKING100-00000-11100WEB PAYMENT-KUNTZ - 31182
30.00COURT FINES100-00000-22210WEB PAYMENT-KUNTZ - 31182


30.0030.00


Ref Num1: '2809'   CRJE12/21/2016
GL Trx #: 49430


30.00PRIMARY CHECKING100-00000-11100WEB PAYMENT - BRAUND - 30592
30.00COURT FINES100-00000-22210WEB PAYMENT - BRAUND - 30592


30.0030.00


Ref Num1: '2815'   CRJE12/28/2016
GL Trx #: 49853


40.00PRIMARY CHECKING100-00000-11100WEB PAYMENT - VEUM - 31795
40.00COURT FINES100-00000-22210WEB PAYMENT - VEUM - 31795


40.0040.00


Ref Num1: '2816'   CRJE12/28/2016
GL Trx #: 49854


1,321.00PRIMARY CHECKING100-00000-11100WEB PAYMENT - NYE - C78068VNOP
1,321.00COURT FINES100-00000-22210WEB PAYMENT - NYE - C78068VNOP


1,321.001,321.00


Ref Num1: '2817'   CRJE12/28/2016
GL Trx #: 49855


20.00PRIMARY CHECKING100-00000-11100WEB PAYMENT - MORTON - C948011-1
20.00COURT FINES100-00000-22210WEB PAYMENT - MORTON - C948011-1


20.0020.00







Approved by State Board of Accounts for the Stoughton City, 2014


JOURNALS REPORT


FOR POST DATES FROM 12/01/2016 TO 12/31/2016


03/08/2017 02:30 PM
User: LANA
DB: Stoughton


Page: 3/4


CR Amount DR Amount GL DescriptionGL NumberDescriptionJournalPost Date


Ref Num1: '2818'   CRJE12/28/2016
GL Trx #: 49856


20.00PRIMARY CHECKING100-00000-11100WEB PAYMENT - MORTON - C948011-1
20.00COURT FINES100-00000-22210WEB PAYMENT - MORTON - C948011-1


20.0020.00


Ref Num1: '2939'   CRJE12/31/2016
GL Trx #: 50818


33,788.11PRIMARY CHECKING603-00000-11100TO RECORD EMS DEPOSITS TO BANK
33,788.11AMBULANCE RECEIVEABLES603-00000-13016TO RECORD EMS DEPOSITS TO BANK


33,788.1133,788.11


Ref Num1: '2941'   CRJE12/31/2016
GL Trx #: 50820


604.91PRIMARY CHECKING100-00000-11100TO RECORD UNITED WAY PAYMENT
604.91UNITED WAY DONATIONS100-00000-48524-32500000TO RECORD UNITED WAY PAYMENT


604.91604.91


Ref Num1: '2942'   CRJE12/31/2016
GL Trx #: 50821


4,857.00PRIMARY CHECKING300-00000-11100RECORD MCCI LOAN PAYMENT
4,857.00MCCI LEASE PAYMENTS300-00000-48250-41700000RECORD MCCI LOAN PAYMENT


4,857.004,857.00


Ref Num1: '2989'   CRJE12/31/2016
GL Trx #: 51209


2,682.01PRIMARY CHECKING100-00000-11100TO RECORD COURT TRIP PAYMENT
2,682.01COURT FINES100-00000-22210TO RECORD COURT TRIP PAYMENT


2,682.012,682.01


Ref Num1: '2990'   CRJE12/31/2016
GL Trx #: 51221


21,560.00PRIMARY CHECKING100-00000-11100RECORD 4TH QTR TRANSIT PAYMENT
21,560.00TAXI GRANT100-00000-43537-20300000RECORD 4TH QTR TRANSIT PAYMENT


21,560.0021,560.00


Ref Num1: '2992'   CRJE12/31/2016
GL Trx #: 51223


670.59PRIMARY CHECKING100-00000-11100TO RECORD DIVIDEND - WISC
670.59INTEREST100-00000-48110-41600000TO RECORD DIVIDEND - WISC


670.59670.59







Approved by State Board of Accounts for the Stoughton City, 2014


JOURNALS REPORT


FOR POST DATES FROM 12/01/2016 TO 12/31/2016


03/08/2017 02:30 PM
User: LANA
DB: Stoughton


Page: 4/4


CR Amount DR Amount GL DescriptionGL NumberDescriptionJournalPost Date


Ref Num1: '2995'   CRJE12/31/2016
GL Trx #: 51226


1,240.27PRIMARY CHECKING603-00000-11100TO RECORD EMS TRIP PAYMENT
1,240.27ADVANCE FROM GENERAL FUND603-00000-25300TO RECORD EMS TRIP PAYMENT


1,240.271,240.27


67,506.8967,506.89GRAND TOTAL:


1,240.27603-00000-25300ADVANCE FROM GENERAL FUND
33,788.11603-00000-13016AMBULANCE RECEIVEABLES


35,028.38603-00000-11100PRIMARY CHECKING
4,857.00300-00000-48250-41700000MCCI LEASE PAYMENTS


4,857.00300-00000-11100PRIMARY CHECKING
604.91100-00000-48524-32500000UNITED WAY DONATIONS
670.59100-00000-48110-41600000INTEREST


21,560.00100-00000-43537-20300000TAXI GRANT
4,786.01100-00000-22210COURT FINES


27,621.51100-00000-11100PRIMARY CHECKING
TOTALS:


67,506.8967,506.89







CHECK REGISTER FOR CITY OF STOUGHTON 1/5Page: 03/08/2017 02:31 PM
User: LANA
DB: Stoughton


CHECK DATE FROM 12/01/2016 - 12/31/2016


AmountVendor NameVendorCheckBankCheck Date


Bank 3 PRIMARY CHECKING


46.94 AIRGAS USA LLC00011156479312/01/2016
1,083.28 ALLIANT ENERGY/WP&L00011556480312/01/2016


363.00 ASSOCIATED BANK, NA00514256481312/01/2016
914.14 BADGER UTILITY00570256482312/01/2016
304.91 CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS00022356483312/01/2016
90.00 JEFFRY CHASE00022556484312/01/2016
86.68 CINTAS CORPORATION #44600023756485312/01/2016


2,000.00 CASEY COATS00413356486312/01/2016
565.66 D'ORAZIO CLEANING SUPPLY INC00031656487312/01/2016
282.92 DANE COUNTY LANDFILL SITE #200138656488312/01/2016
30.00 DANE COUNTY REGISTER OF DEEDS00028256489312/01/2016
30.00 DANE COUNTY REGISTER OF DEEDS00028256490312/01/2016
60.00 DANE COUNTY TREASURER00421456491312/01/2016
288.00 DANE COUNTY TREASURER00028456492312/01/2016


2,148.74 DANE COUNTY TREASURER - LAND C00028656493312/01/2016
2,759.95 DECKER SUPPLY CO INC00029856494312/01/2016


909.46 EARTHLINK BUSINESS00322756495312/01/2016
24,727.00 EWALD'S HARTFORD FORD LINCOLN00034556496312/01/2016


384.93 EZ OFFICE PRODUCTS00034656497312/01/2016
56.63 FOSDAL BAKERY LLC00036556498312/01/2016
260.08 GALL'S INC00038656499312/01/2016


14,139.98 GENERAL COMMUNICATIONS INC.00039256500312/01/2016
650.00 GROTE DEUTSCH & CO INC00041956501312/01/2016
202.50 H & H INDUSTRIES, INC00544456502312/01/2016
227.00 HANSON PEST MANAGEMENT00043256503312/01/2016
809.50 INKWORKS INC00047256504312/01/2016


2,389.75 JIMS TREE SERVICE INC00469756505312/01/2016
250.00 DAVID KALLAND00050556506312/01/2016
487.93 KAYSER AUTOMOTIVE GROUP00050856507312/01/2016


1,140.00 KROGER00572056508312/01/2016
36.75 LANGUAGE LINE SERVICES00054556509312/01/2016
300.00 MADISON INTERNATIONAL SPEEDWAY00529856510312/01/2016


1,677.40 MIKE'S CARPET SERVICE00061956511312/01/2016
1,750.00 MIPSO, LLC00543656512312/01/2016


878.54 BILL NEITZEL00540256513312/01/2016
192.00 O'BRION AGENCY LLC00218656514312/01/2016


5.69 O'REILLY AUTO PARTS00544356515312/01/2016
170.67 OFFICE DEPOT00066856516312/01/2016


2,000.00 PARADIGM MUSIC LLC00467356517312/01/2016
20.00 ED PASCHALL00561256518312/01/2016
225.00 PEERLESS FIRE PROTECTION CO00542456519312/01/2016


20,750.00 RAMAKER & ASSOCIATES INC00073556520312/01/2016
733.04 REINDERS INC.00164256521312/01/2016
62.43 RICOH USA INC00121556522312/01/2016
185.00 ROSENBAUM CRUSHING & EXCAVATIN00077356523312/01/2016
156.00 SOILS & ENGINEERING SERVICES INC00276356524312/01/2016


2,500.00 SOUTHERN WI EMERGENCY ASSOC.00082856525312/01/2016
124.08 STOUGHTON MUNICIPAL UTILITIES00086256526312/01/2016


43,242.34 STRAND ASSOCIATES INC00086956527312/01/2016
1,000.00 THE PEOPLE BROTHERS BAND00504956528312/01/2016
1,000.00 THE PEOPLE BROTHERS BAND00504956529312/01/2016


V750.00 THE PEOPLE BROTHERS BAND00504956530312/01/2016
300.00 TRUCK SPECIALTY & DETAIL00520356531312/01/2016
25.26 U.S. CELLULAR00132656532312/01/2016
144.00 UNITED WAY OF DANE COUNTY00093556533312/01/2016
250.00 ERIK VEUM00570056534312/01/2016


1,205.00 VIERBICHER ASSOCIATES INC00095956535312/01/2016
220.00 WEB-NET00222856536312/01/2016


8,100.00 WELLS FARGO BANK N.A.00041356537312/01/2016
810.00 WISC DEPT OF REVENUE - MADISON00100156538312/01/2016
65.00 WISC DEPT OF TRANSP-TV & RP UN00100456539312/01/2016
90.00 WISCONSIN COMMUNITY MEDIA00554556540312/01/2016


1,079.20 WOODWARD COMMUNITY MEDIA00092956541312/01/2016
250.00 YELLOWCAR MUSIC, LLC00572256542312/01/2016
388.70 AFLAC00412156543312/08/2016
72.00 ALERE TOXICOLOGY SERVICES INC00255456544312/08/2016
325.46 ALLIANT ENERGY/WP&L00011556545312/08/2016
150.00 LARRY ANDERSON00381656546312/08/2016
102.16 ASLESON'S HARDWARE00014056547312/08/2016
255.26 AT&T00014356548312/08/2016
998.00 AZTLAND LLC00240556549312/08/2016
80.00 B&H LAWNCARE00506656550312/08/2016


7,000.00 DAVID BACHOLL00394056551312/08/2016
222.75 BELCO VEHICLE SOLUTIONS LLC00314456552312/08/2016
200.00 BLISS COMMUNICATIONS INC00386656553312/08/2016
78.00 BOARDMAN & CLARK  LLP00527456554312/08/2016
94.93 CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS00022356555312/08/2016
90.00 JEFFRY CHASE00022556556312/08/2016







CHECK REGISTER FOR CITY OF STOUGHTON 2/5Page: 03/08/2017 02:31 PM
User: LANA
DB: Stoughton


CHECK DATE FROM 12/01/2016 - 12/31/2016


AmountVendor NameVendorCheckBankCheck Date


1,077.50 CHEM-DRY OF MADISON00177156557312/08/2016
1,079.00 CLARITY CLEANERS LLC00241656558312/08/2016


480.00 CLOUD CULT BAND, LLC00571456559312/08/2016
313.76 COMDATA CORPORATION00024856560312/08/2016
500.00 CUSTOM SERVICE INFORMATION LLC00389656561312/08/2016


1,248.90 DANE COUNTY TREASURER00028456562312/08/2016
8,354.73 DANE COUNTY TREASURER00028456563312/08/2016


97.00 DEAN CLINIC00299956564312/08/2016
1,133.28 DEAN MEDICAL CENTER00388056565312/08/2016


406.08 CHRISTINA DOLLHAUSEN00572756566312/08/2016
87.59 ELLIS MANUFACTURING00354956567312/08/2016
35.42 EZ OFFICE PRODUCTS00034656568312/08/2016


11,371.45 F.D.S. ENTERPRISES INC00385956569312/08/2016
50.00 KYLE FELDMANN00503056570312/08/2016
27.46 FULL COMPASS SYSTEMS LTD00038156571312/08/2016
184.72 GALL'S INC00038656572312/08/2016


14,738.03 GENERAL COMMUNICATIONS INC.00039256573312/08/2016
100.00 SCOTT GESCHKE00537656574312/08/2016
160.00 ALAN GRAVEEN00438556575312/08/2016
369.00 GREATLAND00549256576312/08/2016
100.00 BENJAMIN GREIBER00573056577312/08/2016


4,018.20 GWB PROFESSIONAL SERVICES00554056578312/08/2016
45.00 MICHAEL HECHT00329956579312/08/2016
45.00 MICHAEL HECHT00329956580312/08/2016
133.29 MIKE OR SUSAN HEGER00413056581312/08/2016
212.75 INKWORKS INC00047256582312/08/2016
100.00 ANTHONY IRBY00572956583312/08/2016


1,187.50 JCOMP TECHNOLOGIES INC00048756584312/08/2016
229.08 JOHNSON CONTROLS00049556585312/08/2016
396.25 KROGER00572056586312/08/2016
113.98 KEITH KVALHEIM00249156587312/08/2016
100.00 CHRISTOPHER LAW00531256588312/08/2016
510.00 SARA LENZ00509656589312/08/2016
85.00 KATHY LYONS00572156590312/08/2016


2,091.00 MASIMO AMERICAS INC.00302456591312/08/2016
668.50 MERCY HEALTH SYSTEM00570556592312/08/2016
678.54 BILL NEITZEL00540256593312/08/2016
62.82 NEXT GENERATION00317456594312/08/2016
150.00 TOWN OF PLEASANT SPRINGS00071156595312/08/2016


7.50 PRIZE IMPRESSIONS LLC00072056596312/08/2016
38.00 PROMOTIONS BY YOLANDA00263156597312/08/2016
603.86 PROTECTION TECHNOLOGIES INC00072556598312/08/2016
165.00 KARINE REDMAN00572556599312/08/2016
903.74 ROYAL OAK & ASSOCIATES, INC00567556600312/08/2016
157.86 SAFELITE AUTOGLASS00307556601312/08/2016
157.86 SAFELITE FULFILLMENT INC.00078356602312/08/2016
225.00 SANIMAX USA INC00153556603312/08/2016
125.00 TIMOTHY W SCHMIDT00378156604312/08/2016
75.00 AMBER SCHNEIDER00571856605312/08/2016
868.99 SMOKEY'S AUTO BODY00572456606312/08/2016


3,000.00 SOUTHWIND MUSIC INC00082956607312/08/2016
214,373.30 SPEEDWAY SAND & GRAVEL00572356608312/08/2016


9,612.13 SPRINGSTED INC00314156609312/08/2016
19,674.92 STAFFORD ROSENBAUM LLP00213956610312/08/2016


200.00 STOUGHTON GARDEN CENTER00085656611312/08/2016
112.00 STOUGHTON HOSPITAL00085856612312/08/2016
218.79 STOUGHTON LUMBER COMPANY00086156613312/08/2016
138.24 STOUGHTON MUNICIPAL UTILITIES00086256614312/08/2016


4,053.40 STOUGHTON TRAILERS INC00497356615312/08/2016
165.00 CITY OF STOUGHTON00227856616312/08/2016
984.00 STREICHER'S00087556617312/08/2016


1,500.00 THE WAY DOWN WANDERERS00563856618312/08/2016
41.58 TOTAL WATER TREATMENT SYS INC00091656619312/08/2016
236.25 U.S. CELLULAR00132656620312/08/2016


10,459.89 VANDEWALLE & ASSOCIATES INC00142956621312/08/2016
130.00 VAXPRO00570356622312/08/2016


5.40 VERIZON WIRELESS00214756623312/08/2016
450.00 VON BRIESEN & ROPER, SC00522756624312/08/2016
16.75 WAL-MART STORES INC00097056625312/08/2016
50.00 JOSEPH WEINER00573156626312/08/2016


2,953.75 WISC DEPT OF ADMIN-MIL00099556627312/08/2016
240.00 WISCONSIN LOGOS, LLC00475456628312/08/2016
16.19 WOODWARD COMMUNITY MEDIA00092956629312/08/2016


5,876.64 US BANK CORPORATE PAYMENT SYSTEMS004692258(E)312/09/2016
16,820.42 US BANK CORPORATE PAYMENT SYSTEMS004692259(E)312/09/2016


570.90 US BANK CORPORATE PAYMENT SYSTEMS004692260(E)312/09/2016
80.00 HETAHER ACE00573256693312/15/2016
21.44 AIRGAS USA LLC00011156694312/15/2016


2,773.94 ALLIANT ENERGY/WP&L00011556695312/15/2016
V1,475.00 DIANNE ANDERSON00350156696312/15/2016


22.98 ASLESON'S HARDWARE00014056697312/15/2016







CHECK REGISTER FOR CITY OF STOUGHTON 3/5Page: 03/08/2017 02:31 PM
User: LANA
DB: Stoughton


CHECK DATE FROM 12/01/2016 - 12/31/2016


AmountVendor NameVendorCheckBankCheck Date


144.12 AT&T00014356698312/15/2016
3.22 AT&T MOBILITY00376756699312/15/2016
7.50 BADGER UTILITY00570256700312/15/2016


5,703.00 BAKER TILLY VIRCHOW KRAUSE LLP00096356701312/15/2016
430.31 CINTAS CORPORATION #44600023756702312/15/2016
64.00 CITY OF VERONA 00573456703312/15/2016
283.89 CORPORATE BUSINESS SYSTEMS00308356704312/15/2016


6,639.20 DECKER SUPPLY CO INC00029856705312/15/2016
433.90 DEERFIELD PISTOL CENTER00573756706312/15/2016
400.00 ESRI INC00034356707312/15/2016
179.00 EUGSTER FARM MARKET INC00161956708312/15/2016


6.07 EZ OFFICE PRODUCTS00034656709312/15/2016
55.69 GALL'S INC00038656710312/15/2016
259.99 GENERAL COMMUNICATIONS INC.00039256711312/15/2016
32.00 HANSON PEST MANAGEMENT00043256712312/15/2016


2,000.00 HIGH ROAD TOURING LLC00151056713312/15/2016
7.00 HOMEGROWN EXCHANGE LLC00574056714312/15/2016


1,600.00 INDUSTRIAL ROOFING SERVICES00572656715312/15/2016
451.25 JCOMP TECHNOLOGIES INC00048756716312/15/2016
159.40 JEFFERSON FIRE & SAFETY INC00048856717312/15/2016
11.00 LISA JESS00418856718312/15/2016


3,357.50 JIMS TREE SERVICE INC00469756719312/15/2016
57,824.00 JOHNS DISPOSAL SERVICE INC00241456720312/15/2016


119.95 KAYSER AUTOMOTIVE GROUP00050856721312/15/2016
892.50 GAIL KLEIN00569256722312/15/2016
520.00 KOFFEE KUP00116856723312/15/2016
584.04 KROGER00572056724312/15/2016
565.47 LAKESIDE INTERNATIONAL LLC00478256725312/15/2016
16.00 DAVID LECK00488456726312/15/2016
128.10 MEDICAL ENVIRONMENTAL RECOVERY INC00573656727312/15/2016
500.00 MEITNERS LAND SERVICE LLC00060856728312/15/2016
360.00 TOM NAUMAN00326856729312/15/2016


1,000.00 NEOFUNDS BY NEOPOST00561156730312/15/2016
76.93 O'REILLY AUTO PARTS00544356731312/15/2016
117.20 OFFICE DEPOT00066856732312/15/2016
70.00 PARISH, REOLA00291956733312/15/2016
59.22 MIKE POINT00508056734312/15/2016
460.00 POMP'S TIRE- MONONA00554156735312/15/2016
553.72 RHOMAR INDUSTRIES00405856736312/15/2016
40.02 RICOH USA INC00121556737312/15/2016
57.00 RIDGEWOOD ORCHARD00075956738312/15/2016
72.00 ROSENBAUM CRUSHING & EXCAVATIN00077356739312/15/2016
12.00 ESTHER SCHROEDER00574156740312/15/2016


5,219.76 STOUGHTON CHAMBER OF COMMERCE00085056741312/15/2016
868.09 STOUGHTON FLORAL INC00085556742312/15/2016
588.00 STOUGHTON HOSPITAL00085856743312/15/2016


22,503.55 STOUGHTON MUNICIPAL UTILITIES00086256744312/15/2016
18,269.15 STOUGHTON VISITOR SERVICES00193756745312/15/2016


36.17 ROGER STRANDLIE00561856746312/15/2016
12,136.00 SUTTLE STRAUS00573556747312/15/2016
1,716.30 TICKETFORCE LLC00422756748312/15/2016


600.00 TOM GULLICKSON INC00497256749312/15/2016
68.30 TOTAL WATER TREATMENT SYS INC00091656750312/15/2016
50.00 ELIZA TYKSINSKI00573956751312/15/2016
184.77 UNEMPLOYMENT INSURANCE00032856752312/15/2016
164.00 UW HEALTH00573856753312/15/2016


2,720.00 VIERBICHER ASSOCIATES INC00095956754312/15/2016
6,358.84 VOYAGER FLEET SYSTEMS INC00262356755312/15/2016


30,800.00 W.S. DARLEY & COMPANY00392356756312/15/2016
17.00 ANDY WATSON00574256757312/15/2016


2,958.16 3 RIVERS BILLING INC00254156758312/22/2016
128.34 AIRGAS USA LLC00011156759312/22/2016
41.44 ALLIANT ENERGY/WP&L00011556760312/22/2016
75.32 BADGER UTILITY00570256761312/22/2016
248.30 ROBIN OR KATIE BRIDGWATER00574956762312/22/2016
207.53 CHARTER COMMUNICATIONS00022356763312/22/2016
99.80 CHOICE1 HEALTH CARE SERVICES LLC00427256764312/22/2016
47.95 CINTAS CORPORATION #44600023756765312/22/2016


14,541.05 CTW ABBEY CARPET & FLOOR00575056766312/22/2016
3,036.00 DANE COUNTY HIGHWAY & TRANSPOR00027956767312/22/2016
1,619.12 DANE COUNTY TREASURER - LAND C00028656768312/22/2016


87.00 DEAN CLINIC00299956769312/22/2016
118,515.53 DEAN HEALTH PLAN INC00029356770312/22/2016


414.14 DELTA DENTAL OF WISCONSIN00521256771312/22/2016
124.00 DEPT OF REVENUE00479256772312/22/2016
92.39 RALPH DIMARTINO JR00575456773312/22/2016
901.98 EARTHLINK BUSINESS00322756774312/22/2016


2,636.03 FABICK RENTS00574556775312/22/2016
737.84 FULL COMPASS SYSTEMS LTD00038156776312/22/2016


11,917.69 GENERAL COMMUNICATIONS INC.00039256777312/22/2016
8.55 SUE GENSKE00321956778312/22/2016







CHECK REGISTER FOR CITY OF STOUGHTON 4/5Page: 03/08/2017 02:31 PM
User: LANA
DB: Stoughton


CHECK DATE FROM 12/01/2016 - 12/31/2016


AmountVendor NameVendorCheckBankCheck Date


654.00 GREENSPIRE APARTMENTS00172856779312/22/2016
150.00 NATHAN GRETZINGER00574356780312/22/2016
21.28 PAM GRIGGS00041756781312/22/2016
22.00 HANSON PEST MANAGEMENT00043256782312/22/2016
31.56 GAZMEND HETA00228556783312/22/2016
200.31 JOSHUA HOLT00446856784312/22/2016
285.00 JCOMP TECHNOLOGIES INC00048756785312/22/2016


7.98 DENNIS OR JEAN JENKS00327756786312/22/2016
598.00 JOHNS DISPOSAL SERVICE INC00241456787312/22/2016


1,090.82 KROGER00572056788312/22/2016
452.50 LOGO PROMOTIONS, LLC00507956789312/22/2016
503.85 MAILFINANCE00557756790312/22/2016


7.13 ANGELA MANN00575256791312/22/2016
80.99 O'REILLY AUTO PARTS00544356792312/22/2016
74.11 TRAVIS PHILLIPS00430356793312/22/2016
7.65 BRIAN OR SHERI PIPER00575156794312/22/2016


20.30 PROFESSIONAL PLACEMENT SERVICES LLC00484356795312/22/2016
979.00 QUALITY INN & SUITES00319956796312/22/2016
53.16 QUILL CORPORATION00073056797312/22/2016
489.00 KARINE REDMAN00572556798312/22/2016


4,317.61 RENNERT'S FIRE EQUIPMENT SERVICE00574456799312/22/2016
433.24 RICOH USA INC00121556800312/22/2016
16.01 MICHAEL OR JENNIFER ROOSE00575556801312/22/2016
96.75 SHRED-IT00137756802312/22/2016
91.72 SKAALEN NURSING AND00163056803312/22/2016


12,955.21 SPRINGSTED INC00314156804312/22/2016
1,815.98 STOUGHTON HOSPITAL00085856805312/22/2016


268.25 STOUGHTON HOSPITAL - WI00086056806312/22/2016
48.45 STOUGHTON LUMBER COMPANY00086156807312/22/2016
659.29 STOUGHTON MUNICIPAL UTILITIES00086256808312/22/2016
59.75 CITY OF STOUGHTON00227856809312/22/2016


29,604.75 STRAND ASSOCIATES INC00086956810312/22/2016
975.96 TASER INTERNATIONAL00382956811312/22/2016
183.23 AARON TECHE00089556812312/22/2016


1,992.06 U.S. CELLULAR00132656813312/22/2016
144.00 UNITED WAY OF DANE COUNTY00093556814312/22/2016
39.77 SARA VAGEDES00432156815312/22/2016


1,491.22 DAYNA OR JONI VERSTEGEN00574856816312/22/2016
48.99 CHRISTINE VOIGTS00234656817312/22/2016
154.06 BRIAN OR DIANE WAGNER00439456818312/22/2016
667.15 WOODWARD COMMUNITY MEDIA00092956819312/22/2016


13,306.96 US BANK CORPORATE PAYMENT SYSTEMS004692261(E)312/23/2016
13,048.80 US BANK CORPORATE PAYMENT SYSTEMS004692262(E)312/23/2016


416.56 ALLIANT ENERGY/WP&L00011556820312/29/2016
75.00 LARRY ANDERSON00381656821312/29/2016
13.83 MICHAEL ANDERSON00437956822312/29/2016


3,275.71 BAKER & TAYLOR BOOKS00015756823312/29/2016
2,309.37 BAKER & TAYLOR BOOKS00015756824312/29/2016


84.88 BAKER & TAYLOR BOOKS00015756825312/29/2016
530.31 JOSEPH BAWLUSKI00576256826312/29/2016
100.00 COLE BRUSEGAR00539356827312/29/2016
130.23 COMPLETE OFFICE OF WISCONSIN00173756828312/29/2016
148.00 DEAN CLINIC00299956829312/29/2016
392.56 DEMCO INC00030256830312/29/2016
52.75 CINDY ENGLUND00576656831312/29/2016
200.00 KYLE FELDMANN00503056832312/29/2016
114.63 BRIAN FIEBER00576556833312/29/2016


9.73 ANTHONY FRISCH00323056834312/29/2016
29.99 DERYLE GIILIGAN00575756835312/29/2016
12.05 RAUL OR ELENA GOMEZ00443356836312/29/2016
51.69 GORDON FLESCH COMPANY INC00040856837312/29/2016
79.00 GREATLAND00549256838312/29/2016
537.40 HARTLAND LUBRICANTS & CHEMICALS00441856839312/29/2016
150.00 AARON HILL00576956840312/29/2016


7,908.77 INTERIOR INVESTMENTS OF MADISON  LL00140456841312/29/2016
32.53 KRISTINE JACOBSON00492256842312/29/2016
72.30 JDP LIVING TR00495156843312/29/2016
594.69 KEVIN OR SARA KLUENDER00576356844312/29/2016


3,625.86 KROGER00572056845312/29/2016
50.00 ISABELLA LIPPI00566256846312/29/2016
105.13 MATTHEW PAUL MALICKI00575956847312/29/2016
234.94 MIDWEST TAPE00061756848312/29/2016
151.00 MOUNT HOREB RECREATION DEPT00575356849312/29/2016
897.10 NO SHORTS ELECTRIC LLC00133956850312/29/2016


2,171.59 NORTH SHORE BANK FSB00066256851312/29/2016
128.00 O'BRION AGENCY LLC00218656852312/29/2016
52.95 OFFICE DEPOT00066856853312/29/2016
218.50 LARRY E OLSON00576056854312/29/2016
20.00 ED PASCHALL00561256855312/29/2016
63.75 PENGUIN RANDOM HOUSE INC00073756856312/29/2016
12.06 LARRY OR SANDRA RAMSDEN00576756857312/29/2016







CHECK REGISTER FOR CITY OF STOUGHTON 5/5Page: 03/08/2017 02:31 PM
User: LANA
DB: Stoughton


CHECK DATE FROM 12/01/2016 - 12/31/2016


AmountVendor NameVendorCheckBankCheck Date


150.00 TIMOTHY W SCHMIDT00378156858312/29/2016
6.64 KRISTINE SCHULTZ00575656859312/29/2016


741.29 SCHUMACHER ELEVATOR CO INC00079956860312/29/2016
15,403.08 STAFFORD ROSENBAUM LLP00213956861312/29/2016


28.00 STOUGHTON HOSPITAL00085856862312/29/2016
55.05 STOUGHTON LUMBER COMPANY00086156863312/29/2016


10,363.80 SUMMIT CREDIT UNION00576456864312/29/2016
13.00 SUN PRAIRIE PUBLIC LIBRARY00276456865312/29/2016


3,339.18 JAMES OR DEBORAH TOFTE00576856866312/29/2016
150.00 ELIZA TYKSINSKI00573956867312/29/2016
53.70 UNIQUE MANAGEMENT SERVICES INC00093156868312/29/2016
200.00 UPS STORE00094256869312/29/2016
106.53 SUZANNE WALLS00575856870312/29/2016
69.55 BENJAMIN WANGERIN00576156871312/29/2016
200.00 WISC DEPT OF ADMIN-MIL00099556872312/29/2016


9,601.60 US BANK CORPORATE PAYMENT SYSTEMS004692263(E)312/30/2016
11,215.43 US BANK CORPORATE PAYMENT SYSTEMS004692264(E)312/30/2016


3 TOTALS:


1,020,052.03 Total of 336 Disbursements:


2,225.00 Less 2 Void Checks:
1,022,277.03 Total of 338 Checks:







Approved by State Board of Accounts for the Stoughton City, 2014


JOURNALS REPORT


FOR POST DATES FROM 12/01/2016 TO 12/31/2016


03/08/2017 02:33 PM
User: LANA
DB: Stoughton


Page: 1/3


CR Amount DR Amount GL DescriptionGL NumberDescriptionJournalPost Date


Ref Num1: '2792'   CDJE12/08/2016
GL Trx #: 48453


936.89PAYROLL PAYABLE100-00000-21500CORRECT R.STRANDLIE LONGIVITY 
936.89PRIMARY CHECKING100-00000-11100CORRECT R.STRANDLIE LONGIVITY 


936.89936.89


Ref Num1: '2938'   CDJE12/31/2016
GL Trx #: 50817


50,982.42US BANK - CC245-00000-11102RECORD OH CREDIT CARD DEPOSITS
50,982.42PRIMARY CHECKING245-00000-11100RECORD OH CREDIT CARD DEPOSITS


50,982.4250,982.42


Ref Num1: '2940'   CDJE12/31/2016
GL Trx #: 50819


3,944.16OUTSIDE SERVICES/DENTAL251-51930-50216RECORD DELTA DENTAL WIRES
3,944.16PRIMARY CHECKING251-00000-11100RECORD DELTA DENTAL WIRES


3,944.163,944.16


Ref Num1: '2943'   CDJE12/31/2016
GL Trx #: 50822


165.00EBC DEDUCTIONS100-00000-21520RECORD EBC FEE
165.00PRIMARY CHECKING100-00000-11100RECORD EBC FEE


165.00165.00


Ref Num1: '2944'   CDJE12/31/2016
GL Trx #: 50823


8,081.31MVD FEES100-00000-46290-31100000TO REALLOCATE MVD FEES
8,081.31PRIMARY CHECKING100-00000-11100TO REALLOCATE MVD FEES


8,081.318,081.31


Ref Num1: '2945'   CDJE12/31/2016
GL Trx #: 50824


103.83EBC DEDUCTIONS100-00000-21520CORRECT EBC DEDUCTIONS (ROBERTS)
103.83PRIMARY CHECKING100-00000-11100CORRECT EBC DEDUCTIONS (ROBERTS)


103.83103.83


Ref Num1: '2947'   CDJE12/31/2016
GL Trx #: 50843


1,227.29OPERATING EXPENSES100-51550-50340-40900000RECORD LATE FEES - WRS
1,227.29PRIMARY CHECKING100-00000-11100RECORD LATE FEES - WRS


1,227.291,227.29







Approved by State Board of Accounts for the Stoughton City, 2014


JOURNALS REPORT


FOR POST DATES FROM 12/01/2016 TO 12/31/2016


03/08/2017 02:33 PM
User: LANA
DB: Stoughton


Page: 2/3


CR Amount DR Amount GL DescriptionGL NumberDescriptionJournalPost Date


Ref Num1: '2983'   CDJE12/31/2016
GL Trx #: 51203


200.00OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS-3100-51510-50217-41600000RECORD OOPS - ROBERTS
200.00PRIMARY CHECKING100-00000-11100RECORD OOPS - ROBERTS


200.00200.00


Ref Num1: '2984'   CDJE12/31/2016
GL Trx #: 51204


28.56OPERATING EXPENSES100-51440-50340-40700000TO RECORD OOPS - KROPF
28.56PRIMARY CHECKING100-00000-11100TO RECORD OOPS - KROPF


28.5628.56


Ref Num1: '2985'   CDJE12/31/2016
GL Trx #: 51205


48.96TRAVEL/CONFERENCE100-51400-50212-41200000RECORD OOPS - OLSON
48.96PRIMARY CHECKING100-00000-11100RECORD OOPS - OLSON


48.9648.96


Ref Num1: '2986'   CDJE12/31/2016
GL Trx #: 51206


375.14TRAVEL/CONFERENCE100-51510-50212-41500000RECORD OOPS - SULLIVAN
58.14OUTSIDE SERVICES/BANK FEES100-51510-50216-41600000RECORD OOPS - SULLIVAN


433.28PRIMARY CHECKING100-00000-11100RECORD OOPS - SULLIVAN


433.28433.28


Ref Num1: '2987'   CDJE12/31/2016
GL Trx #: 51207


20.40TRAVEL/CONFERENCE100-54600-50212-50400000TO RECORD OOPS - NICOLL
20.40PRIMARY CHECKING100-00000-11100TO RECORD OOPS - NICOLL


20.4020.40


Ref Num1: '2988'   CDJE12/31/2016
GL Trx #: 51208


1,998.78SALES TAX PAYABLE100-00000-21104WISCONSIN SALES TAX PAYMENT
1,998.78PRIMARY CHECKING100-00000-11100WISCONSIN SALES TAX PAYMENT


1,998.781,998.78


Ref Num1: '2991'   CDJE12/31/2016
GL Trx #: 51222


196.99OUTSIDE SERVICES/BANK FEES100-51510-50216-41600000TO RECORD BANK FEE -WISC
196.99PRIMARY CHECKING100-00000-11100TO RECORD BANK FEE -WISC


196.99196.99







Approved by State Board of Accounts for the Stoughton City, 2014


JOURNALS REPORT


FOR POST DATES FROM 12/01/2016 TO 12/31/2016


03/08/2017 02:33 PM
User: LANA
DB: Stoughton


Page: 3/3


CR Amount DR Amount GL DescriptionGL NumberDescriptionJournalPost Date


Ref Num1: '2993'   CDJE12/31/2016
GL Trx #: 51224


54.00COURT FINES100-00000-22210RECORD NSF CHECK - VEUM
54.00PRIMARY CHECKING100-00000-11100RECORD NSF CHECK - VEUM


54.0054.00


Ref Num1: '2994'   CDJE12/31/2016
GL Trx #: 51225


4,050.00DEFERRED COMPENSATION100-00000-21575NSF - EMPOWER - PAYROLL
4,050.00PRIMARY CHECKING100-00000-11100NSF - EMPOWER - PAYROLL


4,050.004,050.00


72,471.8772,471.87GRAND TOTAL:


3,944.16251-51930-50216OUTSIDE SERVICES/DENTAL
3,944.16251-00000-11100PRIMARY CHECKING


50,982.42245-00000-11102US BANK - CC
50,982.42245-00000-11100PRIMARY CHECKING


20.40100-54600-50212-50400000TRAVEL/CONFERENCE
1,227.29100-51550-50340-40900000OPERATING EXPENSES


200.00100-51510-50217-41600000OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS-3
255.13100-51510-50216-41600000OUTSIDE SERVICES/BANK FEES
375.14100-51510-50212-41500000TRAVEL/CONFERENCE
28.56100-51440-50340-40700000OPERATING EXPENSES
48.96100-51400-50212-41200000TRAVEL/CONFERENCE


8,081.31100-00000-46290-31100000MVD FEES
54.00100-00000-22210COURT FINES


4,050.00100-00000-21575DEFERRED COMPENSATION
268.83100-00000-21520EBC DEDUCTIONS
936.89100-00000-21500PAYROLL PAYABLE


1,998.78100-00000-21104SALES TAX PAYABLE
17,545.29100-00000-11100PRIMARY CHECKING


TOTALS:
72,471.8772,471.87







Approved by State Board of Accounts for the Stoughton City, 2014


REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR STOUGHTON CITY 1/24Page
:


03/08/2017 02:34 PM
User: LANA
DB: Stoughton PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2016


% BDGT
USED


AVAILABLE
BALANCE


NORMAL (ABNORMAL)


ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 12/31/2016


INCREASE (DECREASE)


YTD BALANCE
12/31/2016


NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2016


AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER


Fund 100 - GENERAL FUND
Revenues
Dept 00000


100.00 0.24 0.00 7,914,654.76 7,914,655.00 PROPERTY TAXES100-00000-41110
161.37 (3,068.70)4,699.49 8,068.70 5,000.00 ROOM TAXES100-00000-41210
92.57 29,740.00 0.00 370,260.00 400,000.00 ELECTRICAL UTILITY PILOT100-00000-41310
100.00 (21,213.00)0.00 21,213.00 0.00 ELECTRIC UTILITY DIVIDEND100-00000-41311
96.87 11,751.00 0.00 363,249.00 375,000.00 WATER UTILITY PILOT100-00000-41312
100.00 (2,412.00)0.00 2,412.00 0.00 WATER UTILITY DIVIDEND100-00000-41313
98.60 659.36 0.00 46,340.64 47,000.00 SHA PILOT100-00000-41320
95.25 380.33 0.00 7,619.67 8,000.00 DCHA PILOT100-00000-41321
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 CURB, GUTTER, EARTHWORK100-00000-42100
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 STORM SEWER100-00000-42110
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 SANITARY SEWER (P & I)100-00000-42120
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 WATER MAIN100-00000-42130
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 SIDEWALK100-00000-42140
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 STREETS100-00000-42150
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 WATER100-00000-42160
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 IMPACT FEE - IMPROVEMENTS100-00000-42190


100.00 (17,250.00)2,800.00 17,250.00 0.00 TREE PLANTINGS - DEVELOPER100-00000-42321-16100000
96.00 22,291.17 0.00 535,390.83 557,682.00 STATE SHARED TAXES100-00000-43410
100.00 (0.11)0.00 219,160.11 219,160.00 EXPENDITURE RESTRAINT PAYMENT100-00000-43415
89.43 3,806.28 0.00 32,193.72 36,000.00 FIRE INSURANCE REBATE100-00000-43420
101.17 (562.00)0.00 48,562.00 48,000.00 EXEMPT COMPUTER AID100-00000-43430
250.99 (5,435.48)5,675.48 9,035.48 3,600.00 STATE GRANTS-POLICE100-00000-43521
100.00 (3,435.00)0.00 3,435.00 0.00 FEDERAL AID: POLICE100-00000-43522


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 COPS GRANT100-00000-43523
79.30 109,156.81 0.00 418,055.19 527,212.00 STATE ROAD ALLOTMENT100-00000-43531
74.91 12,798.19 0.00 38,201.81 51,000.00 STATE AID - STREETS100-00000-43533
97.26 3,838.00 21,560.00 136,162.00 140,000.00 TAXI GRANT100-00000-43537
95.02 1,691.86 0.00 32,308.14 34,000.00 RECYCLING GRANT100-00000-43545
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 OTHER STATE GRANTS100-00000-43690
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 STATE GRANTS- EMS100-00000-43691
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 FEMA ASSISTANCE100-00000-43692


106.80 (3,535.54)0.00 55,535.54 52,000.00 SCHOOL RESOURCE OFFICER100-00000-43693
121.20 (6,705.65)8,593.00 38,337.65 31,632.00 COUNTY FUNDING - OUTREACH100-00000-43790


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 OTHER COUNTY GRANTS100-00000-43791
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 GRANTS- FROM UTILITY100-00000-43810


97.53 445.00 0.00 17,555.00 18,000.00 LIQUOR & MALT BEVERAGE100-00000-44110
100.42 (50.00)300.00 12,050.00 12,000.00 OPERATORS100-00000-44111
87.50 100.00 0.00 700.00 800.00 CIGARETTE100-00000-44120
93.89 427.50 430.00 6,572.50 7,000.00 MISC. LICENSE100-00000-44150
146.23 (1,849.00)801.25 5,849.00 4,000.00 DOG100-00000-44210
98.16 1,378.11 3,947.91 73,621.89 75,000.00 BUILDING100-00000-44300
90.05 2,488.40 1,379.45 22,511.60 25,000.00 ELECTRICAL100-00000-44310
133.67 (4,713.80)1,324.45 18,713.80 14,000.00 PLUMBING100-00000-44320
186.15 (7,753.28)987.56 16,753.28 9,000.00 HEATING100-00000-44330


1,191.04 (5,455.22)611.01 5,955.22 500.00 FIRE PROTECTION FEES100-00000-44340
293.75 (38,750.06)1,125.00 58,750.06 20,000.00 MISC100-00000-44900
114.54 (13,816.42)5,495.11 108,816.42 95,000.00 COURT PENALTIES/COSTS100-00000-45100
178.48 (11,772.00)6,274.00 26,772.00 15,000.00 PARKING FINES100-00000-45130
83.55 822.69 0.00 4,177.31 5,000.00 MISC. REVENUE100-00000-46110
115.50 (1,550.00)910.00 11,550.00 10,000.00 SPECIAL ASSESSMENT ADMIN FEES100-00000-46150
388.64 (14,431.75)6,687.33 19,431.75 5,000.00 POLICE DEPT FEES100-00000-46210
98.80 1,759.00 0.00 144,241.00 146,000.00 FIRE DEPT FEES100-00000-46220
30.98 11,732.66 105.25 5,267.34 17,000.00 MVD FEES100-00000-46290
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 PLAN - PROFESSIONAL FEES100-00000-46300


100.00 (5,900.00)320.00 5,900.00 0.00 ELECTRONIC RECYCLING FEES100-00000-46309







Approved by State Board of Accounts for the Stoughton City, 2014


REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR STOUGHTON CITY 2/24Page
:


03/08/2017 02:34 PM
User: LANA
DB: Stoughton PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2016


% BDGT
USED


AVAILABLE
BALANCE


NORMAL (ABNORMAL)


ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 12/31/2016


INCREASE (DECREASE)


YTD BALANCE
12/31/2016


NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2016


AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER


Fund 100 - GENERAL FUND
Revenues


94.72 633.61 3,221.15 11,366.39 12,000.00 PUBLIC WORKS CHARGES-MISC100-00000-46310
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 PLAN - PROFESSIONAL FEES100-00000-46311


100.00 (4,590.00)340.00 4,590.00 0.00 PUBLIC WORKS CHARGES-MOWING100-00000-46312
0.00 10,000.00 0.00 0.00 10,000.00 PUBLIC WORKS CHARGES-SNOW100-00000-46313


99.34 4,850.25 (819.00)735,149.75 740,000.00 GARBAGE COLLECTION FEES100-00000-46420
114.58 (875.00)2,050.00 6,875.00 6,000.00 STREET OPENING100-00000-46430
114.09 (2,395.00)0.00 19,395.00 17,000.00 YARD WASTE SITE FEES100-00000-46435
140.85 (7,761.00)1,500.00 26,761.00 19,000.00 CEMETERY FEES100-00000-46540
100.00 (2,348.00)98.00 2,348.00 0.00 TAXABLE CRAFT SALES100-00000-46590
100.00 (46.36)140.00 46.36 0.00 MISC TAXABLE SALES100-00000-46595


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 MISC REV - SENIOR CENTER100-00000-46600
100.00 (468.00)28.00 468.00 0.00 NEWSLETTER100-00000-46610
90.68 465.94 64.06 4,534.06 5,000.00 PARK RESERVATIONS100-00000-46720
112.18 (6,604.84)14,331.17 60,818.84 54,214.00 RECREATION100-00000-46750
111.12 (6,450.36)90.00 64,450.36 58,000.00 SWIM POND 100-00000-46751
73.39 30,097.41 6,177.77 82,998.59 113,096.00 REC INSTRUCTION FEES100-00000-46752
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 MEDIA CONSULTATION/MISC100-00000-46753


76.57 31,635.02 0.00 103,364.98 135,000.00 CABLE FRANCHISE FEE100-00000-46755
102.86 (100.00)675.00 3,600.00 3,500.00 UNDERWRITING100-00000-46756
23.10 1,538.00 0.00 462.00 2,000.00 CABLE - TAXABLE SALES100-00000-46757
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 CABLE - EQUIPMENT FEE100-00000-46758


228.00 (1,920.00)1,150.00 3,420.00 1,500.00 VIDEO PRODUCTION SERVICES100-00000-46759
100.00 0.00 0.00 15,400.00 15,400.00 SEWER UTILITY ADMINISTRATION100-00000-47410
100.00 0.00 0.00 35,400.00 35,400.00 ELECTRIC UTILITY ADMINISTRATIO100-00000-47420
100.00 0.00 0.00 13,200.00 13,200.00 WATER UTILITY ADMINISTRATION100-00000-47430
100.00 0.00 1,500.00 18,000.00 18,000.00 EMS ADMINISTRATION100-00000-47440


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 OTHER REIMBURSEMENTS100-00000-48100
46.07 19,415.72 2,111.47 16,584.28 36,000.00 INTEREST100-00000-48110
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 INTEREST: LONG TERM INVESTMENT100-00000-48111


100.00 (314.42)0.00 314.42 0.00 INTEREST ON TAXES100-00000-48112
100.00 (9,237.40)0.00 9,237.40 0.00 REBATE100-00000-48113
265.00 (24,750.41)39,120.00 39,750.41 15,000.00 DIVIDENDS100-00000-48114
100.00 (1,305.08)190.54 1,305.08 0.00 INTEREST - ASSESSMENTS100-00000-48130
100.00 0.00 2,066.00 12,396.00 12,396.00 RENTAL INCOME100-00000-48220
132.14 (900.00)0.00 3,700.00 2,800.00 RENTAL INCOME100-00000-48221
100.00 (225.00)0.00 225.00 0.00 SALE OF CITY PROPERTY100-00000-48309


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 SALE TREES- STREET DEPT.100-00000-48311
100.00 (4,863.04)3,413.04 4,863.04 0.00 INSURANCE RECOVERIES-PROPERTY100-00000-48400
100.00 (3,831.00)0.00 3,831.00 0.00 INSURANCE RECOVERIES-WORKCOMP100-00000-48410
100.00 (20,162.00)0.00 20,162.00 0.00 INSURANCE- REBATE100-00000-48420
100.00 (2,000.00)0.00 2,000.00 0.00 DONATIONS100-00000-48500
112.01 (2,588.00)6,030.00 24,130.00 21,542.00 DC NUTRITION CONTRACT100-00000-48501


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 SPECIAL GIFT FUND: SENIOR CENT100-00000-48502
95.50 360.34 820.00 7,639.66 8,000.00 DONATIONS- KITCHEN FUND100-00000-48503
103.71 (1,576.00)9,000.00 44,077.00 42,501.00 DONATIONS - TOWNSHIPS100-00000-48504
100.34 (101.61)2,189.00 29,601.61 29,500.00 DONATIONS - CENTER100-00000-48505


0.00 20,000.00 0.00 0.00 20,000.00 DONATIONS - FRIENDSHIP FUND100-00000-48506
10.00 900.00 0.00 100.00 1,000.00 DONATIONS - SEN CNTR CASE MGMT100-00000-48507
100.00 (40,000.00)0.00 40,000.00 0.00 DONATIONS - SPECIAL GIFT (FOUN100-00000-48509


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 DONATIONS - UNDESIGNATED100-00000-48510
100.00 (1,125.00)0.00 1,125.00 0.00 DONATIONS- MEMORY WALK100-00000-48511


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 DONATIONS-SEN CNTR LOAN CLOSET100-00000-48512
96.19 4,213.76 21,511.44 106,523.24 110,737.00 FSAYC CONTRIBUTION100-00000-48519
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 SPECIAL EVENTS100-00000-48521


22.43 4,654.00 896.00 1,346.00 6,000.00 DONATIONS - YOUTH CENTER100-00000-48522
100.71 (61.00)725.92 8,711.00 8,650.00 DANE COUNTY DONATIONS100-00000-48523







Approved by State Board of Accounts for the Stoughton City, 2014


REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR STOUGHTON CITY 3/24Page
:


03/08/2017 02:34 PM
User: LANA
DB: Stoughton PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2016


% BDGT
USED


AVAILABLE
BALANCE


NORMAL (ABNORMAL)


ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 12/31/2016


INCREASE (DECREASE)


YTD BALANCE
12/31/2016


NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2016


AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER


Fund 100 - GENERAL FUND
Revenues


90.74 555.81 604.91 5,444.19 6,000.00 UNITED WAY DONATIONS100-00000-48524
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 DONATIONS -REC DEPT100-00000-48525


161.80 (3,090.00)0.00 8,090.00 5,000.00 POLICE SAFETY CAMP100-00000-48540
0.00 3,500.00 0.00 0.00 3,500.00 DONATIONS- POLICE DEPT.100-00000-48541


100.00 (5,213.26)690.30 5,213.26 0.00 SHOP WITH A COP100-00000-48542
100.00 (1,500.00)0.00 1,500.00 0.00 PAUL KRABY MEMORIAL100-00000-48543


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 BUDDY BENCHES100-00000-48544
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 HOOPS WITH HERO'S100-00000-48545
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 TREE DONATIONS100-00000-48570
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 HEGGESTAD ARBOR/OAK100-00000-48571
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 DIVERSITY DONATIONS100-00000-48572
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 TRANSFER IN - FIRE PENSION FND100-00000-49243
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 TRANSFER IN - ECON DEV RESERVE100-00000-49260
0.00 80,000.00 0.00 0.00 80,000.00 SURPLUS100-00000-49300
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 TRANSFER IN - CABLE RESERVE100-00000-49555


99.19 102,025.67 193,941.06 12,493,151.33 12,595,177.00 Total Dept 00000


99.19 102,025.67 193,941.06 12,493,151.33 12,595,177.00 TOTAL REVENUES


Expenditures
Dept 51100-LEGISLATIVE


98.61 600.00 5,400.00 42,600.00 43,200.00 SALARIES100-51100-50110
98.61 46.08 413.10 3,258.92 3,305.00 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 100-51100-50151
11.12 444.42 0.00 55.58 500.00 TRAVEL/CONFERENCE100-51100-50212


97.68 1,090.50 5,813.10 45,914.50 47,005.00 Total Dept 51100-LEGISLATIVE


Dept 51200-JUDICIAL
99.76 29.98 1,682.70 12,500.02 12,530.00 SALARIES100-51200-50110
94.40 1,502.29 3,514.24 25,331.71 26,834.00 WAGES100-51200-50120
97.47 120.91 642.03 4,661.09 4,782.00 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 100-51200-50151
72.51 1,965.25 684.88 5,183.75 7,149.00 HEALTH INSURANCE100-51200-50152
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 MISC OUTSIDE SERVICES100-51200-50200


135.02 (455.20)0.00 1,755.20 1,300.00 TRAVEL/CONFERENCE100-51200-50212
41.54 292.32 0.00 207.68 500.00 SUBSCRIPTIONS/DUES100-51200-50320
72.62 2,738.23 90.52 7,261.77 10,000.00 OPERATING EXPENSES100-51200-50340


90.18 6,193.78 6,614.37 56,901.22 63,095.00 Total Dept 51200-JUDICIAL


Dept 51300-LEGAL
120.42 (16,336.55)28,180.15 96,336.55 80,000.00 OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS100-51300-50215
133.20 (3,652.52)1,195.50 14,652.52 11,000.00 OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS-2100-51300-50216


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS-3100-51300-50217
0.00 500.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 OPERATING EXPENSES100-51300-50340


121.30 (19,489.07)29,375.65 110,989.07 91,500.00 Total Dept 51300-LEGAL


Dept 51400-MAYOR
99.02 603.60 8,173.40 60,697.40 61,301.00 SALARIES100-51400-50110
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 WAGES100-51400-50120







Approved by State Board of Accounts for the Stoughton City, 2014


REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR STOUGHTON CITY 4/24Page
:


03/08/2017 02:34 PM
User: LANA
DB: Stoughton PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2016


% BDGT
USED


AVAILABLE
BALANCE


NORMAL (ABNORMAL)


ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 12/31/2016


INCREASE (DECREASE)


YTD BALANCE
12/31/2016


NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2016


AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER


Fund 100 - GENERAL FUND
Expenditures


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 OVERTIME100-51400-50126
101.32 (115.73)1,195.22 8,850.73 8,735.00 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 100-51400-50151
91.59 1,583.16 1,436.07 17,232.84 18,816.00 HEALTH INSURANCE100-51400-50152
116.94 (254.17)65.80 1,754.17 1,500.00 TRAVEL/CONFERENCE100-51400-50212


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 ADS & PUBLICATIONS100-51400-50315
92.53 597.54 0.00 7,402.46 8,000.00 SUBSCRIPTIONS/DUES100-51400-50320
161.28 (796.65)93.23 2,096.65 1,300.00 OPERATING EXPENSES100-51400-50340


0.00 500.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 BUDGETING FOR OUTCOMES PROJECT100-51400-50399


97.89 2,117.75 10,963.72 98,034.25 100,152.00 Total Dept 51400-MAYOR


Dept 51420-CLERK
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 SALARIES100-51420-50110


119.24 (19,405.77)24,183.51 120,283.77 100,878.00 WAGES100-51420-50120
100.00 (349.19)124.32 349.19 0.00 OVERTIME100-51420-50126


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 WAGES - PART TIME100-51420-50127
113.97 (1,856.66)3,178.95 15,145.66 13,289.00 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 100-51420-50151
155.16 (10,449.85)3,516.22 29,394.85 18,945.00 HEALTH INSURANCE100-51420-50152
145.39 (1,815.79)1,827.65 5,815.79 4,000.00 TELEPHONE100-51420-50210
47.58 2,018.35 50.25 1,831.65 3,850.00 TRAVEL/CONFERENCE100-51420-50212
100.00 (102.00)0.00 102.00 0.00 OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS100-51420-50215
196.67 (5,123.72)623.58 10,423.72 5,300.00 ADS & PUBLICATIONS100-51420-50315
100.00 (6,202.28)1,507.92 6,202.28 0.00 OPERATING EXPENSES100-51420-50340


0.50 7,960.02 0.00 39.98 8,000.00 OPERATING EXPENSES-SPECIALIZED-1100-51420-50341


122.90 (35,326.89)35,012.40 189,588.89 154,262.00 Total Dept 51420-CLERK


Dept 51440-ELECTION
240.41 (9,828.94)60.00 16,828.94 7,000.00 OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS100-51440-50215
48.01 623.84 46.60 576.16 1,200.00 ADS & PUBLICATIONS100-51440-50315
135.35 (2,121.07)28.56 8,121.07 6,000.00 OPERATING EXPENSES100-51440-50340


179.76 (11,326.17)135.16 25,526.17 14,200.00 Total Dept 51440-ELECTION


Dept 51510-FINANCE DIRECTOR
100.01 (10.92)11,538.60 96,454.92 96,444.00 SALARIES100-51510-50110
88.77 10,648.06 7,974.80 84,199.94 94,848.00 WAGES100-51510-50120
100.00 (382.16)355.03 382.16 0.00 OVERTIME100-51510-50126
96.21 1,031.80 2,919.51 26,228.20 27,260.00 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 100-51510-50151
81.46 8,077.93 1,352.26 35,496.07 43,574.00 HEALTH INSURANCE100-51510-50152
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 MISC OUTSIDE SERVICES100-51510-50200


24.45 13,977.13 344.48 4,522.87 18,500.00 POSTAGE100-51510-50211
82.61 695.55 680.95 3,304.45 4,000.00 TRAVEL/CONFERENCE100-51510-50212
118.77 (8,820.00)3,665.00 55,820.00 47,000.00 OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS100-51510-50215
49.49 2,525.58 255.13 2,474.42 5,000.00 OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS-2100-51510-50216
4.00 4,800.00 200.00 200.00 5,000.00 OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS-3100-51510-50217


98.27 2,503.13 23,172.71 142,496.87 145,000.00 TAXI GRANT100-51510-50219
103.00 (1,390.38)5,925.13 47,740.38 46,350.00 OFFICE SUPPLIES100-51510-50310
99.42 5.81 313.79 994.19 1,000.00 OPERATING EXPENSES100-51510-50340
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 TRANSFER TO EQUIP REPLACEMENT100-51510-50933


93.70 33,661.53 58,697.39 500,314.47 533,976.00 Total Dept 51510-FINANCE DIRECTOR







Approved by State Board of Accounts for the Stoughton City, 2014


REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR STOUGHTON CITY 5/24Page
:


03/08/2017 02:34 PM
User: LANA
DB: Stoughton PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2016


% BDGT
USED


AVAILABLE
BALANCE


NORMAL (ABNORMAL)


ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 12/31/2016


INCREASE (DECREASE)


YTD BALANCE
12/31/2016


NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2016


AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER


Fund 100 - GENERAL FUND
Expenditures
Dept 51530-ASSESSOR


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 TRAVEL/CONFERENCE100-51530-50212
100.00 0.00 0.00 44,000.00 44,000.00 OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS100-51530-50215


0.00 3,500.00 0.00 0.00 3,500.00 OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS-2100-51530-50216
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 OPERATING EXPENSES100-51530-50340


92.63 3,500.00 0.00 44,000.00 47,500.00 Total Dept 51530-ASSESSOR


Dept 51550-HR/RISK MANAGEMENT
100.00 0.56 10,090.61 74,068.44 74,069.00 SALARIES100-51550-50110
135.71 (6,329.42)4,793.02 24,054.42 17,725.00 WAGES100-51550-50120


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 OVERTIME100-51550-50126
106.80 (809.39)2,094.27 12,720.39 11,911.00 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 100-51550-50151
108.18 (669.73)1,978.78 8,857.73 8,188.00 HEALTH INSURANCE100-51550-50152
46.80 797.95 0.00 702.05 1,500.00 TRAINING100-51550-50190
7.13 1,671.66 128.34 128.34 1,800.00 TELEPHONE100-51550-50210
0.00 500.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 POSTAGE100-51550-50211


44.64 1,217.95 451.66 982.05 2,200.00 TRAVEL/CONFERENCE100-51550-50212
96.49 35.13 0.00 964.87 1,000.00 OFFICE SUPPLIES100-51550-50310
165.39 (326.96)0.00 826.96 500.00 ADS & PUBLICATIONS100-51550-50315
70.08 2,991.93 2,021.29 7,008.07 10,000.00 OPERATING EXPENSES100-51550-50340


100.71 (920.32)21,557.97 130,313.32 129,393.00 Total Dept 51550-HR/RISK MANAGEMENT


Dept 51800-CITY WEBSITE
8.79 63,849.26 0.00 6,150.74 70,000.00 OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS100-51800-50215


8.79 63,849.26 0.00 6,150.74 70,000.00 Total Dept 51800-CITY WEBSITE


Dept 51900-OTHER GENERAL GOVERNMENT
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 CITY SHARE EMPOLYMENT TAXES100-51900-50150
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 100-51900-50151
0.00 25,000.00 0.00 0.00 25,000.00 SELF INSURED LOSSES100-51900-50153


82.97 10,218.42 0.00 49,781.58 60,000.00 MISC OUTSIDE SERVICES100-51900-50200
100.00 (51,145.38)688.70 51,145.38 0.00 MISC EXPENSES100-51900-50300


118.74 (15,926.96)688.70 100,926.96 85,000.00 Total Dept 51900-OTHER GENERAL GOVERNMENT


Dept 51930-INSURANCE
107.37 (1,841.60)0.00 26,841.60 25,000.00 PROPERTY/LIABILITY INSURANCE100-51930-50510
82.68 259.80 0.00 1,240.20 1,500.00 EXCESS LIABILITY INSURANCE100-51930-50511
80.65 1,354.30 0.00 5,645.70 7,000.00 EMPLOYMENT PRACTICES LIABILITY100-51930-50512
85.83 4,249.58 868.99 25,750.42 30,000.00 AUTO PHYSICAL DAMAGE INSURANCE100-51930-50513
34.66 1,110.80 0.00 589.20 1,700.00 BOILER/MACHINERY INSURANCE100-51930-50514
106.74 (1,617.00)0.00 25,617.00 24,000.00 PROPERTY INSURANCE100-51930-50515
105.55 (8,054.66)0.00 153,054.66 145,000.00 WORKERS COMP. INSURANCE100-51930-50520


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 LIFE - DISABILITY INSURANCE100-51930-50521
78.72 2,340.66 184.77 8,659.34 11,000.00 UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION100-51930-50523


100.90 (2,198.12)1,053.76 247,398.12 245,200.00 Total Dept 51930-INSURANCE







Approved by State Board of Accounts for the Stoughton City, 2014


REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR STOUGHTON CITY 6/24Page
:


03/08/2017 02:34 PM
User: LANA
DB: Stoughton PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2016


% BDGT
USED


AVAILABLE
BALANCE


NORMAL (ABNORMAL)


ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 12/31/2016


INCREASE (DECREASE)


YTD BALANCE
12/31/2016


NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2016


AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER


Fund 100 - GENERAL FUND
Expenditures
Dept 52100-LAW ENFORCEMENT


100.01 (12.04)13,378.40 97,305.04 97,293.00 SALARIES100-52100-50110
104.03 (52,376.66)221,526.60 1,350,898.66 1,298,522.00 WAGES100-52100-50120
99.14 2,575.58 46,269.71 296,181.42 298,757.00 WAGES - DISPATCH100-52100-50122
100.00 (4,271.63)367.29 4,271.63 0.00 WAGES - PART TIME PATROL100-52100-50123


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 WAGES - VOLUNTEERS100-52100-50124
126.27 (3,152.27)3,273.89 15,152.27 12,000.00 OVERTIME - DISPATCH100-52100-50125
167.08 (65,069.46)20,103.61 162,069.46 97,000.00 OVERTIME100-52100-50126
78.79 4,135.93 2,185.04 15,364.07 19,500.00 WAGES - PART TIME100-52100-50127
114.34 (39,484.52)50,216.57 314,855.52 275,371.00 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 100-52100-50151
97.90 8,134.68 33,175.09 379,763.32 387,898.00 HEALTH INSURANCE100-52100-50152
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 SELF INSURED LOSSES100-52100-50153
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 EYE GLASSES- POLICE100-52100-50154


98.15 518.74 1,206.75 27,481.26 28,000.00 TRAINING100-52100-50190
94.28 1,086.05 4,254.42 17,913.95 19,000.00 TELEPHONE100-52100-50210
107.20 (108.00)0.00 1,608.00 1,500.00 EQUIPMENT RENTAL100-52100-50214
87.97 5,352.80 1,636.26 39,147.20 44,500.00 OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS100-52100-50215
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS-2100-52100-50216


61.00 390.00 0.00 610.00 1,000.00 OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS-3100-52100-50217
150.03 (8,504.35)8,045.00 25,504.35 17,000.00 EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE100-52100-50240
122.88 (6,010.72)19,126.34 32,280.72 26,270.00 DANE COM FEES100-52100-50241
77.77 2,890.03 2,536.13 10,109.97 13,000.00 VEHICLE EXPENSE100-52100-50330
64.44 12,444.87 1,967.49 22,555.13 35,000.00 VEHICLE FUEL100-52100-50335
147.54 (22,346.14)7,952.61 69,346.14 47,000.00 OPERATING EXPENSES100-52100-50340
121.43 (5,872.61)3,868.22 33,272.61 27,400.00 UNIFORM ALLOWANCE100-52100-50390


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 HOOPS WITH HERO'S100-52100-50393
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 BUDDY BENCHES100-52100-50394


88.22 589.10 0.00 4,410.90 5,000.00 POLICE SAFETY CAMP100-52100-50395
100.00 (3,985.00)0.00 3,985.00 0.00 ENFORCEMENT EXPENSES100-52100-50396
100.00 (2,937.32)2,937.32 2,937.32 0.00 SHOP WITH A COP100-52100-50397


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 PAUL KRABY MEMORIAL100-52100-50398-30900000


106.40 (176,012.94)444,026.74 2,927,023.94 2,751,011.00 Total Dept 52100-LAW ENFORCEMENT


Dept 52200-FIRE PROTECTION
96.98 2,448.46 10,758.40 78,639.54 81,088.00 SALARIES100-52200-50110
98.87 1,038.16 16,027.12 90,582.84 91,621.00 WAGES100-52200-50120
99.60 396.97 76,590.33 98,603.03 99,000.00 WAGES - VOLUNTEERS100-52200-50124
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 OVERTIME100-52200-50126


100.00 (907.50)0.00 907.50 0.00 WAGES - PART TIME100-52200-50127
1.77 8,693.75 156.25 156.25 8,850.00 LONGEVITY - VOLUNTEERS100-52200-50129


103.48 (1,251.25)37,251.25 37,251.25 36,000.00 FIRE PENSION BENEFIT100-52200-50130
133.24 (9,137.64)10,474.08 36,624.64 27,487.00 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 100-52200-50151
192.56 (17,771.68)2,872.14 36,971.68 19,200.00 HEALTH INSURANCE100-52200-50152
49.06 1,670.85 80.00 1,609.15 3,280.00 TRAINING100-52200-50190
102.51 (97.96)1,427.66 3,997.96 3,900.00 TELEPHONE100-52200-50210


0.00 600.00 0.00 0.00 600.00 TRAVEL/CONFERENCE100-52200-50212
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS100-52200-50215
0.00 250.00 0.00 0.00 250.00 OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS-2100-52200-50216


74.64 1,268.00 624.00 3,732.00 5,000.00 OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS-3100-52200-50217
86.21 3,447.18 1,833.52 21,552.82 25,000.00 UTILITIES100-52200-50220
193.86 (8,142.27)8,830.93 16,817.27 8,675.00 EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE100-52200-50240


0.00 2,950.00 0.00 0.00 2,950.00 DANE CAD100-52200-50241
135.39 (2,831.52)1,350.31 10,831.52 8,000.00 BUILDING & GROUNDS100-52200-50245
76.14 59.64 20.87 190.36 250.00 MISC EXPENSES100-52200-50300







Approved by State Board of Accounts for the Stoughton City, 2014


REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR STOUGHTON CITY 7/24Page
:


03/08/2017 02:34 PM
User: LANA
DB: Stoughton PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2016


% BDGT
USED


AVAILABLE
BALANCE


NORMAL (ABNORMAL)


ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 12/31/2016


INCREASE (DECREASE)


YTD BALANCE
12/31/2016


NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2016


AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER


Fund 100 - GENERAL FUND
Expenditures


2.37 341.71 0.00 8.29 350.00 OFFICE SUPPLIES100-52200-50310
126.04 (644.40)0.00 3,119.40 2,475.00 SUBSCRIPTIONS/DUES100-52200-50320
57.87 3,580.96 427.22 4,919.04 8,500.00 VEHICLE FUEL100-52200-50335
81.60 1,840.09 818.79 8,159.91 10,000.00 OPERATING EXPENSES100-52200-50340
41.12 471.02 50.98 328.98 800.00 OPERATING EXPENSES-SPECIALIZED-2100-52200-50342
0.00 1,050.00 0.00 0.00 1,050.00 UNIFORM ALLOWANCE100-52200-50390
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 ENFORCEMENT EXPENSES100-52200-50396


102.40 (10,677.43)169,593.85 455,003.43 444,326.00 Total Dept 52200-FIRE PROTECTION


Dept 52400-INSPECTION
0.00 5,121.00 0.00 0.00 5,121.00 SALARIES100-52400-50110


101.21 (736.73)10,223.21 61,698.73 60,962.00 WAGES100-52400-50120
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 OVERTIME100-52400-50126
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 WAGES - PART TIME100-52400-50127


95.91 385.38 1,494.49 9,031.62 9,417.00 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 100-52400-50151
101.72 (290.84)1,436.07 17,232.84 16,942.00 HEALTH INSURANCE100-52400-50152
100.00 0.00 0.00 3,200.00 3,200.00 OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS100-52400-50215


95.32 4,478.81 13,153.77 91,163.19 95,642.00 Total Dept 52400-INSPECTION


Dept 53200-CITY BUILDINGS
11.66 9,047.51 1,194.49 1,194.49 10,242.00 SALARIES100-53200-50110
77.90 14,666.58 6,973.41 51,699.42 66,366.00 WAGES100-53200-50120
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 OVERTIME100-53200-50126
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 WAGES - PART TIME100-53200-50127


71.08 3,157.26 1,221.50 7,759.74 10,917.00 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 100-53200-50151
70.88 7,080.16 1,436.07 17,232.84 24,313.00 HEALTH INSURANCE100-53200-50152
100.00 (229.46)24.11 229.46 0.00 MISC OUTSIDE SERVICES100-53200-50200
66.56 5,684.99 1,846.19 11,315.01 17,000.00 OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS100-53200-50215
84.85 4,848.39 2,331.97 27,151.61 32,000.00 UTILITIES100-53200-50220
22.98 1,694.49 98.58 505.51 2,200.00 UTILITIES-BUILDING 2100-53200-50221
48.59 4,112.59 331.22 3,887.41 8,000.00 UTILITIES - DEPOT100-53200-50222
79.71 608.65 250.16 2,391.35 3,000.00 UTILITIES - FOOD PANTRY100-53200-50223
60.78 3,921.78 0.00 6,078.22 10,000.00 OPERATING EXPENSES100-53200-50340
95.30 422.78 534.50 8,577.22 9,000.00 REPAIRS/MAINTENANCE100-53200-50350


71.50 55,015.72 16,242.20 138,022.28 193,038.00 Total Dept 53200-CITY BUILDINGS


Dept 53300-HIGHWAY & STREET MAINT/CONST
137.69 (21,953.17)(972.38)80,204.17 58,251.00 SALARIES100-53300-50110
118.26 (75,493.98)31,768.08 488,975.98 413,482.00 WAGES100-53300-50120
136.29 (5,987.25)15,068.03 22,487.25 16,500.00 OVERTIME100-53300-50126
(55.23)19,513.99 (6,574.37)(6,942.99)12,571.00 WAGES - PART TIME100-53300-50127
119.23 (13,121.72)6,254.52 81,345.72 68,224.00 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 100-53300-50151
76.57 35,673.88 (9,172.04)116,570.12 152,244.00 HEALTH INSURANCE100-53300-50152
111.70 (327.61)903.34 3,127.61 2,800.00 TELEPHONE100-53300-50210
73.83 1,465.53 334.58 4,134.47 5,600.00 TRAVEL/CONFERENCE100-53300-50212
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 EQUIPMENT RENTAL100-53300-50214


72.76 11,985.96 10,413.99 32,014.04 44,000.00 OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS100-53300-50215
100.00 (605.00)80.00 605.00 0.00 OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS-2100-53300-50216


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS-3100-53300-50217
73.11 9,410.46 1,861.20 25,589.54 35,000.00 UTILITIES100-53300-50220







Approved by State Board of Accounts for the Stoughton City, 2014


REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR STOUGHTON CITY 8/24Page
:


03/08/2017 02:34 PM
User: LANA
DB: Stoughton PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2016


% BDGT
USED


AVAILABLE
BALANCE


NORMAL (ABNORMAL)


ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 12/31/2016


INCREASE (DECREASE)


YTD BALANCE
12/31/2016


NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2016


AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER


Fund 100 - GENERAL FUND
Expenditures


95.83 125.00 0.00 2,875.00 3,000.00 RENTING/LEASING EQMT - STREET100-53300-50290
85.14 3,269.76 770.96 18,730.24 22,000.00 MISC EXPENSES100-53300-50300
83.55 822.58 887.35 4,177.42 5,000.00 OFFICE SUPPLIES100-53300-50310
50.73 21,679.38 1,639.32 22,320.62 44,000.00 VEHICLE FUEL100-53300-50335
124.90 (16,933.04)3,224.89 84,933.04 68,000.00 OPERATING EXPENSES100-53300-50340


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 OPERATING EXPENSES-SPECIALIZED-5100-53300-50345
46.57 1,603.02 1,300.00 1,396.98 3,000.00 REPAIRS/MAINTENANCE100-53300-50350
149.65 (8,439.69)0.00 25,439.69 17,000.00 TREE PURCHASES - STREETS100-53300-50360


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 TREE CONSULTANT - STREETS100-53300-50361
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 TREE GRANT INVENTORY - STREETS100-53300-50365


107.87 (668.67)1,417.98 9,168.67 8,500.00 UNIFORM ALLOWANCE100-53300-50390
96.42 17.92 0.00 482.08 500.00 TOOL ALLOWANCE100-53300-50391


103.88 (37,962.65)59,205.45 1,017,634.65 979,672.00 Total Dept 53300-HIGHWAY & STREET MAINT/CONST


Dept 53310-SNOW REMOVAL
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 OVERTIME100-53310-50126
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS100-53310-50215


57.42 34,067.87 11,822.57 45,932.13 80,000.00 OPERATING EXPENSES100-53310-50340


57.42 34,067.87 11,822.57 45,932.13 80,000.00 Total Dept 53310-SNOW REMOVAL


Dept 53400-SIGNS AND MARKINGS
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 MISC OUTSIDE SERVICES100-53400-50200


94.98 1,103.48 9,725.46 20,896.52 22,000.00 OPERATING EXPENSES100-53400-50340


94.98 1,103.48 9,725.46 20,896.52 22,000.00 Total Dept 53400-SIGNS AND MARKINGS


Dept 53420-STREET LIGHTING
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 UTILITIES100-53420-50220


91.84 10,608.40 10,750.18 119,391.60 130,000.00 OPERATING EXPENSES100-53420-50340


91.84 10,608.40 10,750.18 119,391.60 130,000.00 Total Dept 53420-STREET LIGHTING


Dept 53440-SWEEPING/STORM SEWERS
100.00 (1,531.83)45.85 1,531.83 0.00 OPERATING EXPENSES100-53440-50340


100.00 (1,531.83)45.85 1,531.83 0.00 Total Dept 53440-SWEEPING/STORM SEWERS


Dept 53620-SANITATION
98.43 8,332.10 87,200.40 521,667.90 530,000.00 OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS100-53620-50215
95.21 8,854.90 29,071.60 176,145.10 185,000.00 OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS-2100-53620-50216
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 OPERATING EXPENSES100-53620-50340


97.60 17,187.00 116,272.00 697,813.00 715,000.00 Total Dept 53620-SANITATION


Dept 54100-PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 OPERATING EXPENSES100-54100-50340







Approved by State Board of Accounts for the Stoughton City, 2014


REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR STOUGHTON CITY 9/24Page
:


03/08/2017 02:34 PM
User: LANA
DB: Stoughton PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2016


% BDGT
USED


AVAILABLE
BALANCE


NORMAL (ABNORMAL)


ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 12/31/2016


INCREASE (DECREASE)


YTD BALANCE
12/31/2016


NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2016


AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER


Fund 100 - GENERAL FUND
Expenditures


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Total Dept 54100-PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES


Dept 54600-SENIOR CENTER
100.14 (86.20)9,204.81 61,094.20 61,008.00 SALARIES100-54600-50110
102.93 (3,942.18)20,042.20 138,673.18 134,731.00 WAGES100-54600-50120
70.34 37,593.85 13,334.87 89,144.15 126,738.00 WAGES - SENIOR CASE MGMT.100-54600-50121
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 OVERTIME100-54600-50126


90.84 4,158.97 6,102.20 41,222.03 45,381.00 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 100-54600-50151
91.74 5,246.44 4,858.88 58,306.56 63,553.00 HEALTH INSURANCE100-54600-50152
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 MISC OUTSIDE SERVICES100-54600-50200
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 MEAL SITE REVS-TO COUNTY100-54600-50201


100.00 (28,220.48)2,741.00 28,220.48 0.00 FOUNDATION GRANT100-54600-50202
86.74 1,061.05 2,078.13 6,938.95 8,000.00 KITCHEN FUND100-54600-50204
380.19 (2,062.21)635.34 2,798.21 736.00 TELEPHONE100-54600-50210
83.24 502.71 568.40 2,497.29 3,000.00 TRAVEL/CONFERENCE100-54600-50212
4.60 20,551.37 0.00 990.63 21,542.00 OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS100-54600-50215


90.03 2,292.50 1,906.79 20,707.50 23,000.00 UTILITIES100-54600-50220
69.47 5,801.50 1,811.05 13,198.50 19,000.00 EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE100-54600-50240
124.08 (481.65)45.00 2,481.65 2,000.00 PROGRAMS/PUBLICITY100-54600-50313
47.04 1,588.70 0.00 1,411.30 3,000.00 ADS & PUBLICATIONS100-54600-50315
121.98 (241.80)0.00 1,341.80 1,100.00 ADMINISTRATION EXPENSE100-54600-50325
82.32 2,138.89 2,119.35 9,961.11 12,100.00 OPERATING EXPENSES100-54600-50340
100.00 (608.92)152.83 608.92 0.00 OPERATING EXPENSES-SPECIALIZED-2100-54600-50342


0.00 400.00 0.00 0.00 400.00 REPAIRS/MAINTENANCE100-54600-50350


91.30 45,692.54 65,600.85 479,596.46 525,289.00 Total Dept 54600-SENIOR CENTER


Dept 54910-CEMETERY
95.00 1,000.00 0.00 19,000.00 20,000.00 EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE100-54910-50240
120.77 (3,322.65)1,429.10 19,322.65 16,000.00 MISC EXPENSES100-54910-50300


106.45 (2,322.65)1,429.10 38,322.65 36,000.00 Total Dept 54910-CEMETERY


Dept 55100-CULTURE
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 SALARIES100-55100-50110
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 WAGES100-55100-50120
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 100-55100-50151
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 HEALTH INSURANCE100-55100-50152


100.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 500.00 MUSEUM100-55100-50720
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 PUBLIC INFORMATION OFFICER100-55100-50726
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 CHAMBER OF COMMERCE100-55100-50727


119.61 (1,333.71)797.00 8,133.71 6,800.00 HOLIDAY PROMOTION100-55100-50728
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 SISTER CITY100-55100-50730
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 CITY BAND100-55100-50731
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 INDUSTRIAL PARK NORTH SIGN100-55100-50733
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 DIVERSITY100-55100-50734


100.00 (896.75)0.00 896.75 0.00 ARTS COUNCIL100-55100-50735
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 STOUGHTON AREA YOUTH CENTER100-55100-50736


130.55 (2,230.46)797.00 9,530.46 7,300.00 Total Dept 55100-CULTURE


Dept 55200-PARKS







Approved by State Board of Accounts for the Stoughton City, 2014


REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR STOUGHTON CITY 10/24Page
:


03/08/2017 02:34 PM
User: LANA
DB: Stoughton PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2016


% BDGT
USED


AVAILABLE
BALANCE


NORMAL (ABNORMAL)


ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 12/31/2016


INCREASE (DECREASE)


YTD BALANCE
12/31/2016


NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2016


AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER


Fund 100 - GENERAL FUND
Expenditures


0.00 4,221.00 0.00 0.00 4,221.00 SALARIES100-55200-50110
0.00 44,328.00 0.00 0.00 44,328.00 WAGES100-55200-50120
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 OVERTIME100-55200-50126


88.74 7,370.05 1,238.46 58,102.95 65,473.00 SEASONAL/TEMPORARY100-55200-50128
41.46 7,427.10 119.82 5,259.90 12,687.00 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 100-55200-50151
0.00 16,638.00 0.00 0.00 16,638.00 HEALTH INSURANCE100-55200-50152
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE100-55200-50240


169.95 (9,793.59)1,213.59 23,793.59 14,000.00 BUILDING & GROUNDS100-55200-50245
100.00 (12.77)1.39 12.77 0.00 OFFICE SUPPLIES100-55200-50310
48.37 3,097.81 72.59 2,902.19 6,000.00 VEHICLE FUEL100-55200-50335
88.76 3,034.59 747.39 23,965.41 27,000.00 OPERATING EXPENSES100-55200-50340
41.60 5,255.61 2,636.03 3,744.39 9,000.00 REPAIRS/MAINTENANCE100-55200-50350


59.08 81,565.80 6,029.27 117,781.20 199,347.00 Total Dept 55200-PARKS


Dept 55300-RECREATION PROGRAMS & EVENTS
101.64 (1,001.85)9,843.09 62,143.85 61,142.00 SALARIES100-55300-50110
105.90 (2,762.80)6,998.20 49,579.80 46,817.00 WAGES100-55300-50120
48.20 3,108.00 0.00 2,892.00 6,000.00 WAGES - PART TIME100-55300-50127
86.78 5,917.03 1,425.00 38,853.97 44,771.00 SEASONAL/TEMPORARY100-55300-50128
136.35 (5,591.54)2,579.21 20,975.54 15,384.00 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 100-55300-50151
91.06 2,037.64 1,636.70 20,744.36 22,782.00 HEALTH INSURANCE100-55300-50152
65.78 1,026.58 757.25 1,973.42 3,000.00 TELEPHONE100-55300-50210
40.00 420.00 0.00 280.00 700.00 TRAVEL/CONFERENCE100-55300-50212
134.49 (1,724.73)751.38 6,724.73 5,000.00 SALES TAX100-55300-50213
109.23 (3,875.20)3,240.00 45,875.20 42,000.00 OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS100-55300-50215


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 UTILITIES100-55300-50220
12.62 8,571.57 0.00 1,238.43 9,810.00 EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE100-55300-50240
79.02 209.77 52.00 790.23 1,000.00 MISC EXPENSES100-55300-50300
90.39 144.16 11.64 1,355.84 1,500.00 ADS & PUBLICATIONS100-55300-50315
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 VEHICLE FUEL100-55300-50335


96.37 1,157.43 1,469.69 30,695.57 31,853.00 OPERATING EXPENSES100-55300-50340
100.00 (5,761.68)0.00 5,761.68 0.00 OPERATING EXPENSES-SPECIALIZED-1100-55300-50341


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 OPERATING EXPENSES-SPECIALIZED-2100-55300-50342
100.00 0.00 0.00 8,000.00 8,000.00 OPERATING EXPENSES-SPECIALIZED-3100-55300-50343
88.03 1,017.13 238.34 7,482.87 8,500.00 OPERATING EXPENSES-SPECIALIZED-4100-55300-50344
100.00 0.00 4,000.00 4,000.00 4,000.00 POOL SINKING FUND100-55300-50930


99.07 2,891.51 33,002.50 309,367.49 312,259.00 Total Dept 55300-RECREATION PROGRAMS & EVENTS


Dept 55400-YOUTH CENTER
92.76 972.23 1,737.11 12,448.77 13,421.00 SALARIES100-55400-50110
100.00 (1.26)8,827.20 64,604.26 64,603.00 WAGES100-55400-50120


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 OVERTIME100-55400-50126
81.38 3,323.64 2,606.01 14,528.36 17,852.00 WAGES - PART TIME100-55400-50127
98.02 247.34 1,723.60 12,236.66 12,484.00 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 100-55400-50151
92.33 1,689.64 1,786.11 20,329.36 22,019.00 HEALTH INSURANCE100-55400-50152
100.00 (138.00)0.00 138.00 0.00 SPECIAL GIFT FUND - YOUTH CTR100-55400-50203
221.42 (1,578.46)515.80 2,878.46 1,300.00 TELEPHONE100-55400-50210
100.00 0.00 0.00 21,000.00 21,000.00 OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS100-55400-50215
83.91 1,544.96 537.65 8,055.04 9,600.00 UTILITIES100-55400-50220
76.86 925.61 224.61 3,074.39 4,000.00 EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE100-55400-50240
101.34 (53.40)4,053.40 4,053.40 4,000.00 RENT EXPENSE100-55400-50316


0.00 500.00 0.00 0.00 500.00 OPERATING EXPENSES100-55400-50340







Approved by State Board of Accounts for the Stoughton City, 2014


REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR STOUGHTON CITY 11/24Page
:


03/08/2017 02:34 PM
User: LANA
DB: Stoughton PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2016


% BDGT
USED


AVAILABLE
BALANCE


NORMAL (ABNORMAL)


ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 12/31/2016


INCREASE (DECREASE)


YTD BALANCE
12/31/2016


NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2016


AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER


Fund 100 - GENERAL FUND
Expenditures


95.65 7,432.30 22,011.49 163,346.70 170,779.00 Total Dept 55400-YOUTH CENTER


Dept 55500-MEDIA SERVICES
0.00 18,280.00 0.00 0.00 18,280.00 SALARIES100-55500-50110


103.11 (1,374.33)7,308.76 45,620.33 44,246.00 WAGES100-55500-50120
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 OVERTIME100-55500-50126
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 WAGES - PART TIME100-55500-50127


99.88 18.80 3,181.61 15,981.20 16,000.00 SEASONAL/TEMPORARY100-55500-50128
86.47 1,205.11 1,283.49 7,704.89 8,910.00 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 100-55500-50151
85.02 3,036.16 1,436.07 17,232.84 20,269.00 HEALTH INSURANCE100-55500-50152
451.13 (6,320.41)812.33 8,120.41 1,800.00 TELEPHONE100-55500-50210


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS100-55500-50215
115.92 (318.33)391.22 2,318.33 2,000.00 OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS-2100-55500-50216
96.59 272.46 2,399.55 7,727.54 8,000.00 EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE100-55500-50240
110.68 (854.79)96.39 8,854.79 8,000.00 MISC EXPENSES100-55500-50300
100.00 (126.38)0.00 126.38 0.00 OPERATING EXPENSES100-55500-50340


89.16 13,818.29 16,909.42 113,686.71 127,505.00 Total Dept 55500-MEDIA SERVICES


Dept 56300-PLANNING
120.01 (15,372.42)9,855.61 92,187.42 76,815.00 SALARIES100-56300-50110
126.06 (17,327.61)12,579.62 83,815.61 66,488.00 WAGES100-56300-50120


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 OVERTIME100-56300-50126
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 WAGES - PART TIME100-56300-50127


121.71 (4,525.51)3,130.03 25,373.51 20,848.00 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 100-56300-50151
103.70 (1,178.06)1,957.14 32,992.06 31,814.00 HEALTH INSURANCE100-56300-50152
51.04 1,713.52 405.00 1,786.48 3,500.00 TRAVEL/CONFERENCE100-56300-50212
139.20 (195.98)177.76 695.98 500.00 VEHICLE EXPENSE100-56300-50330
86.06 278.77 140.20 1,721.23 2,000.00 VEHICLE FUEL100-56300-50335
177.54 (8,723.35)1,945.43 19,973.35 11,250.00 OPERATING EXPENSES100-56300-50340


121.26 (45,330.64)30,190.79 258,545.64 213,215.00 Total Dept 56300-PLANNING


Dept 59200-CONTINGENCY
0.00 80,000.00 0.00 0.00 80,000.00 TRANSFER TO OTHER FUND100-59200-50930


0.00 80,000.00 0.00 0.00 80,000.00 Total Dept 59200-CONTINGENCY


Dept 59300-TRANSFER TO DEBT SERVICE
100.00 0.00 2,337,231.00 2,337,231.00 2,337,231.00 TRANSFER TO OTHER FUND100-59300-50930


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 TRANSFER TO DEBT SERVICE100-59300-50931
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 TRANSFER TO CAP OUTLAY100-59300-50932
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 TRANSFER TO TIF FUND100-59300-50935


100.00 0.00 2,337,231.00 2,337,231.00 2,337,231.00 Total Dept 59300-TRANSFER TO DEBT SERVICE


Dept 59400-TRANSFER TO CAPITAL
100.00 0.00 72,760.68 143,506.00 143,506.00 TRANSFER TO OTHER FUND-OPERA HOUSE100-59400-50930
100.38 (1,054.00)81,054.00 281,054.00 280,000.00 TRANSFER TO DEBT SERVICE-CAPITAL OUTLAY100-59400-50931
100.00 0.00 0.00 400,000.00 400,000.00 TRANSFER TO CAP OUTLAY-CONSTRUCTION100-59400-50932







Approved by State Board of Accounts for the Stoughton City, 2014


REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR STOUGHTON CITY 12/24Page
:


03/08/2017 02:34 PM
User: LANA
DB: Stoughton PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2016


% BDGT
USED


AVAILABLE
BALANCE


NORMAL (ABNORMAL)


ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 12/31/2016


INCREASE (DECREASE)


YTD BALANCE
12/31/2016


NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2016


AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER


Fund 100 - GENERAL FUND
Expenditures


100.13 (1,054.00)153,814.68 824,560.00 823,506.00 Total Dept 59400-TRANSFER TO CAPITAL


Dept 59500-TRANSFER TO OTHER FUNDS
100.00 0.00 120,000.00 120,000.00 120,000.00 TRANSFER TO OTHER FUND-SICK LEAVE100-59500-50930


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 TRANSFER TO DEBT SERVICE100-59500-50931
100.00 0.00 17,458.62 47,800.00 47,800.00 TRANSFER TO PS BUILDING100-59500-50932


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 TRANSFER TO EQUIP REPLACEMENT100-59500-50933
100.00 0.00 36,000.00 36,000.00 36,000.00 TRANSFER TO FIREMAN'S PENSION100-59500-50934


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 TRANSFER TO TIF FUND100-59500-50935
100.00 0.00 0.00 560,495.00 560,495.00 TR OUT - LIBRARY FUND100-59500-50936


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 TR OUT -  LIBRARY GIFT FUND100-59500-50937
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 TR OUT - CURB & GUTTER FUND100-59500-50938
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 TR OUT - SIDEWALK FUND100-59500-50939


100.00 0.00 173,458.62 764,295.00 764,295.00 Total Dept 59500-TRANSFER TO OTHER FUNDS


Dept 59510
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 TRANSFER TO CAP OUTLAY100-59510-50932
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 TRANSFER TO EQUIP REPLACEMENT100-59510-50933


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Total Dept 59510


Dept 59800
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 TRANSFER TO CAP OUTLAY100-59800-50932


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Total Dept 59800


99.19 101,964.41 3,861,225.01 12,486,733.59 12,588,698.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES


99.05 61.26 (3,667,283.95)6,417.74 6,479.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES


99.19 101,964.41 3,861,225.01 12,486,733.59 12,588,698.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
99.19 102,025.67 193,941.06 12,493,151.33 12,595,177.00 TOTAL REVENUES


Fund 100 - GENERAL FUND:







Approved by State Board of Accounts for the Stoughton City, 2014


REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR STOUGHTON CITY 13/24Page
:


03/08/2017 02:34 PM
User: LANA
DB: Stoughton PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2016


% BDGT
USED


AVAILABLE
BALANCE


NORMAL (ABNORMAL)


ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 12/31/2016


INCREASE (DECREASE)


YTD BALANCE
12/31/2016


NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2016


AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER


Fund 215 - LIBRARY FUND
Revenues
Dept 00000


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 STATE AID 215-00000-43534
100.00 0.00 0.00 229,263.00 229,263.00 DANE COUNTY SERVICE FEES215-00000-43720
100.00 0.00 0.00 9,305.00 9,305.00 OTHER COUNTIES SERVICE FEES215-00000-43725


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 SCLS DIRECT CASH GRANTS215-00000-43730
100.00 (354.14)0.00 354.14 0.00 MISC. REVENUE215-00000-46110
99.38 142.88 1,535.21 22,857.12 23,000.00 FINES215-00000-46710
142.33 (1,269.80)420.50 4,269.80 3,000.00 COPY MACHINE215-00000-46712


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 INTEREST215-00000-48110
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 DONATIONS215-00000-48500


100.00 0.00 0.00 560,495.00 560,495.00 TRANSFER IN - GENERAL FUND215-00000-49210
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 SURPLUS215-00000-49300


100.18 (1,481.06)1,955.71 826,544.06 825,063.00 Total Dept 00000


100.18 (1,481.06)1,955.71 826,544.06 825,063.00 TOTAL REVENUES


Expenditures
Dept 55110


104.87 (3,436.40)10,330.40 73,936.40 70,500.00 SALARIES215-55110-50110
93.17 25,318.12 51,301.32 345,204.88 370,523.00 WAGES215-55110-50120
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 OVERTIME215-55110-50126


130.22 (15,127.65)6,939.16 65,181.65 50,054.00 WAGES - PART TIME215-55110-50127
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 SEASONAL/TEMPORARY215-55110-50128


96.99 1,996.03 9,178.46 64,234.97 66,231.00 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 215-55110-50151
118.88 (15,675.73)9,314.10 98,715.73 83,040.00 HEALTH INSURANCE215-55110-50152


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 MISC OUTSIDE SERVICES215-55110-50200
133.30 (266.38)161.29 1,066.38 800.00 TELEPHONE215-55110-50210
53.65 278.10 161.10 321.90 600.00 POSTAGE215-55110-50211
75.97 360.48 127.12 1,139.52 1,500.00 TRAVEL/CONFERENCE215-55110-50212
94.87 25.65 53.70 474.35 500.00 OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS-2215-55110-50216
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS-3215-55110-50217
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 SHARED DELIVERY AND OUTREACH215-55110-50218


90.85 1,922.28 1,317.58 19,077.72 21,000.00 UTILITIES215-55110-50220
28.49 6,435.70 416.56 2,564.30 9,000.00 UTILITIES-BUILDING 2215-55110-50221
124.79 (223.14)51.69 1,123.14 900.00 EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE215-55110-50240
101.51 (151.24)799.95 10,151.24 10,000.00 REPAIR & MAINTENANCE215-55110-50250
101.93 (867.39)78.00 45,867.39 45,000.00 TECHNOLOGY COSTS215-55110-50289
210.49 (552.45)21.81 1,052.45 500.00 MISC EXPENSES215-55110-50300
107.68 (268.73)0.00 3,768.73 3,500.00 PROGRAMS/PUBLICITY215-55110-50313
199.50 (199.00)0.00 399.00 200.00 SUBSCRIPTIONS/DUES215-55110-50320
84.13 1,110.69 36.05 5,889.31 7,000.00 PERIODICALS215-55110-50326
99.24 49.34 0.00 6,450.66 6,500.00 E-RESOURCES215-55110-50327
100.75 (93.58)830.48 12,593.58 12,500.00 AUDIO VISUAL215-55110-50328
101.43 (659.15)2,567.02 46,659.15 46,000.00 BOOKS215-55110-50329
139.83 (1,194.75)368.99 4,194.75 3,000.00 OPERATING EXPENSES215-55110-50340
116.09 (32.17)37.67 232.17 200.00 OPERATING EXPENSES-SPECIALIZED-1215-55110-50341
120.88 (877.05)312.20 5,077.05 4,200.00 OPERATING EXPENSES-SPECIALIZED-2215-55110-50342
100.00 0.00 0.00 6,815.00 6,815.00 CAPITAL-EQUIPMENT215-55110-50810
91.59 420.73 336.41 4,579.27 5,000.00 CAPITAL- COMPUTERS215-55110-50820
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 CONTINGENCY215-55110-50900
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 TRANSFER TO OTHER FUND215-55110-50930


100.21 (1,707.69)94,741.06 826,770.69 825,063.00 Total Dept 55110







Approved by State Board of Accounts for the Stoughton City, 2014


REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR STOUGHTON CITY 14/24Page
:


03/08/2017 02:34 PM
User: LANA
DB: Stoughton PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2016


% BDGT
USED


AVAILABLE
BALANCE


NORMAL (ABNORMAL)


ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 12/31/2016


INCREASE (DECREASE)


YTD BALANCE
12/31/2016


NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2016


AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER


Fund 215 - LIBRARY FUND
Expenditures


100.21 (1,707.69)94,741.06 826,770.69 825,063.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES


100.00 226.63 (92,785.35)(226.63)0.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES


100.21 (1,707.69)94,741.06 826,770.69 825,063.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
100.18 (1,481.06)1,955.71 826,544.06 825,063.00 TOTAL REVENUES


Fund 215 - LIBRARY FUND:







Approved by State Board of Accounts for the Stoughton City, 2014


REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR STOUGHTON CITY 15/24Page
:


03/08/2017 02:34 PM
User: LANA
DB: Stoughton PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2016


% BDGT
USED


AVAILABLE
BALANCE


NORMAL (ABNORMAL)


ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 12/31/2016


INCREASE (DECREASE)


YTD BALANCE
12/31/2016


NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2016


AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER


Fund 245 - OPERA HOUSE FUND
Revenues
Dept 00000


136.45 (168,039.59)2,357.00 629,039.59 461,000.00 TICKET SALES245-00000-46742
77.23 12,607.00 3,334.00 42,748.00 55,355.00 REVENUE-FEES245-00000-46745
0.00 200.00 0.00 0.00 200.00 OTHER TAXABLE SALES245-00000-46910


187.17 (52,301.38)2,369.00 112,301.38 60,000.00 MEMBERSHIPS245-00000-46920
16.79 10,401.00 0.00 2,099.00 12,500.00 ANNUAL PUBLICATION245-00000-46930
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 SPONSORSHIP - FESTIVAL245-00000-46940


177.50 (775.00)0.00 1,775.00 1,000.00 TAX EXEMPT SALES245-00000-46990
100.00 (44.44)1.36 44.44 0.00 INTEREST245-00000-48110
77.47 1,126.30 89.84 3,873.70 5,000.00 DONATIONS245-00000-48500
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 DONATIONS - UNDESIGNATED245-00000-48510
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 NOTE PROCEEDS245-00000-49120


100.00 0.00 72,760.68 143,506.00 143,506.00 TRANSFER IN - GENERAL FUND245-00000-49210
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 TRANSFER IN - OPERA HOUSE RESV245-00000-49246
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 SURPLUS245-00000-49300


126.65 (196,826.11)80,911.88 935,387.11 738,561.00 Total Dept 00000


126.65 (196,826.11)80,911.88 935,387.11 738,561.00 TOTAL REVENUES


Expenditures
Dept 55190-GENERAL OPERATING EXPENSES


133.37 (18,300.00)10,379.60 73,140.00 54,840.00 SALARIES245-55190-50110
152.72 (26,227.70)10,948.37 75,973.70 49,746.00 WAGES245-55190-50120


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 OVERTIME245-55190-50126
0.00 24,571.00 0.00 0.00 24,571.00 WAGES - PART TIME245-55190-50127


76.45 2,048.50 428.00 6,651.50 8,700.00 SEASONAL/TEMPORARY245-55190-50128
116.81 (3,094.28)3,096.85 21,499.28 18,405.00 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 245-55190-50151
104.06 (975.39)2,537.41 25,007.39 24,032.00 HEALTH INSURANCE245-55190-50152
105.69 (142.21)1,023.37 2,642.21 2,500.00 TELEPHONE245-55190-50210


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 EQUIPMENT RENTAL245-55190-50214
278.24 (26,735.33)3,924.02 41,735.33 15,000.00 OUTSIDE SERVICES/CONTRACTS-2245-55190-50216
31.36 6,864.06 515.00 3,135.94 10,000.00 EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE245-55190-50240
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 BUILDING & GROUNDS245-55190-50245
0.00 25,355.00 0.00 0.00 25,355.00 MISC EXPENSES245-55190-50300
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 PLANNING DEPT. SERVICES245-55190-50301


119.97 (14,974.28)20,211.00 89,974.28 75,000.00 ADS & PUBLICATIONS245-55190-50315
53.52 2,788.65 0.00 3,211.35 6,000.00 SUBSCRIPTIONS/DUES245-55190-50320
121.23 (3,184.57)931.52 18,184.57 15,000.00 OPERATING EXPENSES245-55190-50340


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 OPERATING EXPENSES-SPECIALIZED-2245-55190-50342
94.60 809.56 3,290.86 14,190.44 15,000.00 OPERATING EXPENSES-ADVERTISING245-55190-50343
152.36 (168,898.00)6,880.00 491,448.00 322,550.00 OPERATING EXPENSES-GUARANTEES245-55190-50344
188.71 (31,047.30)5,053.42 66,047.30 35,000.00 OPERATING EXPENSES-HOSPITALITY245-55190-50345
100.12 (6.08)266.97 5,006.08 5,000.00 OPERATING EXPENSES-MISC EVENT EXPENSES245-55190-50346
90.15 1,970.00 7,180.00 18,030.00 20,000.00 OPERATING EXPENSES-CONTRACT LABOR/RENTAL245-55190-50347
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 REPAIRS/MAINTENANCE245-55190-50350
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 TRANSFER TO OTHER FUND245-55190-50930


131.54 (229,178.37)76,666.39 955,877.37 726,699.00 Total Dept 55190-GENERAL OPERATING EXPENSES


131.54 (229,178.37)76,666.39 955,877.37 726,699.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES







Approved by State Board of Accounts for the Stoughton City, 2014


REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR STOUGHTON CITY 16/24Page
:


03/08/2017 02:34 PM
User: LANA
DB: Stoughton PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2016


% BDGT
USED


AVAILABLE
BALANCE


NORMAL (ABNORMAL)


ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 12/31/2016


INCREASE (DECREASE)


YTD BALANCE
12/31/2016


NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2016


AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER


Fund 245 - OPERA HOUSE FUND


172.74 32,352.26 4,245.49 (20,490.26)11,862.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES


131.54 (229,178.37)76,666.39 955,877.37 726,699.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
126.65 (196,826.11)80,911.88 935,387.11 738,561.00 TOTAL REVENUES


Fund 245 - OPERA HOUSE FUND:







Approved by State Board of Accounts for the Stoughton City, 2014


REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR STOUGHTON CITY 17/24Page
:


03/08/2017 02:34 PM
User: LANA
DB: Stoughton PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2016


% BDGT
USED


AVAILABLE
BALANCE


NORMAL (ABNORMAL)


ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 12/31/2016


INCREASE (DECREASE)


YTD BALANCE
12/31/2016


NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2016


AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER


Fund 300 - DEBT SERVICE FUND
Revenues
Dept 00000


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 INTEREST300-00000-48110
100.00 (30,695.41)0.00 30,695.41 0.00 REBATE300-00000-48113
100.00 (48,783.00)0.00 48,783.00 0.00 TOWNSHIP SHARE FIRE STATION300-00000-48115


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 RENT INCOME - UTILITY BUILDING300-00000-48200
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 TOWNSHIP LEASE PAYMENTS300-00000-48210
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 RENTAL INCOME300-00000-48220


100.00 (58,596.00)4,857.00 58,596.00 0.00 MCCI LEASE PAYMENTS300-00000-48250
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 RETIREE HEALTH CONTRIBUTIONS300-00000-48912


100.00 (144,170.75)0.00 144,170.75 0.00 NOTE PROCEEDS300-00000-48914
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 PREMIUM ON DEBT ISSUE300-00000-49100


100.00 (100,000.00)100,000.00 100,000.00 0.00 TRANSFER IN - EMS300-00000-49203
100.00 (2,337,231.00)2,337,231.00 2,337,231.00 0.00 TRANSFER IN - GENERAL FUND300-00000-49210


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 TRANSFER IN - EQUIP REPL FUND300-00000-49211
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 TRANSFER IN - TIF #2300-00000-49220


100.00 (439,529.00)439,529.00 439,529.00 0.00 TRANSFER IN - TIF #3300-00000-49223
100.00 (107,905.00)107,905.00 107,905.00 0.00 TRANSFER IN - TIF #4300-00000-49224
100.00 (141,060.00)141,060.00 141,060.00 0.00 TRANSFER IN - STORM WATER300-00000-49225
100.00 (92,918.06)0.00 92,918.06 0.00 TRANFER IN FROM UTILITIES300-00000-49228


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 SURPLUS300-00000-49300


100.00 (3,500,888.22)3,130,582.00 3,500,888.22 0.00 Total Dept 00000


100.00 (3,500,888.22)3,130,582.00 3,500,888.22 0.00 TOTAL REVENUES


Expenditures
Dept 58100-PRINCIPAL


100.00 (2,857,830.42)0.00 2,857,830.42 0.00 PRINCIPAL300-58100-50610


100.00 (2,857,830.42)0.00 2,857,830.42 0.00 Total Dept 58100-PRINCIPAL


Dept 58200-INTEREST & FISCAL CHARGES
100.00 (558,862.40)0.00 558,862.40 0.00 INTEREST300-58200-50620


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 PAYMENT TO REFUNDING ESCROW300-58200-50621


100.00 (558,862.40)0.00 558,862.40 0.00 Total Dept 58200-INTEREST & FISCAL CHARGES


Dept 58290
100.00 (71,264.85)363.00 71,264.85 0.00 DEBT ISSUANCE FEES300-58290-50630


100.00 (71,264.85)363.00 71,264.85 0.00 Total Dept 58290


Dept 58300
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 PRINCIPAL300-58300-50610
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 INTEREST300-58300-50620


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Total Dept 58300


Dept 59220
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 TRANSFER TO OTHER FUND300-59220-50930







Approved by State Board of Accounts for the Stoughton City, 2014


REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR STOUGHTON CITY 18/24Page
:


03/08/2017 02:34 PM
User: LANA
DB: Stoughton PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2016


% BDGT
USED


AVAILABLE
BALANCE


NORMAL (ABNORMAL)


ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 12/31/2016


INCREASE (DECREASE)


YTD BALANCE
12/31/2016


NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2016


AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER


Fund 300 - DEBT SERVICE FUND
Expenditures


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Total Dept 59220


100.00 (3,487,957.67)363.00 3,487,957.67 0.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES


100.00 (12,930.55)3,130,219.00 12,930.55 0.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES


100.00 (3,487,957.67)363.00 3,487,957.67 0.00 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
100.00 (3,500,888.22)3,130,582.00 3,500,888.22 0.00 TOTAL REVENUES


Fund 300 - DEBT SERVICE FUND:







Approved by State Board of Accounts for the Stoughton City, 2014


REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR STOUGHTON CITY 19/24Page
:


03/08/2017 02:34 PM
User: LANA
DB: Stoughton PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2016


% BDGT
USED


AVAILABLE
BALANCE


NORMAL (ABNORMAL)


ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 12/31/2016


INCREASE (DECREASE)


YTD BALANCE
12/31/2016


NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2016


AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER


Fund 400 - CONSTRUCTION FUND
Revenues
Dept 00000


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 PROPERTY TAXES400-00000-41110
100.00 (15,124.44)15,000.00 15,124.44 0.00 GRANTS400-00000-43524


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 STATE AID 400-00000-43534
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 MISC. REVENUE400-00000-46110
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 TOWNSHIP FIRE - CAPITAL400-00000-47323


100.00 (8,972.76)1,203.42 8,972.76 0.00 INTEREST400-00000-48110
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 SALE OF CITY PROPERTY400-00000-48309
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 PARK DONATIONS400-00000-48531
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 PREMIUM ON DEBT ISSUE400-00000-49100


100.00 0.00 0.00 2,565,500.00 2,565,500.00 NOTE PROCEEDS400-00000-49120
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 TRANSFER IN - EMS400-00000-49203
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 TRANSFER IN - GENERAL FUND400-00000-49210
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 TRANSFER IN - EQUIP REPL FUND400-00000-49211
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 TRANSFER IN - OUTLAY FUND400-00000-49212
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 TRANSFER IN -CONTINGENCY400-00000-49213


100.00 0.00 30,000.00 30,000.00 30,000.00 TRANSFER IN -BLDG MAINT400-00000-49214
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 TRANSFER IN - FIRE TRUCK FUND400-00000-49221


100.00 0.00 434,000.00 434,000.00 434,000.00 TRANSFER IN - STORM WATER400-00000-49225
100.00 0.00 279,000.00 279,000.00 279,000.00 TRANSFER IN - SP ASSESSMENT400-00000-49226
100.00 (70,000.00)0.00 70,000.00 0.00 TRANSFER IN - PARK DEV FUND400-00000-49232


0.00 557,462.84 0.00 0.00 557,462.84 SURPLUS400-00000-49300
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS-LIBRARY400-00000-49602


88.01 463,365.64 759,203.42 3,402,597.20 3,865,962.84 Total Dept 00000


88.01 463,365.64 759,203.42 3,402,597.20 3,865,962.84 TOTAL REVENUES


Expenditures
Dept 57100-BUILDINGS


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 OUTSIDE SERVICES/-ENGINEERING400-57100-50215
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 CAPITAL-INFRASTRUCTURE400-57100-50820


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Total Dept 57100-BUILDINGS


Dept 57220
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 CAPITAL-INFRASTRUCTURE-FIRE400-57220-50820


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Total Dept 57220


Dept 57330-STREETS
81.70 585,392.03 (106,999.58)2,612,695.31 3,198,087.34 CAPITAL-INFRASTRUCTURE-STREETS400-57330-50820
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 BUILDINGS/REMODEL400-57330-50830


81.70 585,392.03 (106,999.58)2,612,695.31 3,198,087.34 Total Dept 57330-STREETS


Dept 57331-BUILDINGS
111.19 (20,917.23)11,627.41 207,917.23 187,000.00 BUILDINGS/REMODEL400-57331-50830


111.19 (20,917.23)11,627.41 207,917.23 187,000.00 Total Dept 57331-BUILDINGS







Approved by State Board of Accounts for the Stoughton City, 2014


REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR STOUGHTON CITY 20/24Page
:


03/08/2017 02:34 PM
User: LANA
DB: Stoughton PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2016


% BDGT
USED


AVAILABLE
BALANCE


NORMAL (ABNORMAL)


ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 12/31/2016


INCREASE (DECREASE)


YTD BALANCE
12/31/2016


NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2016


AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER


Fund 400 - CONSTRUCTION FUND
Expenditures
Dept 57332-STREET CONSTRUCTION


100.00 (13,725.00)0.00 13,725.00 0.00 CAPITAL-INFRASTRUCTURE400-57332-50820


100.00 (13,725.00)0.00 13,725.00 0.00 Total Dept 57332-STREET CONSTRUCTION


Dept 57344-SIDEWALKS
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 CAPITAL-INFRASTRUCTURE400-57344-50820


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Total Dept 57344-SIDEWALKS


Dept 57345-STORM WATER
57.41 184,852.84 214,373.30 249,147.16 434,000.00 CAPITAL-INFRASTRUCTURE400-57345-50820


57.41 184,852.84 214,373.30 249,147.16 434,000.00 Total Dept 57345-STORM WATER


Dept 57391-4TH STREET DAM
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 CAPITAL-INFRASTRUCTURE400-57391-50820


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Total Dept 57391-4TH STREET DAM


Dept 57410-SANITARY SEWER
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 CAPITAL-INFRASTRUCTURE400-57410-50820


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Total Dept 57410-SANITARY SEWER


Dept 57415-SANITARY SEWER
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 CAPITAL-INFRASTRUCTURE400-57415-50820


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Total Dept 57415-SANITARY SEWER


Dept 57500-PRIOR YEAR CARRYOVER
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 CAPITAL-INFRASTRUCTURE400-57500-50820


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Total Dept 57500-PRIOR YEAR CARRYOVER


Dept 57620-PARKS
127.29 (12,790.36)1,341.42 59,665.86 46,875.50 CAPITAL-INFRASTRUCTURE400-57620-50820


127.29 (12,790.36)1,341.42 59,665.86 46,875.50 Total Dept 57620-PARKS


Dept 58290
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 DEBT ISSUANCE FEES400-58290-50630


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Total Dept 58290


81.30 722,812.28 120,342.55 3,143,150.56 3,865,962.84 TOTAL EXPENDITURES







Approved by State Board of Accounts for the Stoughton City, 2014


REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR STOUGHTON CITY 21/24Page
:


03/08/2017 02:34 PM
User: LANA
DB: Stoughton PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2016


% BDGT
USED


AVAILABLE
BALANCE


NORMAL (ABNORMAL)


ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 12/31/2016


INCREASE (DECREASE)


YTD BALANCE
12/31/2016


NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2016


AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER


Fund 400 - CONSTRUCTION FUND


100.00 (259,446.64)638,860.87 259,446.64 0.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES


81.30 722,812.28 120,342.55 3,143,150.56 3,865,962.84 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
88.01 463,365.64 759,203.42 3,402,597.20 3,865,962.84 TOTAL REVENUES


Fund 400 - CONSTRUCTION FUND:







Approved by State Board of Accounts for the Stoughton City, 2014


REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR STOUGHTON CITY 22/24Page
:


03/08/2017 02:34 PM
User: LANA
DB: Stoughton PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2016


% BDGT
USED


AVAILABLE
BALANCE


NORMAL (ABNORMAL)


ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 12/31/2016


INCREASE (DECREASE)


YTD BALANCE
12/31/2016


NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2016


AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER


Fund 410 - CAPITAL OUTLAY FUND
Revenues
Dept 00000


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 PROPERTY TAXES410-00000-41110
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 STATE GRANTS-POLICE410-00000-43521
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 FEDERAL AID: POLICE410-00000-43522


100.00 (14,100.00)0.00 14,100.00 0.00 GRANTS410-00000-43524
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 GRANTS- TAXI410-00000-43525
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 GRANTS- STREET DEPT FOUNDATION410-00000-43526
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 MISC. REVENUE410-00000-46110


124.78 (5,389.00)0.00 27,133.00 21,744.00 TOWNSHIP FIRE - CAPITAL410-00000-47323
100.00 (97.22)0.00 97.22 0.00 INTEREST410-00000-48110
100.00 (16,695.00)0.00 16,695.00 0.00 SALE OF CITY PROPERTY410-00000-48309


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 DONATIONS- POLICE DEPT.410-00000-48541
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 NOTE PROCEEDS410-00000-49120
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 NOTE PROCEEDS - FIRE STATION410-00000-49121


97.84 4,421.00 0.00 200,000.00 204,421.00 TRANSFER IN - GENERAL FUND410-00000-49210
100.00 0.00 508,000.00 508,000.00 508,000.00 TRANSFER IN - EQUIP REPL FUND410-00000-49211


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 TRANSFER IN -CONTINGENCY410-00000-49213
100.00 0.00 101,758.00 101,758.00 101,758.00 TRANSFER IN -BLDG MAINT410-00000-49214


0.00 45,410.00 0.00 0.00 45,410.00 TRANSFER IN - IT RESERVE410-00000-49215
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 TRANSFER IN - FIRE TRUCK FUND410-00000-49221
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 TRANSFER IN - PARK DEV FUND410-00000-49232
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 TRANSFER IN - K9 FUND410-00000-49252
0.00 202,118.73 0.00 0.00 202,118.73 SURPLUS410-00000-49300


80.09 215,668.51 609,758.00 867,783.22 1,083,451.73 Total Dept 00000


80.09 215,668.51 609,758.00 867,783.22 1,083,451.73 TOTAL REVENUES


Expenditures
Dept 57100-BUILDINGS


37.58 90,356.98 20,966.25 54,401.02 144,758.00 CAPITAL-INFRASTRUCTURE-BUILDINGS410-57100-50820


37.58 90,356.98 20,966.25 54,401.02 144,758.00 Total Dept 57100-BUILDINGS


Dept 57140
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 CAPITAL-INFRASTRUCTURE410-57140-50820


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Total Dept 57140


Dept 57190
131.11 (24,856.57)23,766.46 104,766.57 79,910.00 CAPITAL-INFRASTRUCTURE410-57190-50820


131.11 (24,856.57)23,766.46 104,766.57 79,910.00 Total Dept 57190


Dept 57191
0.00 11,815.00 0.00 0.00 11,815.00 CAPITAL-INFRASTRUCTURE410-57191-50820


0.00 11,815.00 0.00 0.00 11,815.00 Total Dept 57191


Dept 57193







Approved by State Board of Accounts for the Stoughton City, 2014


REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR STOUGHTON CITY 23/24Page
:


03/08/2017 02:34 PM
User: LANA
DB: Stoughton PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2016


% BDGT
USED


AVAILABLE
BALANCE


NORMAL (ABNORMAL)


ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 12/31/2016


INCREASE (DECREASE)


YTD BALANCE
12/31/2016


NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2016


AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER


Fund 410 - CAPITAL OUTLAY FUND
Expenditures


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 CAPITAL-INFRASTRUCTURE410-57193-50820


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Total Dept 57193


Dept 57210
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 CAPITAL-EQUIPMENT410-57210-50810


96.60 5,007.10 35,291.29 142,392.90 147,400.00 CAPITAL-INFRASTRUCTURE - POLICE410-57210-50820


96.60 5,007.10 35,291.29 142,392.90 147,400.00 Total Dept 57210


Dept 57220
75.31 53,048.81 12,788.08 161,791.19 214,840.00 CAPITAL-INFRASTRUCTURE - FIRE410-57220-50820
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 CAPITAL - FURNITURE410-57220-50825


75.31 53,048.81 12,788.08 161,791.19 214,840.00 Total Dept 57220


Dept 57230
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 CAPITAL-INFRASTRUCTURE410-57230-50820


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Total Dept 57230


Dept 57331-BUILDINGS
95.30 19,421.49 28,142.68 393,578.51 413,000.00 CAPITAL-INFRASTRUCTURE - STREETS410-57331-50820


95.30 19,421.49 28,142.68 393,578.51 413,000.00 Total Dept 57331-BUILDINGS


Dept 57332-STREET CONSTRUCTION
47.56 23,336.20 0.00 21,163.80 44,500.00 CAPITAL-INFRASTRUCTURE - STREETS410-57332-50820


47.56 23,336.20 0.00 21,163.80 44,500.00 Total Dept 57332-STREET CONSTRUCTION


Dept 57510
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 CAPITAL-INFRASTRUCTURE410-57510-50820


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Total Dept 57510


Dept 57520
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 CAPITAL-INFRASTRUCTURE410-57520-50820


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Total Dept 57520


Dept 57620-PARKS
11.21 24,177.73 0.00 3,051.00 27,228.73 CAPITAL-INFRASTRUCTURE410-57620-50820


11.21 24,177.73 0.00 3,051.00 27,228.73 Total Dept 57620-PARKS







Approved by State Board of Accounts for the Stoughton City, 2014


REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR STOUGHTON CITY 24/24Page
:


03/08/2017 02:34 PM
User: LANA
DB: Stoughton PERIOD ENDING 12/31/2016


% BDGT
USED


AVAILABLE
BALANCE


NORMAL (ABNORMAL)


ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 12/31/2016


INCREASE (DECREASE)


YTD BALANCE
12/31/2016


NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2016


AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER


Fund 410 - CAPITAL OUTLAY FUND
Expenditures
Dept 57630


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 CAPITAL-INFRASTRUCTURE410-57630-50820


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Total Dept 57630


Dept 58290
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 DEBT ISSUANCE FEES410-58290-50630


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Total Dept 58290


Dept 59300-TRANSFER TO DEBT SERVICE
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 TRANSFER TO OTHER FUND410-59300-50930
0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 TRANSFER TO CAP OUTLAY410-59300-50932


0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Total Dept 59300-TRANSFER TO DEBT SERVICE


81.33 202,306.74 120,954.76 881,144.99 1,083,451.73 TOTAL EXPENDITURES


100.00 13,361.77 488,803.24 (13,361.77)0.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES


81.33 202,306.74 120,954.76 881,144.99 1,083,451.73 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
80.09 215,668.51 609,758.00 867,783.22 1,083,451.73 TOTAL REVENUES


Fund 410 - CAPITAL OUTLAY FUND:


1,334.26 (226,375.27)502,059.30 244,716.27 18,341.00 NET OF REVENUES & EXPENDITURES


114.10 (2,691,760.30)4,274,292.77 21,781,634.87 19,089,874.57 TOTAL EXPENDITURES - ALL FUNDS
115.27 (2,918,135.57)4,776,352.07 22,026,351.14 19,108,215.57 TOTAL REVENUES - ALL FUNDS





		1- Bank Rec.pdf

		2- Cash Summary by Fund.pdf

		3- Receipt Register.pdf

		4-CRJE.pdf

		5- Check Register.pdf

		6- CDJE.pdf

		7- Fund Revenue and Expeditures.pdf






Meeting of: COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF STOUGHTON


Date/Time: Tuesday, February 28, 2017 @ 7:00 p.m.


Location: Council Chambers (2nd Floor of Public Safety Building)
321 South Fourth Street, Stoughton, Wisconsin


Members: Mayor Donna Olson, Tim Swadley, Matt Bartlett, Sid Boersma, Michael
Engelberger, Regina Hirsch, Greg Jenson, Kathleen Johnson, Dennis Kittleson,
Paul Lawrence, Tom Majewski, Pat O’Connor, and Scott Truehl


CALL TO ORDER


Mayor Olson called the meeting to order at 7:02 p.m.


Roll Call, Communications, and Presentations:


Clerk Kropf called the roll and noted that all twelve alderpersons were present.


Majewski explained that even though Council has the ability to go into closed session regarding the
Kettle Park West TIF application, he feels that it should not be done in closed session. He feels that the
discussion should be in open session to offer transparency to the citizens of Stoughton.


Hirsch reminded us all that the Sustainable Stoughton group is holding a green Thursday event on
March 2, 2017 at 6:30 p.m. in the Stoughton Fire Department Training Room.


Mayor Olson noted that Carl Sampson had passed away. At this year’s Memorial Day Celebration
WSTO will play a video of Carl reciting the Gettysburg Address, as he had done for years.


Engelberger stated that Council members have signed a letter requesting that the Mayor, as the Chair of
the Planning Commission, hold another Public Open House be held to discuss the City’s
Comprehensive Plan.


Johnson concurred with Alderperson Majewski that the Council should not go into Closed Session at
tonight’s meeting.


Swadley stated that there will possibly be a joint meeting of the Committee of the Whole and Stoughton
School Board in late April.


Boersma stated that he would like to see the towns involved with the Comprehensive Plan Open House.


Cummins Community Involvement Team Recognition and Award
Director of Public Work, Brett Hebert, welcomed the Cummins Community Involvement Team
comprised of Tyler Lorenz and Mark Mentik. He thanked them for their effort towards the City’s
Parks and noted that they donated approximately 720 hours to the department.







Mentik explained that the Cummins team entered a competition that recognizes sites for
outstanding environmental impact. He explained that their effort not only won the local award,
with a grant of $5,000, but they also won the global award, with a grant of $10,000.
Lorenz then gave a detailed overview of the different beautification efforts made by the
Cummins volunteers throughout the City. Mentik and Lorenz presented the City of Stoughton
with a $15,000 check to be used toward the City’s upcoming projects.


Minutes and Reports: The following minutes were entered into the record:
 Personnel Committee (8/22/2016, 9/12/2016, 12/15/2016, & 1/5/2017), Commission on


Aging (11/1/2017), Library Board (2/15/2017), Business Park North Committee (8/8/2016),
Landmarks Commission (1/12/2017), Planning Commission (1/9/2017), and Planning
Commission Open House (1/9/2017)


Public Comment Period:


Cheryl Trow; 960 US HWY 51; Spoke to concerns with the Casey’s General Store.
Richard Klade; 948 HWY 51; Spoke to concerns with the Casey’s General Store.
Joe Keller; 940 HWY 51; Spoke to concerns with the Casey’s General Store


CONSENT AGENDA
A. February 14, 2017 Council Minutes
B. R-17-2017- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve the updated


position descriptions for Utilities Wastewater Operator, Utilities Basic Certified
Wastewater Operator, Utilities Advanced Certified Wastewater Operator, Utilities
Advanced Certified Wastewater Operator/Laboratory Technician, and Wastewater
Systems Supervisor.


Motion by Boersma, to approve the consent agenda, second by O’Connor. Motion carried 12-0.


OLD BUSINESS


NONE


NEW BUSINESS


O-2-2017- An ordinance amending the zoning classification of certain lands located at 1640 E. Main
Street in the City of Stoughton from RH – Rural Holding to PB – Planned Business.


Alderperson Truehl explained that this ordinance is at Council for a first reading and that the Council
may consider it again at the next Council meeting.







O-3-2017- Amending Portions of the Erosion Control and Stormwater Management Code Sections
within Sec. 10-122, 10-127, 10-129, 10-130 and 10-131 of the Stoughton Municipal Code.


Alderperson Majewski explained that this ordinance is at Council for a first reading and that the Council
may consider it again at the next Council meeting.


R-8-2017- Preliminary Resolution declaring intent to exercise Special Assessment Powers for 2017
Street Projects.


Motion by Lawrence, to approve R-8-2017, second by Engelberger. Planning Director Scheel offered a
clarification to exhibit A’s language relating to Harrison Street. He noted that it should read Harrison
Street between Hamilton Street to Main Street. Scheel explained that there will be a public hearing in
approximately six to eight weeks and that a public hearing must occur before the final Special
Assessment can be considered. Motion carried by a roll call vote 12-0.


R-10-2017- Resolution by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton approving the
Park Place Condominium Plat.


Motion by Truehl, to approve R-10-2017, second by Jenson. Planning Director Scheel explained that the
plat would create two separate spaces with common element areas identified as a new type of “condo”.
These two would places of business as opposed to residential homes. Motion carried 12-0.


R-9-2017- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to continue using the professional
services of Angus Young & Associates in 2017 and 2018 for engineering and architecture design,
construction document development, as well as construction oversight for the proposed Public Works
Facility.


Motion by Lawrence, to approve R-9-2017, second by Engelberger. Director of Public Works, Brett
Hebert explained that the City started the process with Angus Young and Associates in 2013. He is
requesting that the City continue to work with them as the project progresses. He explained that to start
over with a new firm would take the City back to the beginning of the process and would cost the City
more money. He stated that the total cost associated with using this firm over the course of the project
would be approximately $359,000. Motion carried by a roll call vote of 10-2, with Boersma and Johnson
voting noe.


R-11-2017- Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan – Public Works Facility.


Motion by Majewski, to approve R-11-2017, second by Engelberger. Scheel stated that this plan is
more detailed than the current one on record and would include the new public works facility. Motion
carried 12-0.


R-12-2017- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve a contribution up to $450
from the Park Development Fund for assistance in having a new lighted flag pole installed in Norse Park
by Matt Krcma as an Eagle Scout project.







Motion by Hirsch, to approve R-12-2017, second by Truehl. Hirsch explained that this project is coming
from Matthew Krcma as an Eagle Scout project to update the landscaping and flag pole in Norse Park.
Motion carried 12-0.


R-13-2017- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve the Stoughton Bike
Transportation Plan.


Motion by Hirsch, to approve R-13-2017, second by Engelberger. Parks & Recreation Director Tom
Lynch presented the proposed bike route plan for the City. He explained that this resolution would also
ask for the funds to purchase signs to notate the new bike routes. Motion carried 12-0.


R-14-2017- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve using Park Development
Funds to pay for a site feasibility study for a building to be located in Mandt Park.


Motion by Hirsch, to approve R-14-2017, second by Lawrence. Parks & Recreation Director along with
the assistant director, Dan Glynn explained the plan for Mandt Park, which could possibly have a
whitewater park. This would allow people to utilize the river for tubing or kayaking. This resolution
would allow for a feasibility study to be conducted to possibly place a building in Mandt Park. He
explained that this building would allow for public restrooms and public gathering areas. He also noted
that there would be a pedestrian bridge to connect over the river as well. He further explained the other
possibilities that the site could bring. Lawrence explained that Mandt Park is currently underutilized and
that this plan could bring useful opportunities to the space. Majewski explained that he feels that it is a
good vision for the park, but he would like to see it extend to the whole park versus just portions. Motion
carried by a roll call vote 12-0.


The Council took a recess at 8:36 p.m.


The Council reconvened at 8:45 p.m.


*** The Council may meet in closed session per State Statute 19.85 (1)(c) considering employment
and compensation of a new Finance Director, and compensation for Police Department
Sergeants. The Council may reconvene in open session and proceed to consider the remaining
items on the agenda.


Motion by O’Connor, to move into closed session, second by Lawrence. Motion carried on a roll call
vote of 11-1, with Kittleson voting noe. The Council convened in closed session at 8:47 p.m.


The Council reconvened into open session at 9:47 p.m.


***R-15-2017- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve the compensation
change for the Police Department Sergeants as outlined in the hiring packet.


Motion by O’Connor, to approve R-15-2017 and also add “not exceed $7,000”, second by
Engelberger. Motion carried on a roll call vote 12-0.







***R-16-2017- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve retro pay in the
amount of $6367.14 to be paid to the Police Department Sergeants.


Motion by O’Connor, to approve R-16-2017, second by Engelberger. Motion carried on a roll
call vote 12-0. Motion carried on a roll call vote 12-0.


***R-18-2017- Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to approve the appointment
and hiring of the City of Stoughton Finance Director.


Motion by Majewski, to approve the appointment and hiring of the City of Stoughton Director of
Finance and Economic Development salaried at $91,718.9, second by Lawrence.


Motion by Hirsch, to change the current Director of Finance and Economic Development title
and job description by eliminating the title and duties of the position relating to economic
development and creating the position of Finance Director, second by Boersma. Motion failed by
a tied voted of 6-6, with Majewski, Truehl, Lawrence, O’Connor, Jenson, and Bartlett voting
noe.


Original motion was re-read.


Motion carried on a roll call vote 10-2, with Hirsch and Kittleson voting noe.


***Discussion and possible action regarding an updated Tax Incremental Financing request by
Forward Development Group relating to the Kettle Park West Phase II Development.


Ron Henschu gave an overview of an updated presentation relating to the TIF request for phase
II of the development. He also explained how the increase in the increment within the TID could
pay for various projects over time without any upfront City borrowing. Majewski thanked
Forward Development Group for the presentation, but maintained that he was against the
approval of TIF overall.


Motion by Swadley, that the Common Council will not have any further discussions or take any
further action on Kettle Park West Phase II TIF application until the developer has a plan that
has been approved by the WI DOT regarding the HWY 138 connection, second by Majewski.


Johnson would like to see this to go to referendum. Clerk Kropf explained that the deadline had
passed to add a referendum question to the April 2017 ballot. Motion carried on a roll call vote
10-2, with Truehl and O’Connor voting noe.


*** The council may convene in closed session pursuant to Wis Stat sec 19.85(1)(e), to
consider strategy to be adopted in connection with negotiating an agreement to purchase
certain property, and to consider strategy to be adopted in negotiating a development







agreement relating to Kettle Park West Phase II. The Council may reconvene in open
session and take action regarding Forward Development Group’s Tax Incremental
Financing Request.


ADJOURNMENT


Motion by Hirsch, to adjourn the meeting of the Common Council, second by O’Connor. Motion
carried 12-0. The meeting of the Common Council adjourned at 10:54 p.m.








CITY OF STOUGHTON, 381 E. Main Street, Stoughton, WI 53589


ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL
An ordinance amending the zoning classification of certain lands located at 1640 E. Main Street in the


City of Stoughton from RH – Rural Holding to PB – Planned Business


Committee Action: Planning Commission recommend Council approval 5 – 0


Fiscal Impact:


File Number: O -2- 2017 Date Introduced: First Reading: Feb 28, 2017


Second Reading: Mar 14, 2017


RECITALS


1. Casey’s Marketing Company (the “Applicant”) has applied to change the zoning
classification of certain lands located at 1640 E. Main Street in the City of Stoughton.


2. Applicant proposes changing the zoning classification of the land at 1640 E. Main Street
from Rural Holding, to PB Planned Business.


3. On February 13, 2017, the City of Stoughton Planning Commission held a public hearing
regarding Applicant’s proposed zoning change. The public hearing was preceded by the
publication of a class 2 notice, and other notice required by law.


4. The Planning Commission found that the proposed zoning change is consistent with the
City of Stoughton Comprehensive Plan, and recommended that the zoning changes be
approved as presented.


5. The Common Council has considered the proposed zoning change and the Plan
Commission’s recommendations, finds that the proposed zoning change is consistent
with the City of Stoughton Comprehensive Plan, and finds that the proposed zoning
change has the potential for enhancing the use of the lands and increasing the City’s tax
base.







ORDINANCE


The Common Council of the City of Stoughton, Dane County, Wisconsin do ordain as follows:


Section 1. The recitals set forth above are material to and are incorporated in this ordinance
as if set forth in full.


Section 2. The zoning classification of the land at 1640 E. Main Street is changed from RH-
Rural Holding to PB – Planned Business.


Section 3. This ordinance shall take effect upon passage and publication pursuant to law.


Dates
Council Adopted:


Mayor Approved:
Donna Olson, Mayor


Published:


Attest:
Lana Kropf, City Clerk


S:\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Rezonings\Casey 1640 E Main Rezoning Ordinance.doc







T:\PACKETS\PLANNING COMMISSION\2017\2-13-17\Planning Info\Casey Rezoning Council Memo.doc


CITY OF STOUGHTON RODNEY J. SCHEEL


DEPARTMENT OF DIRECTOR


PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT
381 East Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589


(608) 873-6619 www.ci.stoughton.wi.us


Date: February 15, 2017


To: Common Council


From: Rodney J. Scheel
Director of Planning & Development


Michael P. Stacey
Zoning Administrator/Assistant Planner


Subject: Agenda Item for the February 28 and March 14, 2017 Common Council meetings.


Casey’s Marketing Company request to rezone the property at 1640 E. Main Street from
RH - Rural Holding to PB – Planned Business.
This request is to rezone the property at 1640 E. Main Street to Planned Business to
accommodate a Casey’s General Store. The Comprehensive Plan Planned Land Use Map
recommends this property as Planned Business which is consistent with the proposed use and
zoning requested. The application, ordinance and other pertinent information are provided. A
public hearing was held by the Planning Commission on Feb 13, 2017 and recommendation to
approve is provided. The Planning minutes and other pertinent information are provided.







PUBLIC HEARING NOTICE


The City of Stoughton Planning Commission will hold a Public Hearing on Monday, February
13, 2017 at 6:00 o’clock p.m., or as soon after as the matter may be heard, in the Council
Chambers, Public Safety Building, 321 S. Fourth Street, Second Floor, Stoughton, Wisconsin,
53589, to consider the proposed rezoning of the following parcel of land at 1640 E. Main Street,
Stoughton, WI., owned by NATTER MARITAL PROPERTY TR. The lot is proposed to be
rezoned from RH – Rural Holding to PB – Planned Business, in the City of Stoughton, Dane
County, WI, more fully described:


Parcel number: 281/0511-043-9871-5
Legal Description: SEC 4-5-11 PRT SE1/4SW1/4 E 298.8 FT OF S 285 FT THF EXC 0.07 A


TO DOT IN R15097/9


For questions related to this notice contact Michael Stacey at 608-646-0421


Michael Stacey
Zoning Administrator


Published January 19, 2017 and January 26, 2017 HUB


S:\MPS-Shared\Ordinances\Rezonings\Rezoning Notices\Planning Rez. 1640 E. Main Street Notice.doc



























Park St


Giles St


Vernon St



mstacey

Line



mstacey

Line







 


Planning
Water Resources
ParcelText
Parcels


Tax Parcels
December 30, 2016


0 0.1 0.20.05 mi


0 0.15 0.30.075 km


1:4,441


 
 



mstacey

Line



mstacey

Line



mstacey

Line



mstacey

Line



mstacey

Text Box

W. MAIN / US HIGHWAY 51



mstacey

Text Box

COUNTY HIGHWAY N



mstacey

Text Box

1640







Planning Commission Meeting Minutes
2/13/17
Page 2 of 7


T:\PACKETS\APPROVED COMMITTEE MINUTES\Planning Commission\2017\Planning Minutes 2-13-17.docx


Scheel stated the front building is existing.


Motion by Hanna to recommend the Common Council approve the condominium plat as
presented, 2nd by Jenson. Motion carried 5 - 0.


6. John Bieno, TJK Design Build requests site plan approval for a building addition at 170
Business Park Circle.
Scheel gave an overview of the site plan.


Engelberger questioned if there were any issues. Scheel stated that staff recommends approval.


Motion by Engelberger to approve the resolution related to the site plan contingent on the staff
review letter, 2nd by Jenson. Motion carried 5 - 0.


7. Casey’s Marketing Company request to rezone the property at 1640 E. Main Street from
RH - Rural Holding to PB – Planned Business.
Scheel explained the request.


Truehl opened the public hearing.


David Natter spoke in favor of the request.


Scheel explained this request is to rezone the property from Rural Holding to Planned Business
which is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan Planned Land Use Map.


Ryan Swanson stated he is available for questions.


Engelberger questioned who will retain ownership. It was confirmed Casey’s will own the site.


Motion by Jenson to recommend the Common Council approve the rezoning request as
presented, 2nd by Hanna. Motion carried 5 - 0.


8. Casey’s Marketing Company requests a conditional use permit for an in-vehicle sales and
service use including outdoor display incidental to indoor sales and service to
accommodate Casey’s General Store at 1640 E. Main Street.
Scheel explained the request.


Truehl opened the public hearing.


David Natter registered in favor.


Ryan Swanson gave an overview of the site plan.


Hanna questioned the type of plants planned for the retention pond.


Ryan Swanson stated the plants would be turf plantings.



mstacey

Highlight

Casey’s Marketing Company request to rezone the property at 1640 E. Main Street from
RH - Rural Holding to PB – Planned Business.
Scheel explained the request.
Truehl opened the public hearing.
David Natter spoke in favor of the request.
Scheel explained this request is to rezone the property from Rural Holding to Planned Business
which is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan Planned Land Use Map.
Ryan Swanson stated he is available for questions.
Engelberger questioned who will retain ownership. It was confirmed Casey’s will own the site.
Motion by Jenson to recommend the Common Council approve the rezoning request as
presented, 2nd by Hanna. Motion carried 5 - 0.






		5a-O-2-2017-Casey 1640 E Main Rezoning Ordinance.pdf

		5b-1640 E. Main Street Rezoning Request.pdf






Page 1


CITY OF STOUGHTON, 381 E. Main Street, Stoughton, WI 53589


ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL


Amending Portions of the Erosion Control and Stormwater Management Code Sections within Sec.
10-122, 10-127, 10-129, 10-130 and 10-131 of the Stoughton Municipal Code


Committee Action: Public Works Committee recommends approval with the Mayor voting - - 0


Fiscal Impact: None


File Number: O –3--2017 Date Introduced: March 14, 2017


The Common Council of the City of Stoughton do ordain as follows:


ARTICLE IV. - EROSION CONTROL AND STORMWATER MANAGEMENT


Sec. 10-121. - Authority.


This article is adopted under the authority of Wis. Stats. § 62.234.


(Code 1986, § 20.00; Ord. No. 0-21-06, § 1, 5-9-2006)


Sec. 10-122. - Definitions.


As used in this article:


Affected means that a regulated activity has significantly:


(1) Caused negative impacts on water quality or the use or maintenance of land or business; or


(2) Endangered health, safety or general welfare.


Agricultural facilities and practices has the meaning in s. 281.16(1), Wis. Stats.


Average annual rainfall means a typical calendar year of precipitation as determined by the
department for users of models such as SLAMM, P8, or equivalent methodology. The average annual
rainfall is chosen from a department publication for the location closest to the municipality.


Bank erosion means the removal of soil or rock fragments along the banks or bed of a stream
channel resulting from high flow after rain events.


Best management practice (BMP) means a practice, technique or measure that is an effective,
practical means of preventing or reducing soil erosion or water pollution, or both, from runoff both during
and after land development activities. These can include structural, vegetative or operational practices.


City means the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin.


Cold water community means surface waters capable of supporting a community of cold water fish
and other aquatic life, or serving as a spawning area for cold water fish species (Wis. Adm. Code. NR
102.04(3) (a)).


Connected imperviousness means an impervious surface that is directly connected to a separate
storm sewer or water of the state via an impervious flow path.







Page 2


Construction site erosion control means preventing or reducing soil erosion and sedimentation from
land disturbing activity.


Department means the Department of Natural Resources.


Development means residential, commercial, industrial or institutional land uses and associated
roads.


Direct conduits to groundwater means wells, sinkholes, swallets, fractured bedrock at the surface,
mine shafts, nonmetallic mines, tile inlets discharging to groundwater, quarries, or depressional
groundwater recharge areas over shallow fractured bedrock.


Effective infiltration area means the area of the infiltration system that is used to infiltrate runoff and
does not include the area used for site access, berms or pretreatment.


Erosion and soil erosion means the detachment and movement of soil or rock fragments by water,
wind, ice or gravity.


Excavation means any act by which organic matter, earth, sand, gravel, rock or any other similar
material is cut into, dug, quarried, uncovered, removed, displaced, relocated or bulldozed and shall
include the resulting conditions.


Existing development means buildings and other structures and impervious area existing prior to
August 22, 2001.


Fill means any act by which earth, sand, gravel, rock or any other material is deposited, placed,
replaced, pushed, dumped, pulled, transported or moved to a new location and shall include the resulting
conditions.


Final stabilization means that all land disturbing construction activities at the construction site have
been completed and that a uniform perennial vegetative cover has been established with a density of at
least 70% of the cover for the unpaved areas and areas not covered by permanent structures or that
employ equivalent permanent stabilization measures.


Financial security instrument means a surety bond, performance bond, maintenance bond,
irrevocable letter of credit or similar guarantees submitted to the local approval authority to ensure that
requirements of this article are carried out in compliance with the stormwater management plan.


Gully erosion means a severe loss of soil caused by or resulting in concentrated flow of sufficient
velocity to create a defined flow channel.


Heavily disturbed site means a site where an area of land is subjected to significant compaction due
to the removal of vegetative cover or earthmoving activities, including filling.


Hydrologic soil group (HSG) has the meaning used in the runoff calculation methodology
promulgated by the United States Natural Resources Conservation Service Engineering Field Manual for
Conservation Practices.


Impervious surface means any land cover that prevents rain or melting snow from soaking into the
ground, such as roofs (including overhangs), roads, sidewalks, patios, driveways and parking lots. For
purposes of this article, all road, driveway or parking surfaces, including gravel surfaces, shall be
considered impervious, unless specifically designed to encourage infiltration and approved by the local
approval authority.


Infill means an undeveloped area of land located within an existing urban sewer service area,
surrounded by development or development and natural or man-made features where development
cannot occur.


Infiltration, for the purposes of this article, refers to any precipitation that does not leave the site as
surface runoff.


Infiltration system means a device or practice such as a basin, trench, rain garden or swale designed
specifically to encourage infiltration, but does not include natural infiltration in pervious surfaces such as







Page 3


lawns, redirecting of rooftop downspouts onto lawns or minimal infiltration from practices such as swales
or road side channels designed for conveyance and pollutant removal only.


Land conservation committee or LCC means the Dane County Land Conservation Committee
created under Wisconsin Statutes § 92.06.


Land disturbing activities means any land alterations or disturbances that may result in soil erosion,
sedimentation or change in runoff including but not limited to removal of ground cover, grading,
excavating and filling of land.


Lightly disturbed site means a site where an area of land is subjected to minor compaction due to the
limited removal of vegetative cover or earthmoving activities.


Local approval authority means the municipal staff, agency or contracted entity charged by the local
unit of government with responsibility for enforcing stormwater and erosion control ordinances, and
specifically includes the city planning department.


Local land division ordinance means any county, city, village or town ordinance adopted under Wis.
Stats. ch. 236 to regulate the division of land.


Local zoning ordinance means any county, city, village or town ordinance adopted under Wis. Stats.
§§ 59.69, 59.692, 59.693, 60.61, 60.62, 61.351, 61.354,114 62.23,62.231, or 62.234 of the to regulate the
use of land.


Maximum extent practicable (MEP) means a level of implementing best management practices in
order to achieve a performance standard specified in this chapter which takes into account the best
available technology, cost effectiveness and other competing issues such as human safety and welfare,
endangered and threatened resources, historic properties and geographic features. MEP allows flexibility
in the way to meet performance standards and may vary based on the performance standard and site
conditions.


New development means any of the following activities:


(1) Structural development, including construction of a new building or other structures;


(2) Expansion or alteration of an existing structure that results in an increase in the surface
dimensions of the building or structure;


(3) Land disturbing activities; or


(4) Creation or expansion of impervious surface.


Nonerosive velocity means a rate of flow of stormwater runoff, usually measured in feet per second,
that does not erode soils. Nonerosive velocities vary for individual sites, taking into account topography,
soil type and runoff rates.


NR means Natural Resources Wis. Admin. Code


Peak flow means the maximum rate of flow of water at a given point in a channel, watercourse, or
conduit resulting from the predetermined storm or flood.


Pervious surface means any land cover that permits rain or melting snow to soak into the ground.


Plan means an erosion control plan required by section 10-125 or a stormwater management plan
required by section 10-126.


Plan review agency means the municipal staff, agency or qualified contracted entity charged by the
local unit of government with responsibility for reviewing stormwater and erosion control plans under the
local stormwater and erosion control ordinance.


Plat review officer means the municipal staff, agency or contracted entity charged by the local unit of
government with responsibility for reviewing land divisions, certified survey maps or subdivision plats or
any combination thereof under Wis. Stats. ch. 236.







Page 4


Post-construction site means a construction site following the completion of land disturbing activity
and final site stabilization.


Post-development means the extent and distribution of land cover types anticipated to occur under
conditions of full development of the submitted plan. The term "post-development" is used to match pre-
development and post-development stormwater peak flows as required by this article.


Pre-development means the extent and distribution of land cover types present before the initiation
of the proposed land development activity, assuming that all land uses prior to land disturbing activity are
in "good" condition as described in the Natural Resources Conservation Service Technical Release 55,
"Urban Hydrology for Small Watersheds" (commonly known as TR-55). The term "pre-development" is
used to match pre-development and post-development stormwater peak flows as required by this article.
In a situation where cumulative impervious surface created after August 21, 2001 exceeds the 20,000
square foot threshold, the predevelopment conditions shall be those prior to the proposed land
disturbance.


Recharge means the portion of the average annual rainfall that infiltrates the soil and becomes
groundwater. Recharge does not include evaporation, transpiration, or runoff from the site.


Redevelopment means any construction, alteration or improvement exceeding 4,000 square feet of
land disturbance performed on sites where the existing site is predominantly developed as commercial,
industrial, institutional or multifamily residential uses. Projects may include a mix of redevelopment and
new impervious surfaces. New impervious surfaces added as a result of redevelopment are subject to
subsection 10-126(1).


Runoff curve number (RCN) has the meaning used in the runoff calculation methodology
promulgated by the United States Natural Resources Conservation Service Engineering Field Manual for
Conservation Practices.


Sediment means solid earth material, both mineral and organic, that is in suspension, is being
transported or has been moved from its site of origin by air, water, gravity or ice, and has come to rest on
the earth's surface at a different site.


Sedimentation means the deposition of eroded soils at a site different from the one where the
erosion occurred.


Sheet and rill erosion means a loss of soil caused by sheet flow or shallow concentrated flow, and
characterized by an absence of channeling or a relatively uniform loss across the exposed upper layer of
the soil or shallow irregular scouring of the soil surface.


Site means the bounded area described in an erosion control plan or stormwater management plan.


Slope means the net vertical rise over horizontal run, expressed as a percentage, which represents a
relatively homogeneous surface incline or decline over the area disturbed.


Soil loss rate means the rate, usually measured in tons per acre per year, at which soil is transported
beyond the perimeter of a given control site and which occurs as a result of sheet and rill erosion. The
term "soil loss rate" does not apply to soil movement resulting from concentrated flow such as gully or
bank erosion.


Storm events means the precipitation amounts that occur over a 24-hour period that have a specified
recurrence interval for Dane County, Wisconsin. For example, one-year, two-year, ten-year and 100-year
storm events mean the precipitation amounts that occur over a 24-hour period that have a recurrence
interval of one, two, ten and 100 years, respectively.


Stormwater means the flow of water which results from, and which occurs during and immediately
following, a rainfall, snow melt or ice melt event.


Stormwater management means any measures taken to permanently reduce or minimize the
negative impacts of stormwater runoff quantity and quality after land development activities.







Page 5


Stormwater runoff means the waters derived from rains falling or snow melt or ice melt occurring
within a drainage area, flowing over the surface of the ground and collected in channels, watercourses or
conduits.


Street reconstruction means removal and replacement of the road subgrade, where existing
stormwater conveyance systems are modified.


Structure means any human made object with form, shape and utility, either permanently or
temporarily attached to, placed upon, or set into the ground, stream bed or lake bed.


Transportation facility means a highway, a railroad, a public mass transit facility, a public-use airport,
a public trail or any other public work for transportation purposes such as harbor improvements under s.
85.095(1)(b), Wis. Stats. “Transportation facility” does not include building sites for the construction of
public buildings and buildings that are places of employment that are regulated by the Department
pursuant to s. 281.33, Wis. Stats.


Unnecessary hardship means that circumstance where special conditions, which were not self-
created, affect a particular property and make strict conformity with regulations unnecessarily
burdensome or unreasonable in light the purposes of this article.


(Code 1986, § 20.01; Ord. No. 0-21-06, § 1, 5-9-2006; Ord. No. 0-01-07, § 1, 1-9-2007; Ord.
No. 0-18-2013, § 1, 8-13-2013)


Cross reference— Definitions generally, § 1-2.


Sec. 10-123. - Legislative findings.


(a) The common council finds that construction site erosion and uncontrolled stormwater runoff from
land disturbing and land development activities have significant adverse impacts upon regional water
resources and the health, safety, property and general welfare of the community, and diminish the
public enjoyment and use of natural resources. Specifically, soil erosion and stormwater runoff can:


(1) Carry sediment, nutrients, pathogens, organic matter, heavy metals, toxins and other pollutants
to regional lakes, streams and wetlands;


(2) Diminish the capacity of water resources to support recreational and water supply uses and a
natural diversity of plant and animal life;


(3) Clog existing drainage systems, increasing maintenance problems and costs;


(4) Cause bank and channel erosion;


(5) Increase downstream flooding;


(6) Reduce groundwater recharge, which may diminish stream base flows and lower water levels in
regional lakes, ponds and wetlands;


(7) Contaminate drinking water supplies;


(8) Increase risk of property damage and personal injury; and


(9) Cause damage to agricultural fields and crops.


(b) The common council also finds that effective sediment and stormwater management depends on
proper planning, design and timely installation of conservation and management practices and their
continuing maintenance.


(Code 1986, § 20.02; Ord. No. 0-21-06, § 1, 5-920-2006)


Sec. 10-124. - Purpose and intent.







Page 6


(a) The purpose of this article is to set forth the minimum requirements for construction site erosion
control and stormwater management that will diminish threats to public health, safety, public and
private property and natural resources of the city.


(b) This article is intended to regulate construction site erosion and stormwater runoff, to accomplish the
following objectives:


(1) Promote regional stormwater management by watershed;


(2) Minimize sedimentation, water pollution from nutrients, heavy metals, chemical and petroleum
products and other contaminants, flooding and thermal impacts to the water resources of the
city;


(3) Promote infiltration and groundwater recharge;


(4) Protect functional values of natural water courses and wetlands;


(5) Provide a single, consistent set of performance standards that apply to all developments within
the city and are consistent with the standards set forth by the county;


(6) Achieve an 80 percent reduction in sediment load rates to the county waters compared to no
controls for all new development, a 40 percent reduction in sediment load rates compared to no
controls for all redevelopment and street reconstruction and a 20 percent reduction in sediment
load rates compared to no controls for existing developments;


(7) Ensure no increase in temperature of stormwater post-construction in order to protect cold
water communities;


(8) Ensure no increase in the rate of surface water drainage from sites during or after construction;
and


(9) Protect public and private property from damage resulting from runoff or erosion.


(Code 1986, § 20.03; Ord. No. 0-21-06, § 1, 5-9-2006)


Sec. 10-125. - Applicability of requirement for erosion control permits.


Unless expressly exempted by section 10-127, an erosion control permit under section 10-129 shall
be required and all construction site erosion control provisions of this article shall apply to any of the
following activities in the city:


(1) Land disturbing activity in excess of 4,000 square feet.


(2) Land disturbing activity that involves the excavation or filling, or a combination of excavation
and filling, in excess of 400 cubic yards of material.


(3) Land disturbing activity that disturbs more than 100 lineal feet of road ditch, grass waterway or
other land area where surface drainage flows in a defined open channel; including the
placement, repair or removal of any underground pipe, utility or other facility within the cross
section of the channel.


(4) Any new public or private roads or access drives longer than 125 feet.


(5) Development that requires a subdivision plat, as defined in the applicable local land division
ordinance(s).


(7) Land disturbing activity that disturbs less than 4,000 square feet of land, including the
installation of access drives, that the local approval authority determines to have a high risk of
soil erosion or water pollution, or that may significantly impact a lake, stream or wetland area.
Examples of activities with a high risk of soil erosion or water pollution may include, but are not
limited to, land disturbance on erodible soil or disturbance adjacent to lakes, rivers, streams or







Page 7


wetlands. All such determinations made by the local approval authority shall be in writing,
unless waived by the applicant.


(Code 1986, § 20.04; Ord. No. 0-21-06, § 1,. 5-9-2006)


Sec. 10-126. - Applicability of requirement for stormwater control permits.


Unless otherwise exempted by section 10-127, a stormwater control permit under section 10-129
shall be required and all stormwater management provisions of this article shall apply to any of the
following activities within the city:


(1) Any development after August 22, 2001, that results in the cumulative addition of 20,000 square
feet of impervious surface to the site;


(2) Any development that requires a subdivision plat, as defined in the applicable local land division
ordinance(s);


(3) Any development that requires a certified survey map, as defined in the applicable local
ordinance(s); for property intended for commercial or industrial use;


(4) Redevelopment, as defined in section 10-122.


(5) Notwithstanding the exemptions in Section 10-127, other land development activities, including,
but not limited to redevelopment or alteration of existing buildings and other structures, that the
local approval authority determines may significantly increase downstream runoff volumes,
flooding, soil erosion, water pollution or property damage or significantly impact a lake, stream
or wetland area. All such determinations shall be made in writing unless waived by the
applicant.


(Code 1986, § 20.05; Ord. No. 0-21-06, § 1, 5-9-2006)


Sec. 10-127. - Exemptions and clarifications.


(a) The following activities are exempt from all requirements of this article:


(1) Agricultural activities. Stormwater discharges from the planting, growing, cultivating and
harvesting of crops for human or livestock consumption and pasturing or yarding of livestock,
including sod farm and tree nurseries are not regulated by this ordinance. This exemption does
not include the construction of structures such as barn, manure storage facilities or barnyard
runoff control systems.


(2) Silviculture activities, including tree nursery operations, tree harvesting operations,
reforestation, tree thinning, prescribed burning, and pest and fire control. Clearing and grubbing
of an area of a construction site is not a silviculture activity.


(3) One-family and two-family dwelling units regulated under the Wisconsin Uniform Dwelling Code.
Land disturbing activities in excess of one acre, or not associated with the construction of a
dwelling, or less than one acre but part of a larger common plan of development or sale under
jurisdiction of the city, are not exempt from this article.


(4) Transportation facility construction projects directed and supervised by the Wisconsin
Department of Transportation in accordance with Wis. Admin. Code § NR 216.42(5).


(5) Routine maintenance for project sites that have less than 5 acres of land disturbance if
performed to maintain the original line and grade, hydraulic capacity or original purpose of the
facility.


(b) The following activities are exempt from the construction site erosion control provisions of section 10-
125:







Page 8


(1) Projects specifically exempted from local erosion control ordinances under state or federal
statute. It is the responsibility of the landowner to demonstrate such exemption with
documentation acceptable to the local approval authority.


(2) Projects subject to an approved shoreland erosion control permit under chapter 31.


(c) The following activities are exempt from the stormwater management provisions of section 10-126:


(1) New development sites with less than ten percent connected imperviousness based on
complete development of the post construction site, provided the cumulative area of all
impervious surfaces is less than one acre. This exemption does not include an exemption from
the protective area standard of Section 10-131(b)(9) of this ordinance.


(2) Agricultural facilities and practices.


(3) Underground utility construction, but not including the construction of any above ground
structures associated with utility construction.


(Code 1986, § 20.06; Ord. No. 0-21-06, § 1, 5-9-2006; Ord. No. 0-18-2013, § 2, 8-13-2013)


Sec. 10-128. - Preliminary review letter.


(a) Purpose and intent. A preliminary review letter provides a potential permit applicant with an initial
simple evaluation of whether erosion and stormwater control standards can be met for a proposed
site, lot layout and construction design. This review is intended to assist applicants in preparing
general site plans and other submittals necessary to obtain an erosion control and stormwater
permit. A preliminary review letter does not guarantee that an erosion or stormwater control plan will
be approved or that a permit will be issued. Erosion and stormwater control plans and permit
applications must meet all applicable standards and criteria for approval.


(b) Application procedure.


(1) The local approval authority may charge a fee to compensate for provision of the cost of the
preliminary review letter process.


(2) Any person may apply for a preliminary review letter by submitting an application that contains
the information required by the local approval authority.


(3) The local approval authority may require a preliminary review letter prior to accepting a petition
for rezoning or conditional use application under applicable ordinances, or city planning staff
may require a preliminary review letter prior to accepting an application for a certified survey
map under applicable ordinances where the following apply:


a. The proposal would involve one or more acres within either the current or proposed
boundaries of a commercial or industrial zoning district;


b. The proposed lot or rezone area configuration would necessitate driveways, access roads
or other construction that would clearly require an erosion control plan and/or stormwater
management plan under section 10-125 and/or 10-126;


c. Natural features of the site including, but not limited to slope, soils, wetlands, or hydrology
are such that, in the opinion of the city planning staff or a designated authority, substantial
risk of erosion, flooding or other environmental or public safety hazard exists;


(4) Unless expressly waived by the applicant, decisions by the local approval authority to require a
preliminary review letter shall be made in writing and shall detail the reasons why the authority
believes there to be a substantial risk of erosion, flooding or hazard.


(Code 1986, § 20.07; Ord. No. 0-21-06, § 1, 5-9-2006)







Page 9


Sec. 10-129. - Erosion and stormwater control permits and administration.


(a) No activity meeting the criteria described in section 10-125 or section 10-126 shall occur and no
building permits may be issued, until an erosion control and stormwater control permit is issued by
the local approval authority.


(b) Application Requirements. The applicant must provide the following when requesting a permit:


(1) Completed application form:


a. The application must be signed by the landowner or include a notarized statement signed
by the landowner authorizing the applicant to act as the landowner's agent and bind the
landowner to the terms of this article.


b. If a landowner appoints an agent to submit an application pursuant to subsection (b)(1)a. of
this section, the landowner shall be bound by all of the requirements of this article and the
terms of any permit issued to the agent.


(2) Fees as required by section 10-135.


(3) Copy of preliminary review letter, as described in section 10-128, if applicable.


(4) If required by section 10-125, an erosion control plan meeting all the standards of Wis. Admin
Code § NR 216.46 and the applicable performance standards in Wis. Admin. Code § NR 151.11
for construction sites or NR 151.23 for transportation facility sites, and Section 10-130, or a
simplified checklist as described in section 10-130.


(5) If required by section 10-126, a stormwater management plan meeting all of the standards of
Wis. Admin. Code § NR 216.47 and the applicable performance standards in Wis. Admin. Code
§§ NR 151.121 to NR 151.128 for construction sites or NR 151.242 to NR 151.249 for
transportation facility sites, and Section 10-131 and a draft maintenance agreement as
described in subsection 10-131(a)(10).


(6) Copies of permits or permit applications or approvals required by any other governmental entity.


(7) A proposed timetable and schedule for completion and installation of all elements of approved
erosion control and stormwater management plans and a detailed schedule for completion of
construction.


(8) An estimate of the cost of completion and installation of all elements of the approved erosion
control and stormwater management plans.


(9) Evidence of financial responsibility to complete the work proposed in the plan. The local
approval authority may require a financial security instrument sufficient to guarantee completion
of the project.


(10) A plan to manage solid waste on construction sites such as discarded building materials,
concrete truck washout, chemicals, litter and sanitary waste to reduce adverse impacts from
stormwater runoff.


(c) Approval process.


(1) The local approval authority shall verify that the permit application is complete under subsection
(b) of this section. The local approval authority or applicant shall forward the plan to the plan
review agency for review and approval. The plan review staff shall review the plan for
compliance with the standards identified in sections 10-130 and 10-131.


(2) The plan review staff shall either approve the submitted plan or notify the local approval
authority of any deficiencies. Staff engaged in this review and approval process shall be
certified where appropriate by the Wisconsin Department of Commerce for this purpose.


(3) The local approval authority shall notify the applicant in writing of any deficiency in the proposed
plan and the applicant shall be given an opportunity to correct any deficiency.







Page 10


(4) Where installed stormwater practices will be privately-owned, an affidavit which describes the
property by legal description, notifying future prospective purchasers of the existence of a
stormwater permit issued under this article and applicable plan, timetables and potential liability
imposed by subsection (h)(3) of this section for failure to bring the property into compliance with
this article after notification, shall be recorded with the Dane County register of deeds prior to
issuance of an erosion and stormwater control permit. Such information shall also be noted on
every plat and certified survey map.


(5) Upon approval of the plan review agency, the erosion control or stormwater management permit
shall be issued by the local approval authority after the applicant has met all other requirements
of this article.


(d) Permit requirements.


(1) The erosion control plan shall be implemented prior to the start of any land disturbing activity
and shall be maintained over the duration of the project. Stormwater components of the plan
shall be maintained in perpetuity.


(2) The permittee is responsible for installation of all BMPs as identified in the approved erosion
control plan and stormwater management plan.


(3) The permittee is responsible for successful completion of the erosion control plan and the
stormwater management plan. The permittee shall be liable for all costs incurred, including
environmental restoration costs, resulting from noncompliance with an approved plan.


(4) Application for a permit shall constitute express permission by the permittee and landowner for
the local approval authority to enter the property for purposes of inspection under subsection (e)
of this section or curative action under subsection (h)(3) of this section. The application form
shall contain a prominent provision advising the applicant and landowner of this requirement.


(5) All incidental mud-tracking off-site onto adjacent public thoroughfares shall be cleaned up and
removed by the end of each working day using proper disposal methods.


(6) A copy of the approved permit and erosion control plan shall be kept on the project site, in a
place readily accessible to contractors, engineers, local approval authority, inspection staff and
other authorized personnel.


(e) Inspections.


(1) Application for a permit under this article shall constitute permission by the applicant and
landowner for the local approval authority to enter upon the property and inspect during the
construction phase prior to the inspections pursuant to subsections (e)(4) and (e)(6) of this
section, as necessary to confirm compliance with the requirements of this article.


(2) As part of the plan approval process, the local approval authority shall determine the minimum
number of inspections required to ensure compliance. The site of any regulated land disturbing
activity shall be inspected once every 30 days, or more frequently as determined by the local
approval authority during the construction phase with assistance from the plan review agency
staff.


(3) The permittee shall notify the local approval authority within ten days after installation of all
practices in an approved erosion control plan and achievement of soil stabilization. The
permittee shall inspect the site weekly, prior to every forecasted rain fall of one-half inch or
greater, and within 24 hours following a rainfall of one-half inch or greater. Written
documentation of each inspection shall be maintained at the construction site and shall include
the time, date and location of inspection, the phase of land disturbance at the construction site,
person conducting the inspection, assessment of control practices, and a description of any
erosion or sediment control measure installation or maintenance performed in response to the
inspection.


(4) The local approval authority shall inspect the property to verify compliance with the erosion
control plan within ten days of notification of soil stabilization.







Page 11


(5) Within ten days after installation of all practices in an approved stormwater management plan,
the permittee shall notify the local approval authority and submit drawings documenting
construction. A professional engineer shall submit as-built certification to ensure that
constructed stormwater management practices and conveyance systems comply with the
specifications included in the approved plans. At minimum, as-built certification shall include a
set of drawings comparing the approved stormwater management plan with what was
constructed. Other information shall be submitted as required by the local approval authority.


(6) The local approval authority shall inspect the property to verify compliance within ten days of
notification.


(7) Maintenance is the responsibility of the owner and facilities are subject to inspection and orders
for repairs.


(f) Permit transfers.


(1) When a permittee and landowner act to transfer an interest in property subject to an approved
plan prior to completion of the proposed steps to attain soil stabilization, the permittee must
secure approval from the local approval authority.


(2) When a permittee and landowner transfer ownership, possession or control of real estate
subject to either or both an uncompleted erosion control and a stormwater management plan,
the successor in interest to any portion of the real estate shall be responsible to control soil
erosion and runoff and shall comply with the minimum standards provided in this article.


(3) When ownership, possession or control of property subject to an uncompleted erosion control or
stormwater management plan, or both, is transferred, the former owner (seller) shall notify the
new owner (buyer) as to the current status of compliance with notice to the authority and
provide a copy of the erosion control plan or stormwater management plan, or both.


(4) Transfers of interest in real estate subject to an approved, uncompleted plan may be conducted
consistent with this article under any of the following arrangements:


a. The transferee shall file a new, approved erosion control or stormwater management plan,
or both, with the authority.


b. The transferee shall obtain an approved assignment from the authority as subpermittee to
complete that portion of the approved plan regulating soil erosion and runoff on the
transferee's property.


c. The permittee shall provide the authority with a duly completed and executed continuing
surety bond or certified check in an amount sufficient to complete the work proposed in the
approved plan; at the time of transfer, the permittee may seek to reduce the surety bond or
certified check to the appropriate amount to complete remaining work. If the transferor
enters into escrow agreements with transferees to complete an approved plan, these funds
shall be available to the authority to attain plan compliance. When an approved erosion
control plan and, if required, a stormwater management plan is or are not completed as
proposed, the authority may use the surety bond to complete remaining work to achieve
plan compliance.


(g) Plan or permit amendments. Any proposed modifications to approved plans, construction schedules
or alterations to accepted sequencing of land disturbing site activities shall be approved by the local
approval authority in consultation with the plan review agency prior to implementation of such
changes. One permit revision is allowed at no charge. The second and subsequent revisions, to a
maximum of five revisions, cost $50.00 each.


(h) Violations and enforcement:


(1) Stop work order.


a. Whenever the local approval authority finds any noncompliance with the provisions of this
article, the local approval authority shall attempt to communicate with the owner or person







Page 12


performing the work to obtain immediate and voluntary compliance if such person is readily
available. If the owner or person performing the work is not readily available, that person
refuses to voluntarily comply immediately or the noncompliance presents an immediate
danger or will cause or threatens to cause bodily injury or damage to off-site property
including, but not limited to off-site runoff, the local approval authority shall post in a
conspicuous place on the premises, a stop work order which shall cause all activity not
necessary to correct the noncompliance to cease until noncompliance is corrected.


b. The stop work order shall provide the following information:


1. Date of issuance;


2. Reason for posting;


3. The signature of the inspector posting the card; and


4. The address or legal description of the property.


c. It shall be a violation of this article for the unauthorized removal of the stop work order from
the premises.


(2) In addition to posting a stop work order, the local approval authority shall provide notification to
the owner or contractor by personal service, written notice by certified mail, electronic mail or
facsimile transmission.


a. The permittee, landowner and contractor shall have 24 hours from the time and date of
notification by the local approval authority to correct any noncompliance with the plan when
notification is by either personal communication of noncompliance to the owner or
contractor or their respective agents or written notice sent by certified mail to the owner or
the contractor.


b. If notice is not provided under subsection (h)(2)a of this section, the permittee and
landowner shall have 72 hours to correct any noncompliance with the plan when
notification is by posting notice in a conspicuous place on the site or sending notice by
facsimile transmission to the owner or contractor.


(3) If any noncompliance is not corrected within the time periods specified in subsection (h)(2)a or
(h)(2)b of this section, the permittee and landowner authorize the local approval authority to
take any action, to perform any work or commence any operations necessary to correct
conditions upon the subject property where notice of noncompliance has been issued to bring
the property into conformance with plan requirements. The permittee and landowner further
consent to reimburse the authority for the total costs and expenses of such actions and such
reimbursement may be collected as a special charge upon the property for current services
rendered as provided by law.


(4) If the permittee has filed an appeal under subsection 10-134(a)(1) prior to the expiration of the
time for compliance under subsection (h)(2) of this section, the local approval authority may
take action, perform work or correct conditions only to the extent necessary to protect against or
correct an imminent hazard or a condition that will cause or threatens to cause personal injury
or damage to off-site property.


(i) Penalties.


(1) Any person, firm, company or corporation, owner, occupant or other user of the premises who
violates, or refuses to comply with, or resists the enforcement of, any of the provisions of this
article shall be subject to a forfeiture of not less than $200.00 nor more than $1,000.00 and
costs of prosecution. Each day that a violation exists shall constitute a separate offense, and
such violations shall be prosecuted in municipal court.


(2) Any person who has the ability to pay any forfeiture entered against him under this article, but
refuses to do so may be confined in the county jail until such forfeiture is paid, but in no event to
exceed 30 days. In determining whether an individual has the ability to pay a forfeiture, all items







Page 13


of income and all assets may be considered regardless of whether or not such income or assets
are subject to garnishment, lien or attachment by creditors.


(j) Timeframe and expiration.


(1) Erosion control plan timetables and construction schedules must begin within one year of the
date of the application for permit is submitted.


(2) All applications for permit shall expire:


a. One year from the date the applicant is notified of an application deficiency, if the applicant
has not submitted additional information to adequately address the deficiency within one
year; or


b. Three years from the date of application.


(3) Erosion control permits shall expire:


a. Upon the stabilization date included in the approval plan and included in the analysis
provided to meet the requirements of ten.


b. A maximum of three years after the permit is issued.


(Code 1986, § 20.08; Ord. No. 0-21-06, § 1, 5-9-2006; Ord. No. 0-18-2013, § 3, 8-13-2013)


Sec. 10-130. - Erosion control plan requirements.


(a) Plan materials. Erosion control plans required under section 10-125 may include consideration of
adjoining landowners' cooperative efforts to control transport of sediment and, except as specifically
exempted in this section, shall include at a minimum the information required in Wis. Admin. Code §
NR 216.46 including the following information:


(1) Property lines, lot dimensions, and limits of disturbed area;


(2) Limits of impervious area including buildings. Include all public and private roads, interior roads,
driveways, parking lots, and indicate type of paving and surfacing material;


(3) All natural and artificial water features including, but not limited to lakes, ponds, streams,
(including intermittent streams), and ditches; and areas of natural woodland or prairie. The plan
must show ordinary high-water marks of all navigable waters, 100-year flood elevations and
delineated wetland boundaries. A certified flood zone determination and/or wetland delineation
may be required at the applicant's expense;


(4) Cross sections of and profiles of channels, swales, and road ditches;


(5) Culvert sizes;


(6) Direction of flow of runoff;


(7) Watershed size for each drainage area;


(8) Design discharge for ditches and structural measures;


(9) Runoff velocities;


(10) Fertilizer and seeding rates and recommendations;


(11) Time schedules for stabilization of ditches and slopes;


(12) Description of methods by which sites are to be developed and a detailed land disturbance
schedule including time schedules for stabilization of ditches and slopes;


(13) Provision for sequential steps mitigating erosive effect of land disturbing activities to be followed
in appropriate order and in a manner consistent with accepted erosion control methodology







Page 14


suitable to proposed sites and amenable to prompt revegetation, including runoff calculations as
appropriate;


(14) Provisions to prevent mud-tracking off-site onto public thoroughfares during the construction
period;


(15) Provisions to disconnect impervious surfaces, where feasible;


(16) Provisions to prevent sediment delivery to, and accumulation in, any proposed or existing
stormwater conveyance system;


(17) Copies of permits or permit applications required by any other unit of government or agency;


(18) Existing and proposed elevations (referenced to the National Geodetic Vertical Datum of 1929)
and existing and proposed contours in the area, where deemed necessary; [and]


(19) Any other information necessary to reasonably determine the location, nature and condition of
any physical or environmental features of the site.


(b) Simplified plan checklists. Applicants may submit erosion control proposals using simplified
checklists of standard erosion control practices, on a standard form approved by the local approval
authority, wherever all of the following conditions exist:


(1) The site does not exceed 20,000 square feet in area; and


(2) Soil on slopes steeper than 6 percent will be exposed for less than 15 days.


(3) Soil on slopes less than 6 percent will be exposed for less than 6 months


(c) Review of simplified plan checklists. Simplified plan checklists shall be reviewed by the local
approval authority for completeness and accuracy.


(d) Erosion control performance standards. The erosion control plan shall be designed to meet the
following performance standards and other requirements of this ordinance.


(1) Proposed design, suggested location and phased implementation of effective, practicable
erosion control measures for plans shall be designed, engineered and implemented to achieve
the following results:


a. Prevent gully and bank erosion;


b. Limit total off-site permissible annual aggregate soil loss for exposed areas resulting from
sheet and rill erosion to an annual, cumulative soil loss rate not to exceed 7.5 tons per acre
annually; and


c. Discharges from new construction sites must have a stable outlet capable of carrying
designed flow as required in subsection 10-131(b)(3), at a non-erosive velocity. Outlet
design must consider flow capacity and flow duration. This requirement applies to both the
site outlet and the ultimate outlet to stormwater conveyance or waterbody.


(2) Plan compliance under subsection (d)(1) of this section shall be determined using the U.S.
Natural Resources Conservation Service Technical Guide or another commonly accepted soil
erosion methodology approved by the county conservationist, that considers season of year,
site characteristics, soil erodibility and slope.


(3) Erosion control measures for plan approval need not attempt to regulate soil transportation
within the boundaries of the applicant's site.


(4)


a. Except as authorized in this section, the topography within five (5) feet of any property
line at the commencement of any development shall remain unchanged.


1. When land disturbing activities associated with development occur within five (5)
feet of any property line, finished grades in that area shall be restored to the







Page 15


topography in existence before the land disturbing activity began. A positive
slope of one-half (1/2) inch vertical per one (1) foot horizontal within five (5) feet
of the property line is allowed to provide proper drainage away from a one or two
family residence.


2. The established grade of the adjoining property shall determine the finished
grade at the property line for any development. The owner of the property under
development bears the burden of proof as to the established grade at the
property line and the topography within five (5) feet of the property line. The
director of the Director of Planning & Development may require detailed site
grading plans of existing and proposed conditions to be submitted before
commencement of land disturbing activities.


b. Existing drainage ways and drainage easements along property lines shall be maintained
including, but not limited to, natural watercourses and stormwater management areas
shown on subdivision plats and certified survey maps.


c. Development in Floodplain Districts requiring fill to comply with chapter 30 is exempt from
this subsection.


d. Upon written application, the director of the Director of Planning & Development may
authorize exceptions resulting in changes to the existing topography at and within five (5)
feet of any property line that would promote the purposes stated in this ordinance. An
exception authorized under this subsection may not direct additional stormwater runoff
toward adjacent properties. Proposed exceptions may include but are not limited to,
retaining walls, berms and other structures, and other changes to existing grade at and
within five (5) feet of a property line. The director of the Director of Planning &
Development may require the submittal of detailed site grading plans of existing and
proposed conditions including, but not limited to, detailed topographical information of the
subject and adjoining properties, before land disturbing activities commence.


(5) An erosion control plan required under this ordinance shall meet the requirements of Wis.
Admin. Code § NR 216.46 and the applicable performance standards in Wis. Admin. Code §
NR 151.11 for construction sites or § NR 151.23 for transportation facility sites.


(Code 1986, § 20.09; Ord. No. 0-21-06, § 1, 5-9-2006)


Sec. 10-131. - Stormwater management plan requirements.


(a) Plan materials. Stormwater management plans required under section 10-126 shall satisfy all of the
requirements in subsection (b) of this section, and shall address at a minimum the following
information:


(1) Name, address, and telephone number for the following or their designees: landowner;
developer; project engineer for practice design and certification; person(s) responsible for
installation of stormwater management practices; and person(s) responsible for maintenance of
stormwater management practices prior to the transfer, if any, of maintenance responsibility to
another party.


(2) A narrative describing the proposed project, including an implementation schedule for planned
practices;


(3) Identification of the entity responsible for long-term maintenance of the project;


(4) A map showing drainage areas for each watershed area;


(5) A summary of runoff peak flow rate calculations, by watershed area, including:


a. Pre-existing peak flow rates;







Page 16


b. Post-construction peak flow rates with no detention;


c. Post-construction peak flow rates with detention;


d. Assumed runoff curve numbers (RCNs); and


e. Time of concentration (Tc) used in calculations;


(6) A complete site plan and specifications, signed by the person who designed the plan. All plans
shall be drawn to an easily legible scale, shall be clearly labeled and shall include, at a
minimum, all of the following information:


a. Property lines and lot dimensions, including all existing and proposed buildings and
setbacks;


b. All public and private roads, interior roads, driveways and parking lots. Show traffic
patterns and type of paving and surfacing material;


c. All natural and artificial water features, including but not limited to lakes, ponds, streams
(including intermittent streams), and ditches. Show ordinary high-water marks of all
navigable waters, 100-year flood elevations and delineated wetland boundaries, if any. If
not available, appropriate flood zone determination or wetland delineation, or both, may be
required at the applicant's expense;


d. Depth to bedrock;


e. Depth to seasonal high water table;


f. The extent and location of all soil types as described in the Dane County Soil Survey,
slopes exceeding 12 percent, and areas of natural woodland or prairie;


g. Existing and proposed elevations (referenced to the North American Vertical Datum of
1988, where available) and existing and proposed contours in the area requiring a grading
and filling permit;


h. Elevations, sections, profiles and details as needed to describe all natural and artificial
features of the project;


i. Soil erosion control and overland runoff control measures, including runoff calculations as
appropriate;


j. Detailed construction schedule;


k. Copies of permits or permit applications required by any other governmental entities or
agencies;


l. Any other information necessary to reasonably determine the location, nature and
condition of any physical or environmental features;


m. Location of all stormwater management practices;


n. All existing and proposed drainage features;


o. The location and area of all proposed impervious surfaces; and


p. The limits and area of the disturbed area.


q. All buildings and outdoor uses, existing and proposed, including all dimensions and
setbacks.


(7) Engineered designs for all structural management practices;


(8) A description of methods to control oil and grease or written justification for not providing such
control;


(9) If required under subsection (b)(6) of this section, a description and plans to control temperature
of runoff;







Page 17


(10) A maintenance plan and schedule for all permanent stormwater management practices as
recorded on the affidavit required in subsection 10-129(c)(4). This plan shall, at a minimum,
contain the following information and provisions:


a. Identification of the owner(s) of the land parcel(s) where BMP(s) are located;


b. Long Term Maintenance Plan. A description of all long term maintenance activities that
will likely be required for each BMP included in the agreement, and an estimated time
interval between each activity;


c. Access. Authorization for vehicle access, including a minimum 15-foot wide access
easement dedicated to the City, to allow for future BMP maintenance work.


d. Maintenance Responsibility. Identification of the person(s), organization, municipality or
other entity responsible for long term maintenance of the stormwater BMP.


e. Inspections shall be performed by the responsible party. The responsible party shall
maintain a log of inspection activities.


(11) A summary of infiltration calculations including:


a. Pre-developed infiltration volume;


b. Calculated infiltration volume goal;


c. Achieved post development infiltration volume.


(b) Stormwater management performance standards. Proposed design, suggested location and phased
implementation of effective, practicable stormwater management measures for plans shall be
designed, engineered and implemented to achieve the following results:


(1) For redevelopment sites where the redevelopment will be replacing older development that was
subject to post-construction performance standards of NR 151 in effect on or after October 1,
2004, the permittee shall meet the total suspended solids reduction, peak flow control,
infiltration, and protective area standards applicable to the older development or meet the
redevelopment standards of this ordinance, whichever is more stringent.


(2) Total suspended solids. BMPs shall be designed, installed and maintained to control total
suspended solids carried in runoff from the post-construction site as follows:


a. For new development, design practices to retain soil particles greater than five microns on
the site (80 percent reduction) resulting from a one-year 24-hour storm event (2.5 inches
over a 24-hour duration), according to approved procedures and assuming no sediment
resuspension;


b. For redevelopment resulting in exposed surface parking lots and associated traffic areas,
design practices to retain soil particles greater than 20 microns on the entire site (40
percent reduction) resulting from a one-year 24-hour storm event, according to approved
procedures and assuming no sediment resuspension. Under no circumstances shall the
site's existing sediment control level or trapping efficiency be reduced as a result of the
redevelopment.


c. For in-fill development by design, reduce to the maximum extent practicable, the total
suspended solids load by 80%, based on an average annual rainfall, as compared to no
runoff management controls. No person shall be required to exceed an 80% total
suspended solids reduction to meet the requirements of this subdivision.


d. Maximum Extent Practicable. If the design cannot meet a total suspended solids reduction
performance standard in subs (a)-(c), the stormwater management plan shall include a
written, site-specific explanation of why the total suspended solids reduction performance
standard cannot be met and why the total suspended solids load will be reduced only to
the maximum extent practicable.







Page 18


e. Off-Site Drainage. When designing BMPs, runoff draining to the BMP from off-site shall be
taken into account in determining the treatment efficiency of the practice. Any impact on
the efficiency shall be compensated for by increasing the size of the BMP accordingly.


(2) Oil and grease control. For all stormwater plans for commercial or industrial developments and
all other uses where the potential for pollution by oil or grease, or both, exists, the first 0.5 inch
of runoff will be treated using the best oil and grease removal technology available. This
requirement may be waived by the plan reviewer only when the applicant can demonstrate that
installation of such practices is not necessary.


(3) Peak discharge.


a. The maximum runoff curve number (RCN) used in such calculations shall be those shown
in Table 1. The TR-55 specified curve numbers for other land uses shall be used. Heavily
disturbed sites will be lowered one permeability class for hydrologic calculations. Lightly
disturbed areas require no modification. Where practices have been implemented to
restore soil structure to pre-developed conditions, no permeability class modification is
required.


Table 1. Maximum Pre-development Runoff Curve Numbers


Runoff Curve


Number
Hydrologic Soil Group *


A B C D


Woodland 30 55 70 77


Grassland 39 61 71 78


Cropland 51 68 78 83


* When dual HSG are specified, the drained condition shall be assumed


b. Runoff rate control—design standards. Except for redevelopment projects, all stormwater
facilities shall be designed, installed and maintained to effectively accomplish the following:


1. Maintain predevelopment peak runoff rates for the one1-year, 24-hour storm event (2.549
inches over 24-hour duration using the NRCS MSE4 storm distribution).


2. Maintain predevelopment peak runoff rates for the two2-year, 24-hour storm event (2.984
inches over 24-hour duration using the NRCS MSE4 storm distribution).


3. Maintain predevelopment peak runoff rates for the ten10-year, 24-hour storm event (4.209
inches over 24-hour duration using the NRCS MSE4 storm distribution).


4. Safely pass the Maintain predevelopment peak runoff rates for the 100-year, 24-hour storm
event (6.066 inches over 24 -hours' duration using the NRCS MSE4 storm distribution).







Page 19


(4) Outlets. Discharges from new construction sites must have a stable outlet capable of carrying
designed flow as required in subsection (b)(3)b of this section, at a nonerosive velocity. Outlet
design must consider flow capacity and flow duration. This requirement applies to both the site
outlet and the ultimate outlet to stormwater conveyance or waterbody.


(5) Infiltration.


a. For both residential and nonresidential developments, design practices to infiltrate
sufficient runoff volume so that post-development infiltration volume shall be at least 90
percent of the pre-development infiltration volume, based upon average annual rainfall.


b. The maximum runoff curve number (RCN) used in such calculations shall be those
specified in subsection (b)(3)a Table 1.


c. If, when designing appropriate infiltration systems, more than two percent of the site is
required to be used as effective infiltration area, the applicant may alternately design
infiltration systems and pervious surfaces to meet or exceed the annual pre-development
recharge rate. The annual pre-development recharge rate shall be determined from the
Wisconsin Geological and Natural History Survey's 2009 report, Groundwater Recharge in
Dane County, Estimated by a GIS-Based Water-Balanced Model or subsequent updates to
this report, or by a site specific analysis using other appropriate techniques. If this
alternative design approach is taken, at least two percent of the site must be used for
infiltration.


d. Pre-treatment. Before infiltrating runoff, pre-treatment shall be required for parking lot
runoff and for runoff from new road construction in commercial, industrial, and institutional
areas that will enter an infiltration system. The pretreatment shall be designed to protect
the infiltration system from clogging prior to scheduled maintenance and to protect
groundwater quality.


e. Prohibitions. Notwithstanding subparagraphs a. through c., infiltration systems may not be
installed in any of the following areas:


1. Areas associated with tier 1 industrial facilities identified in section NR 216.21(2)(a),
Wis. Admin. Code, including storage, loading, rooftop and parking.


2. Storage and loading areas of tier 2 industrial facilities identified in section NR
216.21(2)(b), Wis. Admin. Code.


3. Fueling and vehicle maintenance areas.


4. Areas within 1,000 feet up gradient or within 100 feet down gradient of direct conduits
to groundwater.


5. Separation distances. Infiltration practices shall be located so that the characteristics
of the soil and the separation distance between the bottom of the infiltration system
and the elevation of seasonal high groundwater or the top of bedrock are in
accordance with Table 2:


Table 2. Separation Distances and Soil Characteristics


Source Area
Separation


Distance
Soil Characteristics


Industrial, Commercial, Institutional


Parking Lots and Roads
5 Feet or More Filtering Layer







Page 20


Residential Arterial Roads 5 Feet or More Filtering Layer


Roofs Draining to Subsurface Infiltration


Practices
1 Foot or More


Native or Engineered Soil with Particles


Finer than Coarse Sand


Roofs Draining to Surface Infiltration


Practices
Not Applicable


All Other Impervious Source Areas 3 Feet or More Filtering Layer


6. Areas with runoff from industrial, commercial and institutional parking lots, roads and
residential arterial roads with less than five feet separation distance from the bottom of
the infiltration system to the elevation of seasonal high groundwater or the top of
bedrock.


7. Areas within 400 feet of a community water system well as specified in section NR
811.16(4), Wis. Admin. Code, or within the separation distances listed in s. NR 812.08
for any private well or non-community well for runoff infiltrated from commercial,
industrial and institutional land uses or regional devices for residential development.


8. Areas where contaminants of concern, as defined in section NR 720.03(2), Wis.
Admin. Code, are present in the soil through which infiltration will occur.


f. Alternate use of runoff. Where alternate uses of runoff are employed, such as for toilet
flushing, laundry or irrigation, such alternate use shall be given equal credit toward the
infiltration volume required by this section.


g. Minimizing groundwater pollution. According to ch. NR 151, Wis. Admin. Code, infiltration
systems designed in accordance with this section shall, to the extent technically and
economically feasible, minimize the level of pollutants infiltrating to groundwater and shall
maintain compliance with the preventive action limit at a point of standards application in
accordance with ch. NR 140, Wis. Admin. Code. However, if site-specific information
indicates that compliance with the preventive action limit is not achievable, the infiltration
system may not be installed or shall be modified to prevent infiltration to the maximum
extent practicable.


h. Exemptions. Runoff from the following areas may be credited toward meeting the
requirement when infiltrated, and/or infiltration practices located in the following areas may
be credited under the following conditions, but the decision to infiltrate runoff from these
source areas or under these conditions is optional:


1. Parking areas and access roads less than 5,000 square feet for commercial
development.


2. Parking areas and access roads less than 5,000 square feet for industrial
development not subject to the prohibitions in subparagraph e.


3. Except as provided under subsection (b)(1) of this Section, redevelopment post-
construction sites.


4. Roads in commercial, industrial, and institutional land uses, and arterial roads.







Page 21


5. Areas where the infiltration rate of the soil is less than .6 inches/hour measured at the
bottom of the proposed infiltration system where the soil layer is not easily removed or
manipulated.


(6) Thermal control. The stormwater management plan shall include provisions and practices to
reduce the temperature of runoff for sites located within the watershed of a river or stream
identified by the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources as:


a. A cold water community as identified through NR 102.04(3)(a), NR104, Wis. Admin. Code,
and Class I, Class II, and Class III trout streams identified in "Wisconsin Trout Streams,"
DNR publication PUB-FH-806-2002 or its successor.


b. Rivers or streams proposed by the Wisconsin state department of natural resources as
cold water communities and Class I, II, and III trout streams.


(7) Thermal control continued. The stormwater management plan does not have to meet the
requirement in subsection (b)(6) of this section if the applicant can justify by use of a model
approved by the Dane County conservationist that practices are not necessary because the
temperature increase of runoff from the site post-development will be zero.


(8) Thermal control continued. A current list and maps of affected watersheds shall be available for
reference at the office of the local approval authority and/or the plan review agency.


(9) Protective areas performance standard.


a. Definition. In this section, “protective area” means an area of land that commences at the
top of the channel of lakes, streams and rivers, or at the delineated boundary of
wetlands, and that is the greatest of the following widths, as measured horizontally from
the top of the channel or delineated wetland boundary to the closest impervious surface.
However, in this section, “protective area” does not include any area of land adjacent to
any stream enclosed within a pipe or culvert, so that runoff cannot enter the enclosure at
this location.


1. For outstanding resource waters and exceptional resource waters, 75 feet.


2. For perennial and intermittent streams identified on a U.S. geological survey 7.5-
minute series topographic map, or a county soil survey map, whichever is more
current, 50 feet.


3. For lakes, 50 feet.


4. For wetlands not subject to par. 5. or 6., 50 feet.


5. For highly susceptible wetlands, 75 feet. Highly susceptible wetlands include the
following types: calcareous fens, sedge meadows, open and coniferous bogs,
low prairies, coniferous swamps, lowland hardwood swamps, and ephemeral
ponds.


Note: Information on wetland types, including ephemeral ponds, is available at (608)
266-7012.


6. For less susceptible wetlands, 10 percent of the average wetland width, but no
less than 10 feet nor more than 30 feet. Less susceptible wetlands include:
degraded wetlands dominated by invasive species such as reed canary grass;
cultivated hydric soils; and any gravel pits, or dredged material or fill material
disposal sites that take on the attributes of a wetland.


7. In pars. 4. to 6., determinations of the extent of the protective area adjacent to
wetlands shall be made on the basis of the sensitivity and runoff susceptibility of
the wetland in accordance with the standards and criteria in s. NR 103.03.







Page 22


8. Wetland boundary delineation shall be made in accordance with s. NR 103.08
(lm). This paragraph does not apply to wetlands that have been completely filled
in compliance with all applicable state and federal regulations. The protective
area for wetlands that have been partially filled in compliance with all applicable
state and federal regulations shall be measured from the wetland boundary
delineation after fill has been placed. Where there is a legally authorized wetland
fill, the protective area standard need not be met in that location.


9. For concentrated flow channels with drainage areas greater than 130 acres, 10
feet.


10. Notwithstanding pars. 1. to 9., the greatest protective area width shall apply
where rivers, streams, lakes, and wetlands are contiguous.


Note: A stream or lake is not eligible for a lower protective area width even if
contiguous to a less susceptible wetland.


b. Applicability. This section applies to post-construction sites located within a protective
area, except those areas exempted pursuant to sub. d.


c. Requirements. The following requirements shall be met:


1. Impervious surfaces shall be kept out of the protective area entirely or to the
maximum extent practicable. If there is no practical alternative to locating an
impervious surface in the protective area, the storm water management plan
shall contain a written site-specific explanation.


2. Where land disturbing construction activity occurs within a protective area,
adequate sod or self-sustaining vegetative cover of 70 percent or greater shall be
established and maintained where no impervious surface is present. The
adequate sod or self-sustaining vegetative cover shall be sufficient to provide for
bank stability, maintenance of fish habitat, and filtering of pollutants from upslope
overland flow areas under sheet flow conditions. Non-vegetative materials such
as rock riprap, may be employed on the bank as necessary to prevent erosion
such as on steep slopes or where high velocity flows occur.


Note: It is recommended that seeding of non-invasive vegetative cover be used in the
protective areas. Some invasive plants are listed in ch. NR 40. Vegetation that
is flood and drought tolerant and can provide long-term bank stability because of
an extensive root system is preferable. Vegetative cover may be measured
using the line transect method described in the University of Wisconsin extension
publication number A3533, titled “Estimating Residue Using the Line Transect
Method”.


3. Best management practices such as filter strips, swales, or wet detention ponds,
that are designed to control pollutants from non-point sources, may be located in
the protective area.


Note: Other laws, such as ch. 30, WI Stats., and chs. NR 103, 115, 116, and 117 and
their associated review and approval processes may apply in the protective area.


d. Exemptions. This section does not apply to any of the following:


1. Except as provided under s. subsection (b)1. of this Section, redevelopment
post-construction sites.


2. In-fill development areas less than 5 acres.


3. Structures that cross or access surface waters such as boat landings, bridges,
and culverts.


4. Structures constructed in accordance with s. 59.692 (lv), Stats.







Page 23


5. Areas of post-construction sites from which the runoff does not enter the surface
water, including wetlands, without first being treated by a BMP to meet the
requirements of ss. NR 151.122 to 151.123, except to the extent that vegetative
ground cover is necessary to maintain bank stability.


Note: A vegetated protective area to filter runoff pollutants from post-construction sites
described in par. 5. is not necessary since the runoff at that location is treated
prior to entering the surface water. Other practices necessary to meet the
requirements of this section, such as a swale or pond, will need to be designed
and implemented to reduce runoff pollutants prior to runoff entering a surface
water of the state. The requirements of ch. NR 103 still apply and should be
considered before runoff is diverted to or from a wetland.


(c) Stormwater management goals. The following standards shall be met whenever possible, and
proposed design, suggested location and implementation of practices to meet these goals shall be
included in plans:


(1) For existing development, design practices to retain soil particles greater than 40 microns on
the site (20 percent reduction) resulting from a one-year 24-hour storm event, according to
approved procedures, and assuming no sediment resuspension.


(2) For street reconstruction, design practices to retain soil particles greater than 20 microns on the
site (40 percent reduction) resulting from a one-year 24-hour storm event, according to
approved procedures, and assuming no sediment resuspension.


(Code 1986, § 20.10; Ord. No. 0-21-06, § 1, 5-9-2006; Ord. No. 0-01-07, § 1, 1-9-2007; Ord.
No. 0-18-2013, § 4, 8-13-2013)


Sec. 10-132. - Off-site stormwater management.


Off-site stormwater management is allowed, provided that provisions are made to manage
stormwater by an off-site facility, and provided that all of the following conditions for the off-site facility are
met:


(1) The facility is in place;


(2) The facility is designed and adequately sized to provide a level of stormwater control that at
least meets the requirement standards of this ordinance; and


(3) The local approval authority is satisfied that the facility has a legally obligated entity responsible
for its long-term operation and maintenance.


(Code 1986, § 20.11; Ord. No. 0-21-06, § 1, 5-9-2006)


Sec. 10-133. - Technical standards and specifications.


The design of all best management practices designed to meet the requirements of this article shall
comply with the following technical standards:


(1) Natural Resources Conservation Service's "Wisconsin Field Office Technical Guide, Chapter 4"
or its successor.


(2) Applicable construction or erosion control or stormwater management standards by the
Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources;


(3) Any other technical methodology approved by the Dane County conservationist.


(Code 1986, § 20.12; Ord. No. 0-21-06, § 1, 5-9-2006)







Page 24


Sec. 10-134. - Appeals and variances.


(a) Appeals.


(1) Any person aggrieved by any decision of the local approval authority pursuant to this article may
appeal to the public works committee. Such appeal shall be taken within 30 days after the
challenged decision. Notice of appeal setting forth the specific grounds for the appeal shall be
filed with the local approval authority and the city clerk. The zoning administrator shall provide to
the public works committee the record upon which the action appealed from was taken.


(2) The public works committee shall fix a reasonable time for the hearing of the appeal and publish
a class 2 notice thereof under Wis. Stats. ch. 985, as well as give due notice to the parties in
interest, and decide the appeal within a reasonable time. Upon the hearing, any party may
appear in person or by agent or attorney.


(3) The public works committee may, in conformity with the provisions of this article, reverse or
affirm, wholly or partly, or modify the order, requirement, decision or determination appealed
from and may make such order, requirement, decision or determination as ought to be made
and shall have all the powers of the officer from whom the appeal is taken.


(4) The concurring vote of a majority of the public works committee shall be necessary to reverse
the decision of the local approval authority.


(b) Variances.


(1) An applicant may include in the application a request for a variance from the requirements of
section 10-130 or section 10-131. No variance shall be granted unless the applicant
demonstrates and the local approval authority, after consultation with the Dane County
conservationist, finds that all of the following conditions are present:


a. Enforcement of the standards set forth in this article will result in unnecessary hardship to
the landowner;


b. The hardship is due to exceptional physical conditions unique to the property;


c. Granting the variance will not adversely affect the public health, safety or welfare, nor be
contrary to the spirit, purpose and intent of this article;


d. The project will have no impact upon any of the stated purposes as set forth in section 10-
123;


e. The applicant has proposed an alternative to the requirement from which the variance is
sought that will provide equivalent protection of the public health, safety and welfare, the
environment and public and private property;


f. The net cumulative effect of the variance will not impact downstream conditions; and


g. Existing regional facilities are shown to meet the performance standards of this article.


(2) If all of the conditions set forth in subsection (b)(1) of this section are met, a variance may only
be granted to the minimum extent necessary to afford relief from the unnecessary hardship, with
primary consideration to water quality and impact downstream conditions.


(3) A variance from the provisions of subsections 10-131(b)(1), (b)(2) and (b)(6) may only be
granted if:


a. The applicant has met the requirements of subsection (b)(1) of this section; and


b. The applicant will be denied all reasonable and beneficial use of the property if the
variance is denied.


(4) A person aggrieved by a variance determination by the local approval authority may appeal the
decision to the public works committee pursuant to subsection (a) of this section.







Page 25


(5) A person aggrieved by a decision of the public works committee regarding a variance may
appeal that decision to the board of appeals.


(Code 1986, § 20.13; Ord. No. 0-21-06, § 1, 5-9-2006)


Sec. 10-135. - Permit fees.


(a) The erosion control and stormwater management permit fee shall be $200.00.


(b) The fee for a preliminary review letter shall be $200.00. If a preliminary approval letter has been
obtained, the erosion control and stormwater management base fee shall be waived.


(c) For sites required to obtain an erosion control permit under section 10-125, there shall be an
additional fee of $0.004 per square foot of disturbed area.


(d) For sites required to obtain a stormwater control permit under section 10-126, there shall be an
additional fee of $0.005 per square foot of impervious area and $0.0025 per square foot of
redeveloped impervious area.


(e) The common council authorizes city administrative staff to modify the permit and fee amounts listed
in this erosion control and stormwater management ordinance on January 1 of each year following
the adoption of this article, based upon the CPI-U for the Midwest Region, size "d" as prepared by
the Federal Department of Labor, so long as the cumulative interim percentage of inflation warrants
an increase of $5.00 or more on a round dollar amount and an increase to the next whole cent on
amounts expressed in hundredths of a dollar. These amounts may also be modified by future council
action.


(f) Late filing fee. When an applicant or landowner begins work requiring a permit before obtaining the
permit or appropriate approvals, the fees shall be doubled.


(Code 1986, § 20.14; Ord. No. 0-21-06, § 1, 5-9-2006)


Sec. 10-136. - Prohibited stormwater discharge and connection.


(a) Purpose: The purpose of this section is to provide for the health, safety, and general welfare of the
citizens of the city and to protect waters of the state through the regulation of illicit discharges to the
municipal separate storm sewer system as required by federal and state law. This section
establishes methods for controlling the discharge of pollutants into the municipal separate storm
sewer system owned or operated by the city in order to comply with the requirements of the Clean
Water Act, Chapter 283.33, Wis. Stats., and the Wisconsin Pollutant Discharge Elimination System
municipal storm water discharge permit program under Chapter NR 216, Wis. Adm. Code.


The objectives of this section are:


(1) To regulate the contribution of pollutants to the municipal separate storm sewer system
associated with discharges from any user of the municipal storm sewer system.


(2) To prohibit illicit connections and discharges to the municipal separate storm sewer system.


(3) To establish legal authority to carry out all inspection, surveillance and monitoring procedures
necessary to ensure compliance with this section.


(b) Definitions: For the purposes of this section, the following definitions are applicable:


Authorized agency means employees or designees of the director or directors of the municipal
agency or agencies of the city designated to administer or enforce this section.







Page 26


Illicit connection means any drain or conveyance, whether on the surface or subsurface, which
allows the discharge of sanitary waste to the municipal separate storm sewer and any connections to the
municipal separate storm sewer system from indoor drains and sinks.


Illicit discharge means any discharge to the municipal separate storm sewer system that is not
composed entirely of storm water except discharges with a Wisconsin Pollutant Discharge Elimination
System permit or other discharges allowed locally.


Municipal separate storm sewer or MS4 means a conveyance or system of conveyances, including
roads with drainage systems, municipal streets, catch basins, curbs, gutters, ditches, constructed
channels or storm drains, which meets the following criteria:


a. Owned or operated by the City of Stoughton.


b. Designed or used for collecting or conveying stormwater.


c. Which is not a combined sewer conveying both sanitary wastewater and stormwater.


d. Which is not part of a publicly owned wastewater treatment works that provides secondary or
more stringent treatment.


Non-stormwater discharge means any discharge to the municipal separate storm sewer system that
is not composed entirely of stormwater.


Stormwater means surface runoff and drainage of rainfall and snow or ice melt.


Waters of the state means those portions of Lake Michigan and Lake Superior within the boundaries
of Wisconsin, all lakes, bays, rivers, streams, springs, ponds, wells, impounding reservoirs, marshes,
water courses, drainage systems and other surface water or groundwater, natural or artificial, public or
private, within the state or under its jurisdiction, except those waters which are entirely confined and
retained completely upon the property of a person.


(c) Applicability and enforcement: This section shall apply to all discharges to the MS4 and to all
activities that can reasonably be expected to result in a discharge to the MS4. The city shall
administer, implement, and enforce the provisions of this section. Any powers granted or duties
imposed upon the authorized agency may be delegated in writing by the mayor to persons or entities
acting in the beneficial interest of or in the employ of the city.


(d) Minimum standards: The standards set forth herein and promulgated pursuant to this section are
minimum standards; therefore, this section does not intend nor imply that compliance by any person
will ensure that there will be no contamination, or pollution, nor unauthorized discharges.


(e) Discharge prohibitions:


(1) Prohibition of illicit discharges. No person shall discharge or cause to be discharged into the
MS4 or waters of the state located within the city any materials, including, but not limited to
pollutants or waters containing any pollutants that cause or contribute to a violation of applicable
water quality standards, other than stormwater. The commencement, conduct or continuance of
any illicit discharge to the MS4 is prohibited. The following non-stormwater discharges or flows
are generally not considered illicit discharges if done in a non-polluting manner: water line
flushing, landscape irrigation, diverted stream flows, uncontaminated groundwater infiltration,
uncontaminated pumped groundwater, discharges from potable water sources, foundation
drains, air conditioning condensation, irrigation water, lawn watering, individual residential car
washing, flows from riparian habitats and wetlands, dechlorinated swimming pool water, street
wash water and fire fighting.


(2) Prohibition of illicit connections.


a. The construction, use maintenance or continued existence of illicit connections to the MS4
is prohibited.


b. This prohibition expressly includes, without limitation, the continued use of illicit
connections made prior to the adoption of this section, regardless of whether the







Page 27


connection was permissible under law or practices applicable or prevailing at the time of
connection.


c. A person is considered to be in violation of this section if the person connects a line
conveying sanitary waste to the MS4, or allows such a connection to continue.


(f) Monitoring of discharges and access to facilities: The authorized agency shall be permitted to enter
and inspect private or public facilities, subject to regulation under this section, as often as may be
necessary to determine compliance with this section. If a discharger has security measures in force
which require proper identification and clearance before entry into its premises, the discharger shall
make the necessary arrangements to allow access to representatives of the authorized agency.


(g) Notification of spills: Notwithstanding other requirements of law, as soon as any person responsible
for a facility or operation, or responsible for emergency response for a facility or operation, has
information of any known or suspected release of materials which are resulting or may result in illicit
discharges or pollutants discharging into stormwater, the MS4, or water of the state, said person
shall take all necessary steps to ensure the discovery, containment and cleanup of such release. In
the event of such a release that includes hazardous materials, said person shall immediately notify
emergency response agencies of the occurrence via emergency dispatch services. In the event of a
release including only non-hazardous materials, said person shall notify the authorized agency in
person or by phone or facsimile no later than the next business day. Notifications in person or by
phone shall be confirmed by written notice addressed and mailed to the authorized agency within
three business days of the phone notice.


(h) Enforcement: It shall be unlawful for any person to violate any provision of this section. Any person
who fails to comply with the provisions of this section shall forfeit no less than $100.00 nor more than
$500.00 and also pay fees and disbursements incurred in the prosecution of such violations. Each
and every day during which a violation continues shall constitute a separate offense. The city may
also institute appropriate action or proceedings to enjoin violations of this section.


(i) Severability: The provisions of this section are hereby declared to be severable. If any provision,
clause, sentence, or paragraph of this section or the application thereof to any person,
establishment, or circumstances shall be held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect the other
provisions or application of this section.


(Ord. No. 0-23-08, § 1, 10-14-2008)


Secs. 10-137—10-160. - Reserved.


Dates
Council Adopted:


Mayor Approved: _______
Donna Olson, Mayor


Published:


Attest: _______
Lana Kropf, City Clerk







 


 


  Page 1 


CITY OF STOUGHTON, 381 E. Main Street, Stoughton, WI 53589 


 


ORDINANCE OF THE COMMON COUNCIL 


Amending Portions of the Erosion Control and Stormwater Management Code Sections within Sec. 


10-122, 10-127, 10-129, 10-130 and 10-131 of the Stoughton Municipal Code 


Committee Action:    Public Works Committee recommends approval with the Mayor voting - - 0 


Fiscal Impact:       None 


File Number: O -   - 2017 Date Introduced:   


The Common Council of the City of Stoughton do ordain as follows: 
 


ARTICLE IV. - EROSION CONTROL AND STORMWATER MANAGEMENT  


Sec. 10-121. - Authority.  


This article is adopted under the authority of Wis. Stats. § 62.234.  


(Code 1986, § 20.00; Ord. No. 0-21-06, § 1, 5-9-2006)  


Sec. 10-122. - Definitions.  


As used in this article:  


Affected means that a regulated activity has significantly:  


(1) Caused negative impacts on water quality or the use or maintenance of land or business; or  


(2) Endangered health, safety or general welfare.  


Agricultural facilities and practices has the meaning in s. 281.16(1), Wis. Stats. means related to or 
used for the production of food and fiber, including but not limited to general farming, livestock and poultry 
enterprises, grazing, nurseries, horticulture, viticulture, truck farming, forestry, sod production, cranberry 
productions and wild crop harvesting and includes lands used for on-site buildings and other structures 
necessary to carry out such activities. Clearing and grubbing of an area or structural development are not 
agricultural activity. 


Average annual rainfall means a typical calendar year of precipitation as determined by the 
department for users of models such as SLAMM, P8, or equivalent methodology. The average annual 
rainfall is chosen from a department publication for the location closest to the municipality measured 
precipitation in Madison, Wisconsin between March 12 and December 2, 1981.  


Bank erosion means the removal of soil or rock fragments along the banks or bed of a stream 
channel resulting from high flow after rain events.  


Best management practice (BMP) means a practice, technique or measure that is an effective, 
practical means of preventing or reducing soil erosion or water pollution, or both, from runoff both during 
and after land development activities. These can include structural, vegetative or operational practices.  


City means the City of Stoughton, Wisconsin. 







 


 


  Page 2 


Cold water community means surface waters capable of supporting a community of cold water fish 
and other aquatic life, or serving as a spawning area for cold water fish species (Wis. Adm. Code. NR 
102.04(3) (a)).  


Connected imperviousness means an impervious surface that is directly connected to a separate 
storm sewer or water of the state via an impervious flow path.  


Construction site erosion control means preventing or reducing soil erosion and sedimentation from 
land disturbing activity.  


Department means the Department of Natural Resources. 


Development means residential, commercial, industrial or institutional land uses and associated 
roads. 


Direct conduits to groundwater means wells, sinkholes, swallets, fractured bedrock at the surface, 
mine shafts, nonmetallic mines, tile inlets discharging to groundwater, quarries, or depressional 
groundwater recharge areas over shallow fractured bedrock.  


Effective infiltration area means the area of the infiltration system that is used to infiltrate runoff and 
does not include the area used for site access, berms or pretreatment.  


Erosion and soil erosion means the detachment and movement of soil or rock fragments by water, 
wind, ice or gravity.  


Excavation means any act by which organic matter, earth, sand, gravel, rock or any other similar 
material is cut into, dug, quarried, uncovered, removed, displaced, relocated or bulldozed and shall 
include the resulting conditions.  


Existing development means buildings and other structures and impervious area existing prior to 
August 22, 2001.  


Fill means any act by which earth, sand, gravel, rock or any other material is deposited, placed, 
replaced, pushed, dumped, pulled, transported or moved to a new location and shall include the resulting 
conditions.  


Final stabilization means that all land disturbing construction activities at the construction site have 
been completed and that a uniform perennial vegetative cover has been established with a density of at 
least 70% of the cover for the unpaved areas and areas not covered by permanent structures or that 
employ equivalent permanent stabilization measures. 


Financial security instrument means a surety bond, performance bond, maintenance bond, 
irrevocable letter of credit or similar guarantees submitted to the local approval authority to ensure that 
requirements of this article are carried out in compliance with the stormwater management plan.  


Gully erosion means a severe loss of soil caused by or resulting in concentrated flow of sufficient 
velocity to create a defined flow channel.  


Heavily disturbed site means a site where an area of land is subjected to significant compaction due 
to the removal of vegetative cover or earthmoving activities, including filling.  


Hydrologic soil group (HSG) has the meaning used in the runoff calculation methodology 
promulgated by the United States Natural Resources Conservation Service Engineering Field Manual for 
Conservation Practices.  


Impervious surface means any land cover that prevents rain or melting snow from soaking into the 
ground, such as roofs (including overhangs), roads, sidewalks, patios, driveways and parking lots. For 
purposes of this article, all road, driveway or parking surfaces, including gravel surfaces, shall be 
considered impervious, unless specifically designed to encourage infiltration and approved by the local 
approval authority.  


Infill means an undeveloped area of land located within an existing urban sewer service area, 
surrounded by development or development and natural or man-made features where development 
cannot occur. 







 


 


  Page 3 


Infiltration, for the purposes of this article, refers to any precipitation that does not leave the site as 
surface runoff.  


Infiltration system means a device or practice such as a basin, trench, rain garden or swale designed 
specifically to encourage infiltration, but does not include natural infiltration in pervious surfaces such as 
lawns, redirecting of rooftop downspouts onto lawns or minimal infiltration from practices such as swales 
or road side channels designed for conveyance and pollutant removal only.   


Land conservation committee or LCC means the Dane County Land Conservation Committee 
created under Wisconsin Statutes § 92.06.  


Land disturbing activities means any land alterations or disturbances that may result in soil erosion, 
sedimentation or change in runoff including but not limited to removal of ground cover, grading, 
excavating and filling of land.  


Lightly disturbed site means a site where an area of land is subjected to minor compaction due to the 
limited removal of vegetative cover or earthmoving activities.  


Local approval authority means the municipal staff, agency or contracted entity charged by the local 
unit of government with responsibility for enforcing stormwater and erosion control ordinances, and 
specifically includes the city planning department.  


Local land division ordinance means any county, city, village or town ordinance adopted under Wis. 
Stats. ch. 236 to regulate the division of land.  


Local zoning ordinance means any county, city, village or town ordinance adopted under Wis. Stats. 
§§ 59.69, 59.692, 59.693, 60.61, 60.62, 61.351, 61.354,114 62.23,62.231, or 62.234 of the to regulate the 
use of land.  


Maximum extent practicable (MEP) means a level of implementing best management practices in 
order to achieve a performance standard specified in this chapter which takes into account the best 
available technology, cost effectiveness and other competing issues such as human safety and welfare, 
endangered and threatened resources, historic properties and geographic features. MEP allows flexibility 
in the way to meet performance standards and may vary based on the performance standard and site 
conditions.  


New development means any of the following activities:  


(1) Structural development, including construction of a new building or other structures;  


(2) Expansion or alteration of an existing structure that results in an increase in the surface 
dimensions of the building or structure;  


(3) Land disturbing activities; or  


(4) Creation or expansion of impervious surface.  


Nonerosive velocity means a rate of flow of stormwater runoff, usually measured in feet per second, 
that does not erode soils. Nonerosive velocities vary for individual sites, taking into account topography, 
soil type and runoff rates.  


 


NR means Natural Resources Wis. Admin. Code 


 


Peak flow means the maximum rate of flow of water at a given point in a channel, watercourse, or 
conduit resulting from the predetermined storm or flood.  


Pervious surface means any land cover that permits rain or melting snow to soak into the ground.  


Plan means an erosion control plan required by section 10-125 or a stormwater management plan 
required by section 10-126.  







 


 


  Page 4 


Plan review agency means the municipal staff, agency or qualified contracted entity charged by the 
local unit of government with responsibility for reviewing stormwater and erosion control plans under the 
local stormwater and erosion control ordinance.  


Plat review officer means the municipal staff, agency or contracted entity charged by the local unit of 
government with responsibility for reviewing land divisions, certified survey maps or subdivision plats or 
any combination thereof under Wis. Stats. ch. 236.  


Post-construction site means a construction site following the completion of land disturbing activity 
and final site stabilization. 


Post-development means the extent and distribution of land cover types anticipated to occur under 
conditions of full development of the submitted plan. The term "post-development" is used to match pre-
development and post-development stormwater peak flows as required by this article.  


Pre-development means the extent and distribution of land cover types present before the initiation 
of the proposed land development activity, assuming that all land uses prior to land disturbing activity are 
in "good" condition as described in the Natural Resources Conservation Service Technical Release 55, 
"Urban Hydrology for Small Watersheds" (commonly known as TR-55). The term "pre-development" is 
used to match pre-development and post-development stormwater peak flows as required by this article. 
In a situation where cumulative impervious surface created after August 21, 2001 exceeds the 20,000 
square foot threshold, the predevelopment conditions shall be those prior to the proposed land 
disturbance.  


Recharge means the portion of the average annual rainfall that infiltrates the soil and becomes 
groundwater. Recharge does not include evaporation, transpiration, or runoff from the site.  


Redevelopment means any construction, alteration or improvement exceeding 4,000 square feet of 
land disturbance performed on sites where the existing site is predominantly developed as commercial, 
industrial, institutional or multifamily residential uses. Projects may include a mix of redevelopment and 
new impervious surfaces. New impervious surfaces added as a result of redevelopment are subject to 
subsection 10-126(1).  


Runoff curve number (RCN) has the meaning used in the runoff calculation methodology 
promulgated by the United States Natural Resources Conservation Service Engineering Field Manual for 
Conservation Practices.  


Sediment means solid earth material, both mineral and organic, that is in suspension, is being 
transported or has been moved from its site of origin by air, water, gravity or ice, and has come to rest on 
the earth's surface at a different site.  


Sedimentation means the deposition of eroded soils at a site different from the one where the 
erosion occurred.  


Sheet and rill erosion means a loss of soil caused by sheet flow or shallow concentrated flow, and 
characterized by an absence of channeling or a relatively uniform loss across the exposed upper layer of 
the soil or shallow irregular scouring of the soil surface.  


Site means the bounded area described in an erosion control plan or stormwater management plan.  


Slope means the net vertical rise over horizontal run, expressed as a percentage, which represents a 
relatively homogeneous surface incline or decline over the area disturbed.  


Soil loss rate means the rate, usually measured in tons per acre per year, at which soil is transported 
beyond the perimeter of a given control site and which occurs as a result of sheet and rill erosion. The 
term "soil loss rate" does not apply to soil movement resulting from concentrated flow such as gully or 
bank erosion.  


Storm events means the precipitation amounts that occur over a 24-hour period that have a specified 
recurrence interval for Dane County, Wisconsin. For example, one-year, two-year, ten-year and 100-year 
storm events mean the precipitation amounts that occur over a 24-hour period that have a recurrence 
interval of one, two, ten and 100 years, respectively.  







 


 


  Page 5 


Stormwater means the flow of water which results from, and which occurs during and immediately 
following, a rainfall, snow melt or ice melt event.  


Stormwater management means any measures taken to permanently reduce or minimize the 
negative impacts of stormwater runoff quantity and quality after land development activities.  


Stormwater runoff means the waters derived from rains falling or snow melt or ice melt occurring 
within a drainage area, flowing over the surface of the ground and collected in channels, watercourses or 
conduits.  


Street reconstruction means removal and replacement of the road subgrade, where existing 
stormwater conveyance systems are modified.  


Structure means any human made object with form, shape and utility, either permanently or 
temporarily attached to, placed upon, or set into the ground, stream bed or lake bed.  


Transportation facility means a highway, a railroad, a public mass transit facility, a public-use airport, 
a public trail or any other public work for transportation purposes such as harbor improvements under s. 
85.095(1)(b), Wis. Stats. “Transportation facility” does not include building sites for the construction of 
public buildings and buildings that are places of employment that are regulated by the Department 
pursuant to s. 281.33, Wis. Stats.  


Unnecessary hardship means that circumstance where special conditions, which were not self-
created, affect a particular property and make strict conformity with regulations unnecessarily 
burdensome or unreasonable in light the purposes of this article.  


(Code 1986, § 20.01; Ord. No. 0-21-06, § 1, 5-9-2006; Ord. No. 0-01-07, § 1, 1-9-2007; Ord. 


No. 0-18-2013, § 1, 8-13-2013)  


Cross reference— Definitions generally, § 1-2.  


Sec. 10-123. - Legislative findings.  


(a) The common council finds that construction site erosion and uncontrolled stormwater runoff from 
land disturbing and land development activities have significant adverse impacts upon regional water 
resources and the health, safety, property and general welfare of the community, and diminish the 
public enjoyment and use of natural resources. Specifically, soil erosion and stormwater runoff can:  


(1) Carry sediment, nutrients, pathogens, organic matter, heavy metals, toxins and other pollutants 
to regional lakes, streams and wetlands;  


(2) Diminish the capacity of water resources to support recreational and water supply uses and a 
natural diversity of plant and animal life;  


(3) Clog existing drainage systems, increasing maintenance problems and costs;  


(4) Cause bank and channel erosion;  


(5) Increase downstream flooding;  


(6) Reduce groundwater recharge, which may diminish stream base flows and lower water levels in 
regional lakes, ponds and wetlands;  


(7) Contaminate drinking water supplies;  


(8) Increase risk of property damage and personal injury; and  


(9) Cause damage to agricultural fields and crops.  


(b) The common council also finds that effective sediment and stormwater management depends on 
proper planning, design and timely installation of conservation and management practices and their 
continuing maintenance.  







 


 


  Page 6 


(Code 1986, § 20.02; Ord. No. 0-21-06, § 1, 5-920-2006)  


Sec. 10-124. - Purpose and intent.  


(a) The purpose of this article is to set forth the minimum requirements for construction site erosion 
control and stormwater management that will diminish threats to public health, safety, public and 
private property and natural resources of the city.  


(b) This article is intended to regulate construction site erosion and stormwater runoff, to accomplish the 
following objectives:  


(1) Promote regional stormwater management by watershed;  


(2) Minimize sedimentation, water pollution from nutrients, heavy metals, chemical and petroleum 
products and other contaminants, flooding and thermal impacts to the water resources of the 
city;  


(3) Promote infiltration and groundwater recharge;  


(4) Protect functional values of natural water courses and wetlands;  


(5) Provide a single, consistent set of performance standards that apply to all developments within 
the city and are consistent with the standards set forth by the county;  


(6) Achieve an 80 percent reduction in sediment load rates to the county waters compared to no 
controls for all new development, a 40 percent reduction in sediment load rates compared to no 
controls for all redevelopment and street reconstruction and a 20 percent reduction in sediment 
load rates compared to no controls for existing developments;  


(7) Ensure no increase in temperature of stormwater post-construction in order to protect cold 
water communities;  


(8) Ensure no increase in the rate of surface water drainage from sites during or after construction; 
and  


(9) Protect public and private property from damage resulting from runoff or erosion.  


(Code 1986, § 20.03; Ord. No. 0-21-06, § 1, 5-9-2006)  


Sec. 10-125. - Applicability of requirement for erosion control permits.  


Unless expressly exempted by section 10-127, an erosion control permit under section 10-129 shall 
be required and all construction site erosion control provisions of this article shall apply to any of the 
following activities in the city:  


(1) Land disturbing activity in excess of 4,000 square feet.  


(2) Land disturbing activity on a slope of greater than 12 percent.  


(23) Land disturbing activity that involves the excavation or filling, or a combination of excavation 
and filling, in excess of 400 cubic yards of material.  


(34) Land disturbing activity that disturbs more than 100 lineal feet of road ditch, grass waterway or 
other land area where surface drainage flows in a defined open channel; including the 
placement, repair or removal of any underground pipe, utility or other facility within the cross 
section of the channel.  


(45) Any new public or private roads or access drives longer than 125 feet.  


(56) Development that requires a subdivision plat, as defined in section 66-2the applicable local land 
division ordinance(s).  







 


 


  Page 7 


(7) Land disturbing activity that disturbs less than 4,000 square feet of land, including the 
installation of access drives, that the local approval authority determines to have a high risk of 
soil erosion or water pollution, or that may significantly impact a lake, stream or wetland area. 
Examples of activities with a high risk of soil erosion or water pollution may include, but are not 
limited to, land disturbance on erodible soil or disturbance adjacent to lakes, rivers, streams or 
wetlands. All such determinations made by the local approval authority shall be in writing, 
unless waived by the applicant.  


(Code 1986, § 20.04; Ord. No. 0-21-06, § 1,. 5-9-2006)  


Sec. 10-126. - Applicability of requirement for stormwater control permits.  


Unless otherwise exempted by section 10-127, a stormwater control permit under section 10-129 
shall be required and all stormwater management provisions of this article shall apply to any of the 
following activities within the city:  


(1) Any development after August 22, 2001, that results in the cumulative addition of 20,000 square 
feet of impervious surface to the site;  


(1m) Agricultural development that creates new impervious surface area exceeding 20,000 square 
feet of on the site;  


(2) Any development that requires a subdivision plat, as defined in the applicable local land division 
ordinance(s);  


(3) Any development that requires a certified survey map, as defined in the applicable local 
ordinance(s); for property intended for commercial or industrial use;  


(4) Redevelopment, as defined in section 10-122.  


(5) Notwithstanding the exemptions in Section 10-127, oOther land development activities, 
including, but not limited to redevelopment or alteration of existing buildings and other 
structures, that the local approval authority determines may significantly increase downstream 
runoff volumes, flooding, soil erosion, water pollution or property damage or significantly impact 
a lake, stream or wetland area. All such determinations shall be made in writing unless waived 
by the applicant.  


(Code 1986, § 20.05; Ord. No. 0-21-06, § 1, 5-9-2006)  


Sec. 10-127. - Exemptions and clarifications.  


(a) The following activities are exempt from all requirements of this article:  


(1) Agricultural activities. Stormwater discharges from the planting, growing, cultivating and 
harvesting of crops for human or livestock consumption and pasturing or yarding of livestock, 
including sod farm and tree nurseries are not regulated by this ordinance. This exemption does 
not include the construction of structures such as barn, manure storage facilities or barnyard 
runoff control systems.Any activity directly related to the planting, growing and harvesting of 
agricultural crops except the construction of a building or other structure.  


(2) Silviculture activities, including tree nursery operations, tree harvesting operations, 
reforestation, tree thinning, prescribed burning, and pest and fire control. Clearing and grubbing 
of an area of a construction site is not a silviculture activity. 


(3) One-family and two-family dwelling units regulated under the Wisconsin Uniform Dwelling Code. 
Land disturbing activities in excess of one acre, or not associated with the construction of a 
dwelling, or less than one acre but part of a larger common plan of development or sale under 
jurisdiction of the city, are not exempt from this article. 







 


 


  Page 8 


(4) Transportation facility construction projects directed and supervised by the Wisconsin 
Department of Transportation in accordance with Wis. Admin. Code § NR 216.42(5). 


(5) Routine maintenance for project sites that have less than 5 acres of land disturbance if 
performed to maintain the original line and grade, hydraulic capacity or original purpose of the 
facility. 


(b) The following activities are exempt from the construction site erosion control provisions of section 10-
125:  


 (1) One-family and two-family dwelling units regulated under the Wisconsin Uniform Dwelling Code. 
Land disturbing activities in excess of one acre, or not associated with the construction of a 
dwelling, are not exempt from this article.  


(12) Projects specifically exempted from local erosion control ordinances under state or federal 
statute. It is the responsibility of the landowner to demonstrate such exemption with 
documentation acceptable to the local approval authority.  


(23) Projects subject to an approved shoreland erosion control permit under chapter 1131.  


(4) Municipal road or county highway projects not exempted under subsection 10-127(b)(2) are 
exempt from subsection 10-131(b)(3) where all the following conditions are met:  


a. The purpose of the project is only to meet current state or federal design or safety 
guidelines;  


b. All activity takes place within existing public right-of-way;  


c. All other requirements of section 10-131 are met; and  


d. The project does not include the addition of new driving lanes.  


  


(c) The following activities are exempt from the infiltration standardsstormwater management provisions 
of section 10-126 described in subsection 10-131(b)(5):  


 (1) Redevelopment sites.  


(12) New development sites with less than ten percent connected imperviousness based on 
complete development of the post construction site, provided the cumulative area of all 
impervious surfaces is less than one acre. This exemption does not include an exemption from 
the protective area standard of Section 10-131(b)(9) of this ordinance. 


(23) Agricultural facilities and practices. 


(3) Underground utility construction, but not including the construction of any above ground 
structures associated with utility construction.  


(4) Areas where the infiltration rate of the soil is less than .6 inches/hour measured at the bottom of 
the proposed infiltration system where the soil layer is not easily removed or manipulated.  


(5) Parking areas and access roads less than 5,000 square feet for commercial and industrial 
development.  


(6) Roads in commercial, industrial, and institutional land uses, and arterial roads.  


(Code 1986, § 20.06; Ord. No. 0-21-06, § 1, 5-9-2006; Ord. No. 0-18-2013, § 2, 8-13-2013)  


Sec. 10-128. - Preliminary review letter.  


(a) Purpose and intent. A preliminary review letter provides a potential permit applicant with an initial 
simple evaluation of whether erosion and stormwater control standards can be met for a proposed 
site, lot layout and construction design. This review is intended to assist applicants in preparing 







 


 


  Page 9 


general site plans and other submittals necessary to obtain an erosion control and stormwater 
permit. A preliminary review letter does not guarantee that an erosion or stormwater control plan will 
be approved or that a permit will be issued. Erosion and stormwater control plans and permit 
applications must meet all applicable standards and criteria for approval.  


(b) Application procedure.  


(1) The local approval authority may charge a fee to compensate for provision of the cost of the 
preliminary review letter process.  


(2) Any person may apply for a preliminary review letter by submitting an application that contains 
the information required by the local approval authority.  


(3) The local approval authority may require a preliminary review letter prior to accepting a petition 
for rezoning or conditional use application under applicable ordinances, or city planning staff 
may require a preliminary review letter prior to accepting an application for a certified survey 
map under applicable ordinances where the following apply:  


a. The proposal would involve one or more acres within either the current or proposed 
boundaries of a commercial or industrial zoning district;  


b. The proposed lot or rezone area configuration would necessitate driveways, access roads 
or other construction that would clearly require an erosion control plan and/or stormwater 
management plan under section 10-125 and/or 10-126;  


c. Natural features of the site including, but not limited to slope, soils, wetlands, or hydrology 
are such that, in the opinion of the city planning staff or a designated authority, substantial 
risk of erosion, flooding or other environmental or public safety hazard exists;  


(4) Unless expressly waived by the applicant, decisions by the local approval authority to require a 
preliminary review letter shall be made in writing and shall detail the reasons why the authority 
believes there to be a substantial risk of erosion, flooding or hazard.  


(Code 1986, § 20.07; Ord. No. 0-21-06, § 1, 5-9-2006)  


Sec. 10-129. - Erosion and stormwater control permits and administration.  


(a) No activity meeting the criteria described in section 10-125 or section 10-126 shall occur and no 
building permits may be issued, until an erosion control and stormwater control permit is issued by 
the local approval authority.  


(b) Application Requirements. The applicant must provide the following when requesting a permit:  


(1) Completed application form:  


a. The application must be signed by the landowner or include a notarized statement signed 
by the landowner authorizing the applicant to act as the landowner's agent and bind the 
landowner to the terms of this article.  


b. If a landowner appoints an agent to submit an application pursuant to subsection (b)(1)a. of 
this section, the landowner shall be bound by all of the requirements of this article and the 
terms of any permit issued to the agent.  


(2) Fees as required by section 10-135.  


(3) Copy of preliminary review letter, as described in section 10-128, if applicable.  


(4) If required by section 10-125, an erosion control plan meeting all the standards of Wis. Admin 
Code § NR 216.46 and the applicable performance standards in Wis. Admin. Code § NR 151.11 
for construction sites (or NR 151.23 for transportation facility sites), and Ssection 10-130, or a 
simplified checklist as described in section 10-130.  







 


 


  Page 10 


(5) If required by section 10-126, a stormwater management plan meeting all of the standards of 
Wis. Admin. Code § NR 216.47 and the applicable performance standards in Wis. Admin. Code 
§§ NR 151.121 to NR 151.128 for construction sites (or NR 151.242 to NR 151.249 for 
transportation facility sites), and Ssection 10-131 and a draft maintenance agreement as 
described in subsection 10-131(a)(109).  


(6) Copies of permits or permit applications or approvals required by any other governmental entity.  


(7) A proposed timetable and schedule for completion and installation of all elements of approved 
erosion control and stormwater management plans and a detailed schedule for completion of 
construction.  


(8) An estimate of the cost of completion and installation of all elements of the approved erosion 
control and stormwater management plans.  


(9) Evidence of financial responsibility to complete the work proposed in the plan. The local 
approval authority may require a financial security instrument sufficient to guarantee completion 
of the project.  


(10) A plan to manage solid waste on construction sites such as discarded building materials, 
concrete truck washout, chemicals, litter and sanitary waste to reduce adverse impacts from 
stormwater runoff. 


(c) Approval process.  


(1) The local approval authority shall verify that the permit application is complete under subsection 
(b) of this section. The local approval authority or applicant shall forward the plan to the plan 
review agency for review and approval. The plan review staff shall review the plan for 
compliance with the standards identified in sections 10-130 and 10-131.  


(2) The plan review staff shall either approve the submitted plan or notify the local approval 
authority of any deficiencies. Staff engaged in this review and approval process shall be 
certified where appropriate by the Wisconsin Department of Commerce for this purpose.  


(3) The local approval authority shall notify the applicant in writing of any deficiency in the proposed 
plan and the applicant shall be given an opportunity to correct any deficiency.  


(4) Where installed stormwater practices will be privately-owned, an affidavit which describes the 
property by legal description, notifying future prospective purchasers of the existence of a 
stormwater permit issued under this article and applicable plan, timetables and potential liability 
imposed by subsection (h)(3) of this section for failure to bring the property into compliance with 
this article after notification, shall be recorded with the Dane County register of deeds prior to 
issuance of an erosion and stormwater control permit. Such information shall also be noted on 
every plat and certified survey map.  


(5) Upon approval of the plan review agency, the erosion control or stormwater management permit 
shall be issued by the local approval authority after the applicant has met all other requirements 
of this article.  


(d) Permit conditionsrequirements.  


(1) The erosion control plan shall be implemented prior to the start of any land disturbing activity 
and shall be maintained over the duration of the project. Stormwater components of the plan 
shall be maintained in perpetuity.  


(2) The permittee is responsible for installation of all BMPs as identified in the approved erosion 
control plan and stormwater management plan. 


(32) The permittee is responsible for successful completion of the erosion control plan and the 
stormwater management plan. The permittee shall be liable for all costs incurred, including 
environmental restoration costs, resulting from noncompliance with an approved plan.  







 


 


  Page 11 


(43) Application for a permit shall constitute express permission by the permittee and landowner for 
the local approval authority to enter the property for purposes of inspection under subsection (e) 
of this section or curative action under subsection (h)(3) of this section. The application form 
shall contain a prominent provision advising the applicant and landowner of this requirement.  


(54) All incidental mud-tracking off-site onto adjacent public thoroughfares shall be cleaned up and 
removed by the end of each working day using proper disposal methods.  


(65) A copy of the approved permit and erosion control plan shall be kept on the project site, in a 
place readily accessible to contractors, engineers, local approval authority, inspection staff and 
other authorized personnel.  


(e) Inspections.  


(1) Application for a permit under this article shall constitute permission by the applicant and 
landowner for the local approval authority to enter upon the property and inspect during the 
construction phase prior to the inspections pursuant to subsections (e)(4) and (e)(6) of this 
section, as necessary to confirm compliance with the requirements of this article.  


(2) As part of the plan approval process, the local approval authority shall determine the minimum 
number of inspections required to ensure compliance. The site of any regulated land disturbing 
activity shall be inspected once every 30 days, or more frequently as determined by the local 
approval authority during the construction phase with assistance from the plan review agency 
staff.  


(3) The permittee shall notify the local approval authority within ten days after installation of all 
practices in an approved erosion control plan and achievement of soil stabilization. The 
permittee shall inspect the site weekly, and prior to every forecasted rain fall of one-half inch or 
greater, and within 24 hours following a rainfall of one-half inch or greater.. Written 
documentation of each inspection shall be maintained at the construction site and shall include 
the time, date and location of inspection, the phase of land disturbance at the construction site, 
person conducting the inspection, assessment of control practices, and a description of any 
erosion or sediment control measure installation or maintenance performed in response to the 
inspection. 


(4) The local approval authority shall inspect the property to verify compliance with the erosion 
control plan within ten days of notification of soil stabilization.  


(5) Within ten days after installation of all practices in an approved stormwater management plan, 
the permittee shall notify the local approval authority and submit drawings documenting 
construction. The person who designed the stormwater management plan for the permittee A 
professional engineer shall submit as-built certification to ensure that constructed stormwater 
management practices and conveyance systems comply with the specifications included in the 
approved plans. At minimum, as-built certification shall include a set of drawings comparing the 
approved stormwater management plan with what was constructed. Other information shall be 
submitted as required by the local approval authority.  


(6) The local approval authority shall inspect the property to verify compliance within ten days of 
notification.  


(7) Maintenance is the responsibility of the owner and facilities are subject to inspection and orders 
for repairs.  


(f) Permit transfers.  


(1) When a permittee and landowner act to transfer an interest in property subject to an approved 
plan prior to completion of the proposed steps to attain soil stabilization, the permittee must 
secure approval from the local approval authority.  


(2) When a permittee and landowner transfer ownership, possession or control of real estate 
subject to either or both an uncompleted erosion control and a stormwater management plan, 







 


 


  Page 12 


the successor in interest to any portion of the real estate shall be responsible to control soil 
erosion and runoff and shall comply with the minimum standards provided in this article.  


(3) When ownership, possession or control of property subject to an uncompleted erosion control or 
stormwater management plan, or both, is transferred, the former owner (seller) shall notify the 
new owner (buyer) as to the current status of compliance with notice to the authority and 
provide a copy of the erosion control plan or stormwater management plan, or both.  


(4) Transfers of interest in real estate subject to an approved, uncompleted plan may be conducted 
consistent with this article under any of the following arrangements:  


a. The transferee shall file a new, approved erosion control or stormwater management plan, 
or both, with the authority.  


b. The transferee shall obtain an approved assignment from the authority as subpermittee to 
complete that portion of the approved plan regulating soil erosion and runoff on the 
transferee's property.  


c. The permittee shall provide the authority with a duly completed and executed continuing 
surety bond or certified check in an amount sufficient to complete the work proposed in the 
approved plan; at the time of transfer, the permittee may seek to reduce the surety bond or 
certified check to the appropriate amount to complete remaining work. If the transferor 
enters into escrow agreements with transferees to complete an approved plan, these funds 
shall be available to the authority to attain plan compliance. When an approved erosion 
control plan and, if required, a stormwater management plan is or are not completed as 
proposed, the authority may use the surety bond to complete remaining work to achieve 
plan compliance.  


(g) Plan or permit amendments. Any proposed modifications to approved plans, construction schedules 
or alterations to accepted sequencing of land disturbing site activities shall be approved by the local 
approval authority in consultation with the plan review agency prior to implementation of such 
changes. One permit revision is allowed at no charge. The second and subsequent revisions, to a 
maximum of five revisions, cost $50.00 each.  


(h) Violations and enforcement:  


(1) Stop work order.  


a. Whenever the local approval authority finds any noncompliance with the provisions of this 
article, the local approval authority shall attempt to communicate with the owner or person 
performing the work to obtain immediate and voluntary compliance if such person is readily 
available. If the owner or person performing the work is not readily available, that person 
refuses to voluntarily comply immediately or the noncompliance presents an immediate 
danger or will cause or threatens to cause bodily injury or damage to off-site property 
including, but not limited to off-site runoff, the local approval authority shall post in a 
conspicuous place on the premises, a stop work order which shall cause all activity not 
necessary to correct the noncompliance to cease until noncompliance is corrected.  


b. The stop work order shall provide the following information:  


1. Date of issuance;  


2. Reason for posting;  


3. The signature of the inspector posting the card; and  


4. The address or legal description of the property.  


c. It shall be a violation of this article for the unauthorized removal of the stop work order from 
the premises.  







 


 


  Page 13 


(2) In addition to posting a stop work order, the local approval authority shall provide notification to 
the owner or contractor by personal service, written notice by certified mail, electronic mail or 
facsimile transmission.  


a. The permittee, landowner and contractor shall have 24 hours from the time and date of 
notification by the local approval authority to correct any noncompliance with the plan when 
notification is by either personal communication of noncompliance to the owner or 
contractor or their respective agents or written notice sent by certified mail to the owner or 
the contractor.  


b. If notice is not provided under subsection (h)(2)a of this section, the permittee and 
landowner shall have 72 hours to correct any noncompliance with the plan when 
notification is by posting notice in a conspicuous place on the site or sending notice by 
facsimile transmission to the owner or contractor.  


(3) If any noncompliance is not corrected within the time periods specified in subsection (h)(2)a or 
(h)(2)b of this section, the permittee and landowner authorize the local approval authority to 
take any action, to perform any work or commence any operations necessary to correct 
conditions upon the subject property where notice of noncompliance has been issued to bring 
the property into conformance with plan requirements. The permittee and landowner further 
consent to reimburse the authority for the total costs and expenses of such actions and such 
reimbursement may be collected as a special charge upon the property for current services 
rendered as provided by law.  


(4) If the permittee has filed an appeal under subsection 10-134(a)(1) prior to the expiration of the 
time for compliance under subsection (h)(2) of this section, the local approval authority may 
take action, perform work or correct conditions only to the extent necessary to protect against or 
correct an imminent hazard or a condition that will cause or threatens to cause personal injury 
or damage to off-site property.  


(i) Penalties.  


(1) Any person, firm, company or corporation, owner, occupant or other user of the premises who 
violates, or refuses to comply with, or resists the enforcement of, any of the provisions of this 
article shall be subject to a forfeiture of not less than $200.00 nor more than $1,000.00 and 
costs of prosecution. Each day that a violation exists shall constitute a separate offense, and 
such violations shall be prosecuted in municipal court.  


(2) Any person who has the ability to pay any forfeiture entered against him under this article, but 
refuses to do so may be confined in the county jail until such forfeiture is paid, but in no event to 
exceed 30 days. In determining whether an individual has the ability to pay a forfeiture, all items 
of income and all assets may be considered regardless of whether or not such income or assets 
are subject to garnishment, lien or attachment by creditors.  


(j) Timeframe and expiration.  


(1) Erosion control plan timetables and construction schedules must begin within one year of the 
date of the application for permit is submitted.  


(2) All applications for permit shall expire:  


a. One year from the date the applicant is notified of an application deficiency, if the applicant 
has not submitted additional information to adequately address the deficiency within one 
year; or  


b. Three years from the date of application.  


(3) Erosion control permits shall expire:  


a. Upon the stabilization date included in the approval plan and included in the analysis 
provided to meet the requirements of ten.  


b. A maximum of three years after the permit is issued.  







 


 


  Page 14 


(Code 1986, § 20.08; Ord. No. 0-21-06, § 1, 5-9-2006; Ord. No. 0-18-2013, § 3, 8-13-2013)  


Sec. 10-130. - Erosion control plan requirements.  


(a) Plan materials. Erosion control plans required under section 10-125 may include consideration of 
adjoining landowners' cooperative efforts to control transport of sediment and, except as specifically 
exempted in this section, shall include at a minimum the following information required in Wis. 
Admin. Code § NR 216.46 including the following information:  


(1) Property lines, lot dimensions, and limits of disturbed area;  


(2) Limits of impervious area including buildings. Include all public and private roads, interior roads, 
driveways, parking lots, and indicate type of paving and surfacing material;  


(3) All natural and artificial water features including, but not limited to lakes, ponds, streams, 
(including intermittent streams), and ditches; and areas of natural woodland or prairie. The plan 
must show ordinary high-water marks of all navigable waters, 100-year flood elevations and 
delineated wetland boundaries. A certified flood zone determination and/or wetland delineation 
may be required at the applicant's expense;  


(4) Cross sections of and profiles of channels, swales, and road ditches;  


(5) Culvert sizes;  


(6) Direction of flow of runoff;  


(7) Watershed size for each drainage area;  


(8) Design discharge for ditches and structural measures;  


(9) Runoff velocities;  


(10) Fertilizer and seeding rates and recommendations;  


(11) Time schedules for stabilization of ditches and slopes;  


(12) Description of methods by which sites are to be developed and a detailed land disturbance 
schedule including time schedules for stabilization of ditches and slopes;  


(13) Provision for sequential steps mitigating erosive effect of land disturbing activities to be followed 
in appropriate order and in a manner consistent with accepted erosion control methodology 
suitable to proposed sites and amenable to prompt revegetation, including runoff calculations as 
appropriate;  


(14) Provisions to prevent mud-tracking off-site onto public thoroughfares during the construction 
period;  


(15) Provisions to disconnect impervious surfaces, where feasible;  


(16) Provisions to prevent sediment delivery to, and accumulation in, any proposed or existing 
stormwater conveyance system;  


(17) Copies of permits or permit applications required by any other unit of government or agency;  


(18) Existing and proposed elevations (referenced to the National Geodetic Vertical Datum of 1929) 
and existing and proposed contours in the area, where deemed necessary; [and]  


(19) Any other information necessary to reasonably determine the location, nature and condition of 
any physical or environmental features of the site.  


(b) Simplified plan checklists. Applicants may submit erosion control proposals using simplified 
checklists of standard erosion control practices, on a standard form approved by the local approval 
authority, wherever all of the following conditions exist:  


(1) The site does not exceed 20,000 square feet in area; and  







 


 


  Page 15 


(2) Soil on slopes steeper than 6 percent The slope of the land does not exceed six percent will be 
exposed for less than 15 days. 


(3)    Soil on slopes less than 6 percent will be exposed for less than 6 months  


(c) Review of simplified plan checklists. Simplified plan checklists shall be reviewed by the local 
approval authority for completeness and accuracy.  


(d) Erosion control performance standards. The erosion control plan shall be designed to meet the 
following performance standards and other requirements of this ordinance. 


(1) Proposed design, suggested location and phased implementation of effective, practicable 
erosion control measures for plans shall be designed, engineered and implemented to achieve 
the following results:  


a. Prevent gully and bank erosion;  


b. Limit total off-site permissible annual aggregate soil loss for exposed areas resulting from 
sheet and rill erosion to an annual, cumulative soil loss rate not to exceed 7.5 tons per acre 
annually; and  


c. Discharges from new construction sites must have a stable outlet capable of carrying 
designed flow as required in subsection 10-131(b)(3), at a non-erosive velocity. Outlet 
design must consider flow capacity and flow duration. This requirement applies to both the 
site outlet and the ultimate outlet to stormwater conveyance or waterbody.  


(2) Plan compliance under subsection (d)(1) of this section shall be determined using the U.S. 
Natural Resources Conservation Service Technical Guide or another commonly accepted soil 
erosion methodology approved by the county conservationist, that considers season of year, 
site characteristics, soil erodibility and slope.  


(3) Erosion control measures for plan approval need not attempt to regulate soil transportation 
within the boundaries of the applicant's site.  


(4)  


a. Except as authorized in this section, the topography within five (5) feet of any property 
line at the commencement of any development shall remain unchanged. 


1. When land disturbing activities associated with development occur within five (5) 
feet of any property line, finished grades in that area shall be restored to the 
topography in existence before the land disturbing activity began.  A positive 
slope of one-half (1/2) inch vertical per one (1) foot horizontal within five (5) feet 
of the property line is allowed to provide proper drainage away from a one or two 
family residence. 


2. The established grade of the adjoining property shall determine the finished 
grade at the property line for any development.  The owner of the property under 
development bears the burden of proof as to the established grade at the 
property line and the topography within five (5) feet of the property line.  The 
director of the Director of Planning & Development may require detailed site 
grading plans of existing and proposed conditions to be submitted before 
commencement of land disturbing activities. 


b. Existing drainage ways and drainage easements along property lines shall be maintained 
including, but not limited to, natural watercourses and stormwater management areas 
shown on subdivision plats and certified survey maps. 


c. Development in Floodplain Districts requiring fill to comply with chapter 30 is exempt from 
this subsection. 


d. Upon written application, the director of the Director of Planning & Development may 
authorize exceptions resulting in changes to the existing topography at and within five (5) 







 


 


  Page 16 


feet of any property line that would promote the purposes stated in this ordinance.  An 
exception authorized under this subsection may not direct additional stormwater runoff 
toward adjacent properties.  Proposed exceptions may include but are not limited to, 
retaining walls, berms and other structures, and other changes to existing grade at and 
within five (5) feet of a property line.  The director of the Director of Planning & 
Development may require the submittal of detailed site grading plans of existing and 
proposed conditions including, but not limited to, detailed topographical information of the 
subject and adjoining properties, before land disturbing activities commence. 


(5) An erosion control plan required under this ordinance shall meet the requirements of Wis. 
Admin. Code § NR 216.46 and the applicable performance standards in Wis. Admin. Code § 
NR 151.11 for construction sites or § NR 151.23 for transportation facility sites. The design plan 
required under NR 151.23 (3) shall meet all of the following: 


a. Erosion and sediment control practices.  Erosion and sediment control practices at each 
site where land disturbing construction activity is to occur shall be used to prevent or 
reduce all of the following: 


  1. The deposition of soil from being tracked onto streets by vehicles. 


  2. The discharge of sediment from disturbed areas into on-site storm water inlets. 


  3. The discharge of sediment from disturbed areas into adjacent waters of the state. 


  4. The discharge of sediment from drainage ways that flow off the site. 


  5. The discharge of sediment by dewatering activities. 


 6. The discharge of sediment eroding from soil stockpiles existing for more than 7 
 days. 


7. The discharge of sediment from erosive flows at outlets and in downstream 
channels. 


8. The transport by runoff into waters of the state of chemicals, cement and other 
building compounds and materials on the construction site during the 
construction period.  However, projects that require the placement of these 
materials in waters of the state, such as constructing bridge footings or BMP 
installations, are not prohibited by this subdivision. 


9. The transport by runoff into waters of the state of untreated wash water from 
vehicle and wheel washing. 


Note: Wastewaters, such as from concrete truck washout, need to be properly 
managed to limit the discharge of pollutants to waters of the state.  A separate 
permit may be needed from the department where a wastewater discharge has 
the potential to adversely impact waters of the state.  The appropriate 
department regional wastewater specialist should be contacted to determine if 
wastewater permit coverage is needed where wastewater will be discharged to 
waters of the state. 


b. Sediment performance standards.  In addition to the erosion and sediment control 
practices under par. a., the following erosion and sediment control practices shall be 
employed: 


1. For transportation facility construction sites for which the department received a 
notice of intent for the construction project in accordance with subch. III of ch. NR 
216 within 2 years after January 1, 2011, BMPs that, by design, achieve a 
reduction of 80 percent, or to the maximum extent practicable, of the sediment 
load carried in runoff, on an average annual basis, as compared with no 
sediment or erosion controls, until the construction site has undergone final 
stabilization. 







 


 


  Page 17 


2. For transportation facility construction sites for which the department received a 
notice of intent for the construction project in accordance with subch. III of ch. NR 
216, 2 years or more after January 1, 2011, BMPs that, by design, discharge no 
more than 5 tons per acre per year, or to the maximum extent practicable, of the 
sediment load carried in runoff from initial grading to final stabilization. 


3. The department may not require any person to employ more BMPs than are 
needed to meet a performance standard in order to comply with maximum extent 
practicable.  Erosion and sediment control BMPs may be combined to meet the 
requirements of this paragraph.  The department shall give credit toward meeting 
the sediment performance standard of this paragraph for limiting the duration or 
area, or both, of land disturbing construction activity, or for other appropriate 
mechanisms. 


4. Notwithstanding subd. 1. or 2., if BMPs cannot be designed and implemented to 
meet the sediment performance standard, the plan shall include a written, site-
specific explanation of why the sediment performance standard cannot be met 
and how the sediment load will be reduced to the maximum extent practicable. 


Note: Soil loss prediction tools such as revised universal soil loss equation 2 that 
estimate the sediment load leaving the construction site under varying land and 
management conditions, or methodology identified in NR 151 subch. V, may be 
used to calculate sediment reduction. 


Note: In accordance with NR 151 subch. V, the department has developed technical 
standards to help meet the construction site performance standards.  These 
technical standards are available from the department at (608) 267-7694. 


 c. Preventive measures.  The plan shall incorporate all of the following: 


1. Maintenance of existing vegetation, especially adjacent to surface waters, 
whenever possible. 


  2. Minimization of soil compaction and preservation of top-soil. 


  3. Minimization of land disturbing construction activity on slopes of 20% or more. 


  4. Development of spill prevention and response procedures. 


(Code 1986, § 20.09; Ord. No. 0-21-06, § 1, 5-9-2006)  


Sec. 10-131. - Stormwater management plan requirements.  


(a) Plan materials. Stormwater management plans required under section 10-126 shall satisfy all of the 
requirements in subsection (b) of this section, and shall address at a minimum the following 
information:  


(1) Name, address, and telephone number for the following or their designees: landowner; 
developer; project engineer for practice design and certification; person(s) responsible for 
installation of stormwater management practices; and person(s) responsible for maintenance of 
stormwater management practices prior to the transfer, if any, of maintenance responsibility to 
another party. 


(2) A narrative describing the proposed project, including an implementation schedule for planned 
practices;  


(32) Identification of the entity responsible for long-term maintenance of the project;  


(43) A map showing drainage areas for each watershed area;  


(54) A summary of runoff peak flow rate calculations, by watershed area, including:  







 


 


  Page 18 


a. Pre-existing peak flow rates;  


b. Post-construction peak flow rates with no detention;  


c. Post-construction peak flow rates with detention;  


d. Assumed runoff curve numbers (RCNs); and  


e. Time of concentration (Tc) used in calculations;  


(65) A complete site plan and specifications, signed by the person who designed the plan. All plans 
shall be drawn to an easily legible scale, shall be clearly labeled and shall include, at a 
minimum, all of the following information:  


a. Property lines and lot dimensions, including all existing and proposed buildings and 
setbacks;  


b. All public and private roads, interior roads, driveways and parking lots. Show traffic 
patterns and type of paving and surfacing material;  


c. All natural and artificial water features, including but not limited to lakes, ponds, streams 
(including intermittent streams), and ditches. Show ordinary high-water marks of all 
navigable waters, 100-year flood elevations and delineated wetland boundaries, if any. If 
not available, appropriate flood zone determination or wetland delineation, or both, may be 
required at the applicant's expense;  


d. Depth to bedrock;  


e. Depth to seasonal high water table;  


f. The extent and location of all soil types as described in the Dane County Soil Survey, 
slopes exceeding 12 percent, and areas of natural woodland or prairie;  


g. Existing and proposed elevations (referenced to the North American Vertical Datum of 
1988, where available) and existing and proposed contours in the area requiring a grading 
and filling permit;  


h. Elevations, sections, profiles and details as needed to describe all natural and artificial 
features of the project;  


i. Soil erosion control and overland runoff control measures, including runoff calculations as 
appropriate;  


j. Detailed construction schedule;  


k. Copies of permits or permit applications required by any other governmental entities or 
agencies;  


l. Any other information necessary to reasonably determine the location, nature and 
condition of any physical or environmental features;  


m. Location of all stormwater management practices;  


n. All existing and proposed drainage features;  


o. The location and area of all proposed impervious surfaces; and  


p. The limits and area of the disturbed area.  


q. All buildings and outdoor uses, existing and proposed, including all dimensions and 
setbacks. 


(76) Engineered designs for all structural management practices;  


(87) A description of methods to control oil and grease or written justification for not providing such 
control;  







 


 


  Page 19 


(98) If required under subsection (b)(6) of this section, a description and plans to control temperature 
of runoff;  


(109) A maintenance plan and schedule for all permanent stormwater management practices 
as recorded on the affidavit required in subsection 10-129(c)(4). This plan shall, at a minimum, 
contain the following information and provisions: 


a. Identification of the owner(s) of the land parcel(s) where BMP(s) are located; 


b. Long Term Maintenance Plan.  A description of all long term maintenance activities that 
will likely be required for each BMP included in the agreement, and an estimated time 
interval between each activity;  


c. Access.  Authorization for vehicle access, including a minimum 15-foot wide access 
easement dedicated to the City, to allow for future BMP maintenance work. 


d. Maintenance Responsibility.  Identification of the person(s), organization, municipality or 
other entity responsible for long term maintenance of the stormwater BMP.  


e. Inspections shall be performed by the responsible party.  The responsible party shall 
maintain a log of inspection activities.;  


(110) A summary of infiltration calculations including:  


a. Pre-developed infiltration volume;  


b. Calculated infiltration volume goal;  


c. Achieved post development infiltration volume.  


(b) Stormwater management performance standards. Proposed design, suggested location and phased 
implementation of effective, practicable stormwater management measures for plans shall be 
designed, engineered and implemented to achieve the following results:  


(1) For redevelopment sites where the redevelopment will be replacing older development that was 
subject to post-construction performance standards of NR 151 in effect on or after October 1, 
2004, the permittee shall meet the total suspended solids reduction, peak flow control, 
infiltration, and protective area standards applicable to the older development or meet the 
redevelopment standards of this ordinance, whichever is more stringent. 


(2) Sediment controlTotal suspended solids. BMPs shall be designed, installed and maintained to 
control total suspended solids carried in runoff from the post-construction site as follows: 


a. For new development, design practices to retain soil particles greater than five microns on 
the site (80 percent reduction) resulting from a one-year 24-hour storm event (2.5 inches 
over a 24-hour duration), according to approved procedures and assuming no sediment 
resuspension;  


b. For redevelopment resulting in exposed surface parking lots and associated traffic areas, 
design practices to retain soil particles greater than 20 microns on the entire site (40 
percent reduction) resulting from a one-year 24-hour storm event, according to approved 
procedures and assuming no sediment resuspension. Under no circumstances shall the 
site's existing sediment control level or trapping efficiency be reduced as a result of the 
redevelopment.  


c. For in-fill development by design, reduce to the maximum extent practicable, the total 
suspended solids load by 80%, based on an average annual rainfall, as compared to no 
runoff management controls. No person shall be required to exceed an 80% total 
suspended solids reduction to meet the requirements of this subdivision. 


d. Maximum Extent Practicable. If the design cannot meet a total suspended solids reduction 
performance standard in subs (a)-(c), the stormwater management plan shall include a 
written, site-specific explanation of why the total suspended solids reduction performance 







 


 


  Page 20 


standard cannot be met and why the total suspended solids load will be reduced only to 
the maximum extent practicable. 


ec. Off-Site Drainage.  When designing BMPs, runoff draining to the BMP from off-site shall be 
taken into account in determining the treatment efficiency of the practice.  Any impact on 
the efficiency shall be compensated for by increasing the size of the BMP accordingly. 


(2) Oil and grease control. For all stormwater plans for commercial or industrial developments and 
all other uses where the potential for pollution by oil or grease, or both, exists, the first 0.5 inch 
of runoff will be treated using the best oil and grease removal technology available. This 
requirement may be waived by the plan reviewer only when the applicant can demonstrate that 
installation of such practices is not necessary.  


(3) Runoff rate controlPeak discharge.  


a. The maximum runoff curve number (RCN) used in such calculations shall be those shown 
in Table 1: .  The TR-55 specified curve numbers for other land uses shall be used.  
Heavily disturbed sites will be lowered one permeability class for hydrologic calculations.  
Lightly disturbed areas require no modification.  Where practices have been implemented 
to restore soil structure to pre-developed conditions, no permeability class modification is 
required.  


Table 1. Maximum Pre-development Runoff Curve Numbers  


Runoff Curve  


Number  
Hydrologic Soil Group *  


 
A  B  C  D  


Woodland  30  55  70  77  


Grassland  39  61  71  78  


Cropland  51  68  78  83  


* When dual HSG are specified, the drained condition shall be assumed  


  


 


b. Runoff rate control—design standards. Except for redevelopment projects, all stormwater 
facilities shall be designed, installed and maintained to effectively accomplish the following:  


1. Maintain predevelopment peak runoff rates for the one1-year, 24-hour storm event (2.549 
inches over 24-hour duration using the NRCS MSE4 storm distribution).  


2. Maintain predevelopment peak runoff rates for the two2-year, 24-hour storm event (2.984 
inches over 24-hour duration using the NRCS MSE4 storm distribution).  


3. Maintain predevelopment peak runoff rates for the ten10-year, 24-hour storm event (4.209 
inches over 24-hour duration using the NRCS MSE4 storm distribution).  







 


 


  Page 21 


4. Safely pass the Maintain predevelopment peak runoff rates for the 100-year, 24-hour storm 
event (6.066 inches over 24 -hours' duration using the NRCS MSE4 storm distribution).  


(4) Outlets. Discharges from new construction sites must have a stable outlet capable of carrying 
designed flow as required in subsection (b)(3)b of this section, at a nonerosive velocity. Outlet 
design must consider flow capacity and flow duration. This requirement applies to both the site 
outlet and the ultimate outlet to stormwater conveyance or waterbody.  


(5) Infiltration.  


a. For both residential and nonresidential developments, design practices to infiltrate 
sufficient runoff volume so that post-development infiltration volume shall be at least 90 
percent of the pre-development infiltration volume, based upon average annual rainfall.  


b. The maximum runoff curve number (RCN) used in such calculations shall be those 
specified in subsection (b)(3)a Table 1.  


c. If, when designing appropriate infiltration systems, more than two percent of the site is 
required to be used as effective infiltration area, the applicant may alternately design 
infiltration systems and pervious surfaces to meet or exceed the annual pre-development 
recharge rate. The annual pre-development recharge rate shall be determined from the 
Wisconsin Geological and Natural History Survey's 2009 report, Groundwater Recharge in 
Dane County, Estimated by a GIS-Based Water-Balanced Model or subsequent updates to 
this report, or by a site specific analysis using other appropriate techniques. If this 
alternative design approach is taken, at least two percent of the site must be used for 
infiltration.  


d. Pre-treatment. Before infiltrating runoff, pre-treatment shall be required for parking lot 
runoff and for runoff from new road construction in commercial, industrial, and institutional 
areas that will enter an infiltration system. The pretreatment shall be designed to protect 
the infiltration system from clogging prior to scheduled maintenance and to protect 
groundwater quality.  


e. Prohibitions. Notwithstanding subparagraphs a. through c., infiltration systems may not be 
installed in any of the following areas:  


1. Areas associated with tier 1 industrial facilities identified in section NR 216.21(2)(a), 
Wis. Admin. Code, including storage, loading, rooftop and parking.  


2. Storage and loading areas of tier 2 industrial facilities identified in section NR 
216.21(2)(b), Wis. Admin. Code.  


3. Fueling and vehicle maintenance areas.  


4. Areas within 1,000 feet up gradient or within 100 feet down gradient of direct conduits 
to groundwater.  


5. Separation distances. Infiltration practices shall be located so that the characteristics 
of the soil and the separation distance between the bottom of the infiltration system 
and the elevation of seasonal high groundwater or the top of bedrock are in 
accordance with Table 2:  


Table 2. Separation Distances and Soil Characteristics  


Source Area  
Separation 


Distance  
Soil Characteristics  


Industrial, Commercial, Institutional 5 Feet or More  Filtering Layer  







 


 


  Page 22 


Parking Lots and Roads  


Residential Arterial Roads  5 Feet or More  Filtering Layer  


Roofs Draining to Subsurface Infiltration 


Practices  
1 Foot or More  


Native or Engineered Soil with Particles 


Finer than Coarse Sand  


Roofs Draining to Surface Infiltration 


Practices  
Not Applicable  


 


All Other Impervious Source Areas  3 Feet or More  Filtering Layer  


  


6. Areas with runoff from industrial, commercial and institutional parking lots, roads and 
residential arterial roads with less than five feet separation distance from the bottom of 
the infiltration system to the elevation of seasonal high groundwater or the top of 
bedrock.  


7. Areas within 400 feet of a community water system well as specified in section NR 
811.16(4), Wis. Admin. Code, or within the separation distances listed in s. NR 812.08 
for any private well or non-community well for runoff infiltrated from commercial, 
industrial and institutional land uses or regional devices for residential development.  


8. Areas where contaminants of concern, as defined in section NR 720.03(2), Wis. 
Admin. Code, are present in the soil through which infiltration will occur.  


f. Alternate use of runoff. Where alternate uses of runoff are employed, such as for toilet 
flushing, laundry or irrigation, such alternate use shall be given equal credit toward the 
infiltration volume required by this section.  


g. Minimizing groundwater pollution. According to ch. NR 151, Wis. Admin. Code, infiltration 
systems designed in accordance with this section shall, to the extent technically and 
economically feasible, minimize the level of pollutants infiltrating to groundwater and shall 
maintain compliance with the preventive action limit at a point of standards application in 
accordance with ch. NR 140, Wis. Admin. Code. However, if site-specific information 
indicates that compliance with the preventive action limit is not achievable, the infiltration 
system may not be installed or shall be modified to prevent infiltration to the maximum 
extent practicable.  


h. Exemptions. Runoff from the following areas may be credited toward meeting the 
requirement when infiltrated, and/or infiltration practices located in the following areas may 
be credited under the following conditions, but the decision to infiltrate runoff from these 
source areas or under these conditions is optional: 


1. (4) Parking areas and access roads less than 5,000 square feet for commercial 
development. 


2. Parking areas and access roads less than 5,000 square feet for industrial 
development not subject to the prohibitions in subparagraph e. 


3. Except as provided under subsection (b)(1) of this Section, redevelopment post-
construction sites.  







 


 


  Page 23 


4. Roads in commercial, industrial, and institutional land uses, and arterial roads. 


5. Areas where the infiltration rate of the soil is less than .6 inches/hour measured at the 
bottom of the proposed infiltration system where the soil layer is not easily removed or 
manipulated.  


(5) Parking areas and access roads less than 5,000 square feet for commercial and 
industrial development.  


(6) Roads in commercial, industrial, and institutional land uses, and arterial roads. 


(6) Thermal control. The stormwater management plan shall include provisions and practices to 
reduce the temperature of runoff for sites located within the watershed of a river or stream 
identified by the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources as:  


a. A cold water community as identified through NR 102.04(3)(a), NR104, Wis. Admin. Code, 
and Class I, Class II, and Class III trout streams identified in "Wisconsin Trout Streams," 
DNR publication PUB-FH-806-2002 or its successor.  


b. Rivers or streams proposed by the Wisconsin state department of natural resources as 
cold water communities and Class I, II, and III trout streams.  


(7) Thermal control continued. The stormwater management plan does not have to meet the 
requirement in subsection (b)(6) of this section if the applicant can justify by use of a model 
approved by the Dane County conservationist that practices are not necessary because the 
temperature increase of runoff from the site post-development will be zero.  


(8) Thermal control continued. A current list and maps of affected watersheds shall be available for 
reference at the office of the local approval authority and/or the plan review agency.  


(9) Protective areas performance standard. 


a. Definition.  In this section, “protective area” means an area of land that commences at the 
top of the channel of lakes, streams and rivers, or at the delineated boundary of 
wetlands, and that is the greatest of the following widths, as measured horizontally from 
the top of the channel or delineated wetland boundary to the closest impervious surface.  
However, in this section, “protective area” does not include any area of land adjacent to 
any stream enclosed within a pipe or culvert, so that runoff cannot enter the enclosure at 
this location. 


  1. For outstanding resource waters and exceptional resource waters, 75 feet. 


2. For perennial and intermittent streams identified on a U.S. geological survey 7.5- 
minute series topographic map, or a county soil survey map, whichever is more 
current, 50 feet. 


  3. For lakes, 50 feet. 


  4. For wetlands not subject to par. 5. or 6., 50 feet. 


5. For highly susceptible wetlands, 75 feet.  Highly susceptible wetlands include the 
following types: calcareous fens, sedge meadows, open and coniferous bogs, 
low prairies, coniferous swamps, lowland hardwood swamps, and ephemeral 
ponds. 


Note: Information on wetland types, including ephemeral ponds, is available at (608) 
266-7012. 


6. For less susceptible wetlands, 10 percent of the average wetland width, but no 
less than 10 feet nor more than 30 feet.  Less susceptible wetlands include: 
degraded wetlands dominated by invasive species such as reed canary grass; 
cultivated hydric soils; and any gravel pits, or dredged material or fill material 
disposal sites that take on the attributes of a wetland. 







 


 


  Page 24 


7. In pars. 4. to 6., determinations of the extent of the protective area adjacent to 
wetlands shall be made on the basis of the sensitivity and runoff susceptibility of 
the wetland in accordance with the standards and criteria in s. NR 103.03. 


8. Wetland boundary delineation shall be made in accordance with s. NR 103.08 
(lm).  This paragraph does not apply to wetlands that have been completely filled 
in compliance with all applicable state and federal regulations.  The protective 
area for wetlands that have been partially filled in compliance with all applicable 
state and federal regulations shall be measured from the wetland boundary 
delineation after fill has been placed.  Where there is a legally authorized wetland 
fill, the protective area standard need not be met in that location. 


9. For concentrated flow channels with drainage areas greater than 130 acres, 10 
feet. 


10. Notwithstanding pars. 1. to 9., the greatest protective area width shall apply 
where rivers, streams, lakes, and wetlands are contiguous. 


Note: A stream or lake is not eligible for a lower protective area width even if 
contiguous to a less susceptible wetland.  


b. Applicability.  This section applies to post-construction sites located within a protective 
area, except those areas exempted pursuant to sub. d. 


 c. Requirements.  The following requirements shall be met: 


1. Impervious surfaces shall be kept out of the protective area entirely or to the 
maximum extent practicable.  If there is no practical alternative to locating an 
impervious surface in the protective area, the storm water management plan 
shall contain a written site-specific explanation. 


2. Where land disturbing construction activity occurs within a protective area, 
adequate sod or self-sustaining vegetative cover of 70 percent or greater shall be 
established and maintained where no impervious surface is present.  The 
adequate sod or self-sustaining vegetative cover shall be sufficient to provide for 
bank stability, maintenance of fish habitat, and filtering of pollutants from upslope 
overland flow areas under sheet flow conditions.  Non-vegetative materials such 
as rock riprap, may be employed on the bank as necessary to prevent erosion 
such as on steep slopes or where high velocity flows occur. 


Note: It is recommended that seeding of non-invasive vegetative cover be used in the 
protective areas.  Some invasive plants are listed in ch. NR 40.  Vegetation that 
is flood and drought tolerant and can provide long-term bank stability because of 
an extensive root system is preferable.  Vegetative cover may be measured 
using the line transect method described in the University of Wisconsin extension 
publication number A3533, titled “Estimating Residue Using the Line Transect 
Method”. 


3. Best management practices such as filter strips, swales, or wet detention ponds, 
that are designed to control pollutants from non-point sources, may be located in 
the protective area. 


Note: Other laws, such as ch. 30, WI Stats., and chs. NR 103, 115, 116, and 117 and 
their associated review and approval processes may apply in the protective area. 


 d. Exemptions.  This section does not apply to any of the following: 


1. Except as provided under s. NR 151.121 (5)subsection (b)1. of this Section, 
redevelopment post-construction sites. 


  2. In-fill development areas less than 5 acres. 







 


 


  Page 25 


3. Structures that cross or access surface waters such as boat landings, bridges, 
and culverts. 


  4. Structures constructed in accordance with s. 59.692 (lv), Stats. 


5. Areas of post-construction sites from which the runoff does not enter the surface 
water, including wetlands, without first being treated by a BMP to meet the 
requirements of ss. NR 151.122 to 151.123, except to the extent that vegetative 
ground cover is necessary to maintain bank stability. 


Note: A vegetated protective area to filter runoff pollutants from post-construction sites 
described in par. 5. is not necessary since the runoff at that location is treated 
prior to entering the surface water.  Other practices necessary to meet the 
requirements of this section, such as a swale or pond, will need to be designed 
and implemented to reduce runoff pollutants prior to runoff entering a surface 
water of the state.  The requirements of ch. NR 103 still apply and should be 
considered before runoff is diverted to or from a wetland. 


(c) Stormwater management goals. The following standards shall be met whenever possible, and 
proposed design, suggested location and implementation of practices to meet these goals shall be 
included in plans:  


(1) For existing development, design practices to retain soil particles greater than 40 microns on 
the site (20 percent reduction) resulting from a one-year 24-hour storm event, according to 
approved procedures, and assuming no sediment resuspension.  


(2) For street reconstruction, design practices to retain soil particles greater than 20 microns on the 
site (40 percent reduction) resulting from a one-year 24-hour storm event, according to 
approved procedures, and assuming no sediment resuspension.  


(Code 1986, § 20.10; Ord. No. 0-21-06, § 1, 5-9-2006; Ord. No. 0-01-07, § 1, 1-9-2007; Ord. 


No. 0-18-2013, § 4, 8-13-2013)  


Sec. 10-132. - Off-site stormwater management.  


Off-site stormwater management is allowed, provided that provisions are made to manage 
stormwater by an off-site facility, and provided that all of the following conditions for the off-site facility are 
met:  


(1) The facility is in place;  


(2) The facility is designed and adequately sized to provide a level of stormwater control that at 
least meets the requirement standards of this articleordinance; and  


(3) The local approval authority is satisfied that the facility has a legally obligated entity responsible 
for its long-term operation and maintenance.  


(Code 1986, § 20.11; Ord. No. 0-21-06, § 1, 5-9-2006)  


Sec. 10-133. - Technical standards and specifications.  


The design of all best management practices designed to meet the requirements of this article shall 
comply with the following technical standards:  


(1) Natural Resources Conservation Service's "Wisconsin Field Office Technical Guide, Chapter 4" 
or its successor.  


(2) Applicable construction or erosion control or stormwater management standards by the 
Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources;  







 


 


  Page 26 


(3) Any other technical methodology approved by the Dane County conservationist.  


(Code 1986, § 20.12; Ord. No. 0-21-06, § 1, 5-9-2006)  


Sec. 10-134. - Appeals and variances.  


(a) Appeals.  


(1) Any person aggrieved by any decision of the local approval authority pursuant to this article may 
appeal to the public works committee. Such appeal shall be taken within 30 days after the 
challenged decision. Notice of appeal setting forth the specific grounds for the appeal shall be 
filed with the local approval authority and the city clerk. The zoning administrator shall provide to 
the public works committee the record upon which the action appealed from was taken.  


(2) The public works committee shall fix a reasonable time for the hearing of the appeal and publish 
a class 2 notice thereof under Wis. Stats. ch. 985, as well as give due notice to the parties in 
interest, and decide the appeal within a reasonable time. Upon the hearing, any party may 
appear in person or by agent or attorney.  


(3) The public works committee may, in conformity with the provisions of this article, reverse or 
affirm, wholly or partly, or modify the order, requirement, decision or determination appealed 
from and may make such order, requirement, decision or determination as ought to be made 
and shall have all the powers of the officer from whom the appeal is taken.  


(4) The concurring vote of a majority of the public works committee shall be necessary to reverse 
the decision of the local approval authority.  


(b) Variances.  


(1) An applicant may include in the application a request for a variance from the requirements of 
section 10-130 or section 10-131. No variance shall be granted unless the applicant 
demonstrates and the local approval authority, after consultation with the Dane County 
conservationist, finds that all of the following conditions are present:  


a. Enforcement of the standards set forth in this article will result in unnecessary hardship to 
the landowner;  


b. The hardship is due to exceptional physical conditions unique to the property;  


c. Granting the variance will not adversely affect the public health, safety or welfare, nor be 
contrary to the spirit, purpose and intent of this article;  


d. The project will have no impact upon any of the stated purposes as set forth in section 10-
123;  


e. The applicant has proposed an alternative to the requirement from which the variance is 
sought that will provide equivalent protection of the public health, safety and welfare, the 
environment and public and private property;  


f. The net cumulative effect of the variance will not impact downstream conditions; and  


g. Existing regional facilities are shown to meet the performance standards of this article.  


(2) If all of the conditions set forth in subsection (b)(1) of this section are met, a variance may only 
be granted to the minimum extent necessary to afford relief from the unnecessary hardship, with 
primary consideration to water quality and impact downstream conditions.  


(3) A variance from the provisions of subsections 10-131(b)(1), (b)(2) and (b)(6) may only be 
granted if:  


a. The applicant has met the requirements of subsection (b)(1) of this section; and  







 


 


  Page 27 


b. The applicant will be denied all reasonable and beneficial use of the property if the 
variance is denied.  


(4) A person aggrieved by a variance determination by the local approval authority may appeal the 
decision to the public works committee pursuant to subsection (a) of this section.  


(5) A person aggrieved by a decision of the public works committee regarding a variance may 
appeal that decision to the board of appeals.  


(Code 1986, § 20.13; Ord. No. 0-21-06, § 1, 5-9-2006)  


Sec. 10-135. - Permit fees.  


(a) The erosion control and stormwater management permit fee shall be $200.00.  


(b) The fee for a preliminary review letter shall be $200.00. If a preliminary approval letter has been 
obtained, the erosion control and stormwater management base fee shall be waived.  


(c) For sites required to obtain an erosion control permit under section 10-125, there shall be an 
additional fee of $0.004 per square foot of disturbed area.  


(d) For sites required to obtain a stormwater control permit under section 10-126, there shall be an 
additional fee of $0.005 per square foot of impervious area and $0.0025 per square foot of 
redeveloped impervious area.  


(e) The common council authorizes city administrative staff to modify the permit and fee amounts listed 
in this erosion control and stormwater management ordinance on January 1 of each year following 
the adoption of this article, based upon the CPI-U for the Midwest Region, size "d" as prepared by 
the Federal Department of Labor, so long as the cumulative interim percentage of inflation warrants 
an increase of $5.00 or more on a round dollar amount and an increase to the next whole cent on 
amounts expressed in hundredths of a dollar. These amounts may also be modified by future council 
action.  


(f) Late filing fee. When an applicant or landowner begins work requiring a permit before obtaining the 
permit or appropriate approvals, the fees shall be doubled.  


(Code 1986, § 20.14; Ord. No. 0-21-06, § 1, 5-9-2006)  


Sec. 10-136. - Prohibited stormwater discharge and connection.  


(a) Purpose: The purpose of this section is to provide for the health, safety, and general welfare of the 
citizens of the city and to protect waters of the state through the regulation of illicit discharges to the 
municipal separate storm sewer system as required by federal and state law. This section 
establishes methods for controlling the discharge of pollutants into the municipal separate storm 
sewer system owned or operated by the city in order to comply with the requirements of the Clean 
Water Act, Chapter 283.33, Wis. Stats., and the Wisconsin Pollutant Discharge Elimination System 
municipal storm water discharge permit program under Chapter NR 216, Wis. Adm. Code.  


The objectives of this section are:  


(1) To regulate the contribution of pollutants to the municipal separate storm sewer system 
associated with discharges from any user of the municipal storm sewer system.  


(2) To prohibit illicit connections and discharges to the municipal separate storm sewer system.  


(3) To establish legal authority to carry out all inspection, surveillance and monitoring procedures 
necessary to ensure compliance with this section.  


(b) Definitions: For the purposes of this section, the following definitions are applicable:  







 


 


  Page 28 


Authorized agency means employees or designees of the director or directors of the municipal 
agency or agencies of the city designated to administer or enforce this section.  


Illicit connection means any drain or conveyance, whether on the surface or subsurface, which 
allows the discharge of sanitary waste to the municipal separate storm sewer and any connections to the 
municipal separate storm sewer system from indoor drains and sinks.  


Illicit discharge means any discharge to the municipal separate storm sewer system that is not 
composed entirely of storm water except discharges with a Wisconsin Pollutant Discharge Elimination 
System permit or other discharges allowed locally.  


Municipal separate storm sewer or MS4 means a conveyance or system of conveyances, including 
roads with drainage systems, municipal streets, catch basins, curbs, gutters, ditches, constructed 
channels or storm drains, which meets the following criteria:  


a. Owned or operated by the City of Stoughton.  


b. Designed or used for collecting or conveying stormwater.  


c. Which is not a combined sewer conveying both sanitary wastewater and stormwater.  


d. Which is not part of a publicly owned wastewater treatment works that provides secondary or 
more stringent treatment.  


Non-stormwater discharge means any discharge to the municipal separate storm sewer system that 
is not composed entirely of stormwater.  


Stormwater means surface runoff and drainage of rainfall and snow or ice melt.  


Waters of the state means those portions of Lake Michigan and Lake Superior within the boundaries 
of Wisconsin, all lakes, bays, rivers, streams, springs, ponds, wells, impounding reservoirs, marshes, 
water courses, drainage systems and other surface water or groundwater, natural or artificial, public or 
private, within the state or under its jurisdiction, except those waters which are entirely confined and 
retained completely upon the property of a person.  


(c) Applicability and enforcement: This section shall apply to all discharges to the MS4 and to all 
activities that can reasonably be expected to result in a discharge to the MS4. The city shall 
administer, implement, and enforce the provisions of this section. Any powers granted or duties 
imposed upon the authorized agency may be delegated in writing by the mayor to persons or entities 
acting in the beneficial interest of or in the employ of the city.  


(d) Minimum standards: The standards set forth herein and promulgated pursuant to this section are 
minimum standards; therefore, this section does not intend nor imply that compliance by any person 
will ensure that there will be no contamination, or pollution, nor unauthorized discharges.  


(e) Discharge prohibitions:  


(1) Prohibition of illicit discharges. No person shall discharge or cause to be discharged into the 
MS4 or waters of the state located within the city any materials, including, but not limited to 
pollutants or waters containing any pollutants that cause or contribute to a violation of applicable 
water quality standards, other than stormwater. The commencement, conduct or continuance of 
any illicit discharge to the MS4 is prohibited. The following non-stormwater discharges or flows 
are generally not considered illicit discharges if done in a non-polluting manner: water line 
flushing, landscape irrigation, diverted stream flows, uncontaminated groundwater infiltration, 
uncontaminated pumped groundwater, discharges from potable water sources, foundation 
drains, air conditioning condensation, irrigation water, lawn watering, individual residential car 
washing, flows from riparian habitats and wetlands, dechlorinated swimming pool water, street 
wash water and fire fighting.  


(2) Prohibition of illicit connections.  


a. The construction, use maintenance or continued existence of illicit connections to the MS4 
is prohibited.  







 


 


  Page 29 


b. This prohibition expressly includes, without limitation, the continued use of illicit 
connections made prior to the adoption of this section, regardless of whether the 
connection was permissible under law or practices applicable or prevailing at the time of 
connection.  


c. A person is considered to be in violation of this section if the person connects a line 
conveying sanitary waste to the MS4, or allows such a connection to continue.  


(f) Monitoring of discharges and access to facilities: The authorized agency shall be permitted to enter 
and inspect private or public facilities, subject to regulation under this section, as often as may be 
necessary to determine compliance with this section. If a discharger has security measures in force 
which require proper identification and clearance before entry into its premises, the discharger shall 
make the necessary arrangements to allow access to representatives of the authorized agency.  


(g) Notification of spills: Notwithstanding other requirements of law, as soon as any person responsible 
for a facility or operation, or responsible for emergency response for a facility or operation, has 
information of any known or suspected release of materials which are resulting or may result in illicit 
discharges or pollutants discharging into stormwater, the MS4, or water of the state, said person 
shall take all necessary steps to ensure the discovery, containment and cleanup of such release. In 
the event of such a release that includes hazardous materials, said person shall immediately notify 
emergency response agencies of the occurrence via emergency dispatch services. In the event of a 
release including only non-hazardous materials, said person shall notify the authorized agency in 
person or by phone or facsimile no later than the next business day. Notifications in person or by 
phone shall be confirmed by written notice addressed and mailed to the authorized agency within 
three business days of the phone notice.  


(h) Enforcement: It shall be unlawful for any person to violate any provision of this section. Any person 
who fails to comply with the provisions of this section shall forfeit no less than $100.00 nor more than 
$500.00 and also pay fees and disbursements incurred in the prosecution of such violations. Each 
and every day during which a violation continues shall constitute a separate offense. The city may 
also institute appropriate action or proceedings to enjoin violations of this section.  


(i) Severability: The provisions of this section are hereby declared to be severable. If any provision, 
clause, sentence, or paragraph of this section or the application thereof to any person, 
establishment, or circumstances shall be held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect the other 
provisions or application of this section.  


(Ord. No. 0-23-08, § 1, 10-14-2008)  


Secs. 10-137—10-160. - Reserved.  







CITY OF STOUGHTON    RODNEY J. SCHEEL 


DEPARTMENT OF      DIRECTOR 


PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT 
381 East Main Street, Stoughton, WI. 53589 


 


(608) 873-6619     www.ci.stoughton.wi.us 


 


 


 


 


Date:  February 10, 2017 


 


To:  Public Works Committee  


 


From:  Rodney J. Scheel 


  Director of Planning & Development 


 


Subject: Ordinance Revisions 


 


The City of Stoughton operates under a DNR permit to discharge stormwater to water of the 


States.  In order to remain in compliance with our permit, we need to amend portions of our 


Erosion Control and Stormwater Ordinances, specifically as it relates to construction site 


pollution control and post construction stormwater management. 


 


The proposed revisions to the ordinances are provided for your recommendation to the Common 


Council 


 


 


 


If you have any questions, please contact me. 


 


Attachment: Draft Ordinance Amendment 
 


    



http://www.ci.stoughton.wi.us/





Public Works Committee
Tuesday, February 21, 2017 @ 6:00 PM
Hall of Fame Room – 381 E Main St


Members Present: Alderpersons Tom Majewski, Pat O’Connor, Kathleen Johnson and Mayor
Olson


Absent/Excused: Sid Boersm


Staff: Director of Public Works Brett Hebert and Vickie Erdahl


Guests: Streets Supervisor John Halverson, Alderperson Paul Lawrence, Residents Travis
Needham, Tom & Gail Gomach, Sheri Evans-Piper and Elaine Brenz


Call to Order: Majewski called the meeting to order


1) Communications: Hebert reported:


 That he had reached out to Strand to find out how they communicate with other utilities
when the street projects are going to move forward. Strand does reach out to the utilities to
see if they want to be involved as costs / access are more favorable when roads are
completely opened.


 The migration of Stormwater, plus the Tree and Sign Inventories has been completed by
MSA for GIS mapping.


 The Emerald Ash Borer RFP’s were sent to 13 vendors and are to be submitted by
Thursday, March 2nd.


 Cummins was awarded a $15,000 grant for environmentally sound projects which they will
be giving to the City to use for boardwalks.


2) Reports: Hebert stated there has only been 13 openings so far this year which is quite
normal for the season and that yard waste permits were just printed and will be on sale at the
beginning of March with the site opening on April 2nd – weather permitting.


Old Business:


3) Tree Planting Ordinance 10-2(d) Revised: Hebert made more changes to the Ordinance
removing the costs involved as each year they have the potential of changing, so will be stated
on the permit form. Also the developers will now be allowed to plant their own trees provided
the plan is approved and the arborist has reviewed the tree selections. Currently the
Ordinance is being reviewed by the City Attorney.


4) Public Works Facility Update: The Public Works has requested to continue working with
Angus Young and is waiting for Council review/approval on February 28 to move forward with
the next phase.


The Hub will be publishing an article with information for the public.


New Business:


5) Approve January 17, 2017 Meeting Minutes: Motion by O’Connor seconded by Johnson
to approve minutes. Motion carried 4-0 (w/Mayor voting yes).







6) 2017 Street Construction Plans / Sidewalk Installation Policy: Scheel stated that an open
house was held for the residents to review the plans. The streets presented are a total
reconstruction with curb, gutter and installation of sidewalks if none are present or
replacement of bad sidewalk sections. Streets reviewed were: Division St (Washington to just
beyond Forton), Brickson St (Page to dead end), Manilla St (Forton to Brickson), Henry St
(Ridge to Main), Park St (Lynn to Academy) & S Harrison St (Main to Hamilton). Scheel
stated that there was an adjustment made on S Harrison to move the sidewalk closer to the
curb and only have a four foot terrace area to address concerns raised by the adjacent
property owners. The adjustment does impact some terrace trees. Multiple residents were
concerned about safety. One property owner had installed a number of arborvitae shrubs in
the right of way and expressed interest in transplanting them. They also constructed a
retaining wall that extends into the right-of-way but the impact will be minimized by relocating
the sidewalk closer to the curb and gutter. Alderperson Johnson had looked at the area and
had a safety concern for a property. Scheel reported the City’s policy is to install sidewalks on
both sides of all streets that are being reconstruction and if there is interest to deviate from this
policy, the Common Council would need to take specific action to do so.


The property owner (Gomach) at 209 S. Harrison stated that they had their property surveyed
to find their stakes for the property lines. In discussions with the Planning Department about
five years ago, the property owner reported he had located the property lines and their
landscaping and retaining wall would be on private property; not in the right-of-way. It appears
from the City’s engineering survey that the property owner had not located the correct property
iron.


Residents in this area would like to not have the sidewalk installed stating that there is little
foot traffic and there is a sidewalk on the other side. Mayor Olson stated she understands
losing the greenspace but also meetings that she has attended state that studies show that
people want “walkability”.


Also discussed in more detail was the Henry St reconstruction where a resident has
arborvitaes in the terrace area which are not acceptable tress for that space and with the
installation of sidewalk it would be behind the trees. There is also, a triangle of vision problem
with the trees. O’Connor stated he had a safety concern with the shrubs in the right-of-way.


Alderperson Johnson would like to review the areas again


.


Motion by O’Connor, seconded by the Mayor to approve the Street Constructions Plans
as presented. Motion carried 3-1 (with the Mayor voting yes and Johnson voting no).


Scheel discussed the concept to allow angle parking on Hoel Avenue adjacent to the future
Nordic Ridge Park. The group discussion included:


 Hoel Avenue will be a heavily traveled street
 Angle Parking does create concern about safety
 Traffic calming measures for the park and Hoel Avenue should be incorporated into the


construction plans for this region
 This neighborhood is planned to have normal the standard City speed limit of 25 MPH
 Protection of as much green space as possible is important to the group


There was not a consensus whether to allow this type of street design or not and no action
was taken.







7) Construction and Post Construction Ordinance Changes: Scheel discussed the changes
made to this Ordinance in order for the City to be in compliance and keep its stormwater
permit. The changes meet the Department of Natural Resources (DNR) and Dane County
standards. Currently the City Attorney is reviewing the changes.


Motion by O’Connor, seconded by Johnson to recommend to the Common Council to
approve the changes to portions of the Erosion Control and Stormwater Management
Code Sec’s 10-122, 10-127, 10-129, 10-130 1ne 10-131. Motion carried 4-0 (with Mayor
voting yes)


8) Stormwater TMDL – Status Report: Scheel provided an up on the status of the stormwater
study that has been in process for several months. Currently, the DNR is reviewing the draft
version. The remaining draft schedule was discussed


9) Yahara Wins – Participation Report: Scheel provided a report that highlighted the national
attention this program is achieving as we work with other municipalities and agencies to
address stormwater quality improvements on a regional basis. Stoughton is an active member
of the Yahara Wins program.


10) Pollution Prevention Plan: Scheel discussed and reviewed the draft Stormwater Pollution
Prevention Plan (SWPPP) for the Public Work Facility. This plan will replace the previous
version and provides more guidance on appropriate housekeeping and maintenance
requirements for the facility than the previous version. This updated plan is a necessary
component of the City’s stormwater discharge permit. Hebert stated that the staff will have
more training on the practices outlined in the document. This document will also be
incorporated into the City TMDL Study that is currently underway.


Motion by O’Connor, seconded by Mayor Olson to recommend to the Common Council
replace the previous policy and adopt the Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan.
Motion carried 4-0 (with the Mayor voting yes).


11) Tiered structure for street opening repair: Hebert submitted a draft of the new street
opening permit in which a PASER rating will now be recorded on the permit and if the rating is
a seven (7) or higher there will be more criteria required when replacing the roadway which
are stated in the Special Provision section of the permit. The charges for the permits remains
unchanged.


Motion by O’Connor, seconded by Johnson to approve the changes to the Street
Opening Permit. Motion carried 4-0 (with the Mayor voting yes)


12) Bridge Inspection Report: Hebert provided the committee with the report from the State
from the 2016 inspections. Each bridge has some repair work that needs to be done and the
Jefferson St footbridge was recommended to be replaced. Alderman Majewski suggested that
the footbridge project be put into the CIP due to the cost of meeting the recommended
requirements and would also like to see some different options.


Item will be placed on March’s agenda.


13) Downtown Improvements (Crosswalks, Drinking Fountains, Flowers): Hebert presented
some information on costs for installing drinking fountains which he was directed to research
into at a previous meeting. The costs of a drinking fountain and installation would be







somewhere between $18,000 - $25,000 per fountain. At this time the committee feels the
costs are high and won’t pursue. Hebert also explored the costs to have stone planters
(downtown area) and costs for soil and plants. The issue still remains, once the planters were
filled who would pay for the products and also maintain them. The committee would like to
have more discussion on the subject and look into the possibilities of volunteers – such as
Garden Clubs, Chamber etc.


Item will be placed on March’s agenda.


Also the Lazzaros’s, who maintain the Memory Garden Park on S Page St have asked if there
is anyone who can volunteer to help with the park as they are elderly and it’s becoming harder
for them.


14) Discussion of Tree Pruning Procedures: Tabeled.


15) Stoughton Community Farmers Market: Hebert stated he received an email from Kevan
Bard a board member for the Stoughton Community Farmers Market requesting that the
farmers market be able to continue using Forrest St {Main to north alley} on Saturday
mornings from 8am-1pm for the period {May 27 – Oct 28, 2017}. Mr. Bard still needs to
submit a street closing form signed by the surrounding businesses that will be affected by the
closure and a valid insurance certificate of liability insurance as part of the process.


Motion by Mayor Donna Olson, seconded by Johnson to allow the closure of Forrest St
(Main to north alley) to accommodate the Stoughton Community Farmers Market on
Saturdays May 29 – October 28, 2017. Motion carried 4-0 (with the Mayor voting yes)


16) Future Agenda Items: Bridge Inspections, Planters/Flowers, Annual Stormwater Report,
Pruning Policies


Moved by O’Connor seconded by Johnson to adjourn the meeting at 7:45 pm. Motion
carried 3-0. Respectfully submitted by Vickie Erdahl Administrative Assistant – 2/22/17







t,Stafford Rosen ba u rrì Lrp
ÂT?orneys


From Matt Dregne and Vanessa Wishart 
9


Confidential Memorandum
Privileged Lawyer-Client Communication


To Rodney Scheel


Menber of LEGIIS International Network of Lau Fitns


4r4.982.2850


888.655.4752


Fax414982.2889


www.staffordlaw.com


Re


Date February 23,2017


Stormwater Ordinance Review


We were asked to review Stoughton's Erosion Control and Stormwater Management


Ordinance. The scope of our review was limited to the following issues: (l) V/hether


Stoughton's ordinance complies with the minimum requirements established by its MS4


p.rroit and Wis. Admin. Code chs. NR 216 and l5l; (2) Whether Stoughton's ordinance


complies with the minimum requirements of Dane County's stormwater ordinance; and


(3) to the extent that Stoughton's ordinance imposes standards that are more stringent


than statewide uniform standards, whether those standards are legally valid.


The scope of our review at this time did not include extensive revisions for clarity and


organizátional purposes. Stoughton's ordinance follows the organization of Dane


CJunty's ordinance. Dane County's ordinance does not always track the organization of
Wis. Admin. Code ch. NR 216 or DNR's statewide uniform standards established in NR


151 and, thus, neither does Stoughton's ordinance. In the future, Stoughton might


consider revising its ordinance to align more closely with the organization of NR 216 and


NR 151 and DNR's recently released model ordinance, because that will make it easier to


evaluate Stoughton's compliance with State law and its MS4 permit. Finally, Dane


County is developing revisions to its stormwater ordinance, so it is possible that


Stoughton may need to revise its ordinance to meet new minimum requirements


established by Dane County in the future.


LEGAL SUMMARY


In order to better understand our proposed revisions to Stoughton's ordinance, a brief


legal summary is necessary.
r-lDOCS\005 649\002 1 30\ì\4EMOS\3CC2624DOCX
0223l',n645


Madison Office Milwaukee Office


222 \íest \lashington Avenue


P.O. Box 1784


Madison, \üisconsin


5370t-r7U


608,256.0226


888.655.4752


Fax608.259.2600


wwv.staffordlaw.com


1200 North Mayfair Road


Suite 430


Milwaukee, Visconsin


,3226-)282







Stoughton is subject to an MS4 permit and must enact certain standards into its


stormwater ordinance, including requiring erosion control and stormwater management


plans and permits. The requirements in Stoughton's MS4 permit follow the requirements


outlined in Wis. Admin. Code chs. NR 216 and 151 including a requirement that


Stoughton must enact and enforce an ordinance requiring construction site and post


construction site erosion control and stormwater management.


The standards Stoughton imposes in its ordinance generally must strictly conform with
uniform statewide standards DNR has established in NR 151. However, Stoughton may


enact and enforce ordinances that are stricter than uniform statewide standards for
stormwater management if those provisions are necessary to control stormwater quantity


or flooding; comply with a federally approved Total Maximum Daily Load (TMDL)
program; or if those provisions relate to "existing development or redevelopment." 


'Wis.


Stat. $ 281.33(6). Stoughton cannot enact standards in its ordinance that we more


restrictive with respect to water quality for new development.


In addition to the uniform statewide standards, Dane County has the legal authority to
require municipalities within Dane County to comply with more restrictive standards


permissible under Wis. Stat. $ 281.33(3m) which, again, relate to water quantity or


flooding, a TMDL, or existing or redevelopment. ,See Wis. Stat. $ 33.455.


SUMMARY OF PROPOSED REVISIONS


The summary below provides aî explanation of the changes we have made in
Stoughton's stormwater ordinance. Our changes are shown in a red-lined format.


Definitions.


Most of these revisions were to bring the ordinance in line with the definitions in NR
151.002. With respect to the defînition of "Redevelopment," the definition in the current


ordinance is significantly different than the definition found in NR 151.002(39), and it is
not clear to us whether the City intends to require stricter standards for redevelopment by
using this definition. The City should evaluate the basis for this definition or consider


replacing it with the definition in NR l5 1.002(39).


Section 10-125.


We changed the reference to oothe applicable local land ordinances" to align with the same


reference in the following section.


L:\DOCS\005649\002 i 30\À4EMOS\3CC2624.DOCX
022317 t644 2







We note that Stoughton is required to regulate construction sites with land disturbing
activities of one acre or more, or those thaf are part of a larger plan of development.
Stoughton appears to have chosen to regulate activities on sites of less than one acre,


which it has the authority to do.


Section 10-126.


(1m): We removed this section because NR 15l.l2l(2)(b) explicitly exempts agricultural
facilities and practices from stormwater management plan requirements. Those facilities
are instead subject to the performance standards of subch. II of NR 15 l.


Section 10-127.


(a): We added language here that tracks the exemption language NR 216.42. Although
Stoughton's permit already exempted agricultural and silviculture activities, this
additional language should provide clarity with respect to what constitutes agricultural
activities in line with the state regulations, as well as adding other applicable exemptions
form NR 216A2(2) - (11) that arc exempt from all ordinance requirements.


(b): We made changes here to reflect the additional exemptions relating specifically to
erosion control standards under NR 15 1 .1 1 . Some of the exemptions in NR 15 1. 1 1 repeat


the exemptions in NR 216.42, so we did not repeat those exemptions already expressed in
(a).


(c) We moved the exemptions for infiltration requirements to the section on infiltration
for purposes of clarity. We left here the exemptions that apply in whole to stormwater
management provisions, as enumerated in NR l5l.I2l(2).


Section 10-129.


(bX4) and (5): We added references to the applicable statutes as well as to the
requirements in the ordinance in order to clearly ensure compliance with NR 216 and the
performance standards in NR 15 1 with respect to erosion control and stormwater
management plans.


(b)(10): We added a requirement to manage solid waste as required by Section 2.4.1.6 of
the MS4 permit.


(eX3): Stoughton is required by its MS4 permit and NR 216.07 to enact erosion control
plan requirements equivalent to those in NR 216.46. This change is to insure that a


permittee is inspecting a site after a rainfall event and maintaining records of inspection
as required under NR 216.46(9).


L :\DOC S\005 649\002 I 30\N4EMOS\3 CC2624.DOCX
0223t',l1644 J







Section 10-130.


(a): Again, Stoughton is required by its MS4 permit and NR 216.07 to enact erosion


control plan requirements equivalent to those in NR 216.46. The easiest way to ensure


compliance is to reference NR 216.46 for the required plan materials.


(d)(a): Stoughton's engineers suggested this addition regarding topography within five
feet of any property line from Dane County's ordinance. As explained above,


Stoughton's ordinance cannot be more restrictive than state standards with respect to
water quality. However, we understand this requirement to relate only to property lines


and not to water quality issues. To the extent this is true, this section is legally valid.
Stoughton should, however, consider whether the purpose of this section is water quality.


(5): We suggest requiring compliance with the applicable state regulations rather than


copying all of those regulations into Stoughton's ordinance. Because Stoughton is not
requiring more stringent erosion control standards (and generally cannot due to state law
limitations), it is simpler to just reference state code.


Section 10-131.


(a)(10): This change is to ensure compliance with the maintenance plan requirements of
the MS4 permit in Section 2.5.1.6. and NR 216.07(6).


(bXl): We added this section in accordance with the requirement of NR 216.l2I(5)


(bX2): We changed the title of this section to reflect the current version of NR l5l.l22
for clarity. V/e also added sections on in-fill and maximum extent practicable in
accordance with this regulation. We agree with the engineer's recommendation to add the


section on ofÊsite drainage.


Note regardíng oil and grease control requirement: We see no regulation in the statewide


uniform standards for oil and grease control. To the extent this is an attempt to regulate


water quality more stringently than state code, it is not legally valid. We should discuss


Stoughton's basis for including this provision.


(3): We revised the title for consistency with NR l5l.l23. We should also note that there


are exemptions provided in NR 151.I23 that Stoughton does not include in its ordinance.


It may be that these exemptions are not applicable, but Stoughton should evaluate


whether they should be incorporated into the ordinance.


L :\DOCS\005649\002 I 3 0\MEMOS\3 CC2624.DOCX
022317 t644 4







(5): The section on infiltration is more stringent than state code requires. This is


allowable because this section relates to water quantity and flooding and not to water
quality. This section is in compliance with the more stringent requirements in Dane


County's ordinance as well. Stoughton should keep in mind that Dane County is
proposing a potential change to the infiltration requirements to require 100% infiltration
volume. We added a separation distance requirement referencing NR 812.08, which is


necessary to comply with NR 216.47(4)(b). As mentioned above, we moved the


exemptions for infiltration requirements to this section.


Note regarding thermal control:'We see no regulation in the statewide uniform standards


for temperature control. To the extent this is an attempt to regulate water quality more


stringently than state code, it is not legally valid. We should discuss Stoughton's basis for
including this provision.


(6) lVe agree with the engineer's recommendation to include the protective areas


performance standard as it is laid out in NR 151.125.


L:\DOCS\005649\002 I 30\ìr4EMOS\3CC2624DOCX
0223171644 5





		6a-O-3-2017-Stormwater Ordinance Update Clean Copy.pdf

		6b--Revised Ordinance with Track Changes - 3-8-17.pdf

		6c-Construction & Post Construction Memo.pdf

		6d-PW MinFebruary 21, 2017.pdf

		6e-Stormwater Ord Memo_001.pdf






Notes from the Landmarks Commission: 
 
For your reference: The Downtown Design Overlay Zoning District is ordinance Sec.78-517.  The 
implementation procedures for the overlay district are outlined in Sec.78-913. 
 
The Landmarks Commission believes that as a community recognized state-wide for its wealth of historic 
assets, we should not take these assets for granted.  Indeed, we should be doing everything we can to 
maintain our historic character and ensure it does not disappear, bit by bit, over time.  When it comes to 
demolition of historic buildings and structures, before demolition is considered, there should be an attempt at 
repair, reuse or redevelopment of the historic building.  If those efforts are ultimately unsuccessful, only then 
should demolition be considered.   
 
The following recommendations from the Landmarks Commission are also aligned with the intent of the 
Comprehensive Plan: C. PLANNED LAND USE RECOMMENDATIONS (page 55), specifically, page 57: “…a 
downtown master plan will assure the desired character is maintained, appropriate uses and strategies for 
redevelopment of key sites are identified, historically and architecturally significant buildings are not destroyed 
in the name of redevelopment, and tools to promote redevelopment…” 
 
Thank you for the opportunity to assist you. 
 
  
Recommendations 
 
(The following sections (categorized as renovation review, design review, and project review,) directly mention 
demolition.  We did our best to identify all references to demolition).   


 
Proposed: 
Sec.78-913 (3) (c):  


Applications which involve modification to the physical configuration of a property (such as 
grading, the erection of a new building, the demolition of an existing building, or the addition or 
removal of bulk to an existing building) are subject to project review by the zoning administrator, 
landmarks commission (for locally-recognized landmarks), and the plan commission. The zoning 
administrator shall serve as the liaison between the applicant, landmarks commission, and the 
plan commission in facilitating the thorough and expedient review of an application, and shall 
ensure that the technical and procedural requirements of the zoning ordinance are met. The 
landmarks commission shall serve as the recommending final discretionary review body to the 
plan commission on locally-recognized landmarks, per Chapter 38 – Historical Preservation, Sec 
38-35 and 38-36. For all other buildings within the Downtown Design Overlay Zoning District, the 
plan commission, after consultation with the landmarks commission, shall serve as the final 
discretionary review body on aesthetics and site design, and shall focus its review on the 
application's compliance with sound aesthetic, land use, site design and economic revitalization 


practices. In part, this effort shall be guided by the comprehensive plan.  All demolition requests 


for National Register listed buildings in the Downtown Design Overlay Zoning District, shall be 
reviewed by the plan commission and the landmarks commission, each providing a 
recommendation.  Both recommendations shall be forwarded to City Council for review and final 
decision.   
 
Proposed: 
Sec.78-913 (4) (c): 
Project review. Applications which involve modification to the physical configuration of a locally-
recognized property (such as the erection of a new building, the demolition of an existing building, 
or the addition or removal of bulk to an existing building) are subject to project review by the 
zoning administrator, the landmarks commission, and the plan commission. The zoning 
administrator shall serve as the liaison between the applicant, the landmarks commission, and the 
plan commission in facilitating the thorough and expedient review of an application, and shall 
ensure that the technical and procedural requirements of the Zoning Ordinance are met.  The 







landmarks commission shall serve as the recommending final discretionary review body to the 
plan commission on locally-recognized landmarks, per Chapter 38 – Historical Preservation, Sec 
38-35 and 38-36. For all other buildings within the Downtown Design Overlay Zoning District, the 
plan commission, after consultation with the landmarks commission, shall serve as the final 
discretionary review body on aesthetics and site design, and shall focus its review on the 
application's compliance with sound aesthetic, land use, site design and economic revitalization 
practices. In part, this effort shall be guided by the comprehensive plan. All demolition requests for 
National Register listed buildings in the Downtown Design Overlay Zoning District, shall be 
reviewed by the plan commission and the landmarks commission, each providing a 
recommendation.  Both recommendations shall be forwarded to City Council for review and final 
decision.   (Refer to the procedure summary chart in Appendix F.) 
 


 
Secondary recommendation 1: 


 
Sec.78-913 (5)(a-c) Additional recommendations permitted under the design review process. 
new recommendation (d) 
Demolition permit requests must include a copy of a redevelopment plan approved by the plan 
commission and meeting all requirements as outlined in Sec.78-913 (4)(c)(2)(a-f). 
 


 
Secondary recommendation 2: 
 
Proposed: 
Sec.78-913 (4) (c)(2): 


Application requirements. In addition to the application requirements for conditional use 
permits, section 78-905, all applications for project review shall be made to the zoning 
administrator and shall be accompanied by the Building Permit application, and, in addition, shall 
be accompanied by all of the following., unless specifically waived in writing by the zoning 
administrator: 
 
Secondary recommendation 3: 
 
Explanation: In Sec.78-913, the first sentence on the first page references the comprehensive plan using 
terminology not found in the comprehensive plan.  We suggest the following wording change so that the term 
used in this ordinance matches the term used in the comprehensive plan.  


 
Proposed: 


Sec. 78-517. - Downtown design overlay zoning district. 


(1) Purpose. This district is intended to implement the urban design planned land use 
recommendations of the comprehensive plan, by preserving and enhancing the historical 
quality of the downtown, and by attaining a consistent visually pleasing image for the 
downtown area. As emphasized by said plan, this district is designed to forward both 
aesthetic and economic objectives of the city by controlling the site design and appearance 
of development within the district in a manner which is consistent with sound land use, urban 
design, and economic revitalization principles. The application of these standards will ensure 
long-term progress and broad participation toward these principles. Refer to section 78-
913 for the procedures applicable to proposal review in this overlay district. 



https://www.municode.com/library/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH78ZO_ARTIXPRAD_S78-905COUSREAPPR

https://www.municode.com/library/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH78ZO_ARTIXPRAD_S78-913DODEOVZODI

https://www.municode.com/library/wi/stoughton/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=MUCO_CH78ZO_ARTIXPRAD_S78-913DODEOVZODI





ç Stafford Rosen ba u rr LLp


Â"rk:r**ys


To Mayor Donna Olson
Common Council
Michael Stacey, Zoning Administrator
Rodney Scheel, Planning Director


Metnber of LEGUS International Netuork of Lau Finxs


414.982.2850


888.655.4712


Fax 414982.2889


rvrvrv. staffordlarr'. com


From


Date March 9,2017


Re Proposed modifications to ordinances relating to historic preservation


As requested by the City, I have reviewed the attached, recommended changes to City
ordinances prepared by the Landmarks Preservation Commission. This memo begins
with an overview of existing regulations, then summarizes the recommended changes,


and finally provides my specific comments and observations. To the extent possible, I
have limited my focus to the recommended changes to existing regulations.
Consequently, a broader review might identiff issues of concern with existing City
regulations that are not addressed by this memorandum.


OvpRvIE,w oF EXISTING REGULATORY FRAH¿T,WONT.


A brief overview of existing City regulations is needed to place the recommended
changes in context.


City ordinances address historic structures and districts in two different chapters.
Chapter 38 establishes a process for designating local "landmarks" and creating local
"historic districts." Chapter 38 requires approval from the Landmarks Commission to
undertake certain work affecting designated landmarks. Chapter 38 also requires
Commission approval to demolish a landmark (but as discussed below, prevents the
Commission from ever approving the demolition of a designated landmark).


Chapter 78, the City's zoning code, provides for an overlay zoning district called the
"Downtown Design Overlay Zoning District." Work affecting a building in that zoning
district is subject to varying levels of review, depending on the nature of the work. If a


building in this zoning district is a landmark, then the Landmarks Commission makes a
recommendation to the Plan Commission. If a building in this district is not a landmark,
then the Landmarks Commission is not involved and the Plan Commission makes the
decision.
L:\DOCS\005649\002 I 2T\ll4EMOS\3CG3076.DOCX
0309171 I 5 I


Madison Office Milwaukee Office


Matthew Dregne, City Attorn - Þ


222 Süest \íashington Avenue


P.O. Box 1784


Madison, \üisconsin


53701-r784


608.256.0226


888.655.4752


Fax608.259.2600


rwvl'. staffordlarv. com


1200 North Mayfair Road


Suite 410


Míhvaukee, lü/isconsin


53226-1282







In addition to City regulations, it is possible for individual structures to be listed on the


National Register of Historic Places, and it is possible for multiple parcels of real


property to bè included in a "historic district" listed on the National Register of Historic


Þtuô.r.- The City's current ordinances do not regulate property listed in the National


Register, but the recommended changes to the City's ordinances would change that.


The multiple layers of existing regulation has resulted in multiple categories that a


property might fall into, and sometimes overlapping and differing procedures for


ãppìo,,'ing projects. For example, as noted in my earlier memo dated February 10,2017,


if ã Uuitüng ir both a designated local landmark under Chapter 38, and located in the


Downtown Design Overlay Zoning District, under the City's current ordinances


demolition would require approval from both the Plan Commission and the Landmarks


Commission. The recommended changes to the ordinance would provide yet another


(and different) procedure for a building that is listed on the National Register.


SUVIIU¡NY OF RECOMMENDED CHNNCES


The Commission's recommendations would make the following changes to Section


78-913 of the City's ordinances:


l. For "project review," the Landmarks Commission would replace the Plan


Commission as the f,nal discretionary review body on local oolandmarks."


Z. For "project review" involving buildings that are not "landmarks," the Plan


Commission would be required to consult with the Landmarks Commission before


making a decision. Under the existing ordinance, the Landmarks Commission is


not involved in project review unless a building is a designated landmark.


3. For ,'project review" associated with a demolition request pertaining to a


"Nationai Register listed building," the Landmarks Commission and the Plan


Commission would both be required to make a recommendation to the Common


Council, and the Common Council would be required to make the final decision.


The recommendations do not provide any standards to guide those decisions'


Under the existing ordinance, the Plan Commission makes the determination, and


is required to consider whether the application complies with "sound aesthetic,


land use, site design and economic revitalizafionpractices.'


4. All demolition permits must include "a copy of a redevelopment plan approved by


the plan corrrmission and rtreeting the requirements as outlined in Sec.


7S-9i3(4)(c)(2)(a-f)." What this actually means is not clear. For example, it is
not clear whether a ooredevelopment plan" requires construction of a replacement


building?


L:\DOCS\005649\002 I 27\\4EMOS\3CG3076.DOCX 2
0309171 I 5 I







5. The zoning administrator's authority to waive specific application requirements
would be deleted.


Lncal Corr¿unNrs AND oesenvarloNs.


1. The change to require Common Council approval of demolition applies to
'oNational Register listed buildings." The language makes it unclear whether it
would apply to buildings that are not individually listed on the National Register,


but are located in a district that is listed on the National Register. Given that the


recommended language says "listed buildings," it likely would apply only to
individually listed buildings, and not to buildings that are located in a listed
historic district but not themselves individually listed.


2. The recommended changes provide no standards to guide the exercise of
discretion in deciding whether to approve demolition of a National Register listed


building. The lack of standards exposes the ordinance to legal challenge,


including a challenge under the Equal Protection Clause of the Constitution of the


IJnited States.


3. There is an inconsistency between the recommended project review procedure in


78-913(3)(c) and (aXc) (landmarks and plan commission recommendation and


decision by common council, and the procedure specifìed in 78-913(a)(c)1
(conditional use permit procedure). A similar inconsistency is present in the


existing ordinance, which I addressed in my memorandum dated January 20,2017.


4. It is noteworthy that under existing Chapter 38, a "landmark" may not be


demolished without approval from the Landmarks Commission. However, under


Section 38-37, the Landmarks Commission is effectively precluded from


approving demolition. Under that section, if there is no method of "saving the


property," or if no formal application for funds "to preserve the property is
pending," then o'the commission shall inform the building inspector to deny


issuance of the permit." If it is intended that the Landmarks Commission can


authorize demolition, then the ordinance should be changed to say that, and


standards to guide the decision should be provided.


5. The overlapping categories lead to some difficult questions. For example, what


process would apply to the proposed demolition of a building that is both a
;'landmark," and individually listed on the National Register? 'Would 


the


procedure in Sec. 38-37 apply, or would the procedure in Sec. 78'913 apply?


Similarly, what procedure would apply to a building that is: (l) individually listed


on the National Register, (2) not a designated landmark, and (3) included in a local


L:\DOCS\005649\002 I 27\N4EMOS\3CG3076.DOCX
0309171 l5l


a
J







historic district subject to a historic preservation and land usage plan under Sec.


38-41?


6. The recommended changes would require Plan Commission ooconsultation" with
the Landmarks Commission. Does this mean that the Landmarks Commission


must make a recommendation to the Plan Commission before the Plan


Commission may take action? Or does ooconsultation" mean something different
here? I recommend clarification.


7. As noted above, one recommended change is that all demolition permits must


include 'oa copy of a redevelopment plan approved by the plan commission and


meeting the requirements as outlined in Sec. 78-913(4)(c)(2)(a-f)."


a. As written, this requires Plan Commission approval of a o'redevelopment


plan" before someone could apply for a demolition permit (because the


application must include an approved plan).


b. The meaning of "redevelopment plan" is unclear. For example, it is not


clear whether a "redevelopment plan'o requires construction of a


replacement building, or could be planned open space of some kind.


c. If o'redevelopment" is intended to mean a new building, consideration


should be given to how implementation would be secured or enforced.


8. Appendix F to the zoning code, which provides a procedural checklist for zoning


matters, would need to be updated to reflect changes to the project review process.


I would be happy to discuss this matter further with you.


Attachment:
Recommended changes from Landmarks Preservation Commission


L:\DOCS\005649\002 I 27\MEMOS\3CG3076,DOCX 4
0309171151







Notes from the Landmarks Commission


For your reference: The Downtown Design Overlay Zoning District is ordinance Sec.78-517. The
implementation procedures for the overlay district are outlined in Sec.78-913.


The Landmarks Commission believes that as a community recognized state-wide for its wealth of historic
assets, we should not take these assets for granted. lndeed, we should be doing everything we can to
maintain our historic character and ensure it does not disappear, bit by bit, over time. When it comes to
demolition of historic buildings and structures, before demolition is considered, there should be an attempt at
repair, reuse or redevelopment of the historic building. lf those efforts are ultimately unsuccessful, only then
should demolition be considered.


The following recommendations from the Landmarks Commission are also aligned with the intent of the
Comprehensive Plan: C. PLANNED LAND USE RECOMMENDATIONS (page 55), specifically, page 57: "...a
downtown master plan will assure the desired character is maintained, app¡opriate-uses.and strategies for
redevelopment of key sites are identified, historically and architecturally significant buildings are not destroyed
in the name of redevelopment, and tools to promote redevelopment... "


Thank you for the opportunity to assist you.


Recommendations


(The following sections (categorized as renovation review, desiqn review, and oroiect review,) directly mention
demolition. We did our best to identify all references to demolition).


Proposed:
Sec.78-913 (3) (c):
Applications which involve modification to the physical configuration of a property (such as
grading, the erection of a new building, the demolition of an exist¡ng building, or the addition or
removal of bulk to an existing building) are subject to project review by the zoning administrator,
landmarks commission (for locally-recognized landmarks), and the plan commission. The zoning
administrator shall serve as the liaison between the applicant, landmarks commission, and the
plan commission in facilitating the thorough and expedient review of an application, and shall
ensure that the technical and procedural requirements of the zoning ordinance are met. The
landmarks commission shall serve as the re€€pffi€nding final discretionary review body {e{he
ptan-eemm+ss¡ee on locally-recognized landmarks, per Chapter 38 - Historical Preservation, Sec
38-35 and 38-36. For all other buildings within the Downtown Design Overlay Zoning District, the
plan commission, after consultation with the landmarks commission, shall serve as the final
discretionary review body on aesthetics and site design, and shall focus its review on the
application's compliance with sound aesthetic, land use, site design and economic revitalization
practices. ln part, this effort shall be guided by the comprehensive plan. All demolition requests
for National Register listed buildings in the Downtown Design Overlay Zoning District, shall be
reviewed by the plan commission and the landmarks commission, each providing a
recommendation. Both recommendations shall be fonrarded to City Council for review and final
decision.


Proposed:
Sec.78-913 (a) (c):
Project review. Applications which involve modification to the physical configuration of a locally-
recognized property (such as the erection of a new building, the demolition of an existing building,
or the addition or removal of bulk to an existing building) are subject to project review by the
zoning administrator, the landmarks commission, and the plan commission. The zoning
administrator shall serve as the liaison between the applicant, the landmarks commission, and the
plan commission in facilitating the thorough and expedient review of an application, and shall
ensure that the technical and procedural requirements of the Zoning Ordinance are met. The







landmarks commission shall serve as the r€€€r'nmending final discretionary review body te-the
ptareemm+ssþF on locally-recognized landmarks, per Chapter 38 - Historical Preservation, Sec
38-35 and 38-36. For all other buildings within the Downtown Design Overlay Zoning District, the
plan commission, after consultation with the landmarks commission, shall serve as the final
discretionary review body on aesthetics and site design, and shall focus its review on the
application's compliance with sound aesthetic, land use, site design and economic revitalization
practices. ln part, this effort shall be guided by the comprehensive plan. All demolition requests for
National Register listed buildings in the Ðowntown Design Overlay Zoning District, shall be
reviewed by the plan commission and the landmarks commission, each providing a
recommendation. Both recommendations shall be forwarded to City Council for review and final
decision. (Refer to the procedure summary chart in Appendix F.)


Secondary recommendation I :


Sec.78-913 (sXa-c) Additional recommendations permitted under the design review process.
new recommendation (d)
Demolition permit requests must include a copy of a redevelopment plan approved by the plan
commission and meeting all requirements as outlined in Sec.78-913 (a)(c)(2)(a-f).


Secondary recommendation 2


Proposed:
Sec.78-913 (a) (c)(2):
Application requiremenfs. ln addition to the application requirements for conditional use
permits, section 78-905, all applications for project review shall be made to the zoning
administrator and shall be accompanied by the Building Permit application, and, in addition, shall
be accompanied by all of the following. ing
admifüstra+erq


Secondary recommendation 3:


Explanation: ln Sec.78-913, the first sentence on the first page references the comprehensive plan using
terminology not found in the comprehensive plan. We suggest the following wording change so that the term
used in this ordinance matches the term used in the comprehensive plan.


Proposed:


Sec. 78-517. - Downtown design overlay zoning district.


(I) Purpose. This district is intended to implement the urban design planned land use
recommendations of the comprehensive plan, by preserving and enhancing the historical
quality of the downtown, and by attaining a consistent visually pleasing image for the
downtown area. As emphasized by said plan, this district is designed to forward both
aesthetic and economic objectives of the city by controlling the site design and appearance
of development within the district in a manner which is consistent with sound land use, urban
design, and economic revitalization principles. The application of these standards will ensure
long-term progress and broad participation toward these principles. Refer toSeç!_ALZB-
913 for the procedures applicable to proposal review in this overlay district.





		7-Zoning overlay district - input from Landmarks_Final.pdf

		7-Proposed modifications to ordinances relating to historic preservation Dregne Memo 3-9-17.PDF






RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL


Authorizing and directing the proper city official(s) to issue a Six Month Class “B” Fermented Malt Beverage
License to the Stoughton Merchants Baseball.


Committee Action: Public Safety Recommends Approval 4-0


Fiscal Impact:


File Number: R-19-2017 Date Introduced: March 14, 2017


WHEREAS, the City Clerk’s office has received an application for a Class “B” Fermented Malt
Beverage License for the Stoughton Merchant’s Baseball,


WHEREAS, your Public Safety Committee met on February 22, 2017 to consider the terms of the
liquor license application and upon favorable recommendation from the Public Safety committee,
recommends approval, now therefore


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city official(s) be
hereby directed and authorized to issue a Class “B” Fermented Malt Beverage License to the Stoughton
Merchants Baseball.


Council Action: Adopted Failed Vote


Mayoral Action: Accept Veto


Donna Olson, Mayor Date


Council Action: Override Vote







RENEWAL ALCOHOL BEVERAGE LICENSE APPLICATION 
Submit to municipal clerk. Read instructions on reverse side. 


For the license period beginning: S j I S ending: IQ / / 
(MM DD YYYY) (MM DD YYYY) 


(if required by ordinance) 


• Town of 


TO THE GOVERNING BODY of the: • Village 


^ C i t y of 


County of t^^^LH "^-^ Aldermanic Dist. No. 


CHECK ONE • Individual • Partnership • Limited Liability Company 


^^^Corporation/Nonprofit Organization 


Complete A or B. All must complete 0. 


A. Individual or Partnership: 
Full Name(s) (Last, First and Middle Name) Home Address 


• 


Applicant s Wl Seller s Permit No.: FEIN Number: 


LICENSE REQUESTED • 


TYPE 


• Class A beer 
FEE 


$ 


K c i a s s B beer $ f^D.co 
n Class C wine $ 


• Class A liquor $ 


• Class A liquor (cider only) $ N/A 


• Class B liquor $ 


• Reserve Class B liquor $ 


• Class B (wine only) winery $ 
Publication fee $ XC -CXb 


TOTAL FEE $ - | 0.OO 


Post Office & Zip Code 


B. Full Name of Corporation/Nonprofit Organization/Limited Liability Company •SfDUr^Dtt'tn KKJL IllCVXX-i^'O (h(L^€JoCiLL 


Address of Corporation/Limited Liability Company (if different from licensed premises) 
All Officer(s) Director(s) and Agent of Corporation and Members/Managers and Agent of Limited Liability Company: 


Title Name (inc. Middie Name) Home Address 


y President/Member : T ^ ^ 4 . . ^ Alif Vs^d.\^oua^ "^i » ^ fo^Kft-Xt <>. cAPla L l H n O i 
>.\0l>)C|fi y y i c e President/Member t>a^ YW>«Vri.\tuXfU v> t C T^iU 


s/^ecretary/Member 
V Treasurer/Member 


Agent ^ & r t » - W ({^\x\«Jc/v 
/;i;(r t-^^^^i^ 


Post Office & Zip Code 


s-^ rgt| 


Directors/Managers 


C. 1. Trade Name • <.>ot,vj K4-<n> / V W A C W <r5 
53 ra? 


Business Phone Number 


2. Address of Premises ^ 'f/ttfe PM< 600 k/Zi.eo*iY^AY\. t)r- Post Office & Zip Code ^ Vfac^ W>-A- A/'/>. O 


3. Does the applicant understand that tfiey must purchase alcohol beverages only from Wisconsin wholesalers, breweries and brewpubs? ^Ofes • No 
4. Premises description: Describe building or buildings where alcohol beverages are to be sold and stored. The applicant must 


include all rooms including living quarters, if used, for the sales, service, consumption, and/or storage of alcohol beverages and records. 
(Alcohol beverages may be sold and stored only on the premises described.) QjCYTLC/tXQtcrvA ^-\C\>\.cA ) \ClOLicA f"CXC\j 


5. Legal description (omit if street address is given above): 
6. a. Since filing of the last application, has the named licensee, any member of a partnership licensee, or any member, officer, 


director, manager or agent for either a limited liability company licensee, corporation licensee, or nonprofit organization 
licensee been convicted of any offenses (excluding traffic offenses not related to alcohol) for violation of any federal 
laws, any Wisconsin laws, any laws of other states, or ordinances of any county or munidpaiity? If yes, complete reverse side • Yes 


b. Are charges for any offenses presently pending (excluding traffic offenses not related to alcohol) against the named 
licensee or any other persons affiliated with this license? If yes, explain fully on reverse side • Yes 


7. Except for questions 6a and 6b, have there been any changes in the answers to the questiohs as submitted by you on your 
last application for this license? If yes, explain. D Yes 


8. Was the profit or loss from the sale of alcohol beverages for the previot^year reported on the Wisconsin Income or 
Franchise Tax return of the licensee? If not, explain. frV'CJrW .^QX D Yes 


9. Does the applicant understand they must hold a Wisconsin Seller's Permit? 
[phone (608) 266-2776] 0 'Yes 


10. Does the applicant understand that alcohol beverage invoices must be kept at the licensed premises for 2 years from the , 
date of invoice and made availabie for inspection by law enforcement? H i e s 


11. Is the applicant indebted to any wholesaler beyond 15 days for beer or 30 days for liquor? • Yes 


[ZTNO 


QdQo 


O N O 


Ci^No 


• NO 


• No 


H^NO 


READ CAREFULLY BEFORE SIGNING: Under penalty provided by law, the applicant states that each of the above questions has been truthfully answered to the 
best of the knowledge of the signers. Signers agree to operate this business according to law and that the rights and responsibilities conferred by the license(s), 
if granted, will not be assigned to another. (Individual applicants and each member of a partnership applicant must sign; corporate officer(s), members/managers 
of Limited Liability Com^^ieHITV/^/^sign.) 


S U B S C R I B E D i i t V l D t ^ ^ I ^ i ^ ^ E F O R E ME 


My commissS.r(^x'pires 


TO BE COMF*fe 


(Officer of Corporation/Member/Manager of Limited Liability Company /Partner) 


(Additional Partner(s)/Member/Manager of Limited Liability Company if Any) 


Datereceiv sd and filed rffVifEnuhfW^fiP*lbrl<.\\V Dale reported to council/board Date license granted 


License nun nber issued Date license issued Signature of Clerk / Deputy Clerk 


AT-115(R. 7-15) Wisconsin Department of Revenue 



lkropf

Text Box

      



lkropf

Text Box

      







Q 


O b 





		8a-R-19-2017-Stoughton Merchants Baseball Six Mos License.pdf

		8b-Stoughton Merchants 6 Mos License.pdf






City of Stoughton, 381 E Main Street, Stoughton WI 53589


RESOLUTION OF THE COMMON COUNCIL


Authorizing and directing the proper City official(s) to approve the write-off of Stoughton Utilities
delinquent account balances and invoices deemed uncollectible as of December 31, 2016.


Committee Action: 7 - 0


Fiscal Impact: $10,532.18


File Number: R-20-2017 Date Introduced: March 14, 2017


WHEREAS, Stoughton Utilities staff attempted all possible collection efforts, or received notification of
discharge of debt from bankruptcy, for customer’s account balances and invoices totaling $10,532.18, and


WHEREAS, Stoughton Utilities is required to cease collection efforts due to the legal and final discharge
of debt, and


WHEREAS, your Stoughton Utilities Committee met on February 20, 2017 to consider this request,
approved the request, and recommends approval and the adoption of the corresponding resolution, now
therefore


BE IT RESOLVED by the Common Council of the City of Stoughton that the proper city official(s) be
hereby directed to write off uncollectible customer account balances and invoices totaling $10,532.18 and
record the amount as a 2016 operating expense.


Council Action: Adopted Failed Vote


Mayoral Action: Accept Veto


Donna Olson, Mayor Date


Council Action: Override Vote







   
600 South Fourth Street 


P.O. Box 383 
Stoughton, WI  53589-0383 


Serving Electric, Water & Wastewater Since 1886 


 


Date:  February 22, 2017  
 


To:  Lana C. Kropf  


  Stoughton City Clerk  


 


From:  Brian R. Hoops  


  Stoughton Utilities Assistant Director 
 


Subject: Items for the March 14, 2017 Stoughton Common Council Meeting Packet 


 


The items from the February 20, 2017 Regular Stoughton Utilities Committee Meeting are 


enclosed.  Please include them in the March 14, 2017 Stoughton Common Council Meeting 


agenda and packet. 


Consent Agenda: 


1. Stoughton Utilities Payments Due List Report 


2. Stoughton Utilities Committee January 17, 2017 Meeting Minutes 


3. Stoughton Utilities October and November 2016 Financial Summaries 


4. Stoughton Utilities Full 2016 Statistical Information 


5. Stoughton Utilities January 2017 Statistical Information  


Business: 


1. Stoughton Utilities Bad Debt Account Write-Offs through December 31, 2016 


 


Encl. 


cc: Robert P. Kardasz, P.E. 


Stoughton Utilities Director 


Mayor Donna L. Olson 


Chairperson-Stoughton Utilities Committee 


Alderperson Tim Swadley 


President-Stoughton Common Council 


 


 


 


 







 


DRAFT STOUGHTON UTILITIES COMMITTEE REGULAR MEETING 
MINUTES 
Monday, February 20, 2017 – 5:30 p.m. 
Edmund T. Malinowski Board Room 
Stoughton Utilities Administration Office 
600 S. Fourth St. 
Stoughton, Wisconsin 
 
Members Present: Alderperson Matt Bartlett, Alderperson Michael Engelberger, 


Citizen Member David Erdman, Alderperson Greg Jenson, 
Citizen Member John Kallas, Mayor Donna Olson, and 
Citizen Member Alan Staats. 


 
Excused: None. 
  
Absent: None. 
 
Others Present: Stoughton Utilities Finance Manager Jamin Friedl, CPA, 


Stoughton Utilities Assistant Director Brian Hoops, 
Stoughton Utilities Director Robert Kardasz, P.E., and 
Alderperson Dennis Kittleson. 


  
Bad Debt Account Write-Offs Through December 31, 2016:  Stoughton Utilities 
Finance Manager Jamin Friedl and Stoughton Utilities Assistant Director Brian Hoops 
presented and discussed the Stoughton Utilities Bad Debt Account Write-Offs through 
December 31, 2016.   Discussion followed.  Motion by Alderperson Michael 
Engelberger, the motion seconded by Citizen Member David Erdman, to approve the 
Stoughton Utilities Bad Debt Account Write-offs through December 31, 2016 and 
recommend the approval and the adoption of the corresponding resolution to the 
Stoughton Common Council on March 14, 2017.  The motion carried unanimously 7 to 
0. 
 
 







 
600 South Fourth Street 


P.O. Box 383 
Stoughton, WI  53589-0383 


Serving Electric, Water & Wastewater Since 1886 


 


Date:    February 14, 2017    


To:      Stoughton Utilities Committee   


From:    Jamin T. Friedl, CPA 


Stoughton Utilities Finance Manager 


Brian R. Hoops 


Stoughton Utilities Assistant Director 


Robert P. Kardasz, P.E. 


Stoughton Utilities Director 


Subject:   Bad Debt Account Write-Offs through December 31, 2016 


Staff is requesting that the following Stoughton Utilities customer account balances and invoices totaling 


$10,532.18 be written off as uncollectible as of December 31, 2016. 


The delinquent balances on the enclosed list remain after collection efforts of at least six months in 


duration have proven to be unsuccessful.  These delinquencies have been determined to be uncollectible, 


and should be written off as such. 


Delinquent customer accounts and their associated balances will remain listed within our bad debt file.  


If a customer returns to our service territory and has previously incurred a bad debt on their account, we 


require a deposit to insure payment for future service.  In addition, if the write-off did not result from a 


bankruptcy filing, we will attempt collection of the debt as a condition of new service. 


Any listed debt that has been submitted to the Wisconsin Department of Revenue (DOR) for collection 


through their Tax Refund Intercept Program and/or State Debt Collection Initiatives will remain until 


the DOR removes the submission. 


We are requesting that the Stoughton Utilities Committee approve the Bad Debt Account Write-offs 


through December 31, 2016, and recommend the Stoughton Common Council approve the write-offs 


and adopt the accompanying resolution. 


Encl. 


 


cc: Carol Cushing 


Stoughton Utilities Collections Technician 


 


Shannon R. Gunsolus 


Stoughton Utilities Accountant II 







Date Issued:


Invoice / 


Account #: Description: Electric: Stormwater: Water: Wastewater: Total:


10/15/2012 10761 Vehicle accident - Insurance claim 1,825.60$    -$             -$             -$             1,825.60$    


2/15/2013 10859 Vehicle accident - Insurance claim 1,000.00$    -$             -$             -$             1,000.00$    


6/13/2013 10925 Vehicle accident - Insurance claim 1,455.50$    -$             -$             -$             1,455.50$    


11/12/2013 11030 Vehicle accident - Insurance claim 474.99$       -$             -$             -$             474.99$       


12/18/2013 9337-16 Uncollectable Customer Balance 150.30$       -$             -$             -$             150.30$       


7/14/2014 11355 Vehicle accident - Insurance claim 1,466.49$    -$             -$             -$             1,466.49$    


9/23/2014 7410-15 Uncollectable Customer Balance 68.18$         -$             -$             -$             68.18$         


1/21/2015 8669-15 Uncollectable Customer Balance 158.29$       -$             -$             -$             158.29$       


1/29/2015 11575 Vehicle accident - Insurance claim 52.00$         -$             -$             -$             52.00$         


3/24/2015 11613 Vehicle accident - Insurance claim 1,000.02$    -$             -$             -$             1,000.02$    


6/16/2015 7528-11 Uncollectable Customer Balance 318.79$       -$             -$             -$             318.79$       


7/1/2015 8762-12 Uncollectable Customer Balance 87.94$         -$             -$             -$             87.94$         


8/14/2015 11707 Vehicle accident - Insurance claim 647.43$       -$             -$             -$             647.43$       


9/14/2015 8725-13 Uncollectable Customer Balance 172.49$       -$             -$             -$             172.49$       


9/30/2015 7573-19 Uncollectable Customer Balance 174.87$       -$             -$             -$             174.87$       


9/30/2015 11750 Vehicle accident - Insurance claim 166.80$       -$             -$             -$             166.80$       


9/30/2015 11751 Vehicle accident - Insurance claim 44.57$         -$             -$             -$             44.57$         


11/3/2015 8659-11 Uncollectable Customer Balance 267.92$       -$             -$             -$             267.92$       


11/18/2015 11790 Vehicle accident - Insurance claim 1,000.00$    -$             -$             -$             1,000.00$    


Total to be Written Off: 10,532.18$     -$                -$                -$                10,532.18$     


Write Off Customer List
Jan-17


Excel/acctshared/monthend/write offs





		9a-R-20-2017-Resolution-Bad Debt.pdf

		9b-Utilities-Transmittal Memo.pdf

		9c-Utilities-Bad Debt.pdf



